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We are a leading UK commercial
propeity company focused on high
quality retail and London offices

Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all our stakeholders

We do this by creating Places

People Prefer

Key metrics for the vear
Portfolio valuation EPRA NAV per share!
{proportionalty conselidated')
£139bn 915p
2016: £14.6bn 2014:919p '
Underlying EPS' Carbon'intensity reduction
{index score since 2609}
20%:361p p 2018: 40%
Total accounting return' IFRS profit before tax
2.4% £195m
2006 14.2% 2015:£1,331m
' See Glossary for definitions.
For more information Feedback
We value your feedback.
You will find links Please contatt us at:
througheut this Report to
guide you to further reading Qur carporate website
ar relevant information. weww.britishland.com/
contacts

For more information
wisit our website
www.britishland.com

Foltow us an Twitter
@BritishLandPLC

o

Dividend per share

292,

20M6:28.38p

Tﬁlat property return'

3.1%

2018: 11.3%

IFRS EPS

18.8p

2014: 3L.2p

Integrated reporting

Underlying Profit'

£390m

2014: €353m

IFRS net assets

£94476m

2016: £9.,619m

Customer satisfaction'

8.1/10

2014: 790

We integrate social and environmental information throughout this
Report in tine with the International Integrated Reporting Framewurk.
This reflects how sustainability is integrated inte our placemaking
strategy, governance and business operations. Our industry-leading
sustainability strategy is a powerful toot to deliver lasting value

tor all our stakehalders.

For mare information visit www.britishland.com/sustainability



Places People Prefer
Gumtmgtheenvmunentmsndeandw!;
using our scale and placemaking expertise

Customer Orientation
Responding to changing lifestyles
Ve use our insight into customers’
needs and identity major long term
wrends [o create erwironments in
e with changing lifestyles.

(}apltal Efficiency
Disciplined use of r.ap:tal

We allocate our capital. manage
our finances and partnes with

like-mindad organisalions to deliver

sustainable long term value.

Right Piaces
Creating great environments,
inside and out

Ws design engaging, suslzimable
places which bring peopte togather
through the right mix of accupiars,

services and activities.

Expert People

The knowledge and skills to deliver
We employ Expert Peaple and
work with specialist partners

to creatensight, develop shitls
and build capability.
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Presentation of financial information

The Sroup linantial slatermnents are greparad under
IFRSwhese the Group's interesks in jomnt ventures and
funds are shown as a single line itern on the income
statemnenl and balance sheel and all subsidiarizs
are consolidated at 160%,

M iders the busi prmapallym
awopmmnllymmnhdaleﬂhasnsmsehmg
u'e stralegy, detunumng annual priurilies, making

tmen! and finending dedsions and reviewing
performance.mxsmdudesmeﬁmpssh:wenf
joint ventures and funds on a line-by-line basis and
exchurdes non-controlling interests in the Group's
subsidiaries. The financal key performance indicators
are atso presented on this basis. Refer o the Financial
review for a discussion of the IFRS resutts.

@ritish Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2017 1



Srrueedic Rejrere

BRITISH LAND AT AGLANCE

Our placemaking expertise delivers
buildings and environments that reflect
the way people work, shop and live

Total portfolio

We grovide buildings and environments
which cater o Lhe changing needs of the
people who use them. Our properiies
bring businesses and people ingether;
they are lunctional and authentic with
the right mix of socupiers. senvices and
activities and we use our placemaking
framework to enhance not just individual
buildings but the overall emdronment.

£19.1bn

assets under managennen

£139bn:

British Land ownad

of floor space

£636m:

conlracled rent

98

gccupancy rate

83

weighted average unexpired lease termn

o

To read more information about our °
performance, go to pages 28 1o 37.

' ncludes 10D% of the assels camed by
he Group's joint ventures and funds.

2 Includes the Group share of joint ventures
andhmdsanﬂududamn-umlrunng
interests in the Group's subsidiaries,

3 See Glossary for definitions.

Retail Highlights

Our Retait portiolio is focused on a network of — 1.3 million sq It of lellings and renewals
ondli-let Regional and Local centres, reflecting 11% ahead of ERV

modemn consumer lifesiyles. We provide high _ .

quality relail and leisure wilh best in dlass Muti-let ERVup 2.6%

servites mesling a range of consumer needs. We  ~  Portfolic valuation down 1.8%

— Over [t billion of capitai activity, refining
our focus on our mulb-tet portfolio

mrovede places to shop, eat and be enterlained;
places which are © rend and acressibl
and which connect with local commmunities.

O portiolio has the
potaninl to reach

60%

of the paputation

Drake Gircus

Our Regional centre in Plymouth. This yzar
onits tenth anniversary we extended our
ovenership by acquiring the New George
Street Eslate linking the retail centre and
the proposed teisure scheme, enhancing
our conlrol of Lthe environment and providing
turther scope for asset management,

www . britishtand.com/DrakeCircus

To read more information about our
Retail portfolio. go to pages 32 to 34.
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Offices

Dur Olfices portfalio is focused on our London
campuses which alse include a mix of retail,
leisure and residential 1o creals atiractive
and engaging environments. They reftect

the lifestyle of today's warkforce and appeal
to a broad range of occupiers. Quiside our
campuses, we own a nurnber of hugh quality
standalone buildings in well-connecled and
wall-managed locations.

£8.5bn

assas winder
management

65000

work across our
Gffices portiolio

100 Liverpool Street, Broadgate

Our plans at 100 Liverpool Street significantly
increase the relait offer at Broadygate and provide
high quality. llexible warkspace appealing to a
broad range of occupiers. This redevelopment,
at the gateway 1o the campus, adjacenl to the new
Crossrail stalion progresses oUrvisian to creale
awuorid- class, vibranl, mited use destination

at Broadgate.

wwrw britishland com/4081 iverpooiStreet

To read more information about our
Offices portfolio, go to pages 35 to 37.

' Following disposal of 50% interest in The Leadenhall
Budding completing alter the year end.

Campuses 78%

Highlights
- Exchangezd on the sale of 50% interest
in The Leadanhall Building for a headiine
price of £1.15 biluon [100%)

- 77600 5o #t of leltings and renewels
1.4% ahaad of ERY i the year

- Over 700,000 sq it of lettings under offer
or in advenced negoliations
- Portfolio valuziion down D.7%

1,200

differen organisations, ranging from
intermational brands to local slart-ups
are basad al e properties.

Qur places are increasingly

mixed use

Across our portiolio, we are broadeniing the
mixof yses 1o better reflect peoplie s Changmg
lifestytes. Our plans wall add dnernas, hotels,
evenls space and broader commesos] uses, in
addibon Lo 2n expanding reladl and dining offer.

Ganada Water

We are developing our masterpian for Canada
Waler, our 44 acre opportunity in L ondan, which
witl be a mixed use urban centre from the start.
Workirg with the London Borough of Southwerk
and tha local comemunity, our groposats fealyre
green and comrauraty spaces and a network of
pedeslnan links and waterways, drawing on the
heritage of the area, Qur plans indnde a hrozd
mix of potential uses including relail, teisure,
entertainment, higher educalion and workspace
alongside up to 3,500 new homes.

www britishland.com/CanadaWater

Eden Walk

Eden Walk, cur 538 80 =q it mixed use_
regeneration scheme in Kingston upon Thames
will comprise 40 new retail and restaus ant units,
38D new homes and 35,000 sq ft of high qualtily,
modern and fiexible office space, aswell a5

a cinema and public spaces lor evenls.

www.britishland.com/EdenWalk

British Land | Annual Regort and Accounts 017 3



Seeategic Report

CHARMAN'S STATEMENT

-We have led our sector in a number
of outstanding deals reflecting the
qguality of our portfolio

+

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman

Total accounting return'

2.4%

2018: W.2%

Dividend per share

292,

2016:28.38p

>33%

s repr atrass £
Committee members and dwact reporis?

Q7% ’

of all electricity we purchase comes from
reneviable sources, working towands 100%
as an RE100 partner

2 Hamp a

' Please see the Glossary lor definits

2014,

Noi many people predicled the political
oulcomes seen over the Last 12 manths, not
anly in the UK. but anound the world. It was
certainly an eventiul year

But good businesses becomne strenger when
they are put to the test and { am delighted to
report that. despile uncertainty caused by the
UK's decision to leave the EU. we have not only

.demonstrated the resilience of our business

but also shown how our strategic approach
enatles us to respond io suchissues.

in the weeks following the EU relerendum
there was a peak of uncertanty around the
futl impacts that would be felt by busi

Qur strategic appwoach is based on long

e rends. We rack consumer and occupier
expocisiiens and key themes impacting our
harsiness oy ensine wee address thess in oreating
Ptaces Peopie Prefer. As theworlds of work and
lerayre become increasingly connacted this
has ted to mur 355015 bacoming more mixed use,
sa thai prople can fulli the neads of muttiple
demands on their bme. Our London office
cathpus approach and mull-let retait centre
focus has. proved Lo be 3 real differentiator

in thes respecl, areating nol only oulstanding
buildings bt enabling us o make substantial
improvernents ta the overall eswironments

in whiels they sit.

Many of cur invesiments over the year have
bean lo stnuciure our portfolie around these
themes and of course work on the majority
of them started bafore 73 June 2014 We had
Already positioned oo business Lo respond.

So gespite tha Lnceriainty Cused, British Land
has performed well and { would tike o thank
evaryone who works for and with us lor their
contdnition durvg this ungredictable lime.
Underlying Prolit for the year was €390 million
up 7.58%. The valuation of our portiotio was
rarginally down 1.4% with EPRA NAY down
Just 0.4% at 715 pence per share wath both
ccoupier and wvestor demand remaming

good over the year. Signihcantly, valuation
perforThance in the second hall was stronger
than the fest.

The Board has recommended a fourth quarier
dradend of 7.3 pence per share making a total
of 79.2 pence for the year Together with the
muovernert in ret assel value, this brings totat
accounting returm to 2.7%. We have proposed
a first quarter dividend ol 7.52 pence per share
and 30.08 penca for the hnancial year ending
31 Manch 2018 representing a further 3%
nrease, signatifng our confidence in

Qroaving incorme over the medium term.

Lastyear | covnrnented that maore-economic and
politicat risks had affected the FTSE 100. Shares
o real estate hive been siynificantly impacted by
uncertainty. As a largely domesticatly fecused
business operating i sterling. UK RETTs are more
exposed to the implicabons of Brixit on the UK

and the UK as a whole. For us in very broad
lerms, we considered the potential impact
on consumer confidence atlecting our retail
business and whal the result could do

to business confidence, in particular the
chaoice of global organisatons lo locate
large paris of Lheir bysinesses in London.
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o y than the majonty of the FTSE 100
Experience also sh that gaps bety

share price and reparted vatues expand during
times ef uncertainly and there continues to
be a wede range of views on the polenliat
impact of the UK's decision Lg leave Eurgpe

on ow markels.

Sa white our business is m good shape we

ack Medge that the envir s more
unceriain, We have led our seclor in a number
of outstanding deatls reflecting the quality

of our portiolio. Just a couple of weeks afler
the EU referendum we exchanged on the sale
of Qebeahams’ Rlagship store on Oxford Street
fur £400 million. on tesms agreed before the vate.
And in Mardch 2017, together wath our JV pariners




Oxlord Proparties, we exthanged contracts for
the sale of The Leadenhall Building for a headline
prce of £1.19 billion, the most expensive tadlding
ever sold i the City of Longon.

We've also had good letling activity over the year:
solit evidence that our properties are delivering
what our cusiomers wanl. As a result our portfolio
isvirtualty full at 98%. In a changing world,
sustdinable places are becoming increasingly
sought after and continue lg araate value as they
are both resient and well positioned to respend
to changing cusiomer neads Wa are proactively
designing new buiddings with 2 focus on health,
wellbeing and produclivity of the consumess

and employees who will use those buldings.

In additon, inibatives to deliver our Local Charter
rnake positive local contribuytions and help our
places becume part of their local communities.

As the Government's Minimurm Energy
Elhdency Standards have the potential to alfect
proparty values, eur award-winning efficency
programme has positioned our portfolio

will and we have become a partnar of REIDD,
committed to using 1009 elaciridty from
renewable cources. Qur target for 3% of our
UK supplier warkforce v be apprentices by
2020 also aligns with Govarnment ambilions
and our Supply Chawn Charter supporied

our first Modern Slavery Act Disclosure.

We cantinue {o be recogrused for our leading
stance on sustainability issyes, following our
2016 Queen's Award for Enterprise: Suslainable
Development. Qur industry-leading energy and
carbon reductions resulled in British Land being
named Eurapean Sector Leader in the 2016
Glohal Real Estate Sustainghility Benchimark for
the third year running. and wanning the CIBSE
Testof Tima Award 2017. We have cut energy
intensity by 35% and carban intensity by 44%
across our portiolig since 2009, as wa make
strong progress towards our challenging 55%
reduction targel by 2020.

Details of the changes to our Board and
Comimitlees during the year, and since

the year end, are set ouk 1n the govarnance
reports which begin on page £0.

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman

For the Chairman’s gavernance review,
see pages 40 to §6.

Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark 20% - European sector
{eader for retail/offices llisted)

Highlights of the year

1

1.3m sq ft of lettings

across our Retail portfolio,
11% ahead of ERV

Allracling new occupiers, upsiang
2xisling reiailers and inoreasing .
letsure ardd food & beverage.
Centinuad outperformance of loaifall
and sales growth benchmarks.

Exchanged £1.5bn of asset
sales, 9% ahead of valuation
Including our 50% interest in

The Leadenhall Building for £575m,

the £400m disposal of Debenhams,
hxfard Street and £226m of superstores,
raducing supersiore waeighting in the
portfolio to 4%,

Established our Bright

Lights skills and employment
programme for our suppliers,
occupiers and local
communities

Inctudes 70 placements on our Starling
Out in Retail programme. with 75%
moving ints long termn emnployment.
1.7% apprentices in our tier 1 supply
chain pilot sludy as we work lowards
our 2020 \arget of 3%.

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

279000 s 1 of leings cenpleted
veith over 700,809 sq it under offer or
in advanced negotistons; Bis indludes
140,000 sq It of tettings at 7 Clarges
Strect and £ Kingdom Streel shorlty
afer crmpletizn on terms ahead of
pre-relerendum ERVs,

Progressing our meat
pipeline with 2.3m sq ft of
planning consents secured and
a further 1.3m sq ft submitted
includes glanning secured at

Eden Walk_ Biossom Streel

and 2&3 Finsbury Avenue and
submissaons for Meadowhall

Leisure and 1 Triton Square.

&



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Ourmltsfeﬂecttlwsigniﬁcam
demand from both occupiers and
tnvestors for the places we create

Chris Grigg
Chief Executive Qticer
We have delivered good resulls despite
Undertying Profit growth! challenges in aur markets lollowing the EY
referendyrn. Qur markets ware sirohger
7 4 than many anticipated and our strategy, which
. % positions us to benefil irom long term trends,
to £390m [2015: €363md is delivering. Rising consumer expectations,
the blurring of work and leisure bme and the
translarming impaci of technology are the
Valuation movesrent! key themes shaping demand lor our space.
Nearly one year afler the EU referendum, we
-l 4% see clear signs that the impact of these trends
d is arcelerating. driving polatisation in our
B &% reduction in EPRA NAV per share' markets. Our teasing performance has been

good. contributing io strong earnings growth:
we have intensified our focus onwhere our
Customer satisfaction’ placemaking expertise can enhanc!i value,
attracting a broader range of occupiers: and we

have sold well, providing the capital to exploit
. opporlunities we have within our pnr@loiin.
2 7510 Qur siralegy is lo differentiate our space
by providing places which reflect pegple’s

. L. changing lifestyles. We use our placemaking
Community programme beneficiaries expertise lo create greal environments both

inside and outside our buildings ~ creating
3 5 600 Ptaces People Prefer. This underpins aur
) Ty fotus on our multi-let retail properties and
tud hiseek our Landon campuses which are ncreasingty

mixed use.

w5p1204: 919p!

9 S, apprent
and schoolchildren (2014: 29.500]

investment markets were weaker in the first
half, reftecting uncertainty both before and

! Pleasa see the Glossary for definitions. alter the EU referendum, but innproved in
the second half as the UK economy proved
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resilient. Overall, our EPRA nal assel value was
down jurst 0.4% o 915 pence per shate. Retad and
Oifices vatuations were down 1.5% and 1 7%
expansion in the frst hall but modesi contractan
in the second halt. Our disposals provide Clear
evidence to supporl these valuabions.,

Qur portfolio 15 virtually full with occupancy

of 98%. Despite the tow levet of vacancy, we
signed 1.7 million 5q (L of tettings 2nd renevais
in the yzar, on avaraqge 8.0% ahead of ERV. in
both the retail and office markeis we are seeing
aningreasing focus on the best space inthe
hest localions.

in Olfces, where the resull of the EU
referendum crealed greater uncertainty, we
have seen occupiers continuing to commit, but
elten alter tongar and more thoughthul deasion
making processes. Our leasing performance
was sirong. vith space let of larms renewed
on 279000 sq it of space in the year, on average
1.8% ahead of ERV. Ths inctuded the: remaiming
space at The Leadenhall Building and Marble
Arch House. At 7 Clarges Street, the office
space was gver 80% let just lour months after
taunch. In addition. we have 700,000 sq It of
space under offer or in advanced negotiations
across our development pipeline. This intludes
102 000 sq 1t at & Kingdom Sireet where almosy
B0% of the oifice space was under offer wathin
a weelk of compleXion in Aprit 2017, on terms
ahead of pre-referendum ERVs, and 1 Triton
Squars where we are under offer on 310,000

sq 1t representing all of the office space on

the propased redevelopmenl.

Our focus on London remains. We expect London
to continue as a leading global oty refleciing its
diverse poot of intelieciual capital and repaiiation
for innovation, as well asils culture, language
and strmng requlatory and legal framewaork.
Our aclivily this year is lestament 1o the guality
of our space which reftects the needs of today's
oCcupiers. By providing space which refllects
the evolving way people are working and

" blending their work and leisure time. we help

our occupeers aliract and retain key @lenl
Dur newest spaces are mace Nexble, catering
to the demands of big and small companies wilth
the option of sherter lease term arrangements.
This year, we will be launching a branded flexible
wurkspace offer which enables us to capture
incremental demand from the increasing

ber of small busi taking space in
London as well as meeling a growing need
amongst our exisiing eccupiers for flexible
space for specific projects and tearns. We have
already agreed our first flexible workspace
tetling at 2 Finsbury Avenue, extending our
relationship with an exisng occupier at
Paddington Centrat for their digital team.

In Retail, demand remained firm in the year.
despite wider uncerlainty for constrners and
retailers alike. We Let more space on beltler
terms to 3 wider range of octupiers than in the
previcus year. This armounted lo 1.3 million sq it
af beasing, an average 10.8% shead of ERV.
Consumer spending was resilient in the months
following the EU referendum, but weaker sales




data in recent monihs suggests thal consumers
are becoming mere caulicus with higher prices
impacting disposzhle incomes. Retallers are also
arndicipating a more dellenging emaronment,
with import cost inflation, higher batiness rates
in sone areas 2nd the National Living Wage
putling pressure on Mangns.

These dynamics have increasad reiaiters’ focus
on spaca which allows tham to trade profitably
acress a range of channets. Our Regional and
Lecal porticlio supports their strategy. Our
Hagional centres provide a broader olfering,
suited to langar, Ragship steres end altracking
visiters from a wide catchment for a lenger
dwell ime. Cur Lecal centres are comvenignt
antd accessible and so they work well for click
and oollect and more ergeted shopping Lrips,
as wall as providing a range of amenttizs for
Incat communities. Cur placemaking Sctivities
2nd our community engagenrent encourage
new and repeat visits to our sites and this has
driven continued ouiperfonmancs @0 both
foolizli lzhaad of benchmnark tay 240 bps) and
retafler in-siore sales growth [220 bps ahead].

We have mads good progress on cur
davelopment pipeline. As well 35 completisns
at £ Kingdom Streel 2nd lhe offices etament of
Clarges, we commitled to the redevelopment

of 1090 Liverpost Street 2t Brozdgate and works
commenced thera in Dacember. UBS have now
vacated 800,000 sq £t of space agoss the campus
on cornpletion of thelr cooupancy of 5 Broadgate.
Lecated at tha galeway io our Broadgate
camgus and adjpcent to the new Liverpoo] Street
Crossrail sizlion, thés develepment progresses
our vision to create 3 world class, mixed use
deslination at Broadgate providing 2 range of
space, including significant additional retail
and restaurants.

Gross inveslimant activity since the start of

the year lotalied £2.0 hillion and included the
exchange of cur 50% interest in The Leadenhatt
Building, which is due to complete later this
nonth, reflecting our disciplined approach lo
capital aflocation. This project has dalivered
annusalised returns of 25% for us and our JV
partner since cur commitment in 2010 and
demonstrates how our standalone office
properties provide liquidity, allowing usto
develop and trade opportunistically. On the
retail side, we sold £881 million of single-lel
and non-core retail assels, including
Debenhams, Oxford Street for €400 miltion

and £226 million of superstares, reducing the
weighting of superstores within our portiolio

to 4%, Qur £195 million of zoguisitions were
focused on adjacendies to existing holdings,
natshly the New George Street Estate in
Plymouth 1€64 million| which complements
Drake Circus and 10-40 The Broadway

{E£49 million), adjacent to Ealing Broadway.

The nel impact of our activity was a 7.4%
increase in Underlying Profits 1o £390 million.
Like-for-like income growth of 29%. logether
wilh lower finance costs reflected in a lurther
reduction of our waighted average interesirale
to 3.1%., has maore than offset the impact of
disposals. Dhtuted underlying EPS was up

10.9% a1 37.8 pence per share. The final
dividend paymeni will be 7.3 pence par share,
bringing the ull year dividend to 29.2 pance per
share, an increase of 3.0% and condribating to
a lolat accounting refurm of 2.7%. The Board

15 proposing a quarterty diidend of 7.52 pence

par share or 30.08 pence for the coming year,

a further increase of 3.0%. The impact of recent
sales and expiries an foture profile, cur targal
payout ratio, 2nd the uncertain erironsment
influenced the Board's thinking, aswell as the
oppoertunities that we have within the parifolio
to qrow income over the madium tesm.

The impact of our investmant 2ctivity has been
to raduce our propertionally consolidzted LTV
o 299% at March 2617 from 32.1% in March
2014, This falls further to 26.9% pro forma

for the sale of The Leadenhall Building. With
our completed developments substanlially
tel, and good progress on planning and pre-let
discussions aoress the pipeline, we are

well placed 1o exploil the opfionaiily we have

to create valye and grow income. We have
identified near term and meadium term
apportunilies that enable us to apply our
devetopment and placemaking expertise

in prograssing the delivery of our strategy.

Lasl week, we otiained approval from

the London Borough of Camdean on the
redevelopment of 1 Trilon Square at Regent's
Place, where we are under offer on 2ll of the
office space. We expec! 10 commit te ths, as
weell as rafurbichments of 135 Bishopsgato and

1 Finsbury Avenue at Broadgate in the coming
months with an associated cost of < £300 million.

Looking further shead, cur medium e pipelne
covers a range of uses, including offica-ted
development in London and retail and mioced use
development across ihe courtry, rotably Eden
Walk in Kingston where we received planning
permission for our 538,000 sq it mixed use
regeneration during the year, We witl maintain
an appropriate level of development risk; for
our office-ted developments commitrent is
tikely to be influenced by the progress of pre-let
discussions. We have a disciplined approach
te capital allocation and retain flexitility to
respond lo the changing environment.

In addition, we are making piogress al Canada
Waler where we are working cliosety with key
stakeholders indluding the London Borough of
Southwark We held our fourth public consutiaBon
in May 2017 and are rargeting submission of

a planning application around the end of this
financial year. We have held discussions with
awide range of polential octupiers and have
been encouraged by the response.

British Land received the Queen's Award for
Enterprise in 2014, the UK’s highest accolade
Tor business success. One year on, we are
cantinuing lo deliver strong econamic, social
and environmental performance. Our indusiry-
leading energy and carbon reductions resulled
in Bntish Land being named Eurapean Sector
Leader in Lhe Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark for the third year running and in
the COP Clmate A List, we rank in the top 9%

of globzl companies tadkling climate change.
We have lawnched Bright Lights. our skills

2nd employmend programime halping a vade
rangz of prople inlo work within our industny.
That inclsdes within Boitish Land. ) was 2lso
particularly pleisad to announce thal we hid
updated our policy on Shared Parenta! Pay o
provrde egual enhanced benzlits for 2l parents,
onz exampte of how vwe are promating the
developrment of a diverse and indlusive team,

Outlook

1 aoking lnrweaed, the picture is a mixed ona.

Tine Birexit process has bagun bt uncertainty
willl contimese for somne considerable Gme. Though
the UK econensy kas performed weolk since the
vote, we can aagpact mone inflation and tncreasing
pressure on dispesable incomes, This will impact
consamer dehaniour and relatter profitablity.
Londan cocupiars. particularty inancal
inshifvifans, are maling contingsncy plans et
there is 2 wide renge of possible cutcomes hare.
Qur conversatians with ecoupiars tell us that

3 tange majonily continge to value Lendon and
balieve in its place 35 2 global centre, as wa do.

Although we are seetng businesses taking
tenger to commit and being more thoraugh in
assessing oplisns, we see polarisation of bath
eccupier and invester demand acceterating vath
an inoreasing leows on the best guality space.
Cur resulls show that our space tonlinues to ba
attractive o accupiers and investors alike, with
sirong teasing across the portfolio, profitable
ticpacals and materiat cutperformnance an

cur Retail operating metrics. This reflects the
continuing execution of our strategy, providing
space thal responds to changing ifestyies

2nd really hiifils customers needs.

tn this uncertain environment, we expect to
benefit from the resitience of our business, Lhe
quality of cur portfolio ard] the sirength of our
finances, Wa also look forvward with cautious
oplimism as we belizve that we can genarale
inemental returns by atlocating cagital lo
development opportunities we have created,
whitst keeping sisk at an appropriate teved and
Rexability to respend to changes in our markels.

Chris Grigg
Chiel Execuinve Olficer

For more information on Qur business
model. see pages 10and 11.

For more infurmation on gur 2017
full year resulls presentation see
wwrs britishiand.comfresults

For rore information on aur approach to
sustainability see www.britishiand.com/
sustainability

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017 7
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Qur priorities for the vear ahead

Customer Orientation
— Further develop cusiomer insighis
~  Deliver technology driven innevations

Right Places

- Deliver next steps, of the
Broadgate Masterplan

- Submit Canada Waler planning

- Deliver flexitle workspace offer

Capital Efficiency
- Beal budgel and achieve leasing largets
- Recycie capital lo improve reiurns

Expert People

- Promote aninclusive, periorrance
driven culture

- Create a more cusiomer focused
organisation

How is British Land
responding to BREXFT?

We run Brilish Land 1o take advantage of
long term Wends but alvo to be resilient,
50we are posilioned to operate in a range
of market conditions — property is a cydicat
business. The quality of the assets we

own and the strength of our Anances

serve us well as we face the poteniial
challenges of Brexit.

8 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Brexit is just one faclor inpacting our
markets. Technology is at the heart

of many far-reaching changes we are
seeing. In London, Brexl ss accelerabng
the rends we are already responding
to: hovw peophe work and live, the grovah
in creative and tech industries, and

the relative decline in gernand from
traditionat banks.

We conkinue to believe in London in the
lpng termn andg are encouraged by the
demand we are seeing from occupiers.
and nwestors Tor our buldings snce

the vote. Howaver, we have planned

for a period of uncer Lanty: we hawve
maderated our speculative development
risk and have continued Lo diversily our
olfice groupier base. We have made good
progress on leasing discussions and this.
puts us in 3 strong position to comanit

to new developments ta generate
incremental returns, white keeping

risk a1 a sensible level.

Sales gver the last year, induding

The Leadenhall Building, have reduced
our leverage fyrther puttingus i a
strong position te take agvaniage of
investment opportunieswe have
crested within our porifolio.



66

Understanding these
different stakeholders
and the reusuns why
they prefer one location
to another is what
creating Places People
Prefer is about.”

What makes British Land different?

It is the combination of 2l these Lhings

Our values

Our values underpin everything we do.
They are:

Do what is right, Work efficientty
notwhat is easy as one beamn
Make commencial Make things
decisions that create happen
tong term vatue

there longer too. Gur new Leisure Quarter

which makes us dilferent. at Glasgow Fort comprises restaurants,
We have a clear purpose at British Land to green public spaces and children’s pocket
create Places, People Preler and this drives You talk a lot about customer parks in which to gather, socialise and

the business. We have a relentless focus
on cuslomers so we create the places
they want; nol just individual buildings but
external envirpnments too - 1t's something
trefer to as ‘inside and oul’. And, we have
the scale and capabilities to deliver on

this long term approach.

This means we invest heavily in data and
insighls 0 understand whal customers
really wanl_informing where we allocate our
capital. Ttus ensures our properlies reflect
the changing way people live their lives and
provide what husinesses need 1o thrive,

By investing in well located schemes

we can creale great spaces alengside the
broad range of amenities. experiences and
services people want as their work and
home lives becoining increasingly blurred,
This is why our London campuses and
mulli-let retait centres are becoming
more diverse and mixed use,

Our operationat scale, expertise and

tong term approach mean we have the
capacily and skills Lo make the investmenis
required and 1o deliver the benelits.

focus — why is this important to
2 property investment company?

Successlul businesses understand and
deliver what their customers want_ For
us the inleresting conversation has been
defining who cur cuslomers are_IUs not
just the businesses who lease space at
our relail centres and offices but also

the peaple who werk in them, the people
who choose Lo shop and spend time there
and the local camrnunities who live in
and around them. Understanding these
different stakeholders and the reasons wiy
they prefer one tocation o another is what
creating Places Peopte Prefer is aboul.

An gulstanding place caters for all and
often increases the connection between
them. if your customers prefer your place
then your business is well positioned for
success. Thal's why we focus on long term
trends affecting how we work, shop and
live and investin our properties Lo ensure
they remain relevant 10 our customers.

This means pegpte not onty want io be in
and around our properties but want o stay

play. More car parking was also added
in response to shopper leedback. This,
with olher investments, is changing the
demographic of peaple shopping at

the centre and the retailers we attract.
In tum_ Inetfall has continued o inarease
and this is fuelling rental growth,

We are changing our London campuses o
Broadgate, once home lo predominanily
large City finandat institutions, is becorming
a seven-day-a-week location. Itis the
largest pedestrianised ¢ cial space
inLondon and is responding to the changing
needs of office vccupiers, benefiling from
its position in a dynamic pari of Landan

and the openirg of Crossmail. The waywe
are configuring buildings and olfering more
{lexible space on more Aexible lerms mean
we are already appezling lo a wider range
of sccupiers. By adding more restaurants,
shops and events we are broadening the
appeal well beyond the employees of the
businesses based there.

For more on Chris’ views see
www_britishtand.com/CEOblog

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017 9



OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We apply our placemaking expertise to our

high quality portfolio to generate enduring
demand from a broad range ofoccupwm

Hoxww we create value

We apply our placemaking
expertise to create great places
Jor modern lifestyles. These
are Places People Prefer.

Inputs

> Capital Efficiency
We linance our busi with a combination of
equity and debt. We manage the balance to adjust
the scale and risk profile of the Company.

Gur scale brings operational eflficiencies, influence
and access to opportunities, as wetl as the capadty
to invest in our portfobo.

We have choices over how to allocate our capital We can
invest in the existing portolio, develop new properties or
purchase properges. We evaluate the prospective returns of
each option 16 inform our allacalion of Capital. We also consider
reluiming surplus capilal ta shareholders.

Customer Orientation

We can choose 1o sell properbes to crystallise the value that we We understand cur
create. This provides capstat for reinvest L into opportuniies with customers’ preferences
greater praspective returns for shareholders. We montor sppartunities N 's p _
1o dispose of assets which are not aligned with cur strategic priarities and 'dmufy major long
or do Not meet our Felum aspiralions on an ongoing basis. term trends impacting our

) ] ) ] markets, to ensure that

For more information on Capital Efficiency see pages 22 and 23. the places we create and
: operate respond to people’s

Expert People
We have proven expertise in the areas required lo deliver most For more informaation on Custonmer
value from our portiolio. As well as established property skill seis Orventation see pages 18.and 17.

such a5 asset managemern and development, we are invesling
in tapabilittes required to ensure our properties meel the changing
ways that peaple work_ shop and tive including data analytics
and insights, marketing and custpmer service.

For more information on Expert Pegple see pages 24 and 25,

44 000

----- > Our relationships and pmﬁers

T cuslomes Surveys each
Our relatianships with a range of stakeholders year 1o undarstand what our
: including our customers. invesiment pariners Oocupers ahd thesr cutlomers
H L. N and amployees want from
: and the comrnunities n which we operale are our places
: key to our success. .
Far mare information on our stakeholders
see page 15,
ettt et ee et een et e et en e ia e renna e ere e et eaetasmmrasseasaseceaeneesanneennotontanrnannnanon Pnsﬂ!nmnmesfnrwrshkrhnlders

remﬁnme our relationships
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Outputs

Financial performance
Rontal ienine Broon ooy propeciies, less
operadng and finarce costs, is recogmsed
as o Underiying Profit. As @ Real Eslate
lavestment Trusk IREFT we are reguired o
dsstriinste 3 least $0% of tax exerngd property

iovasiad in anhant ivcome to sharaholdars as dradends.
EMAranMmEents aonss the
portiolioin Be Lastyeat Bther income, expenses and movemnents
in the valuation of our properies ranslate
o movament in our net asset vatue.
Far e mftmmation on our finonciat
performance see pages 371062,
Right Places We have assembled a high
Our understanding of quality portiolic on a large
jong 1erm trends and our scale. We: focus on multidet
customers bas driven a retaid across the UK and ©
focus on places inz well office-led campuses in London
connected locations where which are increasingly mixed
we can control the broader use. Qur customer focus
environment to deliver and our actions to enhance
a better experience. We our places drive enduring Positive i
apply our placemaking dewand for our properties for m‘:’ ;:kmm :
framework to create from a broad range ' ~ Dividends and long tenm capital
Piaces People Prefer. of occapicrs. grawih for shareholders
. - Engoyable. convenient experionces
For mare inforrnation an which promaote wallbeing for the
Right Places see pages 8o 21, users of o properties
~ Improving sales perlormance
and productivity for our occupiers
i - - ~ Attractive sustainable erwiramens.
. events, joba and skills development
We benefit from our scale and for ot incat commaniticn
operate our assets over the long - Profitable, coltaboraiive busiess
; >
term to create sustainable E"’_"“’ ’"""’M"'”“ ‘ s
~ Enjoyzble, engIg, Fewar
wlue ﬁl’ all stakelmldcrs. work for owr employees

British Land | Annual Report and Actounts 2017 1



Serutegi

MARKET TRENDS ANED HOW WE ARE RESPONDING

Our business is positioned to
beneﬁtﬁnmlm@tmnt-mzds

Key long term trends

The UK’s changing role in global markets

Landon will cemain a teadmg alobal city, but will face near term encertainty 2s the lerms. on
which the UK leaves the EU are negotated. Wemayseemeasedprmmmemmm
0 hnanosal servicss and related sectors ast heather London and the UK
rernain the best focation for them. The weaker cunrenty transiates io higher input costs for
relaiters, with consumars potentiatly facing (ower disposatie incomes 36 inflation incraases.

- i 1 urbanisats
The UK population is expectad W grow from 65 million in 2015 ta gver 28 mitlion in 2040,
Much af the increase is espected to be in its largest dties_particaarty London, whers
there is an increasing emphasis on attractive mixed use ervircniments.

Transformative impact of

Technalegy is nut anty drivieg changes in haw we work and shap, itis having & profound impact
on the space we accupy. The ability Lo wark remately changes how we use office space, increasing
the demand lar lexible and co-working space. In response to online, relaiters are developing
sophisticated omni-~channel strategies. and are using tedwology to respond to changing
consumar bebaviour.

The distinction between work and leisure time is increasingly blurred so peaple expect a
range of amenities and services, and 2 choice of leisure and esteriainment activities to fonm
an integrat part of the plares where they work, shop and live. This is increasing demand for
mnixed use environments which are witt integrated with tocal communities and provide a
superiar and differentiated offer.

Wellbeing and sustainability

People’'s weltheing is strengly influenced by the places where they spend time, increasingty.
companies are focusing on praviding workspaces wivich gromote weltheing and increase
productivity. The quality of workspace hes become a tool to attract and retain key tatent and
retyiters are choosing to locate their stores in enyironments which encourage customer loyatty.
There is also a growing eapectation that bulldings shoutd reflect ervisonmental coneerns.,

12 British Lang | Annual Report and Accounts 2017



How we are responding

For more information on Our
strategy see pages 14 and 15.

66

We focus on our customers and curate
the environment inside and out using
our scale and placemaking expertise.”

Investing in London

The impact on London of the UK's departure from the EU is undear, bul its capacily to evolve

is well established. We believe that the ease of domg business, #s inteltectual capatal, culture,
diversity and repulation for innovation undespics & endan's long term appeal 2s a globat husiness
and culturat centre. 58% of our portfolic is located here_and £4 billion of our assels are in

close proamity to Crossrai stations, reflecting the impariance of well-connected space to

our customers.

Getting closer to our customers .

Our sirategy is focused on our occupiers and thewr customears and emnployees. Wa have invested
in the sklls and resources we need (o better understand their preferences. In Retail, our data
profiles the demographics of local caichwnenis and our shoppers, as well as when and how
people use our centres, highlighting the potenbial of each scheme. In Othces, we survey office
workers and engage with key decision makers from a range of businesses, providing important
insight into how to improve our work spaces.

Creating great environments

Across our business, gur strateqy is to control the wider environment on both our mulii-let
retail centres and our London campuses, enabling us to deliver places which are attractive ard
authentic but also functional and effident. Cur ervironments are designed 1o reflect people’s
changing lifestyles, where the distinction between work and leisure time is increasingly blurred.
We targel a mix of occupiers and services which reflect the local catchment and provide evenls
which enlrven our places and bring communities Logeiher.

Maintaining a flexible development pipeline

Development has been an impor tant driver of returns and we have assembled a pipelinz

of opportunities across 3 range of uses In the more uncertain environment, our appelite for
speculalive development has moderated, but we are well placed to progress our plans when
the time is right. The majority of the developrment opportunities in our portfelio enhance
exisling assets

Promoting health and wellbeing

We are focused on delivering environments which promote wellbeing and improve productivity.
Social places, green spaces and initiatives which encourage active living, such as oycle racks
and fitness cenlres are incorporated where possible and wellbeing activities forr an important
part of our evants programme across both our Relail and DHices portfolios. AL 180 Liverpool
Street, we are targeting the WELL Building Standard which supporis wellbeing innovations.
thal help create healihier, more productive offices.

For more information on sustainability

see www britishland.com/sustainability
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Struresic Reporr

QUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Qur strategy
determines how we
create Places Peaple
Prefer and informs
our anmual priorities
Far our princities for the
y.aarahead gotopage 8.

For mare inlormation on
how we performed in the

last year go to page 26 and 27.

Our sustainability focus areas are
aligned to our strategic priorities:

Wdlbeing ; Community
Future- Skills and
prouofing | opportunity

For more informalion see
www. britishtand.com/
sustainabitity

Customer Qrientation

R&Gpondu)g to changing lifestyles
Expand the yse of data and anatylics,
1o drive insight

- Leverage technology 10 develop high qualuy
value-added services for our olcupiers

Right Places
Creating great environments,
inside and ont

- Focus on mixed use, lifestyle real esiate

~ Pogition our places to 2ppeat to a wider
range of oocupiers

- Develop our brand to be recognised - lowvestin adsting assets and emecging
for creating Places Peaple Prefer locations which benefit from regeneration
and growth
Places
People
Prefer
Capital Efficiency Expert People
Dnsc:phneduseofmpnal Theknmﬂedgeanddnﬂsmddnu
Recycle capital lo maximise performance Maintain and enhance key skills sels,
- ge our devel t exp e and particutarty n technology, Customer service
linancial leverage whlle maniainkng and insighls
the benefits of scale - Promoile an inclusive and diverse cullure
- Leverage expertise through cross-team
collaboralion
Creating Places This generates Together with an
Peaple Prefer long term growth optimal capital
drives enduring in rents and structure this
demand for our capital value delivers sustainable
propertics long term value
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Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all our stakeholders
We do this by creating Places People Prefer

Investment partners

— Access to high quality
real estate

= Access to our data-driven
insighls and capabilities

- Asset management and
development skills

- Sirong relationships
including with local authorities
and communilies

- Scale of investment
and financing

Investors
- Access lo high quality,
liquid real estate invesimnent
- Stable, growing dividesd
- Sustainable tong larm retums

For mare information on
our financial perfarmance
ga to pages 37 1o 42.

Suppliers

- Atndamental role as partners
in delivering placemaking

- Regutar communication
and transparency

- Consistent commeraal terms
for prolitable parinership

- Shared insights, innavalion
and skills development

For our Supply Chain Chacter
go to www.biritishland com/

suppliers

ers

- High quality, vibrant
environments which drive
lootfall and custemer loyalty,
2nd encourage employee
relention

- Flexible space which can
adapt to changing needs

- Aflordable and efficiant buildings

For more infarmation
©Oh SUr MAjor gocupiers,
sae the table on page Tha.

-

Local communities
- lnclusive places with a
sense of community
-~ Meaningiul local relatisnships
- Fadlities and services that
connect with and enhance
the overall area
— Places which suppart
tocal jobs and skills .

For sur Lacal Charter go
10 www.britishland,.com/
community

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Consumers

- Convanience and a mix
of proupiars

— Qutstanding customer
services and facilites

- High quality environments
which promote wetlbeing

- Choice of leisure and
entertainment activities

Ta read more an Customer

Qrientation go to pages
16 and 17.

Employees

- Patential io develop skills
and opportunities

- Working with some of the
hest people across the most
exciling projects in the sector

- Aninclusive environment

~ Dpporiunities to make
a positive difference

To read more on Expert
People go to pages 26 and 23,
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OUR STRATEGY - CUSTOMER ORIENTATION

Customer Onrientation

Responding to

changing lifestyles

We use our insight into customers” needs and
identity major lLong term trends to create

Who are our customers?
Qurcustamers are the end users of our
properties as well as our occupiers. We engage
wath the paople who visit our Retail centres and
our Office propenlias, as well as Lhe employees
and residents who waork and live, in and around
them. lo provide buildings and eqvironments
which meel their changing needs,

How we understand our customers
Our Insight learmn operates agross the business,
collecking and analysing data (o develop our
understanding of who our custemers are, how
they behave, what they experience and what
their preferences are. This knowledge and the
long lerm trends impaciing our business [sel
oul on page 12 toe 13} inform our approach

for each asset within our portialio.

n Retail we yse this information to undarstand
the preferences of peaple visiling our centres
and others within our calchments. This helps
us to balance our space appropriately between
relail, leisure and lood & beverage and guides
which brands we should be targeting. It provides
valuable feedback on whal people ke about our
services and enwironments and where we can
improve, and helps us assess the impact of
enhancemnents we underiake. We collect data
on tragding 2nd occupancy cosl ratios So we can
identify occupiers whe are under or over rading
and locate them in the most appropriate space.
For each centre, we are able o map the shopper
missions the centre serves and understand

the potential range of consumer journeys it can
capture, This informns our vision of how to position
the centre and whal changes we should make
to profitably grow footiall and consumer spend
for our occupiers.

The main structural shift impacting UK spending
habits i recent years has been the mcreasing
role af the internet. We create places that enable
aur occupiers ko trade profitably across a rangs
of channels. To help us better understand the
role of physical space in each channel_ we
partnered with retail consultancy GlobalOata

to quanlify the True Vatlue of Stores,

16

Understanding our
Retail customers

- We collect geographic and
" demographic data on local

catchments, inciuding online
data from c.3 million individuats

— Wa collect operational data including

fouifall, dwell time and sales on the

majorily of our multi-let assets

- We undesriake 40,000 shopper
survays each year

— We collect data from .12 million visits
to our Relail centre websites each year

Qur research {shown in the chart belowl shows
that dick and ooitect and store browesing boosts
physical sales by 5%, rising to 7% for non-
grocery spend. Click and collec! customers are
incredibly valuable because they spend around
50% more than the average shopper. including
spend in addition 1o the items being collected.

of 31l UK retadl sales touch a physical siore

True Value of Stores research

£8hn
L ]

€5hn

Refaii sales by channal

Phyacal siore
sales

Coliect sales by
msire

Clickarwd  Onlinesales  Fryevahe
browsed dl stores;

As well as henafiting from this, refailers alsn
save on delivery costs and create additional
opportunilies 1o engage consumess. The
volume of ciick and cotlect transaclions
inthe UK s loracast (o double over the mext
five years. Qur Lomat oenires already captwre
46% more ek and cotlecl transactions
Uhan the nattorat sverage evidencing how
the combenation of cor t locations,
free car parking amd quslity environments
appeal to the cick and collect shopper,

In Offices aur locs is on understanding
parspectives on the warkplace of today's office
workers. This year we launched the Office
Agenda. 3 websile where we engage with
senior dedision Makers amongst current and
prospeciive oorupiers on issuss which matter to
thern. Todiy's ootupiers see thasr workspacs as
a 100l lo attract and relain key tatent so our first
ares of focus was on what made a great place o
work_ with partioylar emphases on millennials
who will be the principal users of our Space tver
the coming decades. Our survey of aver 1,080
office workers revaaled that tocation and
transpart tinks wede the most inportant
factors, and in London, 93% of smillennials said
the ‘bwzz” of a location was aise important.
Araund 705 of London millenniats want food &
beverage aed relal opbons nearby. lustraling

€18hn

7% of total resal
waber. 0 205

- -2 Towd online siles

Samsroe: SlobaliatafBriveh Lynd, July 2016

3> Onfling siag of Store gparatites,

P Ounline that bouctes the sexe

For more information see www.britishiand. com/FrueValueofStores
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Understanding cur
Office customers

- We surveyed 1.003 ofiice workers
and decision makars en what makes
agreal ptace 1o work and a furthar
1,080 on “smart’ aifice lechnology

- We surveyed 1.500 wisitors and 250
emnployees aCross our CIMPUSES oh
their expenience

~ We measure fonifall across our cempuses

- We run focus groups wilh existing and
prospective oocupiers about whai they
need from a campus

just how doselywork and sockl ines now
overlap. This insight supports eur fecus en
campus enviroameants with a mix of retafl angd
teisure uses and inflsences the way we design
and configure new buildings.

Surveys agnoss our campuses were also
supportive of cur approach. Customer
satsfaction levels ware high scoring 4 ou? of 5,
with architecture and tandscaping, overall
atmasphere and satety all scoring pericularly
wall. The combined nal promoter score for all of
aur camnpuses [a measure of willingness among
office workers to recommend their place to vwark]
was above the benchmark for London We will
maonitor this on an engoing basis o assess our
performance in meeting custemer needs.

Locking forward, technelogy is providing

the capacily to meke our buildings 'smarter’,
with systems that can adapt automatically. for
example moderating tighting and temperature
to individual needs. This was the second arez
of focus in the Olfice Agenda and our surveys
showed that 87% of dedsion makers would
require smart taechnotogy in their office next
time they moved. This willbe 3 focus forus

in the coraing years and we will be making

100 Livarpoo! Street ‘smart frem the start’,

The Office Agenda is available at
hitp://otficeagendabritishland.com

British Land workplace survey:
What makes an ideal office?

9.
95.9]
96.2}

bnsight providad by our data atracted
GLOURETS o new forinals and lotaions.,

Ta read ahout how we creste places
which reflect customer preferences
using our placemaking framework,
golo pages 18to 21.

How we engage with our occupiers
We aim to develep collaberative tong term

el ationships with cur ecoupizrs. We have a
struchsred dliznt relationship management A
progr=mme and are hapay 1o share our insights
on consumer behaviours and today's workforce
with our cuslomers. This is particularty
benafidal inteasing discussions as wa
position our assels to appeal to a broader
range of occupters.

In Retail we use our detailed understanding

of local catchments, demographics, spending
petterns and consumer preferences to effectively
larget new occupiers. Acrass eur portfolio, we
Ganitentify areas where retailers are under-
represented, and where our catchunents match
the profile of their target shopper. Combined
with persuasive foolfall and sales data, and the
medem, altraclive environments at our cenlres,
we are successiully attraciing occupiers

o geographies and retail lormals inwhich
they have not previousty operated.

in Offices we have established a consistent
approach to our relationships with all tevals
of occupier; from our day-to-day contacts

e2.1]
91.7]

87.2
844}

o u o , [ -
logaton  Saferyd Bwrof  Nearby Quitdoar
Secyrity tr-mspnﬂ ncanon food & areas
- beveraga
BAl O London Milleanials %

From a survey of over 1 000 UK oitce d in I

2% angd JanpcTy 2014
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Reflecting custommer peeds
At Blasgeer Foot, we have
mbymmmmmm '

s € gh 10 30 RN wedwch
fhas enabled us 1w attrazt aparaigrs inciuding
Supardry. Wahaca amd Someie.

thraugh to key strategic decsion makers. We
share rends we have identified and research
we have collected around hovw workers would
like to and do usz their oifice space, This helps
our occupiers meat ha changing needs of
today's warkforce and improve thair overall
weliheing. In twm“msappfmdlhe&psus

1o refine eur gwn propositien.

One new area of forus for us is Hexidle
warkspace. Technotogy is driving dhange in
people’'s working patterns, creating demand
for quality space which & Rexdbie in terms of
toth the conhguration of he physheal space and
the tease arrangements. Qur ampus-based
office porifolio posittons us vell to address
this growing need, whether in respecit of small
and expanding businesses or larger companies
requiring added flexibiity. We have established
a small in-house team o deliver agymnst these
needs, soin Junz 2017 we will launch cur first
flexible workspace at Broadgale with plans

to roll aul this offer across our campuses.

Broadgate Estates

We provide a consistent and high standard

of custamer service across our portiolio
through our property managament compamny
Broadgate Estates, which is responsible for
the day-io-day aperation of our assets as well
as those of third parties. In actumn 2016 we
corpleied the transition of the manzgement of
our Retail assets to Broadgate Estates. Having
a single organisaticn responsible lor afl assets
enabtes us lo rapidly caplure and transfer hast
practice leamings acruss aur porifolio. World
Host' tratning and accreditation has been rolled
out across our campuses and mulii-lel retail
centres, improving the quatily of customer
service across the portfolio. Further initiatives
to enhance the experience of customers al our
places are planned.

For more information on Broadgate Estates,
go to www.broadgateestates.co.uk
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

Right Places

inside and out

which bring peopie together through
the right mix of occupiers, services
and activities.

Our strategic focus

Together with the long term trends

Isee pages 12 and 13) we have identified,
itis our understanding of our customers
that guides our sirategic focus on oealing
Places Peaple Prefer.

In Retait our approach reflects our-
understanding of the consumer, o we
provide places where people can shop,

eal. and be entertained; places which

e and aceessible, and which
connect with local communities. We dlassily
our mulli-lel relail cenires as Regional’
which attract visitors Irom a wide calchment,
and "Local’ which reflect the needs of

local communities. Qur research tells

us Lthal convenience is the mos! important
consideration in any shopping trip, sowe
contenlraie on assels which are wall served
by public infrastructure and where parking
is widely available. Our stralegy is to own
and operate assels which are the preferred
destination for the jourmeys they serve within
their catchments. We are aclive in disposing
of single-let retail assets which don't
provide opportunities lor us ta deploy

our placemnaking expertise.

in Gffices our main focus is on office-led
campuses which also include a mix of relail.
teisure and residential o create Altractive
and engaging environments. They reflect

the lifestyle of today s workfarce and appeal
to a broad range of accupiers. Together our
three London campuses, Broadgate, Regenl's
Place and Paddington Central account for
78% of our oilice portiolio lfallowing the sale
of The Leadenfsall Buildingl. We also awn
standalone assets and small clusters of
assets in strong tecations with weli-managed
environments. These provide liquidity in the
Dffices portlolio, allowing U5 1o develop and
trade imwore opportunisticalty.

Owur strategic focus

Offices

Lifesiyte oneniated mixed usz offices

uses
Large. office-led mixed use
lifestyle campuses

Standalone

Single assets and smail dusters

The importance of London

We expecl London lo remain a leading
global City. It plays hosi to an ecosystem
of interralated busir and iLs uniq
atiractions includiog the ease of doing
business,_ils inteliectyat capital, culiure,
diversily and reputation for innovation
underpin its lohg term appeal. We bebeve
it will centinue to benefit from poputation
growth and urbanisation, driving long termn
demand for our places. in the months
followang the EU referendum several
leading global businesses from a range
of sectors, including technology and
finance, reaffirmed their commitment to
London with significant leases, providirg
a strong volte of confidence in the City.

Deploving our capital

Qur focus on Right Places informs gur
investment decisions — whatl lo acquire,
wha to develop, which capital projects to
mwvest in and what to sell. All properties
that we purchase must be atigned with our
strategic focus and have the potential to
meel lhe evolving needs of changing lifestyles.
We are active in selling those properties
withiin our portfotia which do nol meet these
criteria. Developmenl and capital projects
are the main ways that we can enhance

our properties to betler meel customers’
evolving demands and have been an
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Filling into the daily life of local communilies

mportam driver af relurms. We discuss
our approach th rmanaging our capital further
in "Capital Effiiency’ on pages 22 and 23.

Creating Places People Prefer
Our undarstanding of our customers

helps us assess the potential of our assets.
For each asset, we oreale a business

pan of how 10 achieve that patential.

Our platemaking framework provides

a consistent approach to enhancng

ousr assets as We Connecl. We Design.

We Enhance and We Enliven.

Connectis about prepdding places which
are convenren and easdy accessible, with
car parking or public transport nearby; itis
also about connecting with people through
our hranding and rearkeling and leveraging
technology 1o engage with users of our
places efficiently and with impact. Importantly,
ilis also about our connections within the
community and ocoupiers. We work with
commaunily organisations. kocal people and
employers to ensure our places meel their
needs and foster a sense of community.
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Right Places is about identifying the best locations
and using our placemaking expertise to deliver

Places People Prefer.”
Retail
i Local
Missions ndide leisure -dominated Missions inctude locat neighbourhood
trips, family day cut and the big shopper, convenien] leisure and single
ticket shop item pick-up
Typically >30 ecoupiars Typically 15-30 oooupiers

Fooifall >10 mitlion, spend

Footfall often <8 million, spend

>£100 million per annum «E£100 million per annum
Drive-lime >20 minttes Drvve-ime <15 mmnutes
Dwell >60 minytes Dwetl <60 minutes

Retail oler covers mulliple categorres
with deplth of thoice in each

Retan olfer covers mulliple categones

and includes local seraces and
ameniies

Significant keisure and food & beverage,  Corvenient leisure and food &

e.g. reslaurants, anema

beverage, e.q. gym and coliee shops

Offices

The benefits of campuses
- Our campuses account for 78%
of our Offices portfolio

- Office-led, mixed use environments
reflecling changing lilestyles

- Placemaking enhances and enlivens
enviroriments. appesling to a broader
range of occupiers

- HBenelit from strong and improving
infrastructure

- Provide a range of {lexible
accomnadation for aocupiers

- Orivz long term growth through
development

The role of standalone assets
- Small clusters and more
oppertunistic single site assels

- Strong locations within
well-managed environments

- Benefil from regeneration or
infrastructure improvements

- Provide Tuture refurbishment
and developmenl potential

- Shorter mestment time horizon
providing portfolio liguidily

- Pruvite greater location Rexibitity
for occupiers

Ammating our space

“Urnibrella Sresl’ vias an engvslive, eye-caidhing
publx art instelation creatsd rom dorens of
multi-cobesred umbrellas, halping to enlnan
SosivGa our Regiona! retall cantre in Bath. Infis
Frst vl s3tes and inaliadl 3l SouthGate toreaced
by 205 1 wezs axjapad byt sdlion paopte and
wES 2 papiar futhune on Sedis! media, reaching
ranoe than 200009 Twailer users sond 40000
Faoetyonk usars.

©ur focus on design is about arealing places
which are hoth funclional and attractive, and
which complement the surrounding area.

We consult extensively with lacal people before
any development. Al Canada Water for example
we laenched our fourth public consultation

in Mzy this year ahead of submitting planning.

The next step in our framework is to enhance
our places with the right mix of uses - retail.
office, residential. places lo eat, drink and be
enteriained and to fargel an occupier mixwiuch
is appropriate for the catchment. We use our
d3ta to guide averyihing {rom the occupiers we
target to their opiimal location at our schemes.
It 2150 idorms where and how we invast in
enhancements to secure the bes! return.

Finally, our programme of events, the
hozpitality we show our cystomers and the
distinctive [zatures of our properties entiven
aur buildings and their environments, making
tham places peaple enjoy visiting, spending
time and returning to. Qur partnership with
organisations such as the Mational Literacy
Trust bath strengthens our inks with local
communilies and helps enliven our spaces.
Our work with the New Digrarna Theatre at
Regent’s Place is a good example of howwe
are enganing with lecal communities at our
campuses. We have made more than 40,000
sq Tt of rehearsal space available to them on
2 tamparary basis, areating one of the largest
performing arts spaces of its kind in Londan.
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

1

Placemaking is hoxw we create
- attractive and engaging real estate

— We =—
Connect

mw&mmnﬁwm
loral comemmity projects

ajobis cub for paople al risk

ol homelessness, 2 heatth club
furmemw;.mlw

and ace
performances for iocal residants.

524

of twr London
assels are dose to
Crossrail stations

Altracting new brands

Dur €80 million refurbishment of
Meadowhall is on track lo complete
by the end of 2017 The irnproverhents
have already helped albract nev
brands to Meadowhall mcluding
Neal's Yard, Nespresso, Hawes &
Curtis. Flannels and Ghost London.

Design

Form Authenticity Fungction
Efficient and effeclive  Howour users leel and Facilities
buildmgs and spaces  imteract with the space and salely

Commumnity and oreativity

12% poumng carers from our comanasiies,
eqi&wadﬂmumﬂyﬁasyaarm
o award T

in Kingsion, Paddmgion Central,
SouthGale in Bath, Sunvey hsays,
Whiteley in Fareham and 2 our head
office to deldiver orealnee aclvities,

5 enlivaning our plaves.

90

of ougr car parking
spaces ara free

Improvenments driving performance
We invested £4 million enhancing the

Promuting wellbeing
w:havecompletedourpmgrmmeulptﬂ:c
realm Cent

21 Paddi

mnadmmmdeulh the launch of & I(mgdom
Street. Landscaped areas and ouldoor seating
areate places to relax and spend ime outside the

office and an art installation “Message from the
Uaseen World", a bribute to compsier sorenlis)
AlanTuring noww spans Lhe wadih of Bishops,
Bridge Road enfivening the space undermnesth
the bridge.
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Over 10%

target retad, inod & baverage afocadion

W a1 Broadgate Currendy tess than 4% .
—_— e — Abroader range of uses
D planes lor the redavelopment of
L= & e
nnance TS
- a resial
_ Tias banlds oo the sucrcess of .
Cirche, which Breughl
13 e brands to Uhds pard of the
m’.adkmmmam\g
Oceupier mix  Segmeotmix  Occupier service avirand, mixed use destination
. Oooupeersand Balameolchﬁerent Suppoerting oloupars and 2t Bruadyata.
At COT ity gmants and uses Brafish Land value add
Upgrading the offer
Cinee S EEI‘!!!" o,
m?ﬂﬂwehmm—lﬁeﬂm&m
cenire o new oreupiers. This incuses
brands sttrartad by the enfanced
’ emvirqnmen Bliwing aur E35 mdlion
refurtasiunen such s SewiRpgle amd
Cias Uhtzon We have transiormed the
@\mg‘ aifffar v new brends taduding
Vizsetn, Limeyerd, Trtle
Bayandﬂn&algm
1 ting to driwe footfat
Thes year we expandsd ‘Eats from the
. Siyeet’. o pop -1 Yining concept which
sawthve British Land Rouiamaster bus visit
s 10 of cux Regronal and Local retail centres
seyving the besl in British stresi food.
The concept was extendad Later in the year,
with "Streat Sthyle'. 3 fashion and baauly
&=nt, wirich ran a0ness Sien redatl centres.
These indtiatives witon our retad, dining and
leisyre effering. and oreste reore dynamis
shopping evironments.
Bringing peaple together f
Seasonal events al Broadgate
inttuded ice skating at Christmas,

which attracted 24 000 skaters and

live screening of sporting events,

over the summer. suth as the

Qlympics and Wimnbtedon, Our .
regular evenis include Broadgate -
Live, gur weekly music session

and gur artisan food mharkets

which are held twice monthly.

L eweraging technology to enfertain

We launched Freezy's Chrisimas Afventure.
2n app-based children's game, al 21 Regional
and Local centres atruss our postholso.

The virtuat present hunt ran over six
[IE— “Ie —_— wreeks and was one of the UK's targest ever
D - - augmented reality games in relail property.

The app was downtoaded atmosi 6,000 limes

| Enliven

Customer service Events Mcmorable expericnce
- On site hospitality Bringing people logather Creating Lasting, posite
and CuStOMer Service and JUracting Wsis unpressiane
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OUR STRATEGY - CAPITAL EFFIdiENCY 66

Ovcer the last froe veurs

. we have sold £4.8 billion
of assets and reinvested
£4.2 billion in acquisitions
and developments

Capital e
Efficiency

Disciplined use of capital The scale and nature of gur particlio and

ouf actions Lo crezte ophionality in the last

We allocate capital, manage our finances few yaars mean that we have a range ol value
and partner with like-minded organisations. - enhancing development opportunilies avaitable
to deliver sustainable tang termvalue. to us. We believe that we will maximise returns
' aver the medium term by retaining Rexibility
Capital allocation 10 pursue many of these opportunities when
We take a disciplined approach to allocaling market dernand justifies i The benefits to
our capital. We forecast returms for each of shareholders of a more immediate capital Superstore sales
our propenties annually and we are active retumn are 3n important consideration for W haue comiiued bo dpose of
in seiling assets with tower pros_;peclfva . tl.re Boa:-d and thws 15 assessed periodically "“'"S m‘i relton °: Bhsammml&
returns, prowiding capital for r gside other uses of capital. our partiokio, doeen brom 1% in 2012
into opporiunities with greater retums lor .
shar eholders. Assels with lower prospeciive For more ifortnation on our developmen?
returns are generally those where we do nol pipeline, see tables on pages 27 1o 31

have the opportunity to apply our placemaking
experlise o create vaiue. This includes single-

Let retlail assets and those assets where the Debt and leverage

greatest apportunities for us ta add value have Wa employ both deht and equity financing.

already been realised, such as completed, We manage the mix betw them ko balance

well-tet developments. These properties are the benelits of leverage, including a greater

often atiractive to investors who wish to take income relum, against the risks. including Recyeting capitol

a more passie approach lo property ownershop | a magnilication of the impact of property We sold Debenhass” flagship Oxford Sireel store

or who altribule greater value lo stable income valualion movements. Loan ta value {LTV] Tor £400 miltion in Juty 2014 an ttms agreed ahead

aver a longer lime horizon. on a proportionally consolidated basis 3xwm mmmﬁ
1S 0Ur prenary measure of leverage. We focus on nAL-e? assers Bhere We Can control

We have chaoices over how (o invest our capatal aim o manage our LTV through the property the wider environment.

and assess the returns available both on cycle such that our financial position would

opporiunities within the portfolio and acquiring | remain robust in the event of a significant
new properties. Dften investments within the fall in property values. This means we do
portialio, or acquining properties adjacent to nol adjust our approach to leverage based
our erisling hotdings. result in complementary on changes in property market yields.
benefits. enhanting returns. This is particutarty

the case on our camp Fusk on nvesth s The scale of our busingss, the qualily of our
within the portfolin is 3lso moderated by assels and the security of our rental stream
our existing knowledge of praperiies and enable us to access a broad range of debt
siakeholders such as occupiers and finance on atiractive (erms. We raise debt
planning authorities. from a variety of sources across a spread
of malurilies 10 ensure the Group and s
Developmenis have delivered some of our jaint ventyres and funds are appropriately
strongest returns, bul areinherentty higher financed with aclively managed refinanding

risk, particularty when pursued ona speculatve | nisk. We also mantam significant undrawn
basis. We manage our development exposure revolving loan facilities Lo provide Nexibility
carelully, imiting it Lo 15% of the tolal portfolic | and support current and future requirements
by value with a maximum of 8% to be developed of the business.

speculatively {i.e. withcut a pre-let ur satel

at any ime. For more on our approach 1o finanting,
see pages 43 to 45 for our Financial
Qur development exposure moves within this policies and principles.

range depending on our appetite in the prevailing
market conditrans Reflecting the uncertamty
leading up o the EU referendum and since its
resull our specul Jeved pment exp -]
has moderated to just £%.
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fnvesting in h
Tog=ther with GIT our join velure
partnar, wa are invesiing m Broasgata
5 craaie a vibmant. world dass, eaied
tﬁat}amamlnmﬁmwaed

therad

tgate Cirda

and ih 2014, UBStmkow:pammﬁ

3 Broadgate. We have noy cstnmenced
tha 320 000 =g fi redewicpmant of

100 Livaerponl Straed, which intludes

40

of assets in junt ventures and lunds

Crystatlising value from development

Along with our paciners ODudord Properties, we
exchanged onthe sale of The Leadenhall Bullding this
year. Thes dacision o sell reftocied thal the grealest

nlm:ancewmmmmmdednp in 2010
and demonstrates i 5 0
for well let, welllum&edbﬂch\gsnLuuim

Sl.Sbn

assels sold since March 2014

i °
on our cifice schemes is less than 1% of design

and constraction cozks. in gur exparicms, aldngs
vth strong sustainabdily ratngs are eushar nren]
and achievwe higher oooupandy levels. YW zicn beline
that they parform belter ever tme. prosaing figh
qualily spates thal premmete wellbeing and are
futureproofad

anainst dimele change reguidiions.

4msqft

of BREEAM Excelienl silices, shops.,
homas and leisire space

s3I 48m

invested in development and acquisitons

Reducing our footprint
We are fting 24,0060 5q h of sotar

panclsal Serpentine Green, Peterborough,

following the suceess of a pitot at

Si Staphen’s, Hull This instsllation
15 expected to generate a return on
tvestinend of 13% over 75 years and
save 33090 tnnes of cartron. as vell as
reducing reliance on the National Grid.

' 7 (7

of all elacircity we purchase across
our portioba comes from renevwable
sources, working towards 160% as.
an RE1B0 partmer

Strategic partuerships

We use strategic parinzrships lo achieve
banefils of scale and spread risk  Around
40% of our cwned asseis tyfvalue are i joint
ventures and funds, induding Brozdgale

and Mezdowhall. Wilhin these structures,
we typtcally provide asset management, .
developmenl. cerparate and finance services,
for which we earn {zes. enhzncing our overall
retums and strengthaning our relatisnships
with pariners, key customers and suppliers.

Energy.efficient by design

We locurs on achieving high sustainability
standards an our developments, optimising
energy efficiency and genereting renewable
energy on site, rather than buying offsats for.
carbion neutrality. Gur approach delivers cost
savings for occupiers, well manaqged bulldings
for the people who work_ shop and liva in
them and better assets for iwestors, We have
delivered energy savings for accupiers of

£13 million over six years at the same time

as oplimising lighling, lemperatures and air
quality for wellbeing and efliciency. We are
also improving energy modelling and ploting
Soft Landings to dose the gap between
efficient design and performance.

For mare information on
carbon reduction, see page 38.
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Qur 650 emnplopees are split between British
Land and our propesty management business
Broadgate Estates. The scale of our operalions
has enabled us to attracl an expert team, with
the range of capabiitres required to ovwn and
operate real estate successhully. and respond
to the changing nz2eds of our markels. We
have access to a broad network of contacts,
spanning cccupiers, planners, Government
and local authorities. siralegic partners

ant investars, sowe See many of the most
atiractive investment oppertunities as well 3s
partnering and funding possibilities. We work
closely with indusiry sxperis and spacialists
sowe develop buildings which benefit from
the latest technologies and provide spaces
that promote wellbeing and productinty.

Our peaple sirateqgy focuses on creating

a 1earn who can deliver Places People Preder.
Nurlyring tatent and supporting development
is an important part of the culture at British
Land. We have a formal annual appraisal
process for each member of our team and
empower all employees to progress their
careers with personat development plans.

We aperale a range of online resources to help
employees develop their skills and work wth
Cambridge University ta run a Leadership in
Real Estate programme. Forty of our siatf have
benefited from this programme since it was
launched in 2014. We are also rolling oul
training focused on piching and negoliating
skills, recogmising the importance of these
aspects of customer engagemenl as well

as people management. This year we have
embedded new capabililies. particularty in
cuslomer-forused research and mavkeling,
where wa are ysing data analytics to generate
insights into customer behaviour and digitat
resources to keep them up to date with
activities around the partfolio. We are iwvesting
in technology across the business, upgrading
our core operational systems, and using
artifioal intelligence solubions to help ensure
aur network is better protected. We are mindful
of cyber security and have enhanced our

24

sacurity position a5 well 35 rolling oul cybar
awareness raining across both British Land and
Broadgate Estates. As gur busii becomes
intreasingly muxed use, we are alsp improving
the way we work across our tesms leversging
skilts from differenl parts of the business
across he whole. Dur Insight tear row works
across the portfolwo and we are increasingly
integraing operalons across oUr Core lzam
at Brilish Land and Broadgale Estalesin
functions such as technology, HR and finance.

We are focused en crealing a cutiure which
encoyrages dnersily and indusion, sa the policy
throughout British Land is to employ the best
candwlales available in every position regardiess
of sex, race. ethnic origin, nationality, colour.
age. relsgion or philosophical belief. sexval
Gremation, arnage or civil parinership,
pregnancy. aternily, gender reassignment
or disability. We are a member of Peaple

in Property, a forum for Human Resources
direclors in real estale, and a signatory to
their guidelines on diversity and mnclusion in
recryilment. We are also working tewands the
National Equality Slandard, which sets out
equality, diversity and inclusion criteria against
which businesses are assessed annually.

For the second year running, Chris Grigg
was ranked in the top 20 Ally Executives by
Quistanding and the Finanaal Times and
wa are pleased that BL Pride. our leshian,
gay. bisexual, transgender {LGBT] and allies
network established in Ne ber 2015
marched in lhe 2014 London Pride Parade
in support of the Albery Xennedy Trust.

Our women's network had a very successhul year,
hasting tour career rmanagement workshops
for women, as well as lour ln Conversalion’
evenls which are open to everyone. Parental
teave coaching has been introduced and the
mentoring scheme we pitoted lasl year for
wamen has now been rolled out across the
company, olfering guittance and support to bath
mate and fefnale employees. We currently have
three female Directors an the Board, Ludnda
Bell, Chiel Financial Officer, and Lynn Gladden
and Laura Wade-Gery, both Non-Executive
Directors. As at 31 March 2017, 47% of
employees across British Land and Broadgate
Estates were lemale, including three out of 10
of gur Executive Committee. This placed us in
the top 20 of FTSE 100 companies having at
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3%

- 1

el e o
up 3 of curr LK supplisor warlgoren by 2020

least 33% women s representation aonss
Exeoptive Commitiee members and their direct
reports as reporied in the Hampton-Alexander
Review i November 2016,

Promobing haalth and wellbeing across the
businegss 1s an important part of our culture.
Thus year we launched a Wellbeing Commiltee
winch will focus on rnental health and personal
and we have updated our policy on
Shared Paremal Pay lo provide equal enhanced
benehts for 3ll parents kllowing the birth or
adopion ol 2 child. We also sel oul new flexible
worlung guidetines and are \averaging
technology to enhance both productivity
and employee wellbeing. We encourage
the recnsitment of vnderrepresented ethnic
minoribes through our ssppert lor initlatives
such as Palhways to Property, Budding
Brunels and UrbanPlan UK These schemes all”
encourage young people from a wide range of
backgrounds lo considar careers in real estate.
Cur volunieering programme offers our stafi
cppoTiunities to connect with local communities
and develop their skills, particutarty through
skills-based volunteering for example as charity
trustees and school governors. 90% of British
Land staff look part i volirieering activities
and 16% undertaok skills-based volunteering
throughout the year.

Both British Land and Broadgate Estates
participate w the ‘Best Companies’ survey
putlished i The Sunday Tunes. This survey
provides an objective measure of employee
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Being an apprentice at
Meadowwhall and then
progressing into a permanent
role here, every day is
different and I am always
Jaced with something

nexo, which I enjoy.”

Chloe Simmonite, Customer Service
Assistant at Meadowhall

Developing future tatent

Over 100 apprentice=s have worled
on the construction of Clargas
and 4 Kingdomn Street through
our Bright Lights skitls and
employment protramme.

Encouraging areativity

We antered 2 new design parinership

with the Royal Collega of Art, the warld's
numbar gne art and dasign university.
challanging students Lo greduce creative
responses to development opportunities
acress our porifolin. This year, the first

of a three year partnership, has seen
students considar opporiunities lo innovate
in the residantial and offece markats.

Providing training, skills anst employment
Through our Bright Lights programme,
wehelped around 70young pecple embark
on careers inrelall and hospitality this year,
We delivered Bnght Lights Starting Qutin
Relatand Hospitality in partnershipwith our
retad ang {eisure ocoupiers and The Seurce
Skills Acadesrry, which we established

with Sheffietd City Cound in 2003,

5%

of Bright Lights relail and hospitaiity
trainees progressed intg employment

satisfaction and valuable leedback on howwe
can letus our actions in this area Lo improve
further. As parl of our continuois programme

of employee engagament, both British Land

and Broadgate Estates hos! company meslings
where directors update the team on business
atiivities, financal resulis and stretegy. N
Colleagues al all levels of the business are
offered the opportunity to participate in gur
well-establiched all-employes share sthemes,
aligning their inlerasts with those of shmzhalders.

We have lang recognised the impurtance of
daveleping the slatted workforce of tomorrow
for our business and markets. Through our
Bright Lights skills pragramme, we partner
with occupiers, suppliers and local authorities
to suppart apprenticeships, training, work
experience, inlernships and employment at
our places. We support the Pathways o
Property scheme, and are pleased to havwe
recruited one of the graduates to join our own
graduate schame, slarting in September 2017
Owver 21,500 pzople benelited from our skills,
employment and educational inihatives this
yaar. Qur Supply Chain Charter sats out 12
principles we regquire cur suppliers to wark
towards and wae pariner with otcupiers and
suppliers on fair warking practices including
the Living Wage Foundation.

Our respact for human rights is embadded

in how we do business. We are a signatory

to the UN Global Compact which supporis a
core sei of values, including human rights. and
have made appropriate disclosures in respect
of the Modern Slavery Act. We are alsa a

member of APRES, an aclion programme on
responsiie and ethical sourcing across the

mz s
] F M F
Baitich Land 52% 48% 52% 48%

Broadgate Eslates  53% A7T%  52% A%
Group tolal 53% 4AT9 S5 48%

Read miwe about our Expert Pzapte and
their vizws at www.hritishland.comitiogs
Ta read mmore aboul skitls development

go o www.hbritishland.com/skills

For our Supply Chain Charter go to
heitzshiand l' 5

For mmre information an the Board
of Directers see pages 56to 59,

For our Modarn Slavery Act Qisclosure
go to wwshritishland com/msa

Top 2mO

of FTSE 180 campaness having al least 13% women's

represantaivnm aCss execylive comsmiltes members
aﬂﬁmmasmmmhm
N bar 2016

Supperting wlnerable young people
Wa partner with the Albest Kennedy Trust,
2 charity which provides acommodation

and

& 51

tior 168T peopl

e

Wewarmhllﬁ-salehmm

and this year seven British Land volunteers
spent me 3t the sale house helping with
decoraiing and gardening.
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Strarcdic Repuore

OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Hoaw we performed
over the past year

Qur priorities in the year were

Customter Orientation
- Improve ynderstanding
of our Customers
- Provide spaces reftecting
evolving cusiomar needs.

ngbtl’laoes

mulli-lel Regonat and
Local lifastyla rétail

- Progress Canada Water
wisionand masterplan

C-apltal Efficiency
Detiver budgat

— Progress developments
alongside material pre-lets

— Conmmye lo sell single-let
and non-core Retail

Expert People

- linprove Company
organisational
effectiveness X

- Embed placemaking
across the husiness

What we have achieved

Alracting meRiter and lefsura eooupiers o new
formats ang naw lncabons

Prirading the Rexhility for existing oooupiers (0 upsize
30,000 cusiomers survayad as pati of ouv Toue Value
of Stores research

Argund 40 800 shopper surveys conducted across
our Retail portfulio each year

Nearly 4,000 office workers syrveyed on their
perspectives on the workplace

1.7m sq h of leasing atross Retail ard Offices. 8% ahead
el ERV

Over 100,000 5q R ol space under ofler or in advanced
negoliations across olfice developments

85,000 sq [t of space lel on a short terrn or meamwhile
basis, which enliven our campuses and address lease
2xpires while preserving oplionaliy lor redeveloprnent
Progressing our vision at Broadgate: on site aL 109
Livecpool Sireet (520000 sq f): ptanning submitiad

ona relurbishment ol 1 Firshury Avenue {288 000 sa 1)

and lﬁwlemsmusqld mthmeasedmlzll

and leisure pr at both; dona
redevelopment of 253 Finsbury Avenue I563.000 sqiy
Entire 310000 sq it of office space under offer for a pre-let
at 1 Triton Square r!deueloprnenl. Meg:nl s Place
Public realm d at Pa !
Ceniral ahead nl aunchol & ngdnm Syeet

In the Wes! End, oflice space al our recently cornpleled
developments ai 4 Kingdom Street, 7 Clarges Sireet
and Yalding House are now anound Bk el or under
offer at rents ahead of pre—referendum ERVsona ~

net effective basis

7.8% increase in Underlying Profit to £370m

£1.5bn of asset sales exchanged 9% ahead of valuation
£881m retal disposals inchiting £400m Debeshams.
Oxford Street and £226rm supersiores, increasing
mutti-tel % of retafl portlolio o 78% [March 2016: 71%)
Sale of or 56% terest in The Leadenhat! Building.
ahead of vatuation ICVV5bn. 1005}

Acg of New b Streel Ectate, adipcent

lo Drake Circus and pmposed leisure scheme
Acquisition o1 10-£0 The Broadway adjacent

{o Ealing Broadway Local mail centre

Increased our ownership of Hertules Unit Trusl

lo 76.5% (2016 75.3%)

Organisational desigl
wnplemented (o improve efficency

Combining British Landami Broadgate Estales
resgurces intt Cenires of Excellence for Technology,
HR and finance operations, leveraging best pracice
and generating efficiencies

Bright Lights skills and employment programme
launched, working with cur accupiers and suppliers

to buitd people’s skilts and help them find employment
77 people benefited from pitching and negoliating

and ITunpi

Our objective

Deliver sustainable long term
vahie for all our stakeholders

Otfice Agends website taunched to engaga vath key
decision makers at curvent and potential
Conunenced fit out of 25.000 sq {t of flexible
workspace pilo: al Broadgate lar the digita! toam
of an exisiing occupier

Commitied 1o bath the WELL standard for
Wellbeing and the WiredScore Platinurn rating
for internet canneciivity and mirastruchee at
100 Liverpool Sireet

84% shoppes score lor perveplion of welibeing
at ower Retait assels and 89% score lor
sense of prde in office space at our campuses

Planning submitted on 322,000 sq it L eisure
Hall 3t Meadowhall; on track to €
returbishmen before the end of 2017
Planning achieved for 538.000 5q It mixad use
re-develnpment of Eden Walk Kingstan
ECompleted Glasgow Fort leisure quarter and on
site with a leisure exlension al New Mersey, Speke
Pregressing plans al Canada Water with public
consultation in May 2017: on track to submit
planning around the end of the financial year
Applying our Local Charter so our places
become part ol their local comimunity
£1.7m community programene benefiung 35,400
peol[ll& 12014 £1.7m and 29,500} including children
antd pbseekers

d reality g across retail
poanaMesmbhshzdpmgrammenl
evenis it ourF Lampuses

LTV reducad 1o 29.9%h (26 9% proforma for sale of
The Leadenhall Buildingl irom 32.1% at March 2016:
no requirenent o refinance untd earty 2021

2.3m sq I of ptanning consents secured with a
further 1.3m sq [ of planning applications submitted
73% ol developments on track to achieve BREEAM
Excellent for offices and Excelient or Very Good for
retail [2015: 82%; 2020 torgel: 160%)]

35% reduction in landlord energy intensity and 46%
reduction in carbon intensity versus 2009, indax scored
{2016: 38% and £0% respechvely. 2020 target: 55K
8% ot waste diverted from Landfill (2015: 98%,:
2020 1arget: 100%|

Ranked in the top 20 of FTSE 108 companies having

at least 33% women's representation acnoss Exco

amd direct reports, per Hamplon-Alexander Review
180%: of employess and 72% of supplier workforce

al our managed properties paid the Living Wage
Foundation Wage (2015: 100% and 72% respeclively]
1.7% appreniices in pifot study of ver 1 suppliers ang
3.1% for tier 2 development suppliers {2020 targe: 3%
m&mshundempbyeeﬂmmnngard 16% skilis- -

Comiinuing focus on creating an inclusive l:ullur'ewmm
celebrates dversity. successiul year for our Women's
Nebwork antd BL Pride with Wellbeing Cormnmiltee
larmed in the year

26 British Land E Annual Report and Accounts 2017

ring in local communities [2016: B4%
and 6%, 2020 Targets: P0% and 20% respectivetyl
Policy on Shared Parentat Pay updated ko provide
equal enhanced benefils to all parents

For defimtions see Glossary on pages 177 to 179,



Our KPls — how we measure up

Total accounting return {TAR) @ - Tolalaccounting retumn is our ovaratl measure
of performance. i is the dividend paid plus
the growth in EPRA NAV per share
207 [ 2% - During the year, we generated a TAR of 2.7%.

Gur divrdend increased by 3.0% to 29.2 pence
per share and our EPRA NAV decreased by

201 SNNRTEA

20 [T 0.4% to 715 pence per share
Customer satisfaction @ Sustaivability performance @
Outof 10

- Dow Jones Sustainability index Wortld
and Europe 2016: ¥5th pereentite

- FTSE&Good 2016: F5ih percentie
- - Blobal Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark

We extensively survey the usars of our places.
m assess our performance and identify
oppotluaities for improvernent

20t4: European Seclor Leader Biversifiad

We use industry-recognised rrbices to track our
sustainabitity performance. We were pleased
to have been awardad the Queen’s Award for
Enlerpiise: Sustainabla Development 2016,

Total property returns @ Specalative development commitment
vsPD % of standing medtments
2017 R ~15Unps aT%
inline g%

N Y - 13005

We haw: underperiormed the IPD benchmark
this year reflecting our lack of exposure to
Indusirial, the strongest performing category. Our
Retail and Otfices portfolios each gutperformed

Development supports value and future income
growth, but adds risk, We keep our committed
development exposure at less than 15% of our
investment portfolio, with a maximum of 8%

their respective beachmarks by 20 hasis points developed speculatively.

and Y0 basis points respectively.

Loan to value (LTV) Weighted average interest rate @
- proportionaliv consofidated - propurtionally consofidared

Our low cost ol finance supporis our
financial performance and we have
had success in reducing it

We manage our leverage such that { TV should
not exceed a maximurn threshold (f markel
yelds were 1o rise to previous peaks.

Best Companies survey The Best Companies survey published by
The Sunday Times provides an extenswve and
nm7 B One to watch objective measure of employee engagement
One star
One star

2015 £0.6bn 3%

Links to remuneration

Long-term @ Annual

Incentive Plan Incentive awanrd

Far our Remuneration Report
see pages 731088,

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Risk indicators we monitor:

- Forecast GOP

- The margin belwaan property yields
ang} lnng tarm borvowing oosts .

— Property capital growth and ERY

growth forecasis

Management campensation linked ta:
- Total accounting rebum relative to relevant
comparalor groups

Risk indicators we monitor:

- Consumer confidence

- Employment forecasts for
relevant sectors

« Market letting risk lvacancies.
expiries, spacutative development]

Management compensation linked to:
Company regutation with all stekeholders

~ Supperting the delivery of susiainability
abjectives

Risk indicators we monilor:
-. Praperty capital relum and ERV
growth forecasis
- Total and speculative development exposure
- Progress of developments against plan

Management compensation linked to:

- Total properiy returns celative to tPD

- Execwtion of targeled aoquisitions
and disppsals

- Progress on key projects including
devalopments

Risk indicators we monitor:

- Covenant headroom

- Perrod untl refinancing is required

- Percentage of debt at fixed interest rates

Management compensation tinked ta:
- Execwlion of debt linancings
- Progress on strengthening the dividend

.Risk indicators we monitor:
- Unplanned executive departures

Management compensation linked to:
- Qualiy of people and management renewal

For how we manage risk in delivering
Our strategy see pages 44 to 53.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Our high quality portfolio continues
to generate strong income streams

with high occupancy and long leases;

we also have optionality to create
value from our development pipeline

Market and strategy

It is nearty one year since the UK voled to leave
the European Union. In that ime, the economy
has outperformed expectations, with GDP
projections lor 2017 revised upwards to an
average af 2% and unemployment below 5%.
its lowesl in over £0 years. However, we have
entered a prolonged period of uncertainty and
businesses will face a number of headwinds.
Mindful of this background, but facing 3 clear
need to move forward, oocupiers are continuing
ta make dedisions, bul plans are taking longer
ta come to fruition.

This 15 reflected in our markels. IPD capitat
returm fell 2.4% in the three months immediatety
fotlgwang the referendum but since them, six
months of positive capitat returns totalling
2.0% have pariially reversed this position

On the investment side. overallvolumes are
down year on yaar. However, London offices
saw a pick-up in activily towards the end of
2014, and momentum was sustained into 2017,
with a number ol high profile transachions,
cancluded at ight yields, generally ahead of
valuation This included gur exchange of The
Leadenhall Building, which demonstrates the
continuing appeal of high quality. well localed
progertes in London. In retail. actimty has
been subdued with a lack of quality stock being
brought (o the market. This has resulted in
limited transactional activity in multi-let retail,
although long term, secure income assets
remain attractive to a cange of investors.

We expect Brexit-related headwings to impact
qur accupational markets. in offices, it will be
same years beloce we have clarity onthe impact
of proposed requlatory changes which may
affect occupier demand. particularly in hnanaal
serices. However, demand from more creative
seclars, which has accounted for a growing
share of activity in recent years. has held up
well, and we are encouraged that a number of
{eading global companies have realfirmed their
commitment to London since the referendurn,
Vacancy rates have risen from low levels 1o

City and West End foll

£139bn

portiolio valuation

3.1%

total property return

1.1%

ERV growth

-14%

vzlualion movement

8.3 years

d average prred lease lerm

98

occupancy rate

44

carbon intensity reduction since 2009
lindex score]

development is forecast to be at elevated
levels, but we are increasingly seeing plans
being deferred or cancelled, and a significant
proportion of the supply proposed in 201%
and 2020 remains uncorntaited.

Relailers are facing a more chaltenging
environment with cost pressures from a
number of sources including the Nationat
Living Wage, business rates in some areas

and impori cost inflation. These lactors will
heighien their focus on the bast space, where
to date. demand has held upwell. Onthe

[; ver side, ¢ ce will be vulnerable
1o polilical and economic unceriaintes and we
have seen some evidence of softening retail
spend in the first part of 2017 with inflation
impacting disposabla income.

Dur view is that Brexit will accelerate
polarisation in our markets. ln recent years
we have positioned ous business to benefit
trom 1he long term rends driving demand

for space, by providing places which reftect
people’s changing lifestyles. Qur data-driven
approach to wderstanding how people use gur
properties guides investment and ptacemaking
acthaties acrass our portfolio, as weill as our
appsoadch te targating an increasingty broad
range of accupiers. We provide placeswith

a blend of uses and 2 mix of services in
attractive environments, accommaodaling

the preferences of our occupiers, their
cusiomers and employees. This is mosl
elfechive where we contro! the vader
surroundings, ynderpinning our tocus

an our mulii-let retail properties and

our Landon campuses.

Portfulio perfformance

Cur portfolio saw a valuation fall of 1.4% over
the year. The dacline of 2 8% in the first hall
was primarily due to outward yield shift of

1% bps. This was partiatly offset by a vatuation
increase of L.6% in the second half when yields
moved inwards by 5 bps and we benefited
from the impact of sales, particularty our
50% interest in The Leadenhall Building which
exchanged in the year, Vatualions were also
supported by continuing ERY growth,

The value of our Retail portiolio was down 1 8%
reflecting total outward yield shift of 14 bps.
wath 18 bps movement in the brst half partatly
afiset by 3 bps cantraction in the secand hatf.
We saw variation withun Retail, wath the strongest
ERV growth on our mutli-tet portfolio at 2 4%,
This was 2.5% al our Local centres. marginally
ahead of our Regional centres at 2.3%. We

saw a valuation [all on superstores of 5.2%,
reflecting a faltin ERVs of 4.0%. bul a stronger
performance across our other single-let assels
with valuations up more than 5%. This reflected
the sale of Debenhams, Oxford Street and
lease exlensions and remt increases agreed
across our Homebase portfolio,

Offices were down 0.7% with outward yield
movemnent of 15 bps lor the full year, as 21 bps
expansion in the lirst hall was partially offset
by 6 bps contraction in the secand half. We saw

downward pressure on market rents, bul
our expenience {oday 15 that the right space in

Vatuation €AV Total property
i Valuation rnovernent relurh

marginally above long terrll; ::v;r;gles m .hoth the ¢ Year 0 017 o Py 9"“‘{: i
eomptetions We expect further supply to apply Retatl 6,654 (1] 14 35
Offices & Rasidential 7015 10.5) 0.5 30
. . Canada Waier 2n {10.8 09 (8.1

strong locations continues o command rents

around pre-referendur levels. Centrat Londen | Yotal 13.940 .4 1 31
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the largest valuation falls on assets with aear
{erm expiries. particularty those properties
vacaled by UBS at Breadgate. Conversaly, -
UBS's new building 5 Broadgate gained in value
trenefiting from a long lease with RP1 tinkad
uplific. The value of The |_eadenhatl Building
also incraased reflecting the sale price
agreed 24% above valuation.

The value of Canada Water fetl 10.8% reflecting
the valuer's reassessmant of development
risk and returns, particularty on residential,
as well as planning and feasiility costs

not recovered. This 44-2cre regenaration
opportunity is valued al £4 million per acre.
The next major value arezlion slep s expected
to be on securing planning.

Our portlolio outperformad IPD at the sector
leved, with Relail and Offices &0 bps and 40
hps ahead on a capital returns basis. Overalt
we underperformed the IPD universe which
comprises 20% industrial assets which
performed well this year, by 110 bps on 2
capital return basis and by 150 bps on a

total return basis.

Investment and development activity
The gross value of our investraent activity
since ¥ April 2014, as measured by our share
ol acquisitions, dispasals, capital spend on
developments and other capital projecis was .
£2.0 billion. This inctudes £1.5 billion of sales on
average 9% shead of valuation, at an average
yield of 4% Net divestment was E1.1 bitlion.

Olfices sales included qur 50% interestin
The Leadenhall Building, which exchanged

in March for a headline price of £1.15 biluon
{1003}, The sale, to C € Land, is conditional
upon € C Lard shareholder approval. A Speaial
General Meeting of the shareholders of C C
Land has been convened on 18 May 2007

" to approve the transaction. We expect the
transaction to complete shortly thereafter.
This transaction is a good example of how
our standatone office assels provide tiquidity
allowing us to develop and trade opportunistically.
Al our carnpuses we focus on delivering -
sustainable returns over the long term.

In Reiail, we made £881 million of disposals,
3%t ahead of valuation, comprising £70% million
of single-let properties and £172 million of

£2 0bn

ﬁ!ﬁ.sbn
?0.5bn

quisitions and capital expend
1.7msqft
taMtings and rencwals

+8%

lettings and renewsals ahaad of ERY

muli-tel assels which were not alignad

with our strategic goals. The largest sale was
Deabenhams, Oxford Street for a price of £400
million. We sold £22% million (€410 mittion gross
value) of superstores induding £116 rillion as
parl ef aur Tesco IV swap transaction which
exchanged and compleled alter the year end,
resulting in the termination of the last of sur
feve Tesco joint ventures. kn aggregate, our
Tesca juint ventures delivered an annualised
return of over 10% since the Airst one was
eslablished in 1997, Over the tas! five years, we
have now sold over £700 mition of superstores,
reduting lheir weighting in the Retail porilolio
trom 72% 10 8% and in the overall partfalio
from 1355 to 4%. Mulli-let ratail now 3ccounts
far 78% of the Retzil portfolio increasing brom
7% at the stait uf the year.

Wz have progressed sales at each of

our residential schemes with £56 million
exchanged over Lhe year. on average 4 5%
ahead of valuation with a further £27 mitlion
reserved al prices in line with March 2017
valuations. Sales al Aldgate Place were
exchanged at prices in line with vatuation,
leaving just one apartmant to sell. At The

Retat Offices Residential  Canada Water Tozal
From 1 April 2014 €m £m £m £m £m
Purchases' 187 - - 8 195
Sales\? (881) 1669} (56} - 11,5451
Development Spend 20 132 2 10 183
Capitat Spend Nn ] - - 109
Netinvestment {583} 1459 {35) "o18 1,05%
Gross Investment 1179 759 77 18 2,033

©On a proporiionatly consobdated basis including the Group's share of joint venlvres and funds

* indudes (43m acquisilions and £116m disposals that exchanged and completed post year end as part
of the Tesco JV swap wransaction resulling in a net £73m disposal of superstore assets: also includes
a further £E4%n soquisition that exchanged and compteted post year end,

* (Hwhich, £575m Offices sales and E19mn Resid:

ial sales compt

ing post year end.

British Land i Annuat Report and Accounts 2017

Hempel Coliedlion, sales aocelerated ioflowing
the taunch in March 2017, and a reduction in
prices by 10%,. Ar Clarges, Mayfair we intend lo
raarket the remaning 11 aparimants lollowing
completion in late 2017 bul we agreed the-sale
ol one of the larger apariments | the year ahead
of valuation following a one-olf approach. This
actvity reduces our residential praperiies o
selt 1o £210 milion of which E£150 railtion is
atClarges.

Qur £193 miilian of acquisitions in the year were
foaussed on adjacendes tu exrsting haldings.
natably our £44 enitlion acquickion of ke New
Gaorge Street Estale in Plymouth which lies
between Drake Circus and our propesed leisure
scheme and nar £49 million purchase of 40
The Broadway, Ealing which is adjacan? to our
Ealing Broadway Local retail centre. In both
cases these aoquisitions complement znd
enhance ey existing plans.

Davalopment spand totalled E183 millicn in the
year. We completed almost 200,800 sq fi of office
space at & Kingdam Street, Paddington Centrat
and 7 Clarges Streel and 187 apartments

al Aldgale Place [Phase 1) and The Hampel
Collection. Capital expenditure enhanding our
assets was £107 million, induding extensions
and unil reconfiguraions at our mulli-lel retad
assels with directly assocated inoome vplilts.
Wz have invested £44 million improving our retail
emnvironments, holably at Meadowhall which
a2ccounted for £23 millien, as pariof cur £460
mitlion [100%) refurbishment. This complates

at the end of 2017, and is Lhe most significaat
investment in the cenlre since it openedin 1990,
ensuring that it cantinues to meet consemers’
evotving expectations. We are atready seeing a
goed response from occupiers with 37 teng term
lettings and renewals signed here in the year.
Wa hawe also invested £5 millinn enhandng the
public reatm al our Landon campuses, primarily
Paddington Central_ as part of a £12 mitlion
investment programme.

Following development campletions, our
speculative development exposure has reduced
1o below 4%, This is well within our iniernal

risk thresheld for speculative development.
This threshold was reduced to 8% of overall
portfolio value Irem 10%in the year, rellecting
a moderalion of our appetite for speculative
development risk given uncertainty in our
markets. Qur most significant commitment

is 100 Liverpoot Sireet at Broadgale:; tolalling
520,000 s5q Rt_ including 96,600 sq ft of retail.
Itis due to complete at the end of 2619, with
costs to come af £152 miltion |British Land
share]. We also commenced a 6,000 sq f
leisure development al New Mersey, Speke
which is largely pre-let and expect to complete
the residenlial element of Clarges, Mayfair
Later this year.

Construciion cost lerecasts continue o
suggest a slowdown in the rate of growth over
Lhis year and next, despile increasing pressure
on mput costs. Jur experience suggests that

‘I casl inflation is marginalty lower than il has
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Devedopmeats
Briash Land share
Capren Cost tn B¢ ey Residental Spac

Sqf valur  opmpiEe R underoller  exchanged L
AL 1 March 2017 B0 Em m m £ Om %
Comnpleled in yaar 489 343 a7 15 n -
Committed £70 478 28 2 1 278 4%
Mear term 1.083 345 338 43 b1 - 6%
Medium term 3031
Canada Water 5.500
Ona consalisyied barsis including the Groug's share of joint ventures and hmds lexcepl area
whéth is shown at 0%,
¥ Speafdaive d s plets Covels ko come Lass percaniage pre-sold/pre-letasa

mdmmmmMmrlmﬁgmqdeMMpslmmlm

for commmutment of near tarm opparivaites.

been over the last lvm yegrs. However, we
continue 1o take a caulioys view and maintain
prudent altowances within project budgels
10 reflect specific seclors and localions. $9%
of the costs on our commitied development
programme have been fhxed.

Our divesiments, lotalling £1.5 bilbon this year,
our ptanning activity and progress on teasing
disarssions improve our pplionality and leave
us well placed ta make imely decisions on
commitmenis in our devsiopment pipeline.
Our completed developmenis are substantially
let, with almast 80% of the office space at

& Kingdom Street under offer, and over 80% of
lhe olfice space #t 7 Clarges Sree! tel. Leasing
discussions on our coimmitted pipeline are
progressing and we are under offer on all of
the office space at owr proposed redevelopment
of 1 Trilon Square. Thnsachm!yenables us

0 progress gevelopmen s whil

speculalive commitments al an appmpnale
tevel. We secured planning consents talalling
2.3 million sg it in the year across the portfolio
and submitted planning applications on a further
1.3 multion sq ft. This prowades tor 2 much wider
range of opportunities in the near and mediom
terta than we had at the start of the year:

In eur near lerm pipeline, we expect to Comnmit
to the refurbishments of 1 Finsbury Avenue’
282,000 sq fi and 135 Bishopsgate 325,000

sq [t] a1 Broadgale, in the coming months
Ioltowing receipt of planning and agreement
with our joint venture partner. Qur ptans a1 both
include increasing retail and teisure space by
83,000 sq Aincluding a cinema and roof terrace
being added 1o 1 Finsbury Avenve. Royal Bank
of Scotland will be sufrendering their lease ak
135 Bishopsgate in June 2017 ahead of expiryin
2019 and we will receive g paymeni of £34 million
(100%] cormnp ning for the r ining lease
terin and dilapidalions: we are atready seeing
good interest oh a significant portion of the space
here. At 1 Triton Square we are currently under
qffer an all of the office Space. and have received
approval lrom the Londen Borough of Camden
for our redeveloprnent. Subject to completion of
the planming process an the pre-tet, we expect
o comamit and Lo ST ok site in March nexl year.
This will coincide with the expiry of short term
leases agreed 1o mantain optionality for the
redevelopment of this site while mitigating

30

holding costs. On the reiail side, we are refining
our plans for a 104,000 sq ft leisure schame at
Drake Circus ;1 Plymouth 2nd we expact to stert
on Site next year. In lotal, these commilmeans
amount to EI38 miltion of spend anid would lake
o specutaive developrment cornmiment to §%.

Looking lurther ahead. our medium term
mpeline covers a range of uses, including
office-led development in London, and retall and

-] mixed use developments across the country and

at Canada Water. The majority of these projects
areincome producing, finduding 283 Finshury
Avenue and Eden Watkl or are held at low cost
[Blossom Street and the proposed leisure
scheme al Meadowhalll providing us with

real apticnality on the tirring and nature of our
cormmitment. The tolal potential cosl associated
with these opportunities is £1.4 biltion plus
Canada Water. We witl maintain an appropnate
{evel of development risk, and 50 on our
olfice-led developments. cormmitment is likely
o be influenced by the progress of pre-let
discussions. We have a disciplined approach
Io capilal allocation and retain the flexibility

to respond to the changing enviranment,

Opportunilies at our campuses include the
105000 sq It Gateway Budding at Paddingtan
Central, where we are in advanced negoliations
wilh an operater for a boutique hotel on the site
of the current management suite. We expect
to proceed i these distussions are successlul,
subject 1o planning. We are also warking to
enhance the existing conisent for 3 240,060 sq ft
office bullding al the sile of 5 Kingdam Street

In the meantime, we have let space on a short
term basis to Pergola Paddington Central,
who are creating an 850-capacily pop up dining
concepl which benefits the hroader campus.
Al Broadgate, we have secyrad planning lor a
563.000 sq it redevelopment of 2&3 Finsbury
Avenue; UBS have vacated 2 Finsbury Avenue
and we have secured short term lettings on 20%
of this space whilst their lease at 3 Finsbury
Avenue remains in place lureak in tate 2018).
Looking further forward, we expect to take
vacant possession of 1-2 Broadgate in surmey
2019 and are working up our plans for 3 375,000
sq [t scheene which wilt include a substantial
retail element. Al Biossomn Streel, we have
secured Rull consent on 3 340,000 =q i office-led
mixed use development.
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Dur retail eppertuniiies indude 2 372 000

=g {t fersure extension al Meadowhail We have
subrmalied our plans and expetl 3 dedision over
e stramar wath 2 view o sharling on site in
2018. Our plans erwisage a multi-level Leisure
Hall with dining and entertainment options
atongskde high quality internal and extarnal
spaces for evants and commundty use,
including new reslaurants, 3 new cinema,

calé court and gym.

Eden Waik i 2 538,000 sq 1t mizad use,
reganeration schame in Kingsion, which we
o i ot venture with USS. In March 2017 we
schisved censert for aur development, which
includes A0 aew relail and resizacant unils,
380 newe hames and 35,000 sq 1 of high qualily,
modern and Nexidla office space. Our proposak
will create 2n estimated 600 additional jobs for
tocal people. We are progressing our plans 1o
SECUe vacant possession ol the site, and expect
o connmence devetopinent in 2019, but in the
meznixme the schame is incoma producing
wilh 2 yookd of 3495

Canada Water is the most sigrshcant
development opportunily i our medium Larm
pipeline; the shopping centre and leisure scheme
reman income producing with a yiatd of 2.8%.
We are warking closety with the London Borough
of Southwrark, the Greater London Authority,
Transpart for London and the lecal community
o our thasterplan for the 44 acre site, with plans
for yp Lo 3.5 million sq ft of space across a wide
range of uses. This incledes 2 mlthon sq il of
workspace and 1 million sq 1t of retail and leisure
space alongside educalional and cultural uses
and up to 3,500 new homes. These will inctude
2 mix of 3iferdable and market priced housing
as well as a more Largeled provision, including
student aocommodation: The revsed masterplan
integrates principles of sustainability and
wellbeing which wilt create a rew urban

centre for London. Dur active programme

of engagenent with the local community and
other stakeholders includes our fourth public .
consultation which siared eartier this momh
and we are targeting sub of a planni
application around the end of Lhe fnancial year
We wall evaluate phasing of the project and
polential funding structures as we move closer
ta securing planming. in the meanbme, we have
been engaging with a wide range of potential
occupiers and are encowaged by the interest_In
the short term, we have created an exailing new
events space al the Printworks to raise the public
profite of the area and to generate income, as
well as lesting the appetite for this kind of tacility
within our plans. The space has already played
haost te Secrel Cinema and Mutberry in London
fashion week, and now regalarty hosis cultural
events. In lotal, almost 100,000 people have
attended evems there.

More details on the portfolio, property
performance, individual develapments and
assels sold and acguired during the year
can be found in the detalled supplementary
tables on pages 1620 171,



Our actions this year have
positioned us to exploit
optionality we have created
in our development pipeline

Committed

183 Liverpoo! Street, Broadgate

520,000 sq ft

Compleling: 2019

Qffice led development 21 the gateway of our Broadgate
campus, adjacent to new Sireet Crossrad

station_ Plans include 90,000 sq 1t of retail and teisure.

Clarges, Mayfair {residential)

34 apartments

Completing: 2017

Mixed use developmiernit 34 by
aparicnents of which $0% pre- sddlbyvalue! *
11 apartments to sell on completion

New Mersey, Speke [leisure]

66,000 sq ft

Completing: 2018
{ pisure extension, 445 pre et and anchored
by an 11-sareen Cineworld.

Near term

1 Finshury Avenue, Broadgate

288.000 sq ft

Targel commitment- 2017

Rehwbishument with a mix of retad and teisure al
ground floor, including a cnema, with more Rexible
office space on the upper Roors and roof terrace.

1 Tritan Square, Regent's Place

366,000 sq it

farget commilment: 2017

Redevelopment of exrsting building adding 123,000
sq Tt of office space. Under offer for pre-let of entire
office space.

Drake Circus, Plymouth (leisure)

104,000 q 1t

Target commilment: 2018

Leisure extension will include a 12-screen Cineworld,

T3 restavrant unils and 420 car park spaces
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Medium term

Gateway Building, Paddingtan Centrat

105,000 sq ft

Tmmmm?
i heme, providing
a:ﬂwwelopaddugtnnt:mm

geade retadl and residential, g Musch of
he onginat fabne of the ustdavgs.
Canada Water

85.8msq it

wmmmdwww

and communityuse Exisiing uses provide an income
yeldol 7%
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Srratediv Repuort

RETAIL PLACEMAKING

We've had a successful year. We have
leased well, our operational metrics
continue to outperform and we've

grown our rents, particularly where

we have invested

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure

Owr Retail business has had a successhul
year, evidenced by our continued strong
leasing, our operational metrics which are
outperforming and our ERVY growth which is
ahead of the market, particularly where we
have invested. This s our tenth tonsecutive
year ol outperformance on a totat returns
basis. This is lesiament o our sirategy,
which is to create outstanding places for

nt N
dern o ver yes,

The growth of ondine has driven potanisation
inretail, as occupiers are increasingly jocused
on the' best, and the most appropriale space
lo profitably grow sales across all channels.
We expact this rend to accelerate in the
coming years, as retailers face a range of
headwinds such as cost inflation and weaker
consumer spending while the terms on
which the UK leaves the EU are negoliated.
For many of our occupiers, the best space
means a number of Nagship or "hub™ stares
supplernented by a network of more convanient
oullets which ensure suffiden! coverage and
are animportant part of online fulfilment
networks, including click and collect. This
mircors our strategy in Retail whichis to
operale both Regional cenires, attracting
visitors from a wide catchment lor pianned
trips_ with a breadth and degth of retail and
leisure, and Local centres which itinto the
daity life of commuonilies and are more
convement and accessible.

Retail highlights of the year

© Qur Retail portfolio

£6.6bn

parifolio valuation (Briish Land share)

98«

ooCupancy rale

{easa keomth to first hreak,
312m

Gur por liolio has the:
patential to reach

60%

of the population

Source: CACH Retail Footprint 2014
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Local — Mayflower, Basildon

156,000 sq ft
3m

annual footfatt

Regional — Fort Kinnaird, Edinburgh

560,000 sq ft
I13m

annuat foatiall

Growing food & beverage and leisure

across our multi-let portfolio
10
8
E 5
o
& 4
2
0
March March Maith
2013 2014 2015 0% 017

Our locus is on our oocupiers and thair
customers and we use a range of sources to
vnderstand neads. We engage with consumars
direcily through shopper surveys and coltect
data an their enling interactions, generating
inaghis about how, when and where people
{ika to shop. This guides everythang from our
investmen! in the parifolio to the ocougiers:

we are targating. enabling us to positiszn owr
centras to be the best in theiy catchmend. for
the range of shopper missons they serve A
high leved of customer services is 2 ey element
of our offering and we now manage our retait
assets m-house through Broadgate Esietes:
this transition was completed in the year and
w2 have been very pleased wilh how tias has
enabled us to deliver a consistent and a hagh
standard of service across our retzil porifolio.

This year. footfatl and in-store sales hedich
exdude dick 2nd coflect and the boast to online
From physical stores). sutperformed their
benchmarks by 240 bps and 220 bps respaciively,
but both were Mat overall. Differing dynamics
were eviden| across our porifolic, with featfail
al our Ragional centres down 1.9% but szles up
0.3%% iltustraiing how peojle are visiling these
larger centres less frequenity, but spending
maore. Al gur Local centres, footfall was up 2. 1%
but in-store sales were down 0.73% reflecling
greater click and collecl usage al lhese sites
which is not inctuded within in-store sates. Gur
True Value of Stores research, conducted in the
yearwith retail considlaney GlehalNala Anclrated
the impartant role physical stores play in boosting
sales across other channets, induding dlick and
callecl On average, dick and collect vsage & £6%
greater at our Local centres than the national
average and click and collect asstomers spand
around S0% more than the average shopper.
This gulperformance illustrates thaiina
potarising market, aur centres are atiracting a
disproportionate share of consumer demand.

This year, despite a more uncertain rafing
envirgnment, and with the portfolio virtually full

| @1 98%, we lel more space, on better terms, lo

awider range of occupiers than in the previous
year. Lettings and renewals lotalling 1.3 million
sq It were signed in the year. on average 10.8%
ahead of ERV. Qur Regtonal centres acouunted
for approximately two-lhirds of this activity but
both Regionat and Local centres achioved teasing
lerms which were sirengly ahead of ERV.

QOur leasing caoverad a broad range of sectors,
but we were particularly successiul in fashion.
homewares and iocd & beverage which
accounted lor 25%, 27% and 15% of leasing
respectively. Reflecting our cusiomers’
preferences, our plans are to increase the
teisure and food & beverage allocation across
our portfolio from the current pesition of 10%
fup from 6% four years agol, and we mada good
progress on this in the year with 133,000 sq it of
{enings. We are particularty pleased thal severat
of gur vocupiers have chosen our assets lor their
first out of town locations including Thafkhun,
Wahaca, Smiggle, Superdry. Charles Clinkard
and Pret-A-Manger. This success reflects an

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Oxer 5080 dukdran ok pant in the Young Readers
Programmome organised s parinasship vath the:
WNiathons) | Rerscy Tresl aorass 22 contres inour
i wath ozl commmmaties. This is tha sudh year
ofl our partrarship.

increassngly sephisticaled pitching process
which leverages s msights to holp prospective
ocoupiers undersiand our offer and positioning
withén our catchuments. A number of operaters,
induding Primark, ) Sporls, Sports Girect and
Schwin dhose to tocate more of their Ragship
stores wilh us in the year. by adding te their
existing space al cur Regional cenlres. At our
f.ocal centres, we saw new letings to Wilke,
River Island, Namdo’s and meore community
focused eccupiers such as Explore Learning
and local gyms. We are also appealing to more
wvested and Meadowhall is 2 good 2xample of
thiz. Meal's Yard, Nespresso, Hawes & Curtis,
Raneels and Ghost London alt signed in the
year as aw £60 mallion (100%] refurbishment
programme nears completion.

Thes strong demand for our space i5 reflected in
the re-letting of 905 of the 247,080 54 L of space
retumed to us laflovwing BHS adrninistcation,
with long term teases at levels sigraficanily

th excess of previous passing rent.

Like-for-like rental growth [excluding
surrender premiums) was 2.0%, driven by our
sireng leasing activity as well as rent reviews
with over 120 reviews settled on average 3 4%
ahead of passing rent and ahead ol veluation
assumngiions. This year we renewed eight
Homebase leases, tolaliing 283.000 sq it
extendimg the lease lerm lo 15years, increasing
rents and prowding a significant capital upliit
for our single-lat portiolio.

ERV grewth acress our multi-let properlies

was 2.4% and this performance provides sirong
evidence that cur strategy is working. Investment
in our assets, guided by cur insights has driven
demand {or our space, brirging vur portiolio o
near full oocupancy, and generating the demand
tension needed to drive reals. We are particularly
pleased that ERV growth across assels beneliting
frem our ivestmeni was 3.29, whichwas ahead
of the partfolio average. At Colchester ERY
growth was nearly 149 foltowing completion of
our £6 millian invesinnent to improve the pubtic
reatm there, including a new playground, the
addition of public art and reconliguration of

the car park.

3
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RETAIL PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

66

The changes British Land is making to its centres will
make them some of the very best around. The concept
of continually updating the experience, improving the
public realm and getting the balance right betwoeen
retail and leisure is so important. The investinent

in their assets is spot on.”

Timothy Melgund, CEO Paperchase

Enlivening our places
Events such as the live screeming of sports, theatre and film,
drive footfall to our centres including SouthGate, Bath,

3.5%

Development spend in the year was £20 million
and indudad a new letsure quarter at Glasgow
Fort, wath four new restaurants and a mulki-

tatal propesty return siorey car park adding 600 spaces and increasing
car park capadty by over 30% o accommadate
growing wsitor nurebers. This follows iessure

_l 8% and retail extensions in 7003 and 2015 which have

L underpinned improved operational performance

valvation movament at the centre. The centre is now ranked top in
its category by CACH in Scotland. Dur leisure
extension at Mew Mersey, Speke, where

1 6% construction commenced this year will add

- an 11-screen cinema. pre-tel to Cinewosld,
ERV growth

and six restaurant units, signilicantly enhancing
the leisure offering at this centre. Opening

in summer 2018, we have already pre-let
restaurants to Wagamarma's, Nando's and 161 |
Friday. This year we achieved planning consents
an 840,000 sq I, covenng a range of activity from
lage mixed use developments ko small-scale
FRprovemednts (o existing properties, providing
oplionality for the fulure,

This year. capital sperd in the Retail portiolic
totalled £91 milion of which just over hatf were
initiatives delivering an immediate increase in
income, The remaindzr were intiatives to enhance
eRvizomments wAth tonger term: benefins for

our asseis. The refurbishment programeme at
Meadowhall was the mosl significant of these,
accounting for £23 mattion [British Land sharel.
This i part of our £60 miltion [100%) upgrade

£1.2bn

gross invesliment activity

<881m

retail disposals at average yreld of & 3%

7901w

of solar panels across five centres.,
weith e planned
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1.3msqft

ol relad =ttngs and renewads

ts ohass of ERV

foafall graracth ahaad of dve banchonark

220bps

in-stere salas growvth abesd ol the bendhmark

70

»waxrh platesnents with DU OTOUTRS ©N QuiT
Sarting et in Relad programone par of
e A

21

ol our cer or S wwith

augmrented reality an:esmnvgﬂhem

46%

more click and callect usage at o L peal
cenires than the Ratitna yarage

completing in late 2017 At Teessida_ we are on
site with a £30 millzon refurbishment programme
10 coincide with the centre's 25th anniversary.
Our improvements focus on the public reatm
and customer service fadlities and will deliver
more Rexble space for our occupiers.

Our insight has atso guided our placemakang
staged awirtual Christrnas presen hond at 21
Lacal and Regionat centres, the largest ever
augmented reality game in UK retad property.
Eats from the Streel_ showeasing the best n UK
street food returned to ten of 0ur cenires and we
launched Street Style a fashion and beauty event
which ran acruss seven of our assets. Our Young
Readers Programme, run in parinership with the
Mational Literacy Trust and retall occupiers, is in
its sixth year and we are pleased that over 5,030
children took part this year. Qur 8right Lights
skills pragramime provided work placements
with our retail and leisure occupiers for Wlocal
unemployed young people of whth 75% maoved
into permanent jobs soon after: ktialives cich as
these help enliven our places, attracting new and
repeal visitors to our centres and fosler stronger
connections with local communities and our
occupiers. The peoplie who live in and around our
assels arz an important part of our calchment
and their layalty is increasingly relevant as
custemers have greater choices around how
and where they shop.



GFFICES PLACEMAKING

We've had a strong year. We have made

good progress letting space across our

development pipeline and our campuses

are a

ing to a broader range of

occupiers than ever before

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residantial

Our Oifices business has had a sirdng year.

The portfolio is wirtuatly [ult and we have made
good progress lelling Space acruss our recenity
compleled, committed and near term pipeline.
In line with cur strategy to create culstanding
places tor mvedern professionat and consumear
lifesthyes we are increasing the mix of uses
JOM655 our Campuses, Lo appeat to a broader
range of ocoupiers.

OHice take up in central London has been led
ty the technateqy and media sectors, which
are now the most significant component of
demand, accounting for nearty une third of
activity in 2016, With its pool of international
talent and reputation for inngvation. London

has proved to be a magnet kor these new

and growing comnpanies. This rend is
driving a change in the type of space which

is succeeding, with a growing emphasis on
Rexibiility, co-working and wellbeing. as well
as enviranmenis which are compatihte with
the way people’s work and lefsure time overlap.
Finanoal services accounied for under 20%
of take up, tess then half the figure in 2010,
This rend may accaterate further with
requlatory and policy changes fetlowing Brexy
but the teedhack we have is that the preference
of inanaal services companias is torelain the
majority of their operations in London becauss
ovarwhelmingty this is where their employees
want to live and work.

Our Offices portfelio in London

£0.3bn!

portioliovatualion [Btish L_and share}

98

oucupancy rate

4.8 years

lease length Lo first break

' Prolorma lor sale of
The Leadenhall Building.
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OFFICES PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

Our campuses
Broadgate (50% interest)

Regent’s Place

Paddington Central

Standalone
7 Clarges Street, Mayfair

Our strategy focuses on pruviding the right
space_ the right services, and the righi
ewTonEents 1o feel Yws broader specirem
of dernand. We have engagad mere actively
with the users of our space, and this year.
lsunchad the Olfice Agenda” an online
platiorm where we share key insighis with
warkers and deasion makers on topical issues
inctuding the role of real estate in attracting
and relrining talent and ‘smart’ offices.

Our surveys of nearly 4,000 office workers
and dedsion makers provided valuable
insight into what makes a greal place to
wark, helping our occupiers refine thesr
office sirategy and enabling us to heiter
reflact their needs

At tha pertfolio level, this includes broadening
the range of uses on our campuses with a
higher allocation te retail and leisure, as well
as delivaring more Rexible office space with
foorplates which are easily divisible, enabling
us tolarget a wader range of occupiers. Al the
caimpus level, we are applying our placemaking
framework by enhancing and enlivening our
assels wath a comprehensive programme of
events including exhibitions, art installations,
concerts, wellheiny aclivilies, pop-up shops,
bars, markets and restaurants, and live
soreening of sports. theatre and film. We also
partner vith our occupiers on community
inibalives, such as the Regent's Place
Community Fund, where our partnership

with orcupiers has invested £39,000 this year
o suppertiocal community projects, making a
positive ditierence and strengthening our links
with local communities. We survey occupiers
across our campuses and our results show that
satistaction levels are high, and have improved
aver the last two years, parlicularly amongst
key decision makers.

66

They aren't just landlords.
They take a real interest
in the campus.”

Harry Tsakalotos, EBRD
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2.8%

otad propesty returm

07
05

The suceess of gur approach s demonsiraled
by our leasing activily. which this year totalied
277.000 sq ft_ 1.4% ahoad of ERV, 33,000 sq ft
relaled o rera leisune oo community space.
‘We have lel 2 further 85 600 sq it on a shost
tarm or meamhile basis, adding uses which
enliven our campuses and addiess lease
expirres while preserang optionalily for
vedevelogmenl. We were pleased that a
numbar of our mager ootupiers re-commitied
o our campuses in the year, indluding
Facehaok who have agreed lerms to lurther
extend their occupation of 106,000 sq it at 10
Brock Streel. AL 20 Trilon Strest, Dimnensional
Fund Advisors have agreed lo a re-gear. l2king
their term to 10 years lorigina expiry June
2020}, with an additicnat 12,080 sq it 2nd
Credil Agricole have agreed Lo extend their
140,000 sq it lease al Broadwalk House fram
2019 to 2025. This activly, as well as the Rnal
lettings at Marble Arch House and The
Leadenhall Building has increased like-for-like
rent across the oifice portfolio by 4 5%. -

We are also letting well across our recently
completed and near 1esm pipeline whilst
successhilly expanding our mx of uses. At

4 Kingdom Street. Paddington Central_ we
were almuost 80% under offer on the office
space within 2 week of completion in Aprit.

In aggregate, lhese leases are on terms 3%
ahead of pre-referendum net effective ERVs -
and aver 25% ahead of our Investment
Commiltee assurmpiions at comamitiment in
2014. We have sighed a Iwo year lease with
Pergola Paddington Central for an B50-capacily
pop-up dining destination on the site of 5
Kingdom Streel. The venue will feature some
of London's mast popular resiavrants and
bars, including Paity & Bun, ¥ / Mexico and
Raw Press and Lhe offering will change each
season. Al Broadgate, we are addressing
vacancies at 2 Finshury Averue with 90,000
sq ft of short termn {ottings, including 10
Thealre Delicalessen, a fintech company
and an architecture practice.



Wa started on sita at 100 Liverpon] Strest in
the year. t sits 21 the gaizway to our Broadgate
campus. adjacent to Liverpoo! Soreei sialion
where lhe first Crosssail services will
cermmentce next year. I covers 520090 5q ft
lan increase of 140,000 sq (1) and e docigned
to be divisible inle units as smallas 3 000 sq it
with shared facilities catering to demend from
smller businesses. 90,000 sq it is 2llerated
to retail and restaurants, and we are
commilted to both the WELL standard for
wellbeing and the WiredScore Platinum rating
for internel connectivty and infrastruciure.
This develepment is a good itlusiration o
aur sirategy in OHices to daliver huildings
which maet evolving custorner nzeds and
appeal {0 a broader range of ocoupiers.

The redevelopment is expecied lo rore

than double rents al the building.

The nexl phase of development will see the
rix of uses continue to evolve. Qur revised
plans for a 288,000 sq it refurbishrvent at

1 Finsbury Avenue indude a cinema, retall
and restayrants at ground fleor, and our
proposals at 135 Bishopsgate altecate £3,000
5q Ft to retail, We have submitted plans for
refurbishment of these buildings, and arein
discussions with prospective gocupiess on
nearty half of the combined space. We expact

279,0008qft

letlings and renewals

+14%

lettings vs ERV

¢1.15bn

headline sale price of The Leadenhall Buitding
oot

SISOm |

daweloprent and capital spend

700000 sq ft

of {etling's under offer or in advanced
golialions across aur ¢

-

o commit to both refurbshments in the
ocoming months with an associated cost of

£90 million. Al Paddington Central we are

in advanced negoiations with an operator

to pre-lel a bowligue holel and all day dining
contapd on the Fhe of the existing maayenent
suite {ihe Gateway Buildingl. Al Regent's Place
we are pleased thal we are vnderoffer an
310,000 sq £ representing all of the office
space al our proposed redevalopment of

1 Triten Square, and received 2pproval frem
the London Bomough of Camden last weede

Thws rneans thal 20ross our campuses,

wie are ynder offer or in advanced regotiations
on over 700,000 sq it of space with significant
discussions engeing across the Londor
business with petential occupiers on a further
850,069 sy [t of space, which could trigger
further developmeni commitmenis.

As part of our cempus olfering we will

sharity launch a branded flexible workspace
offer which enabies us Lo capture incrementat
demand from the increasing number of small
businesses laking space in London as well

as meeling a growving need armnongst our
exisling oocupers for flaxible space for spedific
prajacls and teams. Qur first flexible dealis
on 25,080 sq I 31 2 Finsbury Avenue, extending

Enlivening cur campuses

our relatenshin with 2n ensting socupier

3t Paddingten Central, who need additional
spacelarﬂ:drdigitaltaam.%irﬁ:igﬁve
strengihens exisling reladionships and attracis
N eorupers to Gur Campus, polenhaity our

€ore oorupiars of (e tuturs. We have allecated

further space awross our campuses induding
2l £ Kingdom Street. and we have commencad
fil-ot across 83600 cq lL.

Foilowing the exchange of The Leadenhall
Building, our stendatone cifice pertiolio
acooumts for 22% of Gifices. AL 7 Clarges
Street_ the 51,020 sg 7t oliice element of cur
mixed use development i Maylai, we were
plaased that over 8% of the space was led
or under offer just fowr menths after its
Launch in Seplember. We achieved an
average rent of E113 pst, on termns indine
with pre-rederendum net effective ERYs,
demonsirating the onnfinacing damand for
qualily cifice spase in ondon. At Yalding
House 122,080 sg it} wee have Lot four of tha
six Roors and 2re ynder offer on the Gnal
tw. Like The Leadenhall Buillding, these
are buildings where we can devetop and
trade opportunistically, te provide Ugundity
in our portfofio and enhance returas.

Pergola, an 85)-seater outdoor dining concept at Paddington Central,
vl host some of London s most poptilar bars and reskaurants,
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CLIMATE RELATED PERFORMANGE

In a changing climate, our futureproofing
programame creates commercial opportunities
and helps us anticipate regulation, resource
constraints and stakeholder expectations

Carbon reporting

W actively ge gr g9as

aTress our business. Qur energy efficency
programime has saved occupiars £13 million
gross over six years and we're committed to

usng 100% eleciridiy from renewable sources.

British Land was induded in the CDP
Climate A List of the top %3 of global
companies lackling dimate change.

Qur target to cul carbon inlensity by 55%

by 2020 versus 2009 lindex scored] exceeds
science-based targets, reflecting our support
for the COP21 commitment to limit global
warming to 2°C.

We have reported on all emission sources |
required under the Companies Act 2004
{Strategic Report and Directors’ Reports)
Regulations 2013. These sources fall within our
consoated hnancal staternent and relate ko
head office aclivities and controlled emissions
from our managqed portfolin. Scope 1and 2
emissions covers 7% of our multi-let managed
por tiolio by value. We have used purchased
energy consumplion data, the GHG Protacol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
[revised edition) 2nd emrssion factors from the
UK Government s GHG Corwarsion Factors for
Campany Reporting 2014

Scope 1 and 2 emissions intensity (tonoes CO-e)

Emission from combustion of fuels has
increasad by 15, langely due to waather
affecting gas use in Offices. Emissions from
purchased electricity has decreased by 12%.
largety due to changas w1 UX grid emission
factors and changes in our portfolio.

For consistency with previous years. tarbon
data in this Repart s calaulated using

the location based methodology. When tha
market basad methodotogy is applied, our
carbon emissions reduce by 28,000 tonnes,
factoring in that most of the electrialy we
purchase comas from renewable saurces
IREGO backedl

As the graph opp . Seope 3
assodated with our places are significanity
larger than the Scope 1 and 2 emissions that
we have more influence over. Scope 3 emissions
come from activities that we don't direcily
rmanage, such as wisitors lravelling by car

o shopping destinalions, occupiers’ enefgy
use in the space they lease lrom us and the
manufacilure of construction materials for
developments. By understanding and monitoring
Scope 3, we identity and prepare for future risks
from shifls in energy and carbon reguiation
and, al the same lime, take steps to reduce
ourimpact on ctimate change.

Year ended 31 March 7 F.ill ) 309
Per m? - Offices [net lettable areal 0.069 0.075 ons
Per m? ~ Retail: enclosed 0.067 0073 037
Per parking space — Retail: open air 0084 0082 0106
Per Ern - Gross rental and related income from managed porifolic! £7.39 7248 -
Absotute Scope 1 and 2 emissions {tennes CO»e)
Yoar ended 31 Mardh + 207 0% 2009
Combustion of fuel: Managed portfolic gas use and fuel use
wr British Land owned vehicles 7348 1.284 5158
Operation of facilities: Managed porttotio refrigerant loss from
- air conditioning Foil 273 -
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for our own use:
Managed portiotia elecincity use 35,149 38710 £1186

' Gross Rental Income (GRI} from the managed portiolio

Group GRIof £442 million [2016: E£51 tndlon],

camprises
plus 160% of the GRI genarated by joint ventures and funds of £437 mullion {2014: C451 million), less GRI
generated by assels oulside the managed portfolio of £259 mitiion {2016: €315 mitliond.
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Our carbon faotprint?

WSope 1 013%
OSmpe2  089%
B5mope} 0%

* Based on 2002 and 2016 data

For markel bated data, see our
Sustainability Accounts 2017 at
‘werw britishland.com/data

Opportunities and risks

We commissioned 3 review of dimate related
apportunities and risks in 2017, Qur portfoliois
well positonad through our futureproohing foous.

Qpportunities include:

~ Anticipating occupmer demand for climate

~ Delivering energy and carbon cost savings
{2017 €13 gross)

~ Generaling on site energy [2017: 2.588BMWh)

- Oulperiorming Bulding Regulations
12012-2017- 21.2% better on average]

Risks mclude:

- Rising energy costs

- Energy and carbon taxation_such as
the CRC Energy EHiidency Scheme

- Climate legistation, such as Minimum
Energy Elficiency Standards (2017 4%
of portfolio at risk

— Floed risks. impacting on asset value
and Insurance cosls (2017: 3% of
portfolio high risk]

- Costincreases linked with carbon-intensive
consiruction materials

b adat 2 "

Far our full gy, exq ian
of changes and PwC’s independent
assurance, see our 2017 Sustainability
Accounts at www.britishland.com/data




FINANCIAL REVIEW

It’s been an active year with £2 billion
of capital activity, increasing financial

in opportunities within the portfolio

£390m  £195m
378p =~ 2920,
95,  £95bn

299%
2.4%

Totat accounbng redurn'?

! See Glossary for dehmutions.

3.1%

Weighled average interesl rate®

? See Table B within supplementary disclosure lor reconaliations

o iFRSmatrics.

3 Spe Note 7 within financal stalements lor catcutalion.
* See Note 17 within finandal statements for calculation

and ceconaliation to IFRS metrics.

* On a praportionally consolidated basis mcluding the Group's

share of joint ventures and lunds

Overview

We delivered a good set of resulls espacially in the conlext of an
uncertain emvironment, with Undariying Profit growth of 7.4% and
undertying eamings per share (EPS) growth of 10.9%.

FPRA net assal valua par share [NAVE decreasaed by 0.4% reflecting a
portfotio valuation fall of 1.4% on a propertienally consolidated basis. Ik
atso includes the impact of no longar treating the 1.5% convertible bond
as dilulive, as e share price was below the exchange price of 493 pence
al the year end. Exclhuding this adustmeni. NAV decreased by 1.7%.

We have been aclive, with £2.0 bilion of gross capital activity [£1.1 bdlion
of nel capital activityl. Thrs comprises £1.5 billlion of disposals of primarily
single-let Retail assels and our 59% interest in The Leadenhall Building
which compleies after the yaar end, We have reirvested £0.3 bithon in cur
developments and capilal expenditure agress the portfolio, and made
£0.2 billon of acquisivns. prmanty of assels adjacent to exsting haldings.

The nel proceads from thic acthaty imarovs our ingnciat resilience ang
provide capacity for reinvestment into cur postfolio, particularty on Lhe
broad range ol development opportunities within our exisling pipeline.
The proportionally consolidated loan te value ratio [LTV] has decreased
1o 29.9% from 32.1% a1 March 2016, Our actions have reduced the
proportionatly consolidated weighted average interest rate t0 3.1%
fram 3.3% at March 2016, Adjusting for the receipt of proceeds from
the sale of our S0% interest in The Leadenhall Building, LTV is 26 9%
and the weighted average interesl rate is 3.4%.

Underiying Profitincreased by 7.4% to £370 million; the impact of net
sales has been more than ofiset by like-for-tike rental growth, financing
activity and a reduction in adiministrative expenses. The Group's aperating
cost ratto has reduced by 100 bps ko 15.6% [2015/16: 16.6%).

IFRS profit belore tax for the year of £195 miltion is lower than the prior
year profit of £1,331 million, primardly due lo the negative property
valuation movement in the year.

As previously announced in May 2016, we increased the dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017 by 3 0%. Looking forward to nexl year
we intend to increase the divdend by a further 3.0% to 30.08 pence
per share, with a quarterly dividend of 7.52 pence per share.

Preseatation of financial information

The Group financial statements are prepared under {FRS where
the Group's interests in joint ventures and funds are shown as a
single bne itern on the income statement and balance sheel and
all subsidiaries are consclitdated al 100%.

Managerent considers the business principally on a proportionally
consolidated basis when setting the strategy. determining annuat
priorities, making irvestment and financing decisions and reviewing
performance. This includes the Group's share of joint venlures and
funds on a lme-by-line basis and excludes non-corrolling interests
in the Group's subsithanes. The knancial key performance indhcators
are also presented on this basis. '
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

A sumimary incomme stalement and surminary balance sheet which
recondle the Groug income statements to British Land's interesls
on a proportionally consolidated basss are inclyded in Table A within
the supplementary disclosures.

Management monilors Undartying Profit as Uris more accurately
reflects the Group's firancial per formance and the undsitying recurting
performance of aur care property rental activily, as opposed to IFRS
meirics which indude tha non-cash valuation moverment on the properiy
portiolio. Lis based on the Best Practices Recommendations of the
European Public Real Estate Assacalon [EPRA) which are widely

used alternate meinics to their IFRS equivalents.

Management also monitors EPRA NAV as this provides a lransparent,
and o basis to enatile comparison batwesn European property
companes. Linked lo this. the use of Total Accounting Return allows
management ta monitor relurn lo shareholders based on movements
in 3 consistently applied metric. being EPRA NAY. and dividends paid.

Loan to value fproportionatly ¢ tidaled) is also od by

g asakey e of the level of debl employad by the
Group to meel its strategic objectives, along with a measurement
of risk. It also allows comnparison lo tther property companies
who similarty monitar and reporl this measure.

Income statement

1. Undertying Profit ‘

Undertying Profit is the measure that is used inlernally te assess
income performance. No company adjustments have been made in the
current or prior year and therefore this is the same as the pre-tax EPRA
eamings measure which includes a number of adjustments to the IFRS
reported profit before tax. This is presented betow on a proportionally
consotidated basis:

.1 017
Saction £ €m
Gross rentat income 654 &3
Progerly operaling expens: 1341 13
Netrental income 1.1 620 &10
Net lees and other income 17 7
Administrative expenses ' 13 sl 188
Net financing costs 12 hsy) s
Undeslying Profit 383 390
Nan-cantrolling intecests in Undertying Profil “% 1%
EPRA adjusiments’ 954 {209
IFRS prufit before tax 2 133 195
Undertying EPS 14 Ml e
IFRS basic EPS 2 3.2p wep
Dindend per share 3 283p 29.20p

' EPRA adjustrments consist of i and devel t property
revaluations, gainsdlosses on invesiment and trading property dispesals,
changes in the lair value of inandial instruments and assocated dose oul
mgﬁhvesenmamprmmmme “rapital and other” colwmn of the
[: dincorne st
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1.1 Netrental income [Em)

10
- :_"‘"::j || S
2 19

26

Capal
ackaly
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Lie-fordke  Expiries Lesung af
rentatincame dﬁdm:n develm-
goath me mas

The 10 mitlion decrease in net rental income during the year was the
result of like-Ior-tike growth and leasing of develounems partially
offsetting the impact of capital activty and lease expinies.

L e-for-ifke rental income growth vwas 2.9% exdudiy the impach of
swrender preimia. Retail growth was 2.0% 11.6% induding the impact
of sunvender premial. This was diiven by sirong leasing activity. assel
managemen activises, such as sphitting units. and additiona! tarneeer
and car park income.

Olfice and Residential hke-lnr-hl&e gfmmlhwasi 5%: just yvar hatf

of this was due Lo the letting up of compl lop s that are
now in the lke-for-like portfolio, predominantly The Leadenhalt Buidng
and Marble Arch House which are both now hull. The remainder 1s
attributable to sirong rent rewew activity, particulariy al Regenl's Place.

Lease expiries relating to properties i gur development pipefine .
reduced net renis by £8 mition, including £3 million at 100 Liverpoct
Street where we are on site and £3 mitlion at 1 Trilon Square which
is under offer lor redevelopient on a pre-let basis: we have received
approval lor this development from the London Boreugh of Camden.
The surcessful tetting of our recenity compteled development
programme provided E10 million of additional rent this year.

This brings the net impact of developments on net rental income

to £2 million.

Looking ahead to nexl year, we expect ransaclions compleling

posl year end 1o reduce rent by E18 million ang lulure lease expiries
relaling to properties in the development pipeline to reduce rent

by €& million. Rental incoma growth will be driven by the lelting

up of devalapments and like-for-like growth.

1.2 Net finanding costs {Em)




Finandng costs were £29 million lower this year.

Debit related transactions over the 1ast two years, nduding the £350
million zero coupon convertible bond, reduced cosis by £16 million this
year. In the curreni year. wa used sales groceads to repay unsacured
revolving credit faolities and we completed the earty repayment of the
(295 million TBL Properties Limited secured toan. We agreed one year
exiensions on a lolal of £1.4 bittion of our unsecured faclities and agraed
a new EMI0 million bilateral faality. Qur Labality rnanagamanl, which

is NPV positive, reduced NAV by & pence per share.

Our approach to interest rate management remains an imporiant facior
in reducing interest costs. The decision to keep a perlion of our debt at
floaling rates has seen us benelit from lower rmarket rales which has
resulied in a reduction in finanding costs of £9 miltion. The proporton
ol our projected debt held at fixed rates is 60% on average gver the

next five years. At 31 March 2017, our debt pro forma for iha sale of the
Leadenhall Building was 78% fixed on 3 spot basis.

1.3 Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by £8 million this year as a resull
of managing down our cost base and tower variable pay. The Group's

operating cost ratio has reduced by 106 bps to 15 6% [2015/14: 16.6%].

1.4 Urdertying EPS

Undertying EPS was 37.8 pence {2015/18: 34.1 pence] based on Undarlying
Profit 2Her tax of £390 mitlion [2015/14: €363 mitlion). The mcrease in
undertying EPS of 10.9% is more than the inorease in Underlying Profit

of 7.6% as the 1.5% convertibte bong is no longer ditutve_As the share
price was below the 693 pence exchange price at year end, no dilution
adjustment was made [2015/16: £6 million interest added back and
shares increased by 57.8 mitlion), in line with EPRA guidance.

2.JFRS profit hefare tax

The main difference betwaen IFRS profil before tax and Undertying Profit
is that it includes the valuation movement on investrnent and development
properiies and the fair value movemenls of finandal instrumanls.

In addilion, the Group's investments in joint ventures and funds are
equily accounted in the IFRS income statement but are inciuded on

a propor tionally consolidated basis within Underlying Profiv

The IFRS profit belore tax for the year was £195 million, compared

to a profil before \2x for the prior year of £1.331 million. This refiects
the valuation movement on the Group's properhies which was

£760 million less than the prior year and the valuation movement

on the propecties held in joint ventures and lunds which was £338
miltion less than the prior year, in both cases resulting from outward
yield shift and a lower levet of ERV growlh in the current year.

IFRS basic EPS was 18.8 pence per share, compared 0 131.2 pence
per share in the prior year, driven principally by property valuation
movements. The basic weighled average number of shares inissue
dunng the year was 1,029 matbon [2015/36: 1,025 million).

3. Dividends

In line with the intention announced in May 2016, we wicreased the
dividend by 3.0% for the year lo March 2017 which gives a full year
dividend of 29.20 pence per share

The fourth interim divid‘énd payraent lor the quarter ended 31 March 2017
will be 7.30 pence per share. Payment will be made on 4 August 2017
lo shareholders on the register at close of business on 30 june 2017,

The increase in Undertying EPS of 10.9% resulted in a reduction
in the dividend pay-oul ralic ta 77% |2015/14: 83%].

In proposing the dividend for the coming year, the Board teck into account
the current markel emvironment, our targel payou! range and drvers of
text year s profits. i the Board's inlenbion o incraase the dividandg by
3.0% tn 201718 to 30.08 pence par share, with a quarterty dividend of
7.52 pence per share_ reflecting confidesce inour abllity to grow inoome
over the madium term.

Balance sheet

2618 2017,

Seciion m €m

Properties at valuation 14 648 13,940
Other non-current assels 138 155
s 14786 14,095

Other nal cnvent lizbdities 57N 13s4)
Adjusted net debt 6 TR B2z
Other non-cumrent liabilities 70} [11)]
EPRAnet assets jundituted) .67 9498
Delution impact of corwertible bond £00 -
EPRA net assets {dituted] 10074 9498
EPRANAV per share 4  9igp W5
MNon-controiling interesis” 7 255
1.5% corwertible bond dilution 1400} -
Other EPRA adjustments’ {3328 T
IFRS netassets 5 2417 A%

! EPRA el a55a18 exduda the mari-to-market on effective cash Row hedges and
related daiit adjustmenis, the mark-to-marked on the comvertible bonds as wall
velestion surplus en trading properties and are adjusied for the dilutive enpact
of share opliions. 2015/ alse includes an adjusiment for Lhe dilutive impadt of
the 1.5% convertiblz bond maturing i 2017, No dilution adjusiment is made for
the £350 million zero eoupan comvertible bond maturing in 2020. Details of e
EPRA agjustrnents are included in Table B within the supplementary discl

4. EPRA net asset value per share [p]

The 0.4% decrease in EPRA NAV per share reflects a valuation dacline
of 1.4%. Values fell by 2.8% in the first six months, followed by an upward
revaluation of 1.6% in the second hall of the year. The moyement in the
year reflected outward yizld movemaent of 15 bps, partially offsetby
ERY growth of 1.1%. Net sales exchanged of over £1.5 billion, including
Debenhams, Oxford Street and The Leadenhall Building, pravided a
posilive contribution to the portfolio capital return of 0.9%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Retait valuations were down 1.8% with outward yizid o tof

14 bps partially offset by ERV growth of 1 4%: the mulii-let porifolio saw
stronger ERV growth o] 2.4%,_ driven by good leasing activity. Further
informmation on Retail vatuation performance can be found on page 32.

Oifice and Residential valuations were down 0.5% with cutward yield
rmovarent of 153bps parvally offset by ERV grawth of 0.5%; We agreed
lhe sale of The Leadenhall Building al a price 24% ahead of the 30

ber 2016 1and the valuers have recognised the majority
Ofthﬁ increase in the 31 March 2017 valuation. Further information on
Office & Resideniial valuation performance can be lound on page 35.

The 4 pence impact of finance ransaction costs premarily relates (o early
repayment of tenm debt and termination of associated inlerest rate swaps.

Thera 15 2 1Z pence benefit to EPRA NAVY due lo the reversal of the

1.5% convertile bond dilution induded in the 2015/16 results. As the
share price was belaw the 693 pence exchange price at yaar end, no
dilution adjustment was made [2015/16: €400 million debi deducted from
net assel vatue and diluted number of shares inareased by 57.9 mitheal.
Excluding thas adjustimant. NAV daaeased by 1.7%.

5. iFRS net assets

IFRS net assets at 31 March 2017 were £9,474 million. a decrease of
£143 million from 31 March 2014. This was primarily due te IFRS profit
before tax of £193 million being less than the dividends paid in the year
of £296 mitlian.

Cash Bow, net debt and financing
&. Adjusted net debt EEm)

2018 Dp

Is Acouis- Dl N Divick
s  ment cashiom
ad  gperalons

Gher  UBS 17
capral

paymend
capet

* Adjusted nel deblis a proporth e. It represents the
Gmpnetdabtasdlsdosedmﬂde f?amnheﬁrwpsslwadpmmm
and funds’ net debt excluiting the mark-To-markes on effactive cash flow hedges.
and related debi adjustments and non-controlling nlerests. A reconcitiation
between the Group net debl and adjusied net debl 1s included in Table A within
the supplementary disclosures.

Gapitat activity reduced debt by E0.5 bitbon in the year. Completed
disposals during the year included the sale of Debenhams, Oxlord Sireet
for £400 million, a portiolio of non-core Retail assets for £191 million and
eighl superstores totatling £111 million [British Land sharel. Acquisitions
completed in the year included the New George Street Estate in Plymouth
for £64 mitlion which will now be managed as an inlegrated part of
Grake Circus. Other i is included development expenditure

of £189 million and capilal expenditure of £74 million related to asset
management on the standing portfolio.
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Nat divestment induding transactions complaling alter the year end
increased to £1.1 biltion. This induedes the expeded comnplation of the
sale of The Leadenhall Building sale for £57% milion [Brilish Lang share]
and the complelion of the Tesco JV swep ransaction rasulting in a nat
divestment of E73 million of superstore ass=15.

We received a E10 million capital papimen) received in Decernber 2006
from UBS in relation to the development and otoupation of S Broadgate,
and subsequant exit of 100 Liverpool Street, inciuding 8-10 Broadgate.

7. Financing
Groump Proportionaity constidaied

s w7’ 2016 anr
Nat debifadjusted netdeb?  £3,417m £3,094m E4765m €4,223m
Prinapal amounl
of gross debl E£3.552m £3049mM B08%m £4,520m
Loan to valye 25.2% A% 32% 299%
Weighted avaraga
interest rate 246% 24% 3.3% a5
Interest cover 33 45 30 k¥ 3
‘Weighted average
debt maturity 7.2 years §9years B.\years T1.7years

1 Group dala as presented n note 17 of the financal statements. The proportionally
consolidated higures incuds the Group's share of il venture and funds’ el debi
and exclude the fark-to-marke on effective cash o hedges and relaied debi,
adprsunents and non-controlling interests.

The balance shesl remains resilizad. LTV and weighted average inlerest
rate an drawn debt were reduced and interest cover impooved. Qur
proporticnally consobidated LTV was 79.9% at 31 March 2017, down 220
bps from 32.1% at March 2016 mainly reRecting the impact of disposals.
This reduces by 2 further 300 bps (o 2699 prg formna far the sale of The
Leadenhball Building Note 17 of the inancal stelements sets oul the
calculation of the Group and proportionally consolidated LTV,

The strength of the Group's balance sheet is reflected in British Land's
senior unsecured credit rating which continues to be rated by Fitch at
A- wilh the Ouilock upgraded Lo Positive’.

Our proportionally consolidated wetghled average interest rate reduced
1o 3.1% at 31 March 2017 from 3.3% at 31 March 2016 This reflects

a 60 bps reduction principally as a resull of our financing activity

and decwsions. partially offset by a rise of 40 bps due to repayment

of cheaper foilities with sales proceeds received. This ifcreases

ta 3 4% pro forma for the sale of The Leadenhati Building.

Gur weighted average debt maturity 1s eight years.

8ntish Land has £1.8 billion of commilled unsecured revobving banking
facilities. Of these facilities, £1.7 hillion have maturities of more than
two years and £1.3 billion was undravn at 31 March 2017. Based on our
current cammitrnents, these facillitlies and scheduled debt maturities,
we have na requirernent 10 refinance unkil early 2021 regardiess of
whether our converlibte bonds are cash or equity settted.

Further informaticn on our approach to inandng is provided in the
Financial policies and principles section on pages 43 10 AS.

Lucinda Bell
Chuel Financal Officer



FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding
which enables us to deliver our

property strategy

Leverage

We manage our use of debl and equity finance
to balance the hanefits of levarage agansi ihe
risks, including a magmhcation ol property
valuation movements. A loan tovaluz ratio
LTV measures aur leverage, primarily on

a proportionally consolidated basis inctuding
our share of joint ventures and funds and
exduding non-controlling interests. At 31
March 2017, our proportionally consolidated
LTV ol 29.9% was higher than the Group
measure of 22.6%.

We aim to manage our LTV thiough the property
cycle such thal gur financial position would
rermain rebust in the event of a significand fall
inproperty values This means we do not adjus!
our approach to leverage based on changes

in property market yields. Consequently ur
LTV may be higher in the low point in the

cycle and will trend downwards as market
yields tighten,

Debt finance

The scale of our business combined with the
quality of our assets and renlal income means
thal we are able to approach a diverse range of
debi providers to arvange finance on attractve
terms. Good access to the capital and debt
markels is a competitive advantage, allowing
us o take opporturuties when they arise.

The Group’s approach to debt financing for
British Land is to raise funds predominantly on
an unsecured basis with our standard financial
covenants {set cut on page 45). This provides
Rexibility and low operational cost. Our joint
ventures and funds are each financed in
‘ring-fenced’ siructures without recourse

to British Land for repayment and are

secured on the relevant assets.

Presented on Lhe lollowing page are the
five guiding principles that govern the way
we struclure and manage debt.

Monitoring and controlling our debt
We monilor our debl reguirement by focusing
principally on current and projacted borrowing
levels, available faciliies, debt matunty and
interest rate exposure. We undertake sensitivity
analysis to ass5ess the impacts of propesed
Iransaclions, movemnents in inlerest rates

and changes in property velizes on key balance
sheel, liquidfity 2and profitability rabos. We

also consider the ridks of a reduction in the
availability of hnance, induding a temparary
disquption of the debt markets.

Basad on our current commitments and
available faclities, the Group has no requirement
to refinance umil earty 2021 firrespective of
whethar the setilement of the 1.5% 2012
convertible bond is with equity or debt).
British Land's committed bank facilities tolat
£1.8 bilion, of which £1.3 bitlion was undrawn
aL31 March 2017

For more on managing our risks, including
financial risks, see pages 4610 53,

Managing interest rate exposure

We manage our interest rale profite
independently from our debt_ considering the
sensitivity of underlying earnings o movements
in markel rates of inlerest over a five year
pericd. The Board sels appropriate ranges -

of hedged debl over that period and the

longer term. ’

Qur debt finance is raised at both fixed and
varable rates. Derivatives [primarity interest rate
swaps and caps] are used to achieve the desired
interest rate profite across proportionatly
conselidaled net debt. Curvenity 60% on average
of projecied net debl is hedgad over the next five
yaars, with a decreasing profite over that period.
The use of derivatives is managed by a Dervatives
Commiltee, using delegated authorily from the
Board. The interest rate management of joint
veniures and funds is considered separately

by each entily's Board, taking into account
approgriate factors lorils business.
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Counterparties

Wiz miocnitor the credit standang of aur
countas parties o minimise owr sk exposure
in placng cash daposits and arranging
derivatrves. Regular reviews are made of the
external credit ratings of the counderparties.

Foreign currency

Our pobey is to have no material uphedged
net ascelts or iabilities denominated n
foreign cwrendies.

When altractive terms are avadable. the
Group may choose o borrow in currendes
ather than Steriing, and will fully hedga the
foreign currency exposure.
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Qur five guiding principles

Diversify
Qur SpUICES
of finanee

maturity
of debt

Maintain

Maintain

We monitor inence markels and seek 10 access different sources of inznce when the relevam market condilions are favourshble
o meel the needs of our business and, where appropriate. those of our joind ventures and funds. The scale and quality of our
busmess enatites us 1o access a broad range of unsecurad and setured, recourse and non-recourse dabt.

We davelop and maintsin long term retationships with banks and deit investors. We akn to 2vaid relianoe en particutar sources

of funds and borrow from a targe numbar of landers from differ=m sectors in the market across a range of geographical areas,
wilh 3 tolat of 30 debt providers in bank facbities and private placeients alone. We work 1o ensure that gabi providers understand
our business. adopling a Uransparent approach to provide sffident disclosures to snable them o evaluale their exposure within
the overall context of the Group. These factors increase our aliractivensss to deb! providers, and in the last five years we have
arranged £4.6 billion [British Land share £3.9 billion] of new finance in unsecured and securad bank loan fadlities, US Private
Placements and comvertible bonds. In addition we have axsling long dated debantures and seagitisation bonds. A European
Medium Term Mote programme has also been maiatained tg =nable us to aocess Sterling/Eer unmecuned bord markets

when itis appropnata for our business.

s4 .5bn

total drawn dabi (proporbonalh

¥

The maturity profile of cur debt is managed with a spread of repaymend daies, reducing our refinancing rsk in respect of iming
and markel conditions. We maonilor the various debl markets so thal we have the ability Lo act gquschkly ko arrange new finance
5 opporiunities arise which meel gur business needs. As a resadlt of our financing activity, vee are comfertably ahead of our
prelerred refinancng dale horizon of nol less than two years.

The current range of debl malurines is within ope to 19 years. In accordance wilh our ysual practice. we expect to refinance
facilities ahead of their maturities.

4.4 years

average debt raatunty {proportionatly consoldated|

in addition to our drawn debl, we always aim Lo have a good level of undrawn. committed, unsecured revolving bank fadilities
These faalities prowde hnancial iquidity, reduce the need o hotd resources in cash and deposils, and Minimise costs ansing
from the difference between borrowing and depusil rates, while reducing oredil exposure.

We arrange these fevolving credit [adilities in excess of our committed and expected requirements lo ensure we have adequate
financing availability to support business requirements and new opportunities.

£1.3bn

undrawn revolving oredil facilities

Dur Fadilities are structured to provide valuable Rexibility for investment actvily execulion, whether sales, purchases,
developments or asset management iniliatives. Our revolving credit facililies provide full operationg! flexibilty of drawing and
repayment [and cancellation if we require] at short nolice without addibonsl cost. These are arranged with standard terms and
tinancial covenants and generally have malturities of five years. Alongside this unsecured revolving debt our secured term debt in
debentures has goed assel secunty substilulion rights, where we have Lhe abiity lo move assels in and gut of the security pool.

£1.8bn

wlal revolwng oredil faclitres

We use both debt and equily financing. We aim to manage LTV through the property cycle such that our fmantial position would

strong balapce remain robust in the event of a signihcant 3 in progerty values and we do not adjus! our approach 10 leverage based on changes

sheet metrics

in property market yields

We manage our nlerest rate prolile independentty lrom our debt, setiing appropeiate ranges of hedged debl over a five year
peri?d and the longer term.

299% A 3.6x

LTV {proportionalty « Gidated]  senineunsecured interest cover [proportonally consolidated]
credil rating .
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Group borrowings

Urisecured finandng for the Group indudes
bilateral and syndicaied revolving bank fadlities
bwith initizal lerms usually of five years, ofien
extendablel; US Private Placemnents with
matusities up to 2027: and the comvertible
bonds maturing in 2017 and 2020,

Secured debi for the Group lexchuding debi

in Hercules Unit Trust which is covered under
‘Borrowings in our joint venlures and funds’]

is provided by debentures with tonger maturitizs
up to 2035

Unsecured borvowings and covenants
The same finandiat covenants apply across
each of the Group's ensecured faalities.
These covenants, which have been consislently
agreed withall unsecured tenders since
2003, are:
- NetBerrowings nol to exceed (75%

of Adjusted Capital and Reserves
- NetUnsecured Berrowings nol to

excead 70% of Unencumbered Assels

No income or interest cover ratios apply
to these fadlities, and there are nocther
unsecured debl financial covenants in
the Group.

The Unencurnbered Assets of the Group, nat *
subjact to any securily, stood at £8.6 billion
asal 3 March 2017, .

Although secured assets are excluded

from Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
catculations, unsecured lenders benedit from the
surplus value of Lhese assels above the related
debl and the free cash flow fram themn._ During
the year ended 31 March 2017, these assets
gznerated £4% million of surplus cash afler
payment of interest. In addition, while

' investrments in jonl ventures do not form part
of Unencumbered Assets. our share of iree
cash Rows generated by these vantures are
reguiarly passed up to the Group,

Unsecured financial covenants

Secured borrowings

Secured debt with recourse te British Land is
provided by debentures st fixed inlerest rates
with long maturities and limited amortisation,
These are secured against a combined pool of
assets with common covenants; the valua of
those assets is required to cover the amount
of these debenbures by a minimum of 1.5 times
and net rental income must cover the interest
at teast once. We use our rights under the
dahantures to withdraw, substitute ar add
properties lor cash collateral} in the security
pool. in order to manage these wver raiios
eflectively and deal with any asset sales.

Secured debt withoul recourse to British
Land comprises a bxed rate debenture of E3¢
milbion for BLD Proparty Holdings iLtd to 2020
secured by a smalt portiolio of propariies.

The £295 million secured bank tean for TBL
Properties Limited land its subsidiaries) was
repaid early on 30 September 2014,

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
Externat debt for our joint ventures and

funds has been arranged through long dated
securitisations or secured bank debl, according
to the requirements of the business of

each venture.

Hercules Unit Trust and its joint ventures have
term loan facilities malturing in 2019 and 2020
arranged for their bysiness and secured on
property portfolios, without recourse ta British
Land. These teans include LTV ratio bwith
maximum levels ranging lrom 40% o §5%}
and income based covenants.

The securitisations of Broadgate [€1.416 million],
Meadowhall [£470 milkion] and Lhe Sainsbury's
Superstores portfolio (€367 million), have
weighted average maturities of 11.4 years,

2.7 years. and 3.7 years respectively. The key
financial covenant applicable is lo meet interest
and scheduted amortisation lequivalent to 1

2013 a4 05 2014 217
At 31 March % % ® % %
Nel borrowings (o adjusied capital and reserves’ 3 4Q 33 34 29
Nel unsecured borrowings to unencumbered assets? 23 31 29 25

28

Highest during the year to 3t March 20417
' 34%
%

Bmmes covar]; there are ng LTV covenams.,

These securitsatuns have quarterty - -

2moriisslion with the balante eelstanding..

redicing n approsmately 0% o 3o
mmmmwmﬁmlp

métzrity, thus mitigating refinaneing risk,
There is no Ghligation en British Land to

remedy any brazdh of these covanants in the
debi anangament of joint ventures and funds.
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Srrategiye Repore

MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Effective risk management is
integral to our objective of delivering
sustainable long term value

Lucinda Bell
Chanr of the Risk Commiltee

For British Land, effective risk management

15 3 cornerstone of delivening our strategy

and integral to the achievemnent of our chjective
of detivering sustainable tong term vatue. We
maiftain a comprehensive risk rmanagement
process which serves o identify. assess and
respand to the principal risks facing our
business, ivcluding those risks that could
threaten the Group's solvency and liquidity, as
well as identitying emerging risks. Our approach |
is not intended to eliminate risk entirely, but
nstead 1o Manage our Ntk exposuUres acress
the business, whilst at the same lime making
the most of pur epportunities.

Our risk management framework
Our integrated approach combines a top
down stralegic view with a complementary
botlom up aperational process cullined in
the diagram on: page 47.

The Board is respansible far the overall
approach 0 nisk Mmanagement with 3 particular
focus on determining the nature and extent

of exposure to principal risks it is walling to
take in achieving its siralegic ohjectives.

This is assessed in the context of the core
strengths of our business |as summarised on
the rightl and the external environment in
which we operale - this is our risk appetite.
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The Aydit Committes takes responsibility for
averseang the effect of risk ) t
and internal conirol systems on behatf of the
Board, and also adwses the Board on the
principal risks facing the Group inctuding thase
that would threaten 11s solvency or biquidity.

The Execuolive Directors are responsible for
delivering the Company's sirategy and managing
risk. Our risk management framework
categorises our risks info external, strategic
and operational risks and the Rick Committee
by the Chéef Financial Officer] is responsible for
managing the principal ricks in each categoryn
order lo achieve the Group's performance goals.

Whils: responsibility for oversight of risk
management rests with the Board, the effective
day-to-day g k of risk 15 embedded
weithin our operational business units and
forms an integrat part of how we work. This
botiom up approach ensures potential risks
areidenlified a1 an early stage and escalaled
as appropriale with mitigahons pul w place

to manage such risks. Each business unit
mainlains a comprehensive risk register which
is reviewed quarierly by the Risk Commiltee,
with significant and emerging risks esCatated
ta the Audit Committee.

To read more about the Board and
Audit Commilttee's risk oversight,
go to pages 65 and 70,
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British Land core strengths

High quality portiolio focused on
rnutbi-let retait across the UK and
office-led campuses in London
Placemaking lo creale Places
People Preler

Custamer orienlation 1o respond

to changing lifestyles

Diverse and high quatity occupier base
High occupancy and long lease
lengths provides secure cash Rows
Mixed use development expertise
Abibiy to source and execute
altractive invesiment deals
Efficient capital strutlure with good
access 1o capital and debt mharkets
Sustainabilily embedded in

our strategy

To read more about Our business
model, goto pages 10and 11.



Qur risk appetite

The Group's risk appetile is reviewed annually
a5 part 4 the annual stralegy review process
and approved by the Board. This evaluation

ifas the aclions we take in 2xecuting our

Qur risk appetite
. Change in
Principal Key risk indicators risk appetite
internal risks [inctuding anrent eptimal threshatids? i the year g
@ tvesiment - Exzcution of largeted aapisitions ard disposalsin ’ @
strategy line: with pian loverseen by bivesiment Cornmitiee)
— Review of gweratl portfolio prospective performance IRRSY
- Pefmnlagen!mﬂfcﬁoh'mnmsecm
@ Development - .Toialdmlopmmtexposure <15% ef portfolia ’
strategy - Speculative developrnent exposure <8% of pertislio

12016: <H0Rh
Prugress on exaoution of key development projects
againsi plan

@ Pest

Unplanned executive departures
Employee engagement [ Bast Companies’ surveyl

@ Capital

LTV should nol exceed a maxirnum threshold in an

struchre ecenomic downtum il market yields ware lorisa to
previous peak levels
- Covenant beadroom
@ Finance - Periad until refinancing is required of not less than
siratagy twoysars

Percentage of debt at figed inferest rates over next
ve years

@!m:nmer

Market leiting risk including vacancies, uproming

aussiainability expiries, and breaks and speculative developmeant
- Weighted average unexpired lease larm
- Concentration of exposure to individual ocoupiers
or seclors
Qur risk management framework
Top down Bottom up
Strategic rick rnanagement Operational risk management
Review exlernal environment /\____
Robust assessment of principal risks
- BOARDY Assess sfiectiveness of risk
; 3 AuDsT
Sat risk appetie and parameters COMMITTEE mw syslems
Determine strategic action points Report on pnnaipal nsks
—_— and uncertainties
\\/
Identily principal risks T TT—
Darect delivery of strategic actions RISK Consider completensss of
in line with risk appetite ﬁéﬂ"ﬂf&” identified risks and adequacy
- DIRECTORS of mitigaling actiens
Monitor key risk indicators -
Consider aggregation of risk
‘___‘\\// EXPOSUNeS 3LI055 lhe business
Execute sirategic actions //\
Report on key risk indicators Report current and
BUSINESS emernging Asks
UNITS

—

Idently. evaluale and
miligate operabional risks

recorded in risk register

4
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sirategy. We have identifizd a suite of Key Risk
Indicators (KRis) 10 monitor e Group's risk
prodde las summansed on the Left], which

ave reviewed quarterty ty the Risk Commiliee,
16 ensure that the a2ctivities of the business
Tenain vathen our risk appelite and that cur
risk exposane is well malched io changes in
our business and cur markets. Thesa mclude
the mest Sgnificenl judgemanis affecing

QU qisk exposune, induding our asset
salection and ivestment strategy: the level
of orcupational and development exposure
ang our fimancisd teverage.

The Boand has considered the Group's risk
appstite in igt of the outrome of the Ui's
referendum on continued membership of

the EU. Qur strateqy, which is based on

lang term frends, endures; we had already
positioned the business for a range of outcomes
with modast devalopment exposure. high
sccupancy and robust finances. However, we
have a range of tactical levers to address the
evoiving political and economic uncertanties.

Wa have modarated our devalopment activity,
reflecting increased uncertainty. We reduced
our intermnal risk matric for the maximom
we will develop speculatively froomn 109 of
the portfclio to 8%, although our current
exposure is much lower a1 4%.

Our firandial position is strong: our
proporbonally consolidated LTV has reduced to
22.9% reftecting asset sales and our financing
has an average lerm of eight years oh drawn
debit wath no requirement to refinance until

early 2021,

The Board considers that the Group's
risk appedlite is appropriate to achieve
our sirategic objectives. Qur businessis
both residient and well piaced o capture
value in the tong term.
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Qur risk assessment

Key strategic
priorities
affected

:{G

@8O

2®

@ demam.?lr anrt @g
tenant default

Likalthood

Avaitability ard
cost of finance

(O

(&) Camsughic
business event

@9

Internal risks

@ Investimenl,

strategy

@L®

Development

strategy

2®

impact s
Nate: Tha above Alusirates prnapat nsks which by thesr naty Tch >
to signiicantly impact the Group's gic objeciives. Rnancall poski epriat

@ People
(1) Capitat

siruciure

Key
Strategic priorities

@

Change year an year
@  unchanged

e O &

Customer Orientation

2®

®
ololeloee ee o o oo 5'5%5

2
®

Right Places
Capital Efficiency

QOur changing risks and focus

The Roard has undertaken a robust assessment
ol the principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group is exposed toin light of the long term
trends we are facing {see pages 12 and 13l and
in light of the EU relerendum resull. Several ol
our principal risks are elevaled as a resuli of the
increased political and economic uncertainty
las shown by the risk heat map abaovel.

Looking lorward, ricks that also could be
impacted while the lerms and timing of exit are
negotiated, and potentially beyond are: investor
and occupier demand, availability of finance,
execution of invesiment strategy and income
suslamability. We remain mindful of patenbal
headwinds going lorward and our risk appetite
and tactical decisions will reflect the evolving
environment to ensure the business remains
both resilient and well positioned to capture
upside 1n the lujure.
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853  Expert People

Aso, several of our principat nsks have evolved
in nature; the regulatory environment is now
recognised within a broader Potitical and
Regulatory Outlook” risk; and the ‘Development
Stralegy risk has been expanded to include
development cast inflation.

Increased
Reduced

supporls the eflective managernent

of risks, whilst mainiaining a praciical
approach and meeling the requiremenis
ol the UK Corporate Governance Code.

We have buill on our existing process by

Other areas of fotus for ihe Risk
Commiltee during the year included.

- Culture

- Cyber security

- Asset level crisis plan

= Fraud and whistieblowing

~ Effectiveness review of our risk process

During the yaar, we have undertaken an
elfectiveness review of our risk management
process, as well as an internat audit. Qur risk
managemenlt process appropnately
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hedding risk Iy it dise
in the retevant business unit managesment
commitiees and provided Iraining for our
risk spedialists across the business.

This year we hosted a major civil contingencies
exercise simulating a large scale critical
intident at one of our mulli-tet retal assels.
This was under taken with support from severat
police forces, fire and ambulance and other
national agencies and enabled us Lo test our
capabilities and preparedness in the event

of a significant emergency.



The princpat nsks facing British Land are
summnarised on pages 50 to 53, induding
an assessmen of the potential impact and
likelihood and how the risks have changed
n the year, together with how they relate
10 our sWralegic priorities.

The Stralegic Report was approved by
the Board on 16 May 2017 and signed
onits behalf by: ¢

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Olficer

Viability statement

Assessmentof prospects

The Group's zrnual corperate planning
process indudas the comgplelion of 2 strategc.
rERNEY, feassessing the Group's sk 2ppatie
and updaling the Group's forecasts.

The Group's strategy providas the focus lor
our arews priortias and i formaily reviewed
annually. This process is led by the Chizi
Exzoutive hrotgh the Bxeoutive Committee and
indudes the active engagemmen of the Bozrd.
Pzrt of the Board's mie is i consider whather
the sirategy ta%es approgriate account of the
Greup's pranoipat risks. The lalest updates

Io the strategic ptan and Group's risk agpedte
were apanoved by the Boand in March 2017

The stralegy and rnsk appalite drive the
Group's forecasts. These cover a five year
pesiod 3nd consist of 2 base case lorecast
which indudes committed bransactions caly,
and a ferecast which also indudes non-
onmnitled Irsnsacions the Bosnd expects
the Group to make in e wath the Group's
sirategy. A five yoar forecast is considered 1o
be the oplimal batance between the Groups
long tesin business medel ko aeale Places
Peopie Prefer and the fact that property
investrent is a long term business fwith
weighied average lease lengths and debt
makurities in excess of five years), offset by the
pregressiealy ynraliable neture of lorecasting
in later years, partoutarty given the historicalty
cydical nature of the UK property indusiry.
Assessment of viahility

For the reasans outlined 2bove, the penod gver
which the Directors consider i feasible and
apprupriate to report on the Group's viability
is the five year period to 31 March 2022,

The assumptions underpinning these forecast
cash fRows and covenant cornpliance forecasts
ware sensifised to explore the resilience

of the Group to the potential impact of the
Group's significant risks_ or 3 cambination

of those risks.

The prindipad risks table which follows on
pages 50 to 53 summanses those matters
that could prevent the Groap lrom delivering
on iis sirategy. A number of these pnncipal
risks, because of their nature or potential
impact, could also threaien the Group's
ability to continue in business inits curreat
form if they were to accur:

The Directors paid particular attention to the
risk of a delerioration in ecenomic cutloak
which could impact property lundamentals,
including investor and occupier deinand which
would have a negative impact on valuations,
and give rise to a reduction in the awailatility of
finance. The remaining principal risks, whilst
having an impact on the Group's business
maodel. are not considered by the Oirectors

to have a reasonable bkelihood of impacting
the Group’s viahility over the five year period
1031 March 2072

0 be severe bt plausible; and 1o take hull
account of the avellablity of mitigating actions
that couid be 1aken to avoid or reduce the
impact or occurrence of the undartying risks
relating 0 2 sngle “downarm scenaTio”:

— Downldurn in economic outtook: Key
assumplions inchuding cooupancy, void
periods, rentat growth and yields were
sensilised in the ‘downiurn scenano’ ke
reflect reasonahly ikely levals assooated
with an ecenomic downtum, induding:

- areduciion in oocupier demand. with
akllin otcupancy rate of 5% and
Offeces and Retad ERV dedlines of
25% and 5% respectivaly

- areduction ininvestment property
damand to the teved sean inthe last
severe downlum in 280872809, with
cutwerd yield shaft to 835 nel mitid yield

- Restricted avaitabtity of hmance: based
on bhe Group's cuETen commitimerits and
avaiiable laciities there 5 no requirement
torefinance untit earty 2021. In the normal
course of business, fingnting is arrangedin
advance of expected requiraments and the
Directors have reasonable confidence Uhat
additianal er replacement deb? foafiirs will
bie put o place. In the "dovmiien scenario,
the loliowing sensilivity of this assumgion
was congucted:

- 2 reduchon inthe availabdity of
finance, forthe final twa yoars of the
five year assessment in andem with
tha Group's refinandng dale

The outcome of the "downiurm Scenarso’

was that the Group's covenant headreom
based on existing debt {i.e. the level by which
vestinent property values wauld have to §all
before a findncial covenant breach occurs]
decreases from the current 58% to, atits
lowast tevel, 11%, indicabing covenants on
exsting aliies would nol be breached.

In the "downiurn scenario’, mitigaiing
actions would be required to enable the Group
1o meel its future liabilities at the refiancing
dale, principaity through assel sates, which

" would allow the Group to continue 1o meet

its liabilities over the assessment period.
Viability statement

Having considered the forecast cash flows

and covanant compliance and the impact of the
sensibdties in combination in the “downtem
scenario, the Directors confirm that they have
areasonable expectation that the Group will

be able o continue in operation and meet its.
liabilities as they fatl due over the period

to 31 March 2022.

Going concern

The Directors also considerad it appropriate
1o prepare the linancal statements on the
going concern basis, as explained in the
Governance review.

To read more informalion on going
«oneern, go to page 45,
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Serate

PRINCIPAL RISKS

 External risks
Risks and How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the vear
Economic  ThelXecunamic climate - The Risk Committes reviews the sconomic @ Th LK ecnnimiy has rematned robust and
outhook: and future entsy; enviT t i whuch wa operate quanerty to h:edbdmﬂmmyezpaﬂedldlmujmaﬂl
interest rales present ricks assesswhather any changes 1o the econcmec Exsitn, vt e ativily Snpreving in
and oppartunities in s ool ifya re of the risk the secnind hadf of 2014, albeR we hirve seon some
and financing markets and the appetite of the busmess evidenoe of stlitaning relafl spend i tha Rrst part
busivesses of our occupiers _ Indacan of 2017 There ks conliminmg wwe tainty assocaied
which can impact both the A e TSt P e with thee LRCs futiare et frem the £1 ant ather
delivery of our stralegy and i P rates and i heflan genpaiRical Chamges, ewih 3 wite spectrum of
our financial pesformance. considered. as well &5 central bank guidance wirewes anaos fhure STDMIIET PaTEOITRAINS.
ﬁgmnrma:dq::damd and g boalls, hare baan volatile.
finderesl rafes have rernamad lovr, but UK inflatien
- w*m:::”mss"mawz smmmmmm

our fmanoa| pasition s suffiiantty flzxibls
and resilient

- O resilien busivess model focuses on a high
and robust finances

~  Whilst we are not able to nfluenca the outcome
of significant political evenls, we do take the
mcu!anlyrdaledlosﬂamlsarﬂﬂwmgr

Commensinl Reduction in investor demand
for UK real estate may result

- Internatly we review and monitor
emyerging poticy and legistation to ensure that we
mmeumwmlnmm

public alfairs i
lomematwearepmpg-!ybnefadunm
tential policy and regutatory tions
nlpd;u:almnts.\"hereappmte,m
act with other < and
represontative hodies lo contribute Lo the
debate on regulatorny changes

- The Risk Committee reviews the property tnarkel
quarierly to assess whether any changes to the:

property in fails in asset valuations and marked outiook present risks and opportunities
investor coutd arise from variations in: which should be reflected in the execution of
destad ~  the hegilh of the UK economy our sirakegy and our capital allocation plan. The
the _ o Committee considers indicatons such as margin
Moo Sty oo o
! and property capital growth forecasts which are
- avalabiity of knance and H alongside the Comnmittee members’
- relative stradiveness, knowledge and experience of markel activty
of otheyr ascel classes and trends
- Wefocus on prime assets and seclors which
we believe will be less susceplibtie over the
medivm term 1o a reduction in occupier and
investor demand
- Strong 'ﬂahmmsmlhuqmtsandd\mcl
imvestors active in the market
~  Westresslest sur business plan for the
eltect of a change in property vields
Key

Charwe frorn (ast year
h;kexplﬂnlnsfnueased
@ No significant change i risk exposure

Risk exposure has reduced

50

Qur prinapal Key Risk indicators
are highlighted walhin How we
nonitor 2 manage the risk’.
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Wﬁnﬁiﬂb

o starling.

Ve remzin mindfik of potential veatwings and
haes ihe Rephiioy tn crale our gavalopTRant activty
An visk EXPOSTES up OT Sowh o respond ta market
condirns, i ensune the bushess remams bolth
resisnt and well pooned ty capture upsids in

U byture:.

There remans sncartzndy Zhout tha nature of
Britaas ext from and future relations wath the EU.
Furthermaore. he globval genpoliticat and trade

Vbe are condvlen] that the natueal resikance of our

we hawe 1hen, leaves our usiness well pasitioned.

lwestment valumnes were losar in 2015_ although

mmmmmmlm
Supported by CuteRCy MoveInents.

The markel for the: Most altractive assets remains
liquad and in the centrai L ondon olfwce markel these

have been a manber of high profile ransactions
including our sale of The Leadenhall Bultding.

Primne yields have o ol

secondary assels We hove conlinued 1 be active
and exchanged on the sate of £1.5 bitlion
of assets, overatl 95 ahead of valualion



Risks and How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the year
Occupier Underlying intome, rental - The Risk Commiltes rediews mdicators of tnreiad, demand remained firm in the vear, desplle
demand growth and capilal performance ocougier demand quarierty nduting consumer wrdar unceETlanty rem aevsenes el relslers alike.
coutd be adversaty canfidence surveys, and emnployment and ERY Howeevees, relalers are fadng a more chatlenging
and tenant by weakening occupier grwu\hrmaimgsﬂememm envirorment with cost pressures from 2 number
default d o & i and experience of couga of sonmees inctuding the Natonal Living Wage, the
. resulling fram variationsin plamvaiﬁngpeﬁnrmanceand(eamgam‘lg recenl busmass rates reslustion, impart cost
ﬂuaheﬂlhdﬂlelﬂlw in guiding exaoution of our stratagy mflation duz to the weakening pousnd and freen the
9 - Wehmea ality, drarsified oocupier base mdmmm
of consumer confidence, mmmmmnmdemw!ntrdnmhd These ressures ivazn thal reteders e intreasingly
barsiness attraty and orcupiers or sectors. We parfarm rigorous oooupiar fonusing an the most profitable stores, where they can
Tvestment. covenant chetks ahead of approving Heals s on gru sabes with lower conupanny costs. Gur continad
Changing consemer and 2n cngoing basis s that we can be proactive in upgrading of amvironemonts 31 o vz groperties
business pracitres induding managing expusure to weaker COCHpRTS and wmmm
&wd"“mm‘l"g - Ongeaing engagement uith out srcupiers. Thaoagh weEin ®
& werking praciices, & o Kay Dooupier Atcount programima wa wark Widte demang Landon olfice mark
bdaumuandhweuagyelliuan lnge?t?érwilhwm;ﬁusmﬁrdwwsmbzs& !mshemmﬁ 5 nlﬁe o takeu:l
mmmm e niveed thesir evolving requivesnents hasmddwwﬂ\mdlmwwlhemmhm
locations may result sy eartier (her sustainability stralegy links achion on ocougiar with the tan yaar suerage. Lomdm’s broad appeal
than anticipated absalescence Bypalth and wellheing, entrgy afficiany. comanenity mears dhat deonand has continusd 30 origmate from
of our bullings ¥ ewsiing e sustainable design Lo our business strategy. ' avenge of idustnies induding seeng demand from
octupiar and regulztary Owsoc.iclanduwirwngmaﬂarge!shdpus the aeytive and technolegy seciors. We have seen
reqUITEMEnis 378 D ael. enmyly with news legistation 2nd respond to vatanty rates rising in both the City and Wesl End
custnmer demands: for aample, we expect all hﬂmgmdmmmamimed
offica developments to be BREEAM Excellent thes to apply on markel rants:
hmmmmmlmm
gushiy places witt provibe suppert o rends w the
b lecations.,
from the UK's departurs fraen the EUL suth as
mizgatisn controis and passporting. office oocupiers
2Asa fane chaleng=s 35 they adapl o econom,
mdaﬂmﬂmmwhuﬁﬁmLmdm
p attractive 2nd engagt
mmwxemaﬁngbmnnsmme
ch and scate of oantrat Landon
Jﬁmuﬂw&ﬂmp@mmuﬂmmﬁl
frorn afry Sheft in demand.
Avnilability Reducedanailabilitycffinance -  Markel borrowing rates and real estate eredit ’ Thare has beaen marked velatlity reacting
o cost " mayatversely impact ability to aaitatAity are moniinred by the Risk Committee hmmmm
refinance debt andfor drive up quarterty and reviswved regutarly in order to guida , there fatiuty of finance
of fimance cast. These fadtors may also cur Fnanding actions inexecuting our strategy md(;‘btgmhlnw::lseu'ﬂdmwl
resufi inweaker tvesior - Wamonitor our projected | TV and oar debl B o anf efser quakity resl estate
demand for reat estate, W‘St;:m:imbwﬂ investors. Davelnpmant fnance withmg pro-teis.
Regulation and capital costs reports focused on borrowing levals, debt maturity. s mare diffoult v ohizEn.

shortage
coutd severely distupt global
markets lincluding property
and financel and cause
significant damage and
disruption to British Land's
portfolio and operations.

» ternoream threat levels and we have access

available aclities and interest rate exposure we _ 0 achiede at i ings and

We maintzingood long Lerm retationships with agread one year extersians on a toiat of ELS biion of
o key financing partesrs g ynsecured laclitias and agreed a new £100 million
The scate and quality of gur business enablas bilateral laclity in the year

us to zooess a diversa range of sources of finance

with a spread of repayment dates. We aim atways

tohave a good tevel of undrawn, commnitted,

unsacured revolving fadlitias to ensure we

Iaveadequaieﬁnanungavailabahtywumpon
raqunr oppnrlumtnﬁ

We work with industry bodies and other ¢ 1]

organisations o participate in any debate

on emérying finance regulations where our

interests and those of our industry are affected

Wa mainlain 3 comprehensive orisis response The Home CiRce thraal level irom intemational
plan arross all business urals aswell as a wETrEm ramains Sevare . Qur business continuity
haad office business continuity plan mmmwgmqwmmbem
The Risk Commitlee monitgrs the Hame Office reviewed and esthanced where appropriate.

We are mindfut of eyber security risks and have

to security threal inferTation services enha o fty position as well a5 rolling

Asset emergency procedures are regularly R eyber awarenass iraining aoruss hoth British
veviewed and scenario tesied. Physical Land and Broadgate Fsiates, We coithue to
security measures arein placz at properties . enerilar the Cyber threat landscape including
and developrnent sites the impact on eur supply chain and any

Cur Susiginability Commitiea moniters mhmmdwmgtﬂamﬂs

envir £ and climate change nisks.

Assel risk assessmants are carried out to
assess arange of risksinduding security,
flood, enviranmeniat, health and safely

We have implemented corporate cyber security
systesns which are supplemented by incident
managamenl. disaster recovery and business
continuity plans, all of which are regularty reviewad
to be able to respond to changes in the threat
landscape and organisatibnal requirernents
Wa also have appropriate insurance in place
across the portfolio .
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wrrafewic Repart

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED .

Imternal risks
Risks and How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the vear
Lmestment norderfomeetow strategic - Ourinvestment strategyis detesmined 1o ke Whilst the cutlook it cur markels wall remain
N ohjectives we aim to nvest cansistent with Gur targsl risk appedite 2 © based uncertzin tor some Grhe, we have &n endyring
Strategdy in and exit fram the right n the evalisation of the external enviranment strategy which is based on lnng term trends and
W_‘ﬁme properties at the right time_ - Progressagainst the siralegy and coniswrng s positions our high quality portiolio to henefit
execulives: Underperformance could wgmﬁ.mwngwmsm firem increasing polarisstion and to atiract a
ChrisGrigg,  result frumchanges in al each Rish Commiltes with reference ko the broader range of occupiers. b ine with our
[Chanies ymtelse_cmngntasﬂas propesty markets and th eriernat econamic ?uamgmmwbagmmw
Madstey, - fozws an ifestyle oriented real estaie; we have
Twn Robrerts zaml slr?a:g‘:mj y . Tha Board carmies ol an anniss! Stralager reviaw . “sg&mwmmm andwe
wector sclect * e ol the sverall corparate strategy inchuding tha
nawghing Srowris curTort andpraspecie asse pertiotie e pte 9% oot W ave e
- dacxsions are sitbject a " hy
- tming of investment and robust resk evatualion oversaen by our bnvestment chsciplined in o Ivvestment activity, with £195 méllian
drvesinvent decisions Comaittee incluting consideration of retums dedem
- exposare 1o developments mammmwwmmes yio e £292 il
- asset tanam_ region - : pert: o of indwidal maﬂalw-....‘ doprr dpl Seang.
concantration a&sﬁsandmarhmplam
- oo arrang - WeTosiar collabhoralive relauonships with
agresrnents which balance the intéresls
of the partizs .
Development Dcvdopmentpmnduan - Wemgewrlﬂehdldzlamlm DﬂdomnemhmbmmWMnlm
strategy opportursty for e a5 a proporion of the and we have bted a
hnusnaﬂrhmsmum investmant portfolio vatue within 3 targed range wumuasmmmeupmnhlylomm
Responsidle  elevatedrisk. 1aking intg sooeunt Fssociated risks and the the titme is nghL. 4@ more uncertan evironsrEl we
executives: hisis reflected inour impaclmteyfma;ncialmalr‘its This s manilored have moderated our arTent spaculabive develtopmant
Cheis Grgg, decision-making process guarterty by the Risk Committes alosng with wmmsﬁdmmﬂn%mm
Chartes around which schemes to progress of devetopments against plan planning and pre-iet discussions aomss the pipaline
2 develop, the timing of the - Priortoc itting to a devet the Group and positonad oursatves 1o make timely dacisions,
TimRoberts  gevelopment, as well as the undartakesaddad:dawrelsalmsmbym an pur develppments going lorward.
tion of these project: G ittee including ideration
Development strategy of returns relative o risk adjusted huadle raies For more on our development programme,

addresses several development - Pre-iels are used to reduce development leting seepages Z¥tadl. .

risks that could adversely impact sk where considared appropriate
undertyingincomeand caprial | Competitive tendering of consinction contracts

performance inctuding: and, where appropriale, finced price conlracts
- develop letting axposure dinlo B
- construchion biming - Detailed selecton and close monitoning of
and costs bnduding contraclors indiusding cowenan] reviews
constructon costinflation]  _  Eypedienced delopment managament team
- major contractor fafure closely mantors de<agn_ constnurction and

- adverseplanningjudgements  Overall deliery process

- Eﬂwmmr&m
with planning authorities

- Wealso aciively engage with the communities
i which we aperate, as delasied in ourLocat
Charter. g ensure that our development activiies
consider the interests of all stakehotders

- Wemanage eswvironmental and social risks aonoss
our development supply chain by engaging with
our suppliers, incdluding through our Supply Chain
Charter. Suslainability Briel for Qevelopments.

ang Health and Salety Policy
Key
Change from last year Our principal Key Risk Indicalors
are highlighted within How wa

Risk expasure has increased monitor and manage the risk’. . )

@ No significant change in risk exposure

Rask exposure has reduced
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Risks and How we monitor Change in Py
impacts and manage the risk the year
People Ammber of aiicalbusiness -  Our HRsirategy is designed tominamsse Expart Peeple is one of e four core foous areas.
processes and dedsions e ik through: of oy siralagy. We SmpUrwer our paopts to maks
lhespmalsih-te in the hands of a fex peaple. - informed and shilled retruitinent processes, i st o thalr potontial During the yaarwe
o Failwetoreonsy, dovelop ~ t = mwmdm;itsm
9 and relain stafl and Direclors 5 ; el oross
with the right ks and Sucressiun plansing far keyroles mﬁhm“ﬂbemgandhealmumdhg
experience may resultin - iphly competitive compansation 2md benakis offarng erthanced Shared Parentat
Sonificant formance - people develog and“; to emplyees. _
g@u'am::auidm- - Theriskis dth m“mmmmmamm
ine B i ting m@mwmum ; mmwmaadwm
basiess . perlarmance S survayl, and towards the Nations! Equality Stenderd.
mmmmmmmmuumm
rarmher of unplanned execyutive departimes Forrere anour Expert Peopte,
in 2ddition o cenduciing BNt nkeNEDTS sa0 pagas 24 and 25.
v - Waangage with cur supglisrs to make dear our .
requiremans in manegng key rghs ndudng 5
health and safely. fraud and brvery and gther
soria and enviremnental rigks, as daeited in
out Supply Cham Charter
Capital Our capital structure - Wemanage our uwe of dabl and eqily finance lo ) Betanoe sl melrics reman strong. Sur LTV 2nd
;/ recognises the balance hatance the banefits of levey age ageinst the risles, waighted 2rrage interz 5 rate on draan debt have
sructure
N between performance, including 2 magnihcation of the impact of proparty redured and inleresl cover has mproved. The impact
~levernge risk and Rexibdity. valuation movesnents of westrmend activity in the year was a nal detrease
Responsible ~ Levarsge magnifies _ to manage we LTV thimogh the property i dady of £0.5 bitlion. The sirength of the Gsoup's
executi capitad 1 both ‘;;aemmﬂlaiw?;anmtpmmﬂﬂm hatane sheed is reflectad in our sedor unsecured
Lucinda Ball pasitive and negatie robust in the evant of a signifscant &2 inproparty credit rabng which was reaflirrnes by Fitdr a1
- Anincresseinleverage m?tmmmwedomaﬂﬂww A~ 2nd cutlonk veas upgr adad to Pasitive’.
5 tol e based on changes in proparty . .
:umdﬂtarﬁkc:‘s markeiyalds Formn:ao;r;nnnoalpdms.
on barroving taclities = We manage our imvestimani activity, the sive &g see pages :
and may increase ummgdwiudmanbeunm:.aswellasw
fnance oogis C e thay oumr
LT\flevalmmappmwla!e
~  We leverage our equity and adhieve benclits of
scale while spreading risk through joind veniures
and funds whach ara typicatty partly fingneed
by dahi without recoursa to British t and -
Finance Finance sirategy —  We have frve key principtes guidmg our feancing Goven thwe quatity of our business,_ we have continuad
strategy addresses risks both to which are smployed ingathes tomanag= the rishs to achiave attractive ings which improve
oantinuing sotvency and in this area: diversily our sowroes of Rnence, phase sarmings and bauidity. As well as baing well priced,
Responsible profits generated, malurity of debt porifolio, maintain baedly, our finianceg 1S robust with an average term of esghl
executives: manaqe rehnanci mainiain exibility, and mainian strong balance years on drawn dabl and no requirement tor the
Lucinda Bell m“sm;mmm? shegt metrics | MhmmlearyMI.Qurmmﬁt!ed
shortage of funds to sustain - Wemenitor the period uniil refinancing is required, Hank lacilities lolal £1.8 biilion o wivich £1.3 bbon
the opevations of the business which is a key determinant of Fnancing activity, and voas undreeam a1 31 March 2017
:lldua es asthey gularly evaluate the For more on our finandal policies,
- Waare commutted to maintaining and enhandng see pages £310 45,
relatipnships with our key finandng partners
- Weare mindful of rel t emerging Aabh
whﬂmmapnlmtﬂllmmpadmemym
we finance the Group
We are mindful of maintaining - We underiake compreéhensive profii and cash Deqﬂleﬂemm‘lamw the quality of our portiolio
smlﬂn‘mnableumnesueams Meww ferecasting incorporating scenario analysis has conlinued to atiract sirong
uh:dmnﬂermnastaﬁeand o model the impact of proposed ransactions, - omwmiﬂEImm«_;oodlmngpafwmance.
Responsikie dividendandprovide  _ prg_aciive asset management spproath o Our iNCOME SIreams are Secure; underpinned

. qrowing
executives: the platform from which to
Chartes We consider sustainability
- of our intomne streams in:
Tim Roberts

maintain strong oocoupier line-up. Wa enonilor
our markel tetting exposure induding vetanties.
upcoming expivies and breaks and specelative
develnpmentaswallasmrrwmg!mdme
pired lease term

- excuionofi ]
slrategy and capital
recycling, osably timing
of reinvestment of sale
proceeds

-~ nahweand structure
of leasing aclivily

- nature and biming of
asset managament and
development activity

- We hava a high quality and diversified orcupier
base and rmoniter concentration of exposine
10 individual ecoupiers or sectors

~ Waare proactive in addressing &y leass breaks
and expinies to minimise periods of vacancy

- Weaclivaly engage with the cemmunilies
i which we gperate, as dalafled in oar Local
Charter, lo ensure we provida huddings that
meet the needs of all relevant stekeholders
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by a high quatity. diverse oocupier base with 8%
otoupancy end an average lease length of 8.3 years.,

Ve attively maaage the impact of our imesiment
sirategy and office lease expiries on our IRCOM2
profile. Lookiag forward, we're conscious of potential
headwinds for our occupiers, however we continue
loelpeclmhrgh quality porifolio to benehit from

increwsing polartsation,
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Goverinnes ‘.

Governance and
remuneration

Board of Directors

Chainman’s govarmance review

QOur governance structure

Gavernance reniew

Report of the Audit Commillee

Report of the Mormnation Committee

Remuneration Report
Letter from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
AvaGlance '
Annual Report on Remnuneration

Diractors’ Report and additional disclosures

Directors’ responsibility statement

SouthGate, Bathiright}
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Governunece

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy

and leads British Land to achieve

long term success

About the Board

Board Compeosition as at 31 March 2017

Board of Directors

1 Non-Executive Chairman
L Independent Non-Execuine Directlors
W Executve Direciors

Directors’ core areas of expertise*

Property '
Fnance { e i},‘ﬁ;’
Retail and consumer m

Public sector m

Academic &%

* Some Dreclors are represented tn mare than one calegory.

Executive Directors’ appointments

50% 50%

appointed internally appainted exiernally

Length of Nog-Executive Directors’ tenures.
Under 3years
3w byears

Qver 6 years

Board Committee membership key
o Audit

Commiltee member

B Remuneration
Commillee member

O Chairman of a
Board Committes

Q Mommnation
Committee member
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Non-Executive Chairman

John Gildersleeve @

Appownted as a Non-Exacutive Director in September 2008 and 25
Chairman an 1 January 2013.

Skills and experience: John is deputy chaiwrman and senior independent
director of Spire Healthcare Group pic and deputy chairman of TalkTalk
Telecom Group PLC. He was formerty chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Group, New Look Retait Group, EMI Group and Gallaher Group: a
non-executive director of Dixons Carphone plc, Lloyds TSE Bank PLC,
Vodafone Group and Pick n Pay Stares [Soulh Africal and an executive
director of Tesco plc. (B.3.1] 69,

Execurtive Directors

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

Appointed to the Board in January 2009,

Skills and experience: Chris has more than 30 years” experience in

the real estate and firancral industrres in a range of leadership roles.
Until November 2008, Chris was chief executive of Barclays Commercial
Bank, having joined Barclays in 2005. Prior to that, Chris spent 20 years
at Goldman Sachs. Chris 1s a non-executive director of BAE Systems ple,
a member of the board of the British Properly Faderation and of the
execylive board of the European Public Real Estate Association.



C
Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer
Appoiried to the Board in March 2071 and as Chéef Financiat Officer
in May 2011

Skills and experience: Luanda 15 a chartered accountant with over
2Syears of industry experience. She is Chairman of Broadgate Estates
Limited, British Land's property management business. Lucinda

is a non-executive director of Rotork plc. where she is Chair of the

Audit Carnrnitlee and a member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Commiltees. She is a member ol the Accounting for Sustainability

CF0 Leadership Network.

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure
Appointed to the Board in February 2010.
Skills and experience: Charles joined 8ritish Land from LaSalle
Investment Management where he was Co-Head of Europe, Managing
Director of the UK business, a member of the Managemeat Board
and an International Oirector. Prior to joining LaSalle he was with
* AXA Real Estate investment Managements for seven years where
he was Head of Real Estate Fund Management in the UK.

Tim Roberts

Head of Offices and Re<idential

Appointed to the Board in Juty 2004,

Shitls and experience: Belore joining British 1 and in 1997 Tim
was a partner 3l Drivers Jonas, in the Investrnent Agency team,
He was farmerly 3 non-executive direclor of Songbird Estates.
Tim is Trustee of LandAid, the propecty industry charity, and
Chair of their Grants Commitiee.

Senior Independent Director

Lord Turnbull @ @

Senior independent Director

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director in April 2006.

Skills and experience: Lord Turnbull entered the House of Lords in 2005
as a Crosshench Life Peer. He retired a5 Secretary of the Cabinet and
Head of the Home Civil Service in July 2005. Lord Turnbull previcusly .
hetd the positions of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and
Permanent Secretary at the Department of the Environment. He was
formerly a non-execulive directar of Prudential PLC, Arup Group and
Frontier Economics L.td and chairman of BH Globat Limited Lord
Turnbull wilt step dovwn from the Board at the end of the 2017 AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Non-Executive Directors

Aubrey Adams @

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director in Septemnber 2008

Skills and experience: Aubrey is group chaw of &G, the housing
associalion and residential developer. He s also chairman of Lhe board

of trustees of Wigmore Hall Aubrey was formerty head of property within
RBS's Restrucluning Division_ and has variously heen 3 non-executive
directar ol Pinnacle Regeneration Group Limited, sanior independent
director of Associated British Ports PLC. non-executive chairman

of Unilech Corporate Parks PLC, Air Partner PLC and Max Property
Group PLC and chief ezeculive of Sawlis PLC.

Lynn Gladden § :

Appointed as 3 Non-Executive Director in March 2015.

Skills and experience: Lynn is Shelt Professor of Chermical Engineering
at the Unwversity of Cambridge, commissioner of the Royal Cornmission
for the Exhibition of 1851, a {fellow of the Royal Society and the Royai
Academy of Engineering and a non-executive director of 1P Group plc.
She was formerly 3 snember of the Council of the Enginearing and
Physical Sciences Research Council and held the position of pro-vice-
chancellor for research at the University of Cambridge until the end

of 2015.
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Simon Rorrows @

Appointed as a Non-Executive Direclor in March 2011,

Siitis and experience: Simon is the chief executive of 3i Group pic and a
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV, the Dutch holding
comnpay for 3i's ivestment in Action, the non-fooed discount retailer. He
worked for 28 years in the barking and fingnce industry, most recently as
chairrnan of Greenhill & Co. Iftermational L1LP: He was also chiel executive
olficer of Baring Brothers Iniernational Lirnited, the corporate linance
devision of ING Banings and was a non-executive director of Inchcape ple.
Simon will step down fram the Board at the end of the 2017 AGM.

William Jackson @@

Appointed as 3 Non-Executive Director in April 2011,

Skills and experience: William is Managing Parner of Bridgepaoint, one
of Eurape’s leading private equily groups, which he has led since 2002,
He also serves as chairman of the board of Pret A Manger and president
of Dorna Sports SL, the rights holder to the Motoe GP world motorcycling
championships. He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has extensive operational and transactional expenience. William
will becorne Senior Independent Director at the end of the 2017 AGM.



Laura Wade-Gery @

Appointed 25 3 Nan-Ervecutive Director in May 2015

Skills and experiente: Laura is a rustee of the Royal Opera House

and Atdeburgh Music and a rnember of the Government Digital Sirategy
Advisory Board. Between July 2011 and September 2016 Lavrawas
exaculive director Multi Channet at Marks and Spencer Group plc.
Previously, Laura served in a number of senior positions at Tesco PLC
and was a honh-executive director of Trinity Mirror ptc.

Tim Score @@

Apporited as 3 Non-Execetive Director in March 2014.

Skills and experience: Tym is a non-executive director of Pearson plc
and HM Treasury, an independent member of the Foolball Assaciation’s
audit commiilee and a senior advisor 1o Brunswick Group on financial
matters. He was chiel linancial officer of ARM Holdings PLC from 2002
to 2015 and has held senior inandial positions at Rebus Group Limited,
William Baird plc. LucasVarity plc and BTR plc, From 2005 to 2014, he
was a non-executrve direclor of National Express Group PLC, including
time a5 interit chairman and six years as senior independent director,

' As from § Apait 2007,

Lord Macpherson of Eaxfs Court @

Appainted as a Nan-Exaculive Oirecior in Decembar 2006
Skills and experience: Lord Macpherson s chairman of C. Hoare &

Co and a director of The Scoltish American Invesiment Company PLC.
He was the Permanent Seaetary 1o the Treasury for aver 10 years lrom
2005 ta March 2014, leading the department through ihe finandial ensis
and the subsequent period of banking reform. Lord Macphersaon trained
as an economisl working at both the CBI and Peal Marwick Consulling.

2 s trom | Aprit 2017.

Gompany Secrctary

Elaine Williams

Skills and experience: Elaine was appoinied Company Secretary and
General Counsel in 2015. She was lormerly Deputy Group Company
Secretary al HSBC Heldings pic and, prior to thal. a parlner

at Freshhelds Bruckhaus Dannger.
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Goveriiney

CHAIRMAN'S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate

Governance and Remuneration
sections of our Annual Report

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman

British Land has a highty effective Board, as once again confrmed by this .
year's Beard evaluation. Lord Macpherson, lermenty Permanent Seaelary
o HM Treasury, was appomntad as a Non-Executive Direcior in Decamber 2016
and we have recently announced that Prebren Prebensen, Chied Exeautive of
Close Brothers Group pie. vill jein the Boand on | September 2007, These
appointments will further strengthen the dverse mix of slls sl expersnce
of our Bireciors.

Lord Turnbull and Simon Borrows will retire from the Boaardg at the end of
the 2017 AGM. Lord Turnbull has served as.a Dxwector for meore than 11 years
and Saman tor two three year terms. | waokd Like to Lhank thern both for- thear
vatuable contribution as Board members., Lard Turmbedl vl also step dovwn
a5 Senior Indapendant Director and will ba succeedad by ViRlliam Jackson.

All Directors. ather than Lordg Tumbull and Simon Borrows, will stand for
election or re-election al the 2017 AGM_ We recognise the value that Directors
wha serva for many years bring lo the Board and are delighted that Aubrey
Adams, who will have served as a Non-Executive Director for almosl nine
years by the time of our 2017 AGM, has sqreed to serve o7 3 lurther one
year tesTn as an wndependent Non-Executive Director. Aubrey's considerable
expenememlhepmperlyseclu‘ism important part of the mix of skilis and

dge on our Board. The process is under way to recruil an additional
Director with property sector experience to further sirengihen the Board.

Read our Board biographies on pages 54 to 59.

Corpualemllure is increasingly an area of focus for ivesions, govermance

y bodies_our custormers and other stakeholders. The Board is
cormmilted o influencing and shaping British Land's coliure and believes
that setting the tone from the lop’ and strong gavemance underpin a healify
inclusive cullure, which is a key part of delivering long term business sircess.
The Board has supported the executive team in the significant amount of wark
that has been done this year i reinforting the behaviours that are expected
of British Land employees, increasing employ Gy W and continuing
p a mare diverse ang inclusive cullute at British Land.

Directors’ oy attendance the vear
ended 31 March 2017 (A.1.2) @

John Gildersleeys /i
Chris Gngg p/id
Aubrey Adams k1
Lucinda Bell wr
Simon Borrows w7
Lynn Gladden w7
William Jackson wn?
Lord Macpherson! 3
Charles Maudsley ! "
Tim Roberts w1 to devel
Tim Score ur
Lord Turnbull /i
Laura Wade-Gery? &7

' Lord Macpherson was appointed to the Board on 19 Becember 2018,
? Laura Wade-Gery was unable lo attend one Board meeting duz lo
travel disruption

As reported in the Chief Execulive's review, we have delivered good resulis
i an eventful year as we have continued with our srategy of differentiating
our space by providing places which reflect people’s changing lilestyles.
The design and delivery of our strategy continues lo be supported by our
robust governance siructure which ensures effective decision-making
based on the right information. The Board plays a valuable role in
encouraging debale about cur strategy and its imptementation
and overseeing the identification and managemen of key risks
\
More information on Qur strategy can be found
on pages 14 and 15.
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Read about gur diversity and inclusion initiatives on pages 24 and 25.

The Board will continue to focus this year on moniaring British Land's cullure
and promaoting good governance that supports openness and accountability
throughout the business. including open engagement with stakehalders.
Further details on the imnpact on culture of sirategic and hnardial deasions
can be found on page 62

We welcome leedback from shareholders. Your feedback helps us shape
our governance siructure and the way we do business, Flook forward to
hearing your views at, and in advance of, our 2017 AGM.

.

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman



QUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board

Board of Directors
— Responsible for long erm suctess
of the Comnpany

Chiel Executive and Execytive Directors

- Oay-lo-day managament of the busmess
and implemeniation of stratagy

- Owerall responsiitity lies with the Chicl

Non-Executive Chairman
- Leads the Board and ensures it
operates effectively
- Mantans 2 odhure of openness and debate

independent Non-Executive Directors

~ Work with and chatlenge Bxecvtive Bireclors
- Prownde an independant, exiernal perspectve
— Coniritute with a broad renge of experience

- Ensuras efiective dialogue between the
Board and shareholders

and eaparipce

Executive, with specilic 2reas delegaterd
to the Exacutive Direciors [Retzil,
Finance_Offices)

Board Commitiees — report on their activities to the Board

Audit Committee
- Diversaes finandal and narralive reporting
- Provides assurance to the Board on
effeclivenzss of internal control risk
managament systems and audil processes
- Rewiews effectiveness and objactivily
of external and internal auditors

At Committee Report
see payes 67 o 70,

Nomination Committee

- Lezds precess for Board appointreents
and sutcessen planning

- Ensures Board and seaivr managemant
have appropriata skills. knowledze and
experience (o operate effectivaly and
deliver strategy

Nominatizn Commiltee Report
e pages N and 72

Remuneration Committee
- Sels remunerstion policy 2nd remuneraiion
ol the Chairman and Executive Dwrectors

- Approves annual and long ierm
performance ohjectives and awaids

Remuneralion Regorl
see pages T 1o 88

Management Commitiees — report on their activities to the Board and its committees as appropriate

Executive Committee

- Censiders day-to-day operational matters
for running the business .

- Rewvizws performance of the Group's
assels and developmend progremme

- Reports lo the Board

- Members are the Executive Directors
and senior executives, chaired by the
Chiel Executive Olficer

Health and Safety Committee

— Rewiews perfarmance against targets and
drives actions in pursuit of the Company’s
health and salety goals

- Reporis to the Risk Committee

- Three subcommittees: Canstruction,
Managed Porilfobo and Head Oltice

Investment Committee

~ Reviews,_ approves or recommends
capital ransactions

- Recommentds major transactions
for Board approval

- Reports tothe Board

- Members are the Executive Directors,
chaired by the Chief Bxecutive

Sustainability Commitiee

- Reviews performance and manilors
progress against sustainability @rgats
and key initiatives

- Assesses emerging secial. environmental
and ethical issues, assessing associated
risks and consideration of matigatng actions

- Reports to the Risk Commilize

Risk Committee

- Manages sirategic and operational risk in
achieving the Company’s performance gaals

- Recommends approprate risk appetite levels
and rmonitors risk exposure

+ Reviews operation of risk management
processes

- Reports to the Audit Commiliee

~ Members are the Executive Directors,
chairad by the Chief Financial Gificer

Community Investment Committee

- Oversees the sirategic managament
of the Community lvestment Fund

- Approves and monitors all spend under
the Community lnvestment Fund

~ Reporis io the Risk Commities
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our governance structure is an

integral part of the way we design

and deliver our strategy

Compliance with the Code

The Board has continued 1o apply good governance practices during
the year and considers that the Comparny has fully complizd with the
UK Corporale Governance Code [the Codel, Thrs section of the Annual

. Report outtines how we have applied the Cade’s principles and provisions

throughoul the year. We are reporting 3gainst the Code which applies io

companies with reporling periods beginning on or after 1 0ctober 2014,
A copy ol the Code is available al www.ircorg.uk

For ease of reference, this is how we demonstrate our compliance
throughout the Governance and remuneration seclion of the 2017
Annual Report:

@ Aleadership @ D.Remuneration

@ B._Ettectiveness ) E. Relations with shareholders

@ C. Accountabitity

Leadership

The Board's core responsibilities inciude setting British Land's
sirategic aims and leading the Company as it works 1o achieve these
aims and altain tong term success. The focus on strategy by the Board
continues thraughoyt the year with annual Strategy Days providing an
opportunity 10 discuss, challenge and develop the Company's strategy
as explained in the box below. Progress in delivery of the agreed
slralegy is considered at Board meetings during the year. The strategy
is kept under review in lighl of Company performance and changes

10 the external environment_

Strategy Davs

The annuat Strategy Days provide Non-Executive Directors in
particular with a locused opporlunily to consider, develop and
challenge the Company's strateqy. As well as considering Lhe
Group as a whole_ consideration is given ko key parts of the
Group's current and prospective asset portfolio.

In 2017, the annua! Sirategy Days were held at the beginning of
March. The Executive Directors, senior executives and external
guests delivered a humber of preseniations to attendees providing
in-depth analysis on aspects of the business and Lhe external
environment. The days wera carefully structured to achweve

a halance between presenlations, debate and discussion,

Areas focused on 3t the 2017 Strategy Days included: corporate

stralegy, Canada Water, Office strategy, Retail sirategy. technalogy
opportunities and challenges.

62 British Land | Annuat Report and Accaunts 2017

The division of responsib@ities betvreen the Chairman bwho is
responsible for nenning the Seard] and the Chief Execultive fwho
is responsible for running the Company’s business] is sel oul
inwriting and approved by he Board A2 116D,

The Boand getegates authoriy for ensiring thal the business is
ryn in accordance with the agreed sivategy (o the Chief Executive.
with responsibility for spectfic areas of the business delegated o
the ather Executive Direclors. The Execulive Direciors are imeolved
in, or aware of, all major activities and are therefore extremety waell
placed to ensure that actions taken align with strateqy.

The major decisions reserved inr Board approval and other deasions
delegated 16 the Exacutive Directors are formally documented and
reviewed regularty{A_1.1)63. The Executive Directors make dedsions
within these predefined parameters although any activities oulside
the ordinary course ol business may slill be taken to the full Board
for consideration and approval where this is considered apgropniate,
aven ' they fall within those parameters.

The parameiers and controls set by the Board within which the
management undertake the day-to-day running of the busipess ensure
that decisions are laken by peaple with the correct autherity to inake
these decisions. Management Commitiees deal wilh their spedfic areas
of responsibility belore making dedsions [where authority has been
granted) or before recommending actions for Board {evel approval.

The Chairman meets with individual Direclors outside lormal Board
meetings as part of each Director’s continuing coniribution to the
Company [A & 7). This process allows for apen, twa-way discussion
about the elfectiveness of the Board, its Committees and individual
Directors. In this way. the Chairman remains mindful of the views. of
individual Directors and can act 35 hecessary Lo deal with any issues
relating te Board eflecliveness belore they hecome a risk to the Company.

Culture and composition of the Board

The cormnpasition of the Board 15 tundamental 1o its success in
providing strong and efective leadership; the breadth of knowledge,
skitls and experience of our Nor-Executive Directors is detailed in
their biographies on pages 56 ta 59. The Nomination Cornmittee

is responsibte lor reviewing the composition of the Board and its
Commitlees and assessing whether the balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and independence is appropnate 1o enable them o operate
effectivety 18.2.219.

Following rec by the Nomination Commitiee, Lord
Macpherson was appointed a Non-Executive Directar in December 2014
and we have recently announced that Preben Prebensen will join as a
Non-Executive Direclor and member of the Remuneralion Commitiee
in September 2017 These appointments will further strengthen the
mix of skills and experience on the Board.




William Jackson will sucteed Lord Turmbatl 2s the Senior Independent
Diractor at the end of the 2017 AGM when Lord Tumbull relires as

a Direcior and as Sentor Indepandent Direcior. Simon Borrows will
also siep down as a Director at the end of the 2017 AGM.

Lord Macpherson joinad the Audit Commiltes and Tire Score joined
the Nominatien Committze on 1 Aprit 2017

Gur rigorous and transparent procedures for appointing new
Directors are ted by the Nominalion Commities. Non-Execulive
Oirectors are appointed for speaiied termns amd all conliswing Direclors
offer themsetves for election or re-election by sharsholders at the
AGM each year, if the Board. on the recommendation of the Nomimnation
Comemittes, deams it appropriate that they do so [B71&.

Aubrey Adarms will have served as a Non-Executive Director for almost
nina years by the tirme of cur 2017 AGM. When 2 Nan-Executive Director's
tenure goes beyond nine years, their indzpendance is carefully reviewed
and monitored. Foltowing a particularly rigoous revizw of Aubrey's
contributions and independance by the Neminabon Committee,

the Board determined that he remains independend in character

and judgement.

The Board has approved the recommendation of the Noemination
Committee thal it is appropniate for Aubrey Adams to remain in office
as an independent Non-Executive Birector, and 3 member of the Audil
Committee. for a further year, notwithslanding the length of his service,
Aubrey’s cansiderable expertise in the property sector is an important
part of the mix of skills and experience on our Board and we recognise
the imporiance of continuity and the valtue that Directors who serve

for many years bnng to the Board. We are delighted he has agreed

to stand for re-election. The recruitment process to recruit an
additional director with property sector experience is ongoing.

The Board considers that Aubrey Adams, Simon Borrows, Lynn Gladden,

William Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull, Laura Wade-Gery and {_ord
Macpherson are independent. In making ths determination, the Board
has reviewed the Nomination Commiliee’s assessment of whether each
Director remains ndependent in character and judgement and whether
there are relationships or crcemstances which are tikely to affecl

or could appear (o affect, thal judgernznt {B.1. 1.

The Board believes that the Non-Exetutive Directors are of the stature
and have the experience required to perform thew roles as independent
Directors property. Followang this year's Board evaluation_ the Board
believes each Non-Execulive Director standing lor re-election at the
2017 AGM continues to fulfil effectivety and remains committed to their
role within British Land. The termns and conditions of appointment of
MNon-Executive Direclors are available for inspecton at the Company's
registerad office and al the AGM [B3.21€0.

The Board culture is one of openness and constructive debate: the
Directors voice their apinions in a relaxed and respectful environmerd.
allowing coherent discussion, The Chairman s responsible for
rnaintaining this cullure. He does so by ensuring informatien of an
appropniate quality is provided in a imely manner belore Board meetings
which leads to focused discussion wn the boardroom. When running
Beard meetings the Chairman maintains a collaborative atmosphere
and ensures that all Directors contribute lo debates. The Chairman
arranges informal meetings and evenls throughoult the yaar ta help
build constructive relationships between the Board members.

We continue 20 have a sirong mix of experisnced individusls on the
Board with the rmajonity being mvdependent Non-Executive Directors
who are able to offer an external parspective on the business, and
cunsiruttvely chatienge the Exaoitve Directers, partcularty when
developing the Company's strategy [B.1.21©, The Non-Executive
Directars scrulinise the performance of managament in mealing their
agreed goais and objectives, and monitor the reparting of performance.

The high calibre of debate and the participation of ol Directors,
Executive and Non-Executive, allow the Beard to utilise the expenence
and =kills of the individual Divectors p thelr maxinnuem polential 2nd
make deaisions that are in the best interast of the Company.

Culture
British t ard recognises that:

- the behaviours and attiludes exhibited s the way British Land
conducts business and in its retalisns with slakehotders are 2
keyindicator of and have a matzsial impact on, our cutiure and

- alignment of our business decsens with our cutture, values
and sirateqy is key to demonsiratmg our cememilmens to
developing 2 long term sustainable business

The Board takes acoouni of these faciors when consitering
strategic and finandal dedsions.

Effectiveness

Regular Board and Communillee meelings are scheduled Lhroughaut
the year and the Directors ensure that they allocate sulhceat time to
discharge their duties eHectively. Occaswonally, Board meetings may
be held at short notice when Board-level dedisions of a ime-critical
nature need to be made.

For meeting attendance, see the table on page 60.

Non-Executive Direclors’ tetters of appoinbment set out the time
commitmenls axpected and each Uirector's altendance record is
considered when assessing whether they should stand lor re-election
by shareholders. The Nomination Corntrittes considers that all the
hrectors continue to devole sulficient tirne to discharging ther

duties to the required high standard.

British Land's polity is to allow Exacutive Oirectors to take one non-
execulive directorship al angther FTSE company. subject la British
Land Board approval. External appoiniments of the Directors are
disclosed m their biographies and fees earmnad by Executive Direclors
are disclosed on page 86 of the Resnuneration Report [D.1.216).

The Direclors are required to nolify the Company of any potential
conflicts of inlerest thal may affect them in therr roles as Directors

of British Land_All potential conilicts of imerest are auharised by
the Board at the earliest opportumty and the register of Directors
interests is reviewed by the full Board ai leasl annually.
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Key areas considered by the Board
during the yvear:

~ outcomes ol the annual Sirategy Days and progress
towards agread outcornes

- consideration and approval of risk appealite

- prindgpal risks faced by the Company

- Brexit and its allect on the Group

- reports of the activilies of the Audit lincluding rick],
Remuneralion and Nomination Commillees

- updates on the business, external enwironment and
investor relations

— updates on the portfolio. induding possible developments,
acguisitions and disposals

- updates on financing and capital structure

— resulls of the Board performance evaluation

~ election and re-election of Directors at the AGM and
Committee membership

- conflicts of interast

— approval of year eng and half year financial resulls,
the Annusl Report and the Notice of AGM

- approvat of lhe dividend policy and dedaration of guarterty
interim dividends

~ culture

- people inctuding training and development and
succession planning

- health and salety

- sustainability

- cyber secunty and information technology

+

The Non-Executive Directors are Xept well informed of the key
developments in the business through reqular reports induding a
Management Report delivered by the Chief Executive at each Board
meeling. a Finance Repori and regular updates an the activities of the
Risk and Sustainability Commitlees. Throughout the year presentalions
and reporis on spedhic aspects of the business and individual assels
are also delivered, aleng with updates on the regutatory and external
environment. Specilic input from the Non-Executive Directors is also
soughl when significant investment decisions and sirategic initiatives
are reviewed and discussed.

Car= is Laken {0 ensure that ml‘urrnanon is circulated in good time

belore Board and Commi! gswh possible. and that
reports are presented clearly and conlam the appropriate lével of detail
o enable the Board to discharge its dulies. it is the Company Secretary’s
mole o facilitate effective information flows between the Board and

its Committees, and belween senior managermnent and Non-Executive
Directors. As aresull, the Non-Execulive Directors are able elfecively
o ftor manag of the b and the implementation of

the strategic aims as well as being able to assess the performance

af the Charrman and Executive Directors [8.5.1) @,

The Company Secretary is respansible, through the Chairman,
for advising the Beard on all aspects of governance (B.5.2) €.
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Board training and devel it

Brrsh Land pmwdes all Non-Execum Darectors with a t2dlored
and thareugh sduction which includes brisfings on Directors’ duties,
Group siraliegy. one-lo-one meslings with Execulive Directors and
other senior execulives. They are also providas with the epportunity
to visit key properties and developments |B.6 116D

The Chairman reviews raining and developmen needs with the
Directors annualty 1B.4.21 €2, Board mvembers are provided wilh
opportunities to updaie and refresh their knowledge throughout
the year. ensuring that they are able to hulfit their role as members
af the Board and ils Commiltees effectively. Dunng the year endad
31 March 2017, the Boand considared papers and presentations on
Iaga! and regulatory developments. techarology opporiunities and
oh and sustainabitity related developments as well as
receiving regular briefings on the vizws of stakeholders, the
extemna] envvironment and requiatnry matlers

Board evaluation

The elfectiveness of the Board and its Committees is reviewed
anmually. with an independent, extermally laclitated review being
contdunied at leas\ once every three years. The next external
review will be undertaken in 2018(8.6.2]©,

in 2017 an internal evalualion of the Board and its Commiltees -
was conducted by the Company Secrelary and General Counsel
[8.61)@. In 2ddion to the fermal evaluation, the Charrnan met
each Nen-Executive Director individually during the year Lo discuss
their contribulion to Lhe Board. The Sender Independent Director
led the apgwraisal of the Chairman's perforvnance by the Non-
Executive Directors, with the views of the Executive Directors

also being taken into consideration (B.6.31 @.

The Chairman and Chiel Executive presented their appraisals

of the performance of the Chief Executive and other Execulive
Direclors respectively. These appraisals were taken inko account
when considering the parformance of the Board as a whole as
well as in relation to annual 2nd long tesmn incentive awards.

The evaluation of the Board and its Committees concluded thal
the Board and its Committees continued ta operate elfectively
with a high standard of performance throughout the year,

Accountability
The Board is responsuble tur prepadning the Annual Report and confirms
inthe Directors’ resp tat i set gul on page 21 that they

believe that this Annual Reporl. teken as a whole, is fai, balanced and
understandable, and provedes the information aecessary lo assess
British L and's position, performance, business maodel and strategy
IC.1.11©. The basis on which the Company creates and preserves
value over the long term is desarbed in the Strategic Report [C.1.2A S,

The conlent of the Annual Report is prepared by the relevant responsibte
individuals across the business. Spedific sections are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Committee members as appropriate,
ensuring thal key stakeholders ave involved throughout the process.

The Executive Oirectors are closely involved in dratting and reviewing
their sections of the Annual Report. A detailed and robust due diligence
process is conducled Lo verify key statements made within the Annwal
Report prior to ils thorough review by the Audit Committee and
presentation o the Board for consideration and approval.




.

The procedure undertaken lo enable the Board to provide the fair,
balarced and underslandable confirmation to shareholders has been
reviewad by the Audit Committea. Meetings to review and document the
key considerations underiaken 1o ensure that information preseniad is
fair, balanced and understandable are held batween the Chiel Financial
Qfficer, Head of Invastor Relatiens and the Group Finandal Controiter
and other zppropriate employees. A detziled report is then presanted
to the Audit Committee which includes a summary of the process
undertaken o satisly managemant that the confirmation to be

given is appropriaie and accurate.

Risk manatement and intermal control
The Board datarmines the extenl and nalvre of the risks il is prepared
to take in erder ta achueve the Company’s strategic abjectives.

The Board has responsililty for the Company's overall approach io
risk management and intemat control. The Boand's responsimililies
include ensuring the dasign and implementation of appropnate

risk management and internal control systems. Oversight of the
effectn s of these systems is delegated to the Auvdit Committee
which undartakes regular reviews te ensure that the Groupis
identilying, conssdenng and iitigaling, as far as prachcable,

the most apprepriate risks for the business (C.2.31©.

As well as complying with the Cade, the hest practice recommendalions
in ‘Guidance for Risk Managamenl, Internal Conlrol and Related Financat
and Business Reporting’ have been adopted and the Company's internal
control Irarewark has been assessed against the inlernalionally
recogrised COSO Internal Control integrated Framework. The latter
assessmant showved that all key control elernents are in place.

British Land’s approacho nisk_ including the roles of the Board. the
Audit Committee and the Exzcutive Risk Committee in selling risk
appetite 2nd monitoning risk exposure, is delailed in the "Managing
risk in delivering our strategy” seclion on pages 46 10 42(C.211@.

Formal and lransparent arrangements exist for considening how
corporate reporting, risk management and internal control principles
are applied and for reaintaining an appeopriate relationship with the
Company’s audilor.

The Group's internal control system is buit on the following fundamental
principles, and is subject te review by internal audit:

- adelinad schadute of ratters reserved for approval by
the Board

- adetailed authorisation process: no material commitmenis
are eniered into withoul thorough review and approvat by
maore than one authorised person

- lormal documentation of all signilicant transactions

- arobust system of busmess and financial planning: including
cash flows and profitability forecasting. with scenario analysis
performed on major corporale, property and financing proposals

- arobust process lor property investment appraisals

- monitaring of key oytcomes_ particularly expenditure
and pariormance of significant wvestments, against budget
and forecast .

~ dearly defined policies and review of actual performance
againsi palicies

- benchmarking of property performance against externat
sources such as Investment Property Databank

- key controls testing’ :

- acovmprehensive property and corporate insurance
prograrnme and a formal whistle -btowing policy

The Audit Commitiee reviews the zffectiveness of the Group's
systam of inlermal contrel annuatty, inchirding the systems of controt
for material joint ventures and funds. During the course of its review
of the risk management and internal contrel systems during the
year ended 31 Manch 2017, and to the date of this Repert, the Audit
Commitlee has nol idandified. nor been advised of. a failing or
weakness which it has dalermined o be sigraficant IC.2.31€.

Anurmnber of polices and procedures have been adepted by the Group
to ensure that we nsl only mest our legad obligations, but 2lso behave
ethicatly, act with integriy and protect gur assels from the untawiul
actraties of others. These incluede polrdes on ant-bribery and
worrugtion and frzud awarensss and know-your client procedures.
All emnplayees are madea aware of the Growp's policies and receive
training appropriaste (o thew roles and responsihilities. -

Viability and going concern
The viability statement is set out on page 49 {C.2.21 6,

The Group has considerable undrawn deb: facilities and cash deposits
i 2acess of current dirawn banking laclibes. There is substantial
headroom against the covenants for its unsecured banking laclities.

It atso benefits from a dverse and seawe income siream from leases
with long average lease (erms.

Having assessed the pancipal risks and other matlers discussed in
connection with tve viatality stateraent. the Directors believe that the
Groupis well placed i manage its Rnancing and olher business risks
satisfactorfly. and have 3 reasonabie expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate rescurces bo continue in operation for at least
12 monihs from the dale of the Annual Report. They therefore consider
it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements [C.L.31Q.

Taxation

Our printples of good govamance extend to our responsible approach
to tax. K remains imporiant o our stakeholders that this is aligned to the
tong term values and strateqy of the Group. The Chiel Financial Officer,
with close imvalvement of the other Executive Directars and senior
managamend, is respoasible lor develogang the Group's approach

to Lax. Atax update is presented to the Audit Committee annually.

Carnmunity investrment

British Land's approach to comrnunity investment 15 set outin our
Local Charter which details how we build trust by making positive
contributions locatly. Ow Community Funding Guidelines set out
howwe allocaie lunding, with a particular locus on iniliatives close
to our assels that provde opportunities to local people through
education, employment and training. Both documents can be
found on our website at www.britshland com/policies

Our financial donations to good causes during the year totalled
£€1,351,000 12014 £1.371.000). Our Community Inve stment Committee
approves all expenditure trom our Community Invesiment Fund

and reports lo the BExacutve Cammitiee on an annsal basis.

tn addition to funding projects approved by our Community investment
Commiliee, the Company al<n supports fundraising and payrell giving
for causes that matier to staff. This support includes:

- 50% uplil of staff payroll giving contributions icapped a1 £5,000
per person and £50,600 per annum for the whole organisation} and

- a staif matched funding pledge, matching money raised for charity
by stalf up to £750 per person per year
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Wie also support fundraising by the on st ieams thanaging
our retail and cffice properties around the UK by:

-~ matching up to £730 for two sile fundraising iniiatives
per year, per location and

— exlending our staif matched funding pledge Lo on site employees
of Broadgate Esiates Limited. our wholty-ownad subsigiary

British Land do2s not make donations to potitical organisations.

Remwuneration
The Directors’ Remuneration Report is set oul on pages 73 o 88,

Tha Remuneration Policy wes appraved by shareholdars at the 2016
AGM and is surmmarised on gage 75. The tull policy is avallable on
our website: www.britishland.com/eommittees. We are not making

Key investor relations activities daring
the year incduded

May 2014 - Full yeaT resalis presenlation
- Fultyrar rozdshow, London
- Investor property conference, Nethertands

— Private dientinvestor roundiabie, London

June 20t6 - linrestor roadshow, Edinburgh
- lnveslor property conference. L ondon
~ lveslor property tour, Paddington Central

July 2016 - Analyst roundiable, Retail strategy. § ondgon
- 1 wrading update
- AGM
~  US Prate Placement investor briefing,
2leconfarence

any changes to the Remuneration Policy this year.

Relations with shareholders

The Board remains committed o maintaining open channals of
communication with shareholders. {Lis important thal we clearty
explain the Company s Strategy and objectives and that leedback is
¢ to and any i and q ions appropriately considered.

British Land has a dedicated Investor Relations team which

repaorts lo the Chief Financiat Officer. Investors and anatysts receive
regular communications from thi: Company throughout the year,
including Investor Relations events |see box 1o the right). ene-lo-one and
group meelings with Executive Directors and property or aseet tours,
as well as requiar contact with the Investor Relations team. During

September 20016 - Investor property conference, London
- Investor readshaw. US
~_Private dient roatdshow, London

Novamber 2016 — Hall year resulis presentation
- Hali year readshow, Lendon
- imvestor progerty confarence, Londen

December 2016 - Directinvestor roadshow, Canada
- _lInvestor property conlerence, South Africa

January 2017 - O3 tradng update
- kwestor property conference London
- Analyst and investor property lowr,
Clarges. Mayfair

February 2017 - Investor roadsh Nethertands

the year, the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and our |
Retations team met with represenlatives from over 205 instilutions.
We periodically commi an ingd: denl i perception
study which is presented to the Board.

The Chairman encourages all Direclors to altend the AGM, prowviding
retail shareholders in particular with an opportunity to hear from the
Board and Lo question the Direclors in person.

Significant emphasis is placed on the imporiance of feeding shareholder
views. both positive and negative, back to the Board. The Chief Executive
provides 3 written report to the Board al each scheduled meeting which
includes direct marke! leedback on aclivily during the period. [F.1.1)&
[Ex21D.

British Land aims to be informatsve and accessible to all shareholders.
Announcements relaling (o the Group's inancial resulis and other key
mallers are provided in a limely manner to both relail and insbiulionat
shareholders. Qur website atso provides a number ol case studies

for stakeholders” information covering topit s from assel profites

to sustainability activities. Shareholders are also able to contact

the Company directly via the contacts page on our website:
www.britishland.corn/contacts

We are pleased with the tevel of engagement with shareholders achieved
during the year and the Board also recognises the important conlitbution
of prowders of capital other than shareholders, namely our tenders and
bhondholders We maintain a reqular and open dialogue with our debt
praviders to help us understand their investment appetite and criteria.

. As ever, gur Senior Independent Director remains available to address
any concerns sharcholders may wish to raise, other than via the vsual
channels of the Chairman, Chief Executive or other Executive Directors
Ia& 11

66 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

March 2017 - Investor sustainability workshap, Lendon
- lnvestor property conference, London
- Private dient roadshow, Londen and Edinburgh
- dr roadshow. Edinburgh




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We monitor the quality and integrity
of the financial reporting and

valuation processes

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audil Commiliee

Audit Committee members’ attendance
for the vear ended 31 March 2017

Tirn Score [Chairman] [A1.2)€2
Aubrey Adams
Simon Borrows

&5

Terms of reference

The Commiltes’s role and responsibilities are set gutinthe
terms of reference which can be found on our websile al
www.britishland.com/committeesiC.3.11 @(C1.2/DIC331@

tam pleasad to present the report of the Audit Comrmttes for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

This year, the key areas of focus for the Cormnmitiee have been:

- scrutinising the valuatien of investment and develeprent properbes

- monitoring the effectiveness of the new internal auditor and
reviewing lhe inlernal audil plan

- agreeing a best practice policy for the appointment of the
Company’s external valuers

- reviewing the appropriateness of continuing te publish interim
management statements and

- monitoring the quality, consislency and inlegrity of the Company’s
financial reporting, iIncluding assessing whether the Annual Report
is fair, balanced and understandable

Committee composition and governance

Ouring the year, the Commitiee was wholly composed of independent
Non-Executrvz Directors. being Aubrey Adams, Simon Borrows

ang mysell as Cammittee Chairman. With affect from 1 Aprit 2017

Lord Macpherson joined the Committee.

British £.and has announced that Simon Borrows vall retire from
the Board, and this Committee, at the condusion of the 2017 AGM.
I would tike to thank Simon for his valuable contribution as a
member of this Comimitize.

The Board ramains satisfiad that each of the Commiitee members
15 appropnately qualihed and expenienced io undartake their
roles. For the purposes of the Gode, 1 am deemed to meet the
spedilic requirement of having sygnificant, recent and relevan!
financisl experience [C.3.116.

By invitation. members of management attend Commiltea meelings.
These indude the Chie! Financia! Ofcer, Chief Exaculive Officer,
Company Secretary and Generat Counsel, Group Financial Controller,
Head of Invester Relatinns, Head of Financial Reporting and Head of
Planning and Analysis as well as represenlatives of both external and
wlernal auditors. The Committee met privately with both external
and internal auditors three limes dering the year and is satisfied

that neither is bewng unduty influenced by management.

As Comamitlee Chairman, | adgdiionally hold reqular meetings

with the Chief Financal Dlficer and olher members of management
These meatings provide me with a better understanding of key issues
and identify those matters which require meaningful discussion at
Committee meetings. | also meet the exlernat audit partner, internat
audit partner and representatives from each of the valuers to discuss
any matiers or concems thay have.

Buring the year_ the Commitiee received reports (rom managemant,
external and internal auditers, external valuers and the Risk Committee.
These reports have allowad the Committze to scrutinise and ask queshons
where lurther clarificalion or discussion was required. Further delails
on the work undertaken by the Committee are set aut in the secton an
"Key activities during the year” gn page 68.

I
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Governance

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Role and responsibilities
The principal responsibitities of the Commitiee ara:

1 Externalaudin- Oversigit and remuneration of the extarnal
auditor, assessing effectveness and makizng recormmendations
to the Board on the appainiment o, and the palicy for, nen-audit
services provided by the external auditor

2 Finandial reporting - Monutoring the integrity of the Company's
financial statemenls and any formal announcements relating
to financial parformance, and considenng significant inancial
reporling issues. judgamenis and eslimales

3 investmentand development property valuations ~
Considering tha valuation process and the effectiveness
of the Company s valuers

4 Risk management and internat controls - Reviewing the
system of internal conlrol and Aisk management

@

Internal audit - Menitoring and reviewing reports on the work
performaed by the imternal awdstor and reviewnng effectiveness,
audi plans and resouncing

Key activities during the vear
The key actrties vnderlaken by the Commiltee are set out below.

1. External audit

The Committee is responsible for overseeing the relattonship with
the external auditor and lor considering thewr terms of engagement.
remuneration, effectiveness, independence and continued objectivity.
The Commillee annually reviews the audit requirements of the Group,
for the business and in the context of the extermal environment. placing
greal importance on ensuring a high quality, elfective external audit
process. in particular. during the year. the Commitiee reviewed

and approved the annual audit plan and reviewed the findings of the
external audit and s o thase findings.

[*] ent’s § SPONSI
In atcordance with besl practice and its own terms of reference,

the Committee undertakes an annual review of the performance

of the external auditor. During this review, the Commiltee considered
the external auditar's lechrical competence, strategic knowledge,
reporting, their independence. and compliance with relevant
slalutory, regulatory and ethical standards. [C.3.8] @.

The Committee noted the resulls of the Financial Reporting Council's
Audit Quality Review [AQR] of PwC's audit of the Company, along with
their performance on other audits of isted companies.

The Commiliee reviewad PwC's performance during the year ended
31 March 2017 and was content with Lhe quality of The audit work
undertaken and the knowtedge and competence of the audit team.
The external audilor confirmed to the Commitiee that il maintains
appropriate inlernal saleguards to ensureits independence and
objeclivity. The Committee considened and approved PwC's

A of s independence and has recommended o the
Board that a resotulion for the reappeintment of PwC as external
auditor be put to shareholders at the 2017AGM C.3.71@.

British Land undertook a lender of external audit services in 2014
resulling in the appointrent of PwC as external audilor. This is the
third year that Pwi have audited the Annual Report. The Committee will
consider the need for a compelitive tender for the role of external audiior
every live years, with a compebtive tender taking place at least every
ten years. There are no contractual obligations which would restrict
the sefection of a different auditor. The Commiltee will also ensure
that the ratation of audit pariner is undertaken as required by
legislation to tha exient that this is not underiaken earlier by Pw(C._

68 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Provision of non-audit services IC.3.8192

The Committer has adopted a policy for the prowision of non-audil
services by the external auditor. The policy heips to safequard the .
external auditor’s independence and objectivity and was reviewed

and updated during the year. Tha policy altoaws the exiernal auditor

to provide the lollowing non-audit services 1o British Land whare

they are consularad 1o ba the most appiopriale provder:

— Audil related services: induding formnal reparting relating to
herrowings, sharehotder and ethar circatlars and work in respect
of acquisilions and disposals. in some drcumsiances, the external
auditor 15 required to carry out the work because of their office.
tn other droumstances, selecton would depend on which firm
was best suited to provide the sarvices required

- Sustainability assurance: Pwl currently prowdes an assurancs
opinion io the Compary over selected sustainability data.

This inl is revi d iy,

[

tn addition, the protocols that apply lo non-awdit fees are:

- Total non-audit lees are limited i 70% of the audit fees in any one year.
Datails of the audit and non-audit fees paid during the year are set oul
in Note 5 on page 109. The audil and non-audil fees for the three year
average are calculated in line with the methodology set out in the
2014 EU Regulations and include fees for joind ventures and luids

- Commilles approval is required where there might be doubis
a5 lo whether the external auditor had 2 conflict of interest and

- Pre-approval by the Audil Cammiltee Chairman is required for
each additionat project or incremental fee over £25,000 [previously
£100.600) and Committee approvat required for any additional
projects over £100,000

During the y2ar one engagement relaling te Sustainability assurance
required approvat This was approvad by the Audit Committee Chairman
on the basis that PwC were best placed lo provide this service and

that it created no conflict of interast with their role as extermal auditor.

2 Financial reporting

Al the reques! of the Board the Committer reviewed the content and lone
of the prelitrinary results press release, Annuat Report and half year
results as well as the quarierly trading updates.,

The Commiltee received a broad outline of the Annual Report strutture
and content early in the process. Further draflts of the Annual Report
were reviewed by the Commiltee pnor ta format considerabion by the
Board, with sufficient ime to allow leedback. The Commiltee considered
the key messages included in the Annual Report, half year results and
the trading updates issued during the year. As well as content and tohe
of results, the Comamittee paid particular attention 1o financial reporting
mallers it considers to be important by virtue of size, complety, level of
Judgement required and potental impact on the finandal slalements and
wider business model. ldentification of the issues deemed ta be significant
took place following open and frank discussion between the Commitiee,
Chief Financiat Officer, PwC, internal audit and other relevant British
Land employees.

Following the Committee’s review, and receipt of an external audit
opinion from PwC, the Commiltee has salisTied ilself that controls
aver the accuracy and consistency of the information presented in the
Annual Report are robust. The Commiltee recommended to the Board
that the Annual Repurt presented a fair, balanced and understandable
overview of the business of the Group and that it provides slakeholders
with the necessary information to assess the Group's position,
perfermance, business model and sirategy {C.3.41@.

The Committee also considered the continuing use of interim management
stalemnents between the full and half year announcements. Having taken
116 account the views of investors, the Committee recommended fo the
Board that the Company should cease publishing interim management
statements from ¥ April 2017.



The significant issues considerad by the Commitiee during the year ended 31 March 2017 and the actions laken tn address these issues, are sef ot in

How these issues
were addressed

by the Commitice

The Commitlee contiderad whether the assessment performed by managament adequately
reflected the Group's risk appetile and principal risks as dischosad on pages 50 o 33; whather
the period covered by the statement was reasonable given the sirategy of the Group and the
environment in which it operaies; and whether the assumplions and sensitivities idenbfied
and slress tesled represenled severe but plausible scenanios in Lhe contexl of solvency

or Liquidity.

Following thes evaluation, along with considaration of the external aasditor's report, the

Committee agreed with ma2nagement's assessment amd recornmenddad the viability stateman

the table below {C 3.68] €.
Sigunificant issues in relation to
financial statements considered
by the Committee during the vear
Viability Whether the assessment
statenyent undertohen by managament
regarding the Groups tong
term viahilily appropriately
reflecils the prospects of
tha Group and covers an
appropnzie period of time,
Going convern  The appropriatensss
statenrent ol preparing the Group
hnanaal sialements on
a going concern basis.
Valuation The valuation of invesiment
of propesty and development properties
portfolio conductad by externalvaluers
is inherently subjective-as il
is undertaken an the hasis
of assumptions made by
the valuers which may not
prove to be accurate.

REIT saatus

Revenue
recognition

The outcome of the valuation
is significant to the Groupm
terms of investment dedsions,
resulls and remuneration.

The accounting treatment

ol significant property
acquisitions, disposals and
financing transactions, is2
recurring risk for the Group
with non-standard accouniing
entries required, and in

Some cases managament
judgement applied.

Maintenance of the Group's
REIT status through cosnpliance
wilh cerlain conditions has

3 significanl impact on the
Group's resulls.

For certain transactions,
judgement is applied by
managament as 1o whether,
and to whal extent, thay
should be trealed as revenue

* for the linandial yzar.

for approval by the Boand. The viability ststement, together with lurther details on the
assessment undertaken is sei out on page 49 of the Sirategec Report.

The Commiltee reviewed management’s analysis sugperting the going concern basis
of preparation. induding consideration of forecast cash Rows, avadability of committed
debt lacilities and expected covenant headroom.

The Committee also received a seport from the extermnal avtiRor on the results of the testing
undertaken on management s analysis. As a result of the assessment underiaken, the
Commiilee satisfied itself thal the going concern basis of preparation remained appropriale.

The going conoerm statement is set out on page 45 of the Corporate Governance Repori.

The external valuers presenled their repor(s to the Commillee prier to the half year
and full year resylis. providing an overview of the UK property markel and summarising
the performance of the Group's assets. Significant judgemnents were also highlighted.

The Committee analysed the reports and reviewad tha veluation cutcomes, challenging
assumptions where thought fit. In particular this year; the elfect of the EU referendum
on property vatualions and markel sentirnent was examined in detail.

The Commillee was satisfied with the valuation process and Lhe effectiveness of the
Company’s valuers. The Commiliee also approved Lhe relevan valuation disclosures
Lo be included in the Annual Report.

. The Committee reviewed management papers on key judgements, including those

for sigmificant iransactions, as well as the external auditor's findings on these matters.

In particular, the Commitlee considered the accounling treatment of The Leadenhall
Building transaction, the disposal of Debenhams. Oxtord Street and the impact of share
price movements on the accounting trealrnent of the 2012 conwerlble bond, including
the change in dilutive impac? on the Company’s key metnrics.

The external auditor confirmed thal management’s judgemaents i relation to these
transactions were appropriate. The Commillee agreed wilh this conclusion,

The Committee reviewed the Company's compliance wilh the REIT tests. Management
presented details of the melhodology and resulls of their process for REIT lesling,
highlighting any change in long t2rm trends and the current level of headroom.

The external auditer presented the conclusions of their review of the REIT tests performed
by managernent and the Commiltee conctuded that the Company’s REIT siatus had been
maintained in the year.

The Committee and the external auditor considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relation to revenue recognilion. In particular the
Commillee considered the accaunting of signilicant payments received in the year in
relabion Lo the development and occupation of 5 Broadgate and ware satished with their
treatment as capital items.

The Cormmitiee considered the scope of the accounting standand and agreed walth the
reasonableness of the judgement made.
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Guverianes

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

3. Investment and devel, t property valuations

The exlemat veluabion of Bnush Land’s portiolio is a key determinani

of the Group's halance sheet, performance and senisr managemenl's
remuneration. In accordance with its terms of reference, the Commitiee
adapis a rigonous approach b moaitoring and reviewing the valuation
process and the effectiveness of the Group's valuers, Knight Frank, CARE
and Jones Lang LaSalle. The Committee rew the effectr of the
external valuers -anmally: foarsing en a quanbilative analysis of capilat
vales, yietd benchimarking. availability of cornparable market evidence
and major oitliers {6 subsactor movernents, with an annua! qualitative
review of the tevel of service recerved from each valuer

The valvers attended the Commillee tings which considerad the
hall year and 33! results,_and presented their ceports including
providing confirmation of the vatualion process, markel conditions
and sngmhcanl judgements made. PwC reviewad the valuations and

process_h g had hull access to the vatuers o datermine
that due process had been followed and apprapniate information used.
it reporied ws findings to the Cammiliee. The valuation process was
also subjact to requiar review by internal audil.

Britsh Land has fixed fee arrangements in place with the valuers
inrelafion lo the valuation of wholty d assets, in line with the
recommengations of the Carsherg Commiliee Report. Copies of the
valuation cerlificates of Knight Frank, CBRE and JLL can be found
on the corporale wehsile al www.britishlang.com/reports

The Company has adopled a best practice poticy on the appointment
of external vatuers. The policy covers duration of appeintments and
the number of valutrs engaged across the portiolio. Implementation
of the policy will commence dunng the year ending 31 March 2018
and further details will be given in the 2018 Annual Report.

&_Rick managemenit and intermal contrals

The Committee is respansible for overseeing the effectiveness of

the Group's risk management andg intemnal control systems on behall

ol the Board. This Committee has oversight of the activilies of the Risk
Committee, receiving minutes of all Risk Commiltee meetngs and
discussing any significant matiers. Prior to the announcement of full
year and half year resylts the Commiltee reviews the Group's principal
risks. Thisincludes a commentary on how risk exposures have changed
during the period and any emerging risks in the Company’s risk reg

5. Internal audit

As sl Minmmlbm%mtamtenderd‘mlmaadﬁ
sarvices wes tmtertaken during the frst guerter of #1146, A setection
panel was established which | chaired. compeising the Chief Finencial
Ofhcer, Company Setretary and Genaral Counsal and semoer members
of the Funance team. The prindpat ortenia coasidered by the panel
mchudad the skilis and expasrionte of The propoesed teams, cultural fit
wiith British Land. insight and extesnal perspectives lo add value and
expecied fee arrangements. Ernest & Young LLP IEYi were identified
as the preferred candidate and 2ppainted o the role foltowing
approval by the Board on the Commitlea’s recommendation.

The Committee reviewed and eppeoved the intermal audit plan for the year.
indluding a consideration of its alignment to the principal risks of the
Group and its joxn ventures. EY have atlended all Committae meelings
during the year 1o present their observations arising from the audits
undartaken and the stales of any resulting management actions.

Intornat audits undertaken by EY and reviewad by the Committee in the
year induded: proparty developonan ntduding grocurement, third party
rnanagement contract acquisiticns, property dispesals and the widsr
risk Management process, reasury. payroll and human resources.

The audits revealed no significant issues howevar a number of process
and control improvements were suggesied and implemented in the year
by management. EY also provided assurance over the effectiveness of
key financiat controls in the year and a member of advisory reviews were
conducted over business continuity and IT processes induding the engoing
design and implementalion of a new finance general ledger syslem.

The performance of internal audit was mandlored throughout the
year through the review, challenmge and discussion of EY's lindings.
The Commitiee reviewad the imernal audit charler which defines
£Y's role and responsibilities. A farmal review of the effectiveness
of the internal auditor was underiaken and, as 3 result of this review,
the Comnmiliee believed that £Y discharged its duties effectivety
iC.3.819 during the year ended 31 March 2017,

Other matters discussed and reviewed by the Committee
In addition io the key areas set oul abave, the Comnittee considered
the following malters during the year ended 31 March 2017

in particular, consideration has been given to the effect on the Company's
external economic and internal stralegic ains fallowing Lhe EU
referendum resull, geopolitical unrest and capital growth forecasts.
The Camunittes reviewed management’'s respofise to these matters
induding impacl oh near tenm budgeting and future investment and
development sirategy. The Commitiee considered and recommended
the Group's risk apietite {o the Board for approval, ensuring lhat it

was sel al an appropriate level to achieve siralegic goals without taking
undue risk, The Comemittee reviewed the status of key risk imdicators
throughoul the year agamst the risk appetite set. with focus on those
that were nulside optimal ranges.

Hall-yearty. the internal auditor reporls to the Commilties on the
effecliveness of management’s internal contruols, including a thematic
tysis of control identified by rnanagement. Internat audit
and the Risk Commiltee work closely together to ensure that identified

risk areas are incorporated in the internal audit plan and similarly,
the findings of internal audits are taken into account when identilying
and evatualing risks within the business. For the year ended

31 March 2017, the internal auditor confirmed that the system

of risk management and inlernal conlrols had been effective.

Further details of the Company’s internal control sysiems can
be found on page &5 of the Corporate Govarnance Report.

70 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Changes to accounting policies
Annual audit plan and external
auditer’s remuneration
Review of the Treasury Policy including
Liquidity. interes! rate and foreign
currency management
- Anti-Iraud and anti-bribery and corruption
policies and procedures
- Whistieblowing arrangements [C.3.5] @
— Cyber secunty
- Risk exposure and reward cutcome
- Insurance for corporate. property
and development risks .

Reporting and -
external audil -

Risk and imternal = -
condrol

‘Internal audil - Annual internal audit plan

- Internal audil charier setling oulits role
and responsibililies
Other - Reviewing the Committee’s terms of reference
~ Annual tax update and approach to tax
tuation of the Commitlee’s effacti

- B

Tim Score

Chairman of the Audit Cornmitlee



REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee leads the process

Jfor Board appointments

John Gildersleeve
Charman of the Nomination Commiltee

Nomination Committee members’ aftendance
for the vear ended 31 March 2017

John Gitdersieeve [Chairman] |A1.2)© 2
William Jackson 2/2
Lard Turmbull 2/2
Role and responsibilities

The Commiltee’s'role and responsibilities are set out in
its terms of reference found an the Company s websile at
www.britishland.com/committees (B 211 9.

The Committee’s principal responsibitities are:

- reviewing the structure, gize and composifion of the Board
and its Committees and recommending changes to the Board

- considenng succession planning for Directors and other
senior executives

- reviewing Lthe indep e and time commitment
requirements of Non-Executive Direclors and

- mmaking recommendations as to the Directors standing
for election or re-election at the AGM

A

Welcome to the report of the Momination Committea.

The Commtiee considars that the Board consists of indviduals with
the right batance of skills, experience and knowledge to provide strong
and effective leadership of the Company. The majonty of the Board

are independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Board's collective
experience Covers a range of relevant sectors, as illustrated on page 54
As wett as a breadih of property and financial experience, many Board
members have personal experience of working in the retail and
corporate environments that ace typical of many of our occupiers.

In December 2014 Lord Macpherson was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director, In addition, on 1 Septesmber 2017 Preben Prebensen wall join
the Board and the Remuneration Committee. Detads of our appointment
process are given on page 72.

We recognise the importance of continuity and the value that [ireclors
who serve for many years tring. Aubrey Adars will be approaching
the end of his nénth vear as a Nen-Executive Director by the tirme of

our 2017 AGM.

Aubrey's considerable axpertise s the property seclor is animportant
part of the mix of skills and expenence on our Board. The Cornmittee
undertook a rigorous review of Aubrey’s contribuliens to the Board and
the Audit Committee and his independence and determined that Aubrey
remained independent in charecter and judgernent. We are delighted

[ 10 recommend that Aubrey be invited to serve as an independent

Non-Executive Director for a further one year term. The frocess to
recruit an addilional Non-Executive Directlor with proparly seclor
experience is under way (B 2.319.

Committee composition and governance

Membership of the Commillee remained unchanged during Lhe year
to 31 March 2017 and comprised William Jackson, Lord Turnbult
and myself as Commitiee Chalrmnarn. With effect from 1 April 2017,
Tim Score, Chairman of the Audit Committee joined the Commiltee.

We announced in March that Lorg Turnbull wall retire from the Board,
and its Commitleas, at the condusion of the 2017 AGM. | would tike

to thank Lard Turnbull for the support ang advice he has provided

ta the Namination Commitiee during his tenure. His guidance and
experience will be missed.

The Comrmittee met twice during the year. By invitation, Tim Score
and Chris Grigg. Chief Executive, allended both reetings.
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REPORT GF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Key activities during the vear
During the year, the Commiitee has underiaken each of ils prisapal
responsibilities as sel oul on page 71

Composition of the Board and Committees

The Commiltee reviewed the composition of the Board, ang considerad
whether the range of skills, experience and knowtedge that the Direclors
bring continue to provide strong any affective leadership of the Company,
and thest tength of tenure.

The Zyges Parinership [Zygosl. an external search agency, was engaged
by the Committee to assist with the recruitment process in relation

to Lord Macpherson and Preben Prebensen. Zygos Fole inciaded

the preparation of detaited role spedfications, seardhing for and
banchmarking suitable capdidates, and producing dalailed personal
prufites for the Commillee’s consideration. Gther than the provision

of recrutmant consultancy services, Zygos does not have any
connection with British Land IB.2.4) €

The Board's colleclive experience covers a range of relevant sactors,
as illustrated on pages 56 1o 5%. The Committee considered the skills,
experience and knowledye of each candidate as well as their ability
to provide the appropriate level of scruliny and challenge expecied

of independent Non-Executive Diraclors.

Throughout the year, the membership of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees comprised independent Non-Executive
- Diractars to the extent required by the Cade [B.2.H ©: William Jackson
succeedad Lord Turnbuli a5 Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
following the 2014 AGM when Lord Tumbutl retired from that rele.
Lord Tumbull remains & member of the Remuneralion Comimittea
untit the conclusion of the 2017 AGM when he will stand down as
a Dwector and Senior independent Director. William Jackson will
succeed Lord Turnhull as the Senior Independent Director al that lime.

On 1 April 2017, Lord Macpherson was appointed to the Audit
Committee and Tim 5core joined the Nomination Committee.

The Committee undertook a detailed review of the continued
independence of each of the Non-Executive Directors, the ime
corrritment required ard whether s was in the bestinterests of

the Company for each Director to be recommended for re-appointment.
Delalled consideration was given lo each Nan-Executive Direclor’s
contnibulion to the Board and its Committees, logether with the averall
balance of knowledge, skills, experience and diversity on the Board.

In accordance with the Code, ail continuing Directors will retire at the
Annual General Meeting in 2017 and subriit themsetves for election,
in the case of Lord Macpherson, or re-etection by shareholders.
Following their review. the Commitiee is of the opinion that each
Director continues to demonslrate commitment to his or her role

as a member of the Board and its Commitiees, discharges his or

her dulies effectively and that each makes a valuable contribution

to the teadarship of the Company lor the benafit of alt stakehalders.
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Succession

The Commmittee regularty ¢ 5 the adaquacy of su
arrangements tor the Board, nctuding the Chaed Executive, and other
mesabers of senfor managemant. The Chizf Exetutive is respassiblie
for developing succession plans for the remainang Executive Directors
and sanior management which are presantad 1o and commented on
by the Comrmuttee. The Chairman is responsible for developing the
succassion plan for the Chiaf Executive, which is considerad at teast
annually by itha Cormmitiee.

Board diversity

British Land pays fult regard te the benefiis of diversity. induding
gendar diversity, beth when the Nomination Cominitte is searching
far candidates for Soard appaintments and when the Company is
saarching for candidates for other appointmanis.

British Land curranity has three lemale Board members: Lynn Gladden
and Laura Wade-Gery. both Non-Exacutive Directors, and Lucinda Bell_
Chief Financial Officer. This represents 23% female Board membersing
{20t4: 25%). The percentage of fernate Board bers s expected to
return to 25% once the ed Board changes have baken place.

Achieving a more diverse Board. including increasing in the percentage
of lemale Board members. will be subject ko the availability of suitable
candidetes: the Board must ensure thal appaintments are of the
candidates best able 1o prorots the sucress of the Company.

Subject Lo this requirement, the Board rernains comimitied o further
strenglhening diversily, including fermale representaltion, al Board

and senior management leval

Focus for the coming vear

For the coming year. the Cornmittee will continue to review and
fevelop suct planning for Executrve Directors and senior
management and will oversee the irnennial externally facilitated
Board evaluation

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Normination Commitiee



REMUNERATION REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Policy
aligns management incentives

with our strategy

William Jackson

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee members’ attendance
during the vear ended 31 March 2017 (A 1.2 @

William Jackson [Chairman]®

Lynn Gladden h
Lord Turnbuit*

Laura Wade-Gery

&4
Af&
Afh
&6

' walbam Jackson succeeded Lord Turnbull as Chairman with elfect from

the contlusion of tha 2016 AGM.

Role and responsibilities

The Cammittee’s role and respensibilities are set out in
the terms of reference found on the Company’s wehsite
at www_britishiand.comfcommittees {D.2.1 [D.2 2|1 @
The Committee’s key areas of responsihility are:

- Setting the remuneration policy for Executive Direclors and
the Company Chairman; reviewing the remunerztion policy
and sirategy for members of the Execulive Commiltee and
other members of execulive management whilst having
regard to pay and employment conditions across the Group

- Determining the tolat individual remuneration package of
the Company Chairman, each Executive Director, Executive
Commillee member and other members of management

- Moniloring performance against conditions attached to all annual
and long-term incentive awards to Executive Directors, Executive
Commitiee and other members of management and appraving

the vesting and payment outcomes of these arrangements
- Selecting, appoinling and setting ihe termns of reference of
any independent rernuneration consultant or consultants

Dear Shareholdar

On behalf of the Board, ! am pleased o present the Direclors’
Remuneration Repont for the year ended 31 March 2817,

Thas is my st report as Chakrman of British Land's Remuneration
Commiltee, having succeedad Lord Tumbull at the 2014 AGM. | would
{ike 10 thank Lard Tunnbull for his stewardship ever the last few years
and am grateful that he has remainad on the Comrnittee unbl this
year's AGM and continued to offer his knowledge and expenience

of remuneration matters within British t and. We took forward to
welcoming Preban Prebensen, who will join as a don-Executive
Director ard a member of this Commitlee on 1 September 2017,

British Land operates to high standands of remuneration practice.

We would like lo thank shareholders lor reflecting this wath thair suppant
for the Rermnuneralion Policy at the 2016 AGM. Over 97% supported
the new Remuneration Policy and over 96% supported the Directors’
Remuneration Report

The performance measures that determine the tevels of variable pay
for Exacutive Directors are hilly aligned with the Company's business
sirategy. These measures are mainly relative and have the objective

of incenlivising the Direclers ta deliver higher relurns than the market.
This means that if in any year the Company delivers weaker performance
on a relalive basis, vanable pay is lower, and if 1t delivers sironger
performance, variable pay is higher.

Over the year under review, despite the Company delivering good
financiat results in an eventhut year, our relative property seclor
performance has been slightly abave or just below market level rather
than delivering the diear sutperformance we aspire lo achieve. Asa
result, payouls frorn our annual incentive plans are lower thanlast year.
We expect the LTI maturing this year will lapse as will half ol the MSP
awards vesling in June 2017 The Committee believes that Lthis sulogme
shows that the Company's remuneration policies ara working cormectly
n the interests of sharcholders and other stakehelders.

Wa are not making any revisions (o the approved Remuneration Policy
this year. However, we are aware of the current debale on remuneration
praciice and regularly review and challenge targel setting for Executive
Direclors. We ensure this complies with best practice but also thal the
targets set align management actions with our sirategy and the long
term interesls of shareholders and other stakeholders. Dunng the year
we have conlinued to take into account the views of our shareholders,
investor representalive bodies and governance advisory organisations
in the way the Remuneration Policy is applied. in particular we have
responded to feedback about the imnportance of simplifying executive
pay and remuneration reporting as well as ensunng that remuneration
is aligned with our sirategy.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: L EYTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

When our Remuneration Polity was inlroduced in 2016 we moved to one
single fong term incentive arrangamaent and selectad three geclommaance
measures which closaly alignwith our sirslagy {see full delails en page
7. In 2017 we are continuing to simplily sur ramunesaton structure

by reducing the sumbzr of quaniitative reagsures for the anpual incentive
armangements, lrom fiva 1o two, and intreduding weightings for the
proporticn of maximum annual incentive awerd opportunity represented
by each measure. The three measures thal witl no longer apply are
adequately covered by the refmaining measures in the Annual Incentive
Ptan and LTIP. The remaining parformance measures, set out in full

on page 76, betier aligh the annual incentive awands made o Executive
Divectors with British Land's strategic locus on creating Places People

Remuneration in respect of the year commencing

1 April 2017

Salaryamd fees

The Committee has discussed and reviewed the Company™s annual
salary procass for all employses. it has also reviewed the basic saleries
of the Executive Directors and the Cheirman s annual fee and condudad
that these should remain unchanged for the ¢omning year.

Annual incentives

We have simplified the performance =5 for the |
incentive awards and inlroduced strict waightings to each measura.
For the coming yaar, T0% ol any polential award vall be dependent on

Prefer and delivering susiainable long term value for all stakeholders.

In this Remuneration Report, we have atso further enhanced cur
disclosure of how we assess Executive Direclors’ parformance for
annual incentive purposes.

Qur continuing focus on better alignment of remunerabon with
strategy is reflected in our dedision to use the lnvestrnent Property
Databank IPD) March Annval Univesse benchmark when assessing
performante against the Total Property Retumns measure lor annual
ncenlive awards and LTIP awards lor the year commencing 1 Apnil
2017 The March Annual Universe benchrnark is more appropriate

far this purpose as the companies from which assel related information
is sourced are more represeniative of pur peer group. tn addition
measuring our performance against this benchmark, which includes
sales, acquisitions and developments and so takes account of active
assel managemeni_ pasitively supporis achizvernent of the Company's
strategy. We weight this benthmark o reflect the sactors inwhich

our assets are classified.

Remuneration in respect of the yvear ended

31 March 2017

Remuyneration within Brilish Land continues to be clasely lied to the
financial performance of Lthe Group and the extent to which bath short
and long terrn strategic objectives are met.

The annuat incentive plan payaut is based an perlormance against
unlevered capitat return, total property ceturn and profit growth,
together with qualitative measures supporting Places People Prefer
and indiwdual abjectves. However, the quantitative ehjectives of total
accounting return vs property majors and ERY growth against IPD
were both below median and as 8 result. do not contribute to the
award. The resull of our perlormance gives an award of areund
ane-third of the Lo appr tely 50% of basic
salary. Thisisa sngmhcanl reducluon over earlier years and shows thal
our nay structure is tryly vanable and reflects perfortnance achieved.

The L TIP awards granted in 2014 and vesting in June 2017 are based
on relative performance for the three years ended 31 March 2017.
These are expected lo lapse in lull. In addition, anly half of the MSP
award made in respect of 2014 is expected o vest. Once again these
significant reductions in share-based variable pay show how Llhe
struciure is aligned to per lormance gutcomes over the longer term.
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successlully achieving inandal targats with 20% based on adhieving
quautalwe and 0% on mdmdual targets. et decision to reduce

the ofq 2% vkl produce dearer Rrgets.
Further mmrmauun is provided on page 76.

Long-term incentives
The firsl long-term incentive awards under the Remuneration Palicy
approved in 2014 will be granted during thes tomang year-

Diversity and inclusion

The Committee careiuily monitors Lhe Cormpany s strategic focus on
diversity and inclusion and has undertaken preparatory analyses for
the disclosure requiremnents of gender pay regorting. Full drsclosyres
wilt be published on our website when complete. Diversity dala is
given in the Stralegic Report on pages 26 and 25,

Remuneration consultants

In early 2017 a lender of remuneralion adwsory senvices was
undertaken. A panel was established to oversee the tender on behall

of the Committee whose members induded Chris Grigg, Lord Turmbull,
and Ann Henshaw [HR Directer). } chaired the pansl Several providers
ware invitad to pressnt ko the panel and, after due process and
deliberation, the Commiilee appointed Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited
ta be its remuneration adviser with eflect from 21 March 2017 We
wauld like to thank FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP. and Alan Judes
in particular. for the advice, guidance and support provided over the
years. We wish Alan a goad retirement.

Recommendation

Bntish Land continues to strive to apply best practice n its remuneration
policies ang to listen carefully o sharehalder leedback. We therefore
hope thal you all show your support for our approach lo remuneration

by vating for the Directors Remuneration Report at the 2017 AGM.

W'illmm Jackson

Chairman of the Remuneration Cormmiliee



- REMUNERATION REPORT. AT AGLANCE

Executive Directors’ Remuneration

The charts below show the 2017 actual reruneration against potentizl oppariunity for the year endad 31 March 2017 and ANS actest rernunasation

for each Executive Directar. Full disdosure of the single total ligure of remunerabion for each of the Directors is set out in the laide on page 73,

Chief Exccutive £000  Chief Financial Officer £000
2017 actual L ] £1.945 2017 actual [ F ] £1.005
e — R — cem
2016 actual )] 1673 7016 actunt [ A
D 10 20 30 4B S0 &D D 05 18 15 20 25 219

Charles Manddey Tim Roberts -

Head of Relall and Leisure £000  Head of Dffices and Residential £900
2017 actual -_] 947 27 actuat -Il] €957
] CYPRpI—T cesm
ot [ om mescw [N cran

¢

9 035 19 15 20 25 30

WSatary ﬂBeneﬁS B Persion R Annual incendve . B Long-term incendves
' 2017 potential assismes that both annual and tong-termn intenties pay 00R i full

Surmmary of Remuneration Policy

05 [0 15 20 25 30

The Remuneration Policy summarised below was approved by shareholders on 19 July 2016. The Palicy is effective untl the third annwversary of ils
approval or a revised policy is approved whichever is the sooner. The Remuneration Policy is set out in full in the 2018 Annual Report and s avaitable

on our website www_britishland_comfcommittees

Framework

Maximum level cannot be‘grealer than the upper quartile of the

comparator group. Rewewad annually and increases tymcally n ting
with inflation and general salary increases throughout the Group.

Maximum fee of £1,500 p.a. in aggregaie for all qualifying
appoiniments 1o subsidiary boards

Benefits are restricted to a maximum of £20.000 p.a_for car allowance
and the atwunl required (o continue proviging other laxable and
non-taxable benefits at a sirnilar level year-on-yaar.

Datined benelit scheme - largat benefit is the pension that can
be provided by the 31 March 2012 lifetime atlowance [C1.8 million]
uplified by RPI.

Oefined contribution arrangements - cash alfowances in tieu of
pension are made at between 15-35% of salary.

Maximum opportunily is 150% of basic salary. Two-lhinds is paid in
cash when granted with the remaining ore-third [net of laxj used to
purchase shares on behall of the Execuiive Director lAnnuat Incentive
Shares) which must be held for 3 furither three years from the date

of grant whether or not they rernain an employee of Bntish Land.

Element of Link to strategy
remuneration
Fixed Basic Attracts and retains Expert People with
salary the appropriate degree of experise and
experience 10 deliver agreed sirategy.
Benefits
Penswn
contribution
Variable Annual Performance measures related Lo Brtish
ncentive Lands strategic focus and the Executive
Director's individual area of respansibility
are set by the Committee at the beginning
of the financial year.
Long-termn - Tatal Property Retum [TPRL links
mcentive . reward to gross property performance.

- Total Accounting Return [TAR] links
reward to nel property performance
and sharzholder distributions. ’

- Total Shareholder Return (TSR]
directly correlates reward with
shareholder relums.

Maximum value of an LTIP award is 300% of basic salary which may
be in the Form of performance shares or markel value options or a
combination of bath.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2017

The following pages set out how the Commitiee inlends to apply the Remuneration Policy during the Cming year.
Executive Directors’ Remuneration

Basic salaries

Basic salares have been set at the following unchanged levels lor the year commenong T Apnt 2017,
Basic salary

Direttor E
Chis Grigg 840,000
Lucinda Bell £93.000
Charles Maudsley K46 250
Tim Roberts 446,250

Annual Incentive awards

The mazirmum bonus opportunity for Executive Direclors remains at 150% of salary. The per{ormance measures for the Annual Incentive awards
have been setected to rellect a range of quantitative and qualitative goals that suppoit the Coinparny’s key strategic objectives. The performance
es arul weightings for the year commencing 1 April 2017 will be as follows:

v ion of annual

incentive a5 a perceniage

Meadare of masimum opportunity

Guantitative measures . 0%

Totat proper iy return relative to IPD lsector cewaighted) £2%

Profit growth relative to budget 28%

Qualitative measures 2%

Right Places . - Progress on kay projects including developments 5%

Cuslomer Orientation - Company repulation with ali stakeholders 5%
Capital Elficiency - Execution of targeted acquisitions and disposals

- _Progress on strengthaning the dvidend 5%

Expert Pegple - _Promaoling aninclusive, performance driven culture %

individual objectives Performance against individual success factors 0%

The Committee has set targels for the quantitative measures and will disclose these in the 2018 Remuneration Report as they are felt to be
cornmerdially sensitive. In assessing how the Executive Directors pertormed during the year commencing 1 April 2017, the Committee will tahe
into account thew performance ag; att ofthe es and make an assessment i the raund LG ensae that performance warrants the
1evel of award delermnined by the 1able abive.

Ouring the year, the Commutiee considered whather the current investment Property Dalabank [PD) benchenarks against which the performance
of annual and tang-term incentive awards is assessed were the most apgropriate measures. Following discussion with the Committee’s adviser,
management and our own deliberations, the Committee agreed that the secter weighted IPD Manch Annwad Universe benchrnark which includes
sales. acquisilions and gevalopments and so takes into account aclive assel management as well as being a more represenlalive peer group,
wuuld be mast suitable.

As a resull of this decision, from 1 Aprit 2017, the disclosed performance against IPD metrics for the annuat incentive plan will be based on 1PD
estimates. These estimales will be adjusted once the IPD March Annual Universe data becomes available. No annual incentive payrents wall
be made, or LYIP awarts granted, to Executive Directors until the IPD March Annual Universe data is available and the final 6ut-turn known.
The final awards under the annual incentive plan will be detailed in the next Remuneration Reporl.

-
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Long-Term incentive awards

The first LTIP award under the new Remuneration Policy witl be made to Executive Direclors during the year commencing § Apnit 2017, 1tis
anticipated 1hat the grant size of LTIP awards to be made in the year commancing 1 Aprit 2017 will be 255 of salary for each Executive Director
This is below the maxsmem available undes the policy of 300% of salary approved by shareholders last yaar.

The performance measeras thal apply Lo this, and any future, LTIP awand will be as foltows:

Meacure Link to sirategy . Meaured relative to . Waighting
Total Property Return (TPR} The TPR measure is designed to TPR performance will e assessed against the T 40%
The change in capital value, lin¥ reward to strong performance  perfermance of an IPD bendhmark.

tess any capital expenditure at the gross property tevel.

inrcurred, plus net income. TPR

is expressed as a percentage

of capital amployed over the

LTIP performance period and

is calculated by iPD.

Total Aceounting Return [TAR) The TAR measure is designed TAR will be measured retative to a comparaloc group 40%
The growth in British Land’s to link reward to performance consisting of the 17 \argesi FTSE property companies

EPRA NAV per share plus at the et property level that that use EPRA accounting linctuding British Lang).

dividends per share paid over takes account of gearing and our

the LTP performance period. distributions ta shareholders.

Total Shareholder Return (TSR The TSR measure is designed to S0%, of the TSR measure will be measured relative to 2%
The growth in value of a Brilish directly correlate reward with the the performance of the FTSE 100 and 50%; of the TSR

Land shareholding over the LTI return delivered to shareholders. measure will be measyred relative to the performance

performance penod, assuming aof 3 comparator group consisting ol the 17 largest

dividends are reinvested to FTSE property comnpanies thal use EPRA accounting

purchase additional shares. . {including British Land).

Performance against the LTIP measures will be assessed over a period of three years. 100% of the proportion of the award attached ta 2ach
measure will vesl if British Land's performance is al leasl at the upper quartile leval. If perforrnance against a measure is equal to the median,
20% of the proporiion altachad to thal sneasure will vest and if performance is below median the proportion allached to that measure will lapse.
There will be straight-line vesting between median and upper quartile perfarmance for each measure.

Chairman’s and Non-Executive Directors” fees : :
Fees paid 1o the Chairman and Non-Execulive Directors are positioned around the median of our comparator group of companies {FTSE 100
companies with hroadly similar market capitalisations to British | and) with the aim of atiracling individuals with the appropriate degree of expeartise
and experience. The fee struciure sel out below was adopted at the 2016 AGM and no changes are proposed for the year commencing 1 Apnl 2017,

Chairman’'s annual fee £369.340
Non-Fxrecutive Director's annual fee £61.000
Senior independent Direclor’s annual fee E10.000
Andit Committee or Remuneration Commiltee Chairman’s annual fee £20.000
Audit Commitlee or Remuneration Committee member’s annual fee £8.000

£4,000

Nomnalion Commiltee member’s annual fee
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

How we applied our Remuneration Policy
during the year ended 31 March 2017

The lollowing pages set out how we implemented the Oireciors” Remuneration Policy duning the year ended 31 March 2617 and the remunerabion
recerved by each of the Directors.

Single total figure of remunertion (zudited information)
The inllowing tables detail all elements of remuneration recesvable by British Land's Directors in respect of lhe year ended 31 March 2017 and show
comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Other
ftemsinthe  Pensionar
Taxable nahrect petrsion Annual Long term

- SatayyfTees brenefits i i 0 Totad

217 ol 2007 2007 R 2007 xnr 207

Executive Directors E0Dh £00D £00D £00D £000 £000 EDDD
Chris Grigy B4&0 23 14 294 a8 356 1945
Lucinda Beil . £93 23 13 78 245 153 1.005
Chatles Maudsley &44 3 13 87 23 147 - 987
Tim Robens A48 2 12 85 222 167 957
2004 po113 01 2016 2016 214 2016

{600 0o £000 €o00 €000 £0060 £000

ChrisGrigg _ B&O 21 33 294 840 1,595 3623
Lucinda Bell 473 21 28 82 410 693 1727
Charles Maudsley 444 2 17 &7 410 318 1.780
Tim Roberts 448 21 19 106 400 817 Lan

* The L TIP awards granted 1o Executive Directors in June 2014 will vest on 23 June 2017. These LTIP awards are expected 1o lapse in full. The MSP awards granted
10 Exeeutive Directorsin June 2014 wit vest on 30 June 2017 The TSR elemant of the 2014 award s expected to lapse in hull while the GI6 eternen is expectad 1o ves)
at 100%. Full details, including delails of the peviormance conditions, are set out on page 81

7 The L TIP aesards granted (o Executive Direclors in June 2013 vestad on 3 August 2016. These LTIP gwanis were Subjed to the same parformhance condiions as the
LTIP awards granted in 2014 {see page 811, In the 2016 Anneat Report, we disclosed that the TPR etesnent of the 2013 LTIP awarnd was expected o vast at 5% while
the TAR etement was expected tnves! ak 44%. The actual vesting pafcentages were confirmned in July 2014 as £7% for TPR and 43.7% for TAR. The 2016 comparatve
numbers Set out in the above table reftect the actual! g vatues of the rds. teplacng the estimaled vesting vatues disclosed i the 206 Annual Repori. The MSP
awards granted to Executree Dreclors in June 2013 vested on 2 August 2016 These MSP awards ware subject to the same perlonmance conditions as the MSP avards
grantad in 2014 |see page BI). As disclosed in the 2018 Annual Repory, the TSR slement of the 2013 award did not vest while the GIG element was expected o vest at
100%. The vesting percentage for the GIG element was confirmed by the Commitize in Juty 2018, In the 2016 Annuat Report the share price tor the period 1 January
to 31 March 2015 was used. This has now been replaced by the actual price on the date of vesting.

Fees Taxabie benefits? Total

. 2m7 2016 17 2018 2017 2016
Chairman and Non-Executive Directars toto €000 £000 £000 {000 €000
John Gildersleeve IChairman) 34y 349 &Y 40 48 &2
Avbrey Adams (24 48 - - 49 &8
Simon Borrows &9 &8 - - - &9 &8
Lyna Gladden (34 &7 1 1 70 48
William Jackson 87 7 - - 87 70
Lord Macpherson? 17 - - - 17 -
Tim Score 8% 88 - 1 ay 8%
Lord Turnbull a9 97 - - 89 97
Laura Wade-Gery 89 A4 - - (34 £4

3 Taxable benelils inctude the Chairman's chaufleur cost and exp incurred by other Noa-Executive Diractors. The Company prowdes the tax gross up on these

benefits and the hgures shown above are the grossed up values.
' Lord Macpha\son was appointed as a Director on 19 Dacembaer 2016.
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Notes to the single total fgure of remuneration table
Executive Directors

Fixed Pay [audited information)

Taxable benefits: Taxable benefits include car allowance. private medical insurance and subsaidised gym mambership, The Company provides the
tax gross-up on subsidised gym membership for employees and the figures includad on the previous page are the grossed up values.

Other items in the nature of remuneration include life assurance, permanent haatth insurance, annual meadical check-ups, prefessional
subscnpbions, the value of shares awarded under the alt-employze Share Incentive Plan and any notional gain on exerdse for Sharesave options
that matured during the year. During the year ended 31 March 2017 there were no matuntizs of Sharesave awands held by Executive Directors.

Pensions: Neither Chris Grigg nor Chartes Maudsley participate in any British Land penson plan and instead receive cash allowances of 39% and
15% of basic salary respaclively in lieu of pension. For the year ended 31 March 2017, these paymments amounled (o £294 000 lor Chris Grigg and
£66.938 for Chartes Maudsley. .

Lucinda Bell and Tim Roberts are both members of the British Land defined banafit pension scheme. The table below details the defined benefit
pensions accreed at 31 March 2017,

Exrcutive Diredinr . €099 age
Lucinda Bell 105 &0
Tirn Roberts ] ! Bé 40

' The accrued pension is based on service to the year end and final pensionable satary at that date.

There are no additional benelits that will become receivable by a Director in the event that a Direclor redires early.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPGRT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

_ Variable Pay

Annual Incentive

The level of Annual Incentive award is determinad by the Committee based on British Land's performance and each individual Executive Director's
performance agains! Pwir intividual targets during the year. For the year ended 31 March 2017 the Comumiliee’s assessment and ouloomes are sed
o0t betow.

pay-cut Pyt
inopay-aut lperfomance pay-out above Outcome
below this i line with thiss mandnurn as%hof
Guantitative Measures Weighang i) i pay-outpand] Outcome salary P = = gel range
400% &4.00% - Targetrange i ghted tredex
Unlevered mlwnmgnbﬂit:aﬂalgrmnhd-lm
Prmrggital 4% ® oulperformning weightad 1P tadox by 30gs; Retalt
rewm vsi outperfarmmed by S0y and 0IRCES cuRper termad
Property bylllvslhm'semndns
3.67% 550% - Fargeirange for wo Index
Totak mahlﬂfﬂmmd
A propee) 14% ® A% culper Forvivavg esighied 1PD) hodex by 200y,
Ralail autperinemed by £0bps and Oices maiched
thesr sector indices
Accounting Tolal accounting 000% 000% - Targelrange olmedian totop rank. Tolal accounting
returns relumvs 1% @ retum of 278, delow the estimated median of the
proparty majors property mejors by 30hps
0.00% 0.00% - Targetrangeof matching mmmww«‘
Index to sutperforming it by 15 groswth of
st~ N u% ® 1 1% underpertorming weighted IPD index by 30 bps:
. Rzt ountperiormed its sectar by Pbps, Ofhoes
underpes formed by 15ps
u - Target range of matching the budget to outperfurming
Profa " Prefites 1% ® 800% 1200% 1byasignificantmargin. Proft matesially ahead of
pertarmance Pdoe! 4 tradgel. [This tacgat is connmendally sensitive 50 has
nol been distosed)
Sub-total % Sub-lotal 15.67% Z3.50%
Qualitative Heasures Pertor itk ey
S00% 750% - Contractsexchangeddor The Leadenhat! Bulding
Progresson - Sale of 334 - 338 Dabwnhanes siore hatue £AQ0M],
lneylsd‘rqecls Chiswick and Croydon Sainshury's
. including - - & Blossom Streed. Eden Walk,
Right ad:vdelnpmems; Sa, ‘ . wﬂm:?w
Places  largsted - Planning for Meadowihall subrritied and 1 Triton Square
isilions - Progress an Canada \Waler wsion and plan
and hsposals - Clarges 80% tat 100 Liverpoot Strest redevelop
started on Site
Company 250% 3.79% - Customersatislaction soore maintained 3t 8.1/10
reputabon with ~ Maintained inclution in our four arget ESG tndices
Customer allms(akdnlqefs: IDow Jones Susiainability kvdices 20156 Wadd and
Grientation aamerra 0 5% Europe. FTSE4Good budex 2016 and ERESE 2014}
sustainatulity ~ Sigrikcant footfall and sates cutpes formance
abjectives of hanchmarks byjust ower 200bps
epthar 250% 375% - Aheadon Prafitvs Budged
Copitl NI o 4 e
Elticenty  ang Execytion of VS average Shread o Swap rate Mantased
deht flinancings
Quatityal ! 250% 3795% - Recruitment of Head of Campus Regents Plate,
Uality o . Oirector of Leasing, Director of Marketing, HR Direstor
Expert m 9% . - Best Companies Dne toWatch
Peopte rencwal ~ On= af the first FTSE 100 companies in inlroduce
Paxd Shared Parenial t eave
$ub-tetal 2% Sub-total 12.50% 18 75%
Quantitative and qualitative  28.17% 42.720%
individual Measures 0% 500% 750%'

Total 33.17% 49.7%%

' Qutof the 10% opportunity the Committes assetsed the indiwvidual contribulion against a series of preset objectives closely algned to ihe gualitative measures set
ouk in the Lable above. The Commmttee deterrmined that the tevel of award would be 7 50% of basic salary for each Executive Director excepl for Charles Maudstey
wihi received ap additional 2% of basic salary reflecting his personal per lormance and thal of the Retail business.
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Long-term incentives {audited infarmation]

The information in the long-1efmn incentives column i the single total igura of remuneration table lsee page 78] refaies o vesting of awards granted
undar the lollowing schemes, including, whera applicable, dividend equivalant payments on those awards and interest acorued on these dividend

equivaleals.

Long-term Incentive Plan [LTIP)

The awards grantad to Executive Direclors on 23 June 2015, and whuch will vest on Z3 June 2017, were subjact to bwo equally weighted performance
conditions over the three year period to 31 March 2017. The first measured British Land's TPR relative to the funds in the Decemnber IPD UK Annual
Property Index [the index], while the second measured TAR retative o a comparatoer group of British Land and 15 cther propetty companies.

Thz TPR element is expeciad (o vest at 0% hased on British Land's adjusted TPR of 10 7% compared to the funds in the Index of 11 9% The TAR
element is expected to vest at 1%. The actual vesting rate of the TAR elerment can onty be calculated once reselts have been published by alt
of the companies within the comparator group. The actual peqcentage vesting will be conlirmad by the Committee in due course and included

in the 2018 Reruneration Repart.
Estemated value Estinated divadzred
ihember of parformance of avrad on vesiing equevaiom and inerest
Exative Director shares awarded in 2014 €000 2000
Chris Grigg 233,804 0 0
Lucinda Bell 135.898 0 (]
Charles Maudsley 124,208 0 1]
Tien Roberts 124,208 0 0
Matching Share Plan iMSP)

The performance conditions lor the MSP Malching awards granted on 30 June 201£ ware [i| TSR relative to a comparator group of British Land 3ad 16
other property companies and lil) Briish Land's gross income growth (GIG] relative to the 1PD Guarterly Universe {the Universe). These performance
conditions are equally weighted. The MSP Matching awards wilt vest on 30 Juns 2017,

Agn Hewsll has confirmed that the TSR element of the award will fot vest as British Land’s TSR performnance over the geriod was }.3% compared to
amedian of 12.7% for the comparator group. The GIG parl is expected to vest at 100% as Bnlish Land's annualised GIG over the period is expacled
1o exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper hurdle of 1.5%. As a result, 50% of the MSP Malching awards granted in June 2014 is
expected to vest. As disclosed {or the 2014 LTIP above, the actual percentage vesting walt be confirmed by the Committee and included in the 2018

Remuneration Repor .

Estimatad vatue Estimated dividend

Mumber of Matching of avward onvesbing r

Executive Director Shares awardad 1 2014 E000 E£00C
Chris Grigg 101,766 309 47
Lucinda Bell 43,816 - 133 20
Chartes Maudsley 47584 145 22
Tin Roberts 47584 145 2
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Share scheme interests awarded during the vear (audited information)

e .

The total value of each Executive Director’'s LTIP award for the yesr 2nded 31 March 2017 was equivatent to 200% of basic salary al granl. At grant
each Direchor can indicate 2 preference as o the proporiion of the award that they wish lu receive as dither performance sheres or tharkel value
oplions. The share price used to determine the face velue of performance shares and the fair value of options, and thereby the number of
performance shares or opiions awarded, is the average over the three dealing days immediately prior 1o the day of award. For the award granted
on 22 June 2014 this share price was 730.5 pence. The performance conditians aliached to these awards are ideriical to those for the awards
granted in 2014 which vesl in Junz 2017 and are sel oul on page 8.

Performance shares.
Percantage vasting on
Number of Face vl Endef achievernent of minimum
perfarmance  Facewaluz  porformance perfarmance threshold
Exeastive Director Grant date  shares granded (271} parad Vesting diate *®
ChrisGrgg 22/06/2016 229979 1680 30 22/08/20t9 ]
Lucinds Bell 22062006 134975 9856 3RS0 ml? 25
Charles Maudsley 22/06/2016 122176 892 30T 22/06/201% 5
Tirn Robaris 22/06f2016 £1,088 446 3 01T 720062019 25
Mariket Value Options
Peroentage vesting on
Nurndres - Endd of achievanent of minsmum
. ofoplions  Facevalus Fairvalue Exercseprice  perfonmance performance threshold
Executive Dwector Gran date granied 000 o pence parigd  Vesting date h Y
Tim Roberls 22/06f2018 244,353 1,785 446 7305 W01 220602019 25
r m.mmﬂyvﬂuedllairv&sdalmmmdmemmuedamm '
MSP
The MSP awards made tu Executive Directors in Juae 2016 were the final awards which would be made under this Plan.
The 1otat fate value of the MSP Matching Share award granted to each Executive Director was 2qual to two-thirds of their gross annual incentive
award in respect of 1he year ended 31 March 2016. The share price used Lo delermine the number of Malching Shares awardezd was 599.6 pence,
being the market value of the Compamy's shares on the day the proportion of the annual incentive was deferred.
Maiching Shares
Numbaer of Percentage westing an
Percentage Matching End of achievenment of nanimaarn
ol basaic Shares Facewalue performance - performance threshotd
Executive Girectoy Award date salary awarded e parrod Vasting date
Chiris Grigg 29/04/2014 7% 95,718 560 310312019 29042019 25
Lucinda Befl 2900472016 55% 47,206 273 /e 20srame 25
Charles Maudsley 29/06f2018 61% 47.206 273 332009 29062019 =]
Tirn Roberts 29/06/2016 % 46,056 266 332019 23062009 25

The performance condilions attached to these awards are identical lo those for the MSP awards vesting in June 2017 detaided on the previous page.
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Directors’ sharcholdings and share interests {audited information)

Directors’ shareholdings at 31 March 2017

The following table shows the Direclors' inferests in fully paid erdinary British Land shares inctuding shares held by connected persons and,
for Exacutive Directors, inctuding MSP Bonus Shares and shares held in the Share Incentive Plan {S1P] All interests are henaficial

. Rolding at Holting a1
Oirector 31 March 2077 31 March 2006
Chris 6ngg ' ] 1,257,358 1.118.090
Lucinda Balt ] 28098 162.8%
Charles Maudsley . 30,383 158.887
Tim Roberts 288,14 173,042
John Gildersleeve 5.220 5,220
Aubrey Adams . 30,000 20.000
Simon Borvows 300,000 300,000
Lynn Gladden 1.537 1,665
Wiltiam Jackson ' 123,858 120,304
Lord Macpherson' 2,300 nfa
Tim Score 22 815 12.693
Lord Turnbull 2,258 204N
Laura Wade-Gery 4,81 L&70

1 Lord Macpherson was appamted as 2 Oinector on 19 December 20146 and purchasad shares in the market on 16 March 20697

Shareholding guidelines
The minirum shareholding guidelines require Executive Directars to hold erdinary shares with a value equal to a set perceniage of salary.

There is no set timescale for Executive Direclor to reach the prescribed tlarget but they are expecled to retain n2t shares received on the vesling of
lang tarm incentive awards untit the larget is achieved. Shares thal count lowards the holding guideline are unleitzred and beneficatly owned by the
Executive Directors and their connected persons. Deferred annual incentive shares, MSP Bonus Shares, SIP matching, dnndend and free shares
and all unvested awards do not count towards the requirement.

The guideline shareholdings for the year commencing t Aprit 2017 are shown below.

Guidetine as halding 25 ' Tatzl hatding as

percentage Unfellered percentage of Total a percentage

of basic Guideline holding at basicsalaryal sharcholdingai of basic salaryat

Fwecutive Diredr salary halding' 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 3t March 007 31 March 2017
Chris Grigg 225% 309,834 1,176,870 B55% 12573568 13%
Lucinda Bell 150% 121,230 184,806 231% 226,078 280%
Charles Maudsley 150% 109.734 190,56¢ 261% 230,383 319%
Tim Roberts 150% 109.734 203,290 7% 26814 335%

! Calculated on a share price of 618 pence gn 31 March 2047
? See Directors’ shareholdings table above which indude MSP Bonus Shares and all shares heid in the SIP.

The shareholding guidelines for Executive Directors were last increased with effect from 1 April 2015 when the holding reguirement for each Director
was increased by 25% of basic salary. The Commitiee continues lo review the guidelines and the Directors’ shareholdings.

Although there are no shareholding guidalines for Non-Executive Directors, they are zach encouraged to hold shares in Britsh Land. The Company
facilitates this by olfering Non-Executive Oirectors the ability lo purchase shares quarlerly using their posl-tax fees. During the year ended 31 March
2017, Lynn Gladden, William Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery have each received shares in full or part satisfaction of their
Men-Executive Directors” fees.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Acguisitions of ordinary shares after the year end
The Execulive Directors have purchased or been granied the {ollowing fulty paid ardinary British Land shares ungder the lerms of the parinership,

mnatching and dividend etements of the Share Incentive Plan:

-

Dotz ol '
or Purchese Partershyp  Matdiag Dndand
v Direct aveard price shares shares shares
Chris Grigg B04/2017 645274 23 45 .
05/05/2017 658974 3
AOS/201T - 672 474 22 L
Lucinda Bell 18/04/2017 646,274 sl 44
a5/05/2017 658974 193
15/05/2017 672 674 22 &b
Charles Maudsiey 18/04/2017 846274 24 48
05/05/2017 658974 7
0217 672676 22 &6
Tin Roberts 1B0Lf2NT 654274 23 &6
a5005/2017 85897 180
1SS/2007  &72.674 22 &k
In addition, on § Aprit 2017, the loltowing Non-Executive Directors were allolled shares al a price of 681 pence per share in full or part satiskaction of
thair fees: :
Shares
Non-Exscutive Director al\otted
Lyan Gladden 1883
William Jackson 1063
Tim Score 299%
Laura Wade-Gery 831
Unvested share awards
outstanding  Subjectla End of
at 31 March performance parfermance
Executive Direcor Bate of grant 2017 measures penod® Vesting date
Chris Grigg LTIP performance shares 73064 233804 Yes  N/0INT 230617
LTP performance shares 2200615 154 949 Yes 3/0318 22048
LTIP performance shares 2o 229919 Yes  N/O3N9 220619
MSP Matching Shares 3W04/14 101766 Yes 30317 30004017
MSP Matching Shares 290615 94 348 Yes /0318 29/04'8
MSP Matching Shares 29006116 6.8 Yes /N9 290619
Lucinda 8ell LTIP performance shares 2306 135898 Yes  JNMUINT 23006017
LTIP performance shares 22f0611S 121,254 Yes 3MINB 220068
LTIP performance shares 2006018 134978 Yes 310319 22/0611%
MSP Malching Shares 30/04/14 L3R Yes 340317 3nfosht
MSP Matching Shares 290615 £0950 Yes 310312 2%06N8
MSP Matching Shares 29006616 47.206 Yes  3W0AN? 2906019
Charles Maudsiey LTIP gerfarmance shares 23068 124,208 Yes IWOBN? 230617
LT{P performance shares 2206015 . 109756 Yes 31/03/18 22/84N8
LTIP performance shares 2/06016 12237 Yes  3Y03N9  22/06/19
MSP Matching Shares 30406114 47,584 CYes  31/03/17  30/0617
MSP Matching Shares 29006015 A4 226 Yes  31/0318  29/04M8
MSP Matching Shares 29/0él16 47.206 Yes  3Y03NM%  29/0611%
Timn Roberts LTIP performance shares 730614 124208 Yes  3O3N7T 230607
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15  109.756 Yes  31/03/18  22/04/18
LTP performance shares 22106114 41088 Yes 3W/Q31%  22/08/1%
MSP Malching Shares 300414 47984 Yes /03NT  30/06/7
MSP Matching Shares 2910615 46,682 Yes  31/03/18  29/04Ne
MSP Malching Shares 29/06/14 46,056 Yes 310319 29/06/19

' The LTIP and MSP awards granted in June 2014 are also included within the "2017 Long term incentives™ cotymn of the single totat hgure of remuneration table on

page 78. The degree towhich performance measures have been, or are axpected to be, achieved, and the resuflant

are detadled on page 81,
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Unvested option awards [rot available te be exercised)

Nurnder
oulstanding Subjactte Endal Dotz -
a1 31 March  Option pnce perfermance parfermanoa becomas  Exsrcsahle
Executive Direcor Dake ol grant w7 PERCE  MBISAHES pariod®  ererdsablz unidl
Chns Grigg LTIP options 2210815 205,599 B24.5 Yos VD38 22006018  22f0825
tuonda Bell Sharesave ophions 23/06/14 1.567 5750 Na na OWBSNT  28/021R
Sharesave ophions 22615 1.21 4970 No nfa 0108 28f02/W
Tim Reberis Sharesave aplions 19/05113 2348 SN0 Na nfa ' 00918 ZBAZNG
Sharesave oplions 23106714 335 5790 No nfa  DYOSNY  B/02fA
LTIP gptions 200616 245353 7305 Yes 310319 22/06/19 2204126
Vested optionawarts [available to be exercised)
Nesndhor
aartstandting X N
2133 Mavch Oplion prwce  Exavoisable
Exrculive Direcor Date of gran 2017 pence uniil
Chais Grigg LTIP options 29706109 7751 387 29/04N9
LTI oplions AN 1073.825 487  WON20
LTIP oplions 28/06/1 895.852 575 2RML
LTIP oplions os/n2 T43.494 538 140922
Ludnda Bell LTIP options /0610 67952 447  N/04M20
LTIP oplions 1412110 11766 516 14/12/20
LTIP oprions 18009112 138.289 538 /922
LTIP gptions 05/08/13 154 742 &01  05/08/23
Other disclosures
Service contracts R
All Executive Directors have rolling service conlracls with the Company which have nolice periods of 12 months on either side [D.1.5] €.
The letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are subject to renewal on 3 (rtennial basis.
Normal notice Normal noace
Bate of serwce period to be given period 1o be green
Director contract bry Company by Director
Chyis Grigg W08 12 months 12 months
Lucinda Bell 10/03/2011 12 months 12 ronths
Charles Maudsley 03/11/200% 12 months 12 monlhs
Tirn Roberts 2006 12 months 12 monlhs
Unexpired termn
of appaintrneant al
Director 31 March 2017
John Gildersleeve IChairman) 21 months
Aubrey Adams 5 months
Simon Borcows? 346 months
Lynn Gladden . 12 months
Witliarn Jackson’ 1 month
Leord Macpherson 32 months
Tim Score 36 manths
Lord Turnbult? 12 months
Laura Wade-Gery 13 months

¥ On 23 March 2017 the Board approved the renewal of William Jackson's appomntment for a further three yasr termn, affective from 11 April 217,
? Symon Borrows and Lord Tirmbull will both rebre from the Hoard at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.

in accordance wilh the Code, all continuing Directors sland for election or re-eleclion by the Company's shareholders on an annual basis [B.7)} €.
The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appoiniment are availabte for inspeciion during normal business hours at the Company s registered

office and will alsa be made available prior ta the AGM [B.3.21 @
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

The Campany may lerminale an Executive Director’s appointment with @ diate effect withoul nelice or payment in liew of nofice under cerlain
arcumstances. prescribad within 2ach Director’s service conlract. The appointment of the Chairman or any Non- Exzostive Director may be
terminated immadiately without nolice if they are not reappainted by shareholders or if they are remaved from the Board ynder the Cornpany's
Articles of Assodation or if they resign and do nol offer themsealtves {or re-election. ln addiion. thawr appointmants may be lerminated by ather
the individual or the Company giving three months’ written notice of termnation (o7, lor the Chatrman. six months” written netice of termination}.
Neither the Chairman nor the Non-Exacutive Direclors are antitled to any compensation {other than dcorued and unpaid fees and expenses for
the peried up to the termination} for loss of oifice for a2y reassn.

Executive Directors™ external appointrments
Executive Direclors may lake up ong pon-exeaulive directorship al anether FTSE company. subject 1o Briish Land Board approval.

Chris Grigg was appointed a non-exgculive director of BAE Sysiems plc on 1 July 2013. During the year o 31 Mardh 2017, Chris Grigg received a fee

of £84 000 finctuding £9.000 of expenses) [rom BAE Systems pic, which he retained i full [2016: £86,495). Lucinda 8ell was 2ppoinied a non-executive
director of Rotork pic on 10 sty 2014, Duning the year to 31 March 2017, Lucinda Bell received a lee of £47910 from Rotark plc, which she retained in
full {2016 £43.6258 D219,

Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows the amount spent on reruneration of all employees lincluding Executive Directors] relative to the amount spent on
distributions to shareholders for the years to 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2014, The remuneration of amployees increased by 2.5% relative to the
prior year, while distributions to shareholders increased by 3196 Disiributions to shareholders intluds ordinary and, where offered. sorip dvidends.
o scrip atternalive was offered during the year ended 31 March 2017, The graph also shows the splil betwesn property income distributions 1D
and non-property income distributions lnon-Pil).

Refative importance of speiul on pay Remuneration of employees Bistribulions to shareholders:
inctuding Directors: M PID cash dividends paid
2016117 ENE Bl Wages and salaries 10 shareholders
£296m B Annual Incenlives M PID 1ax withholding
B Sodal security costs I Non-PID cash dividends
2015018 ] = # Persion costs paid to shareholders
I B =« W Equity-settted share-based M Net cash equivatent of new
payments shares issued under PID
Scrip divdends
Total Shareholder Return and Chief Executive’s remuneration Tot) Sharehiclder Return

The graph opposite shows British Land's Total Shareholder Retum for Rebased to 100, 1 April 2009
the eight years from 1 April 2009 1o 31 March 2017 against that of the
FTSE Real Estate lavestment Trusts [REIT] Total Return index for the
same perwod. The graph shows how the (otal return on 3 E1080 investment
in the Company made on 1 April 2009. would have changed over the

eight year period measured, compared with the total return on a £100 )
investment in the FTSE REIT Total Return Index. The FTSE REIT Total 3w // =

400

Return Index has been selected as a suitable comparator because it

is the index in which Brilish Land's shares are dassified. /
’/

The base point, required by the regulations govertung Remuneration o0 - -
Reporl disclasures, was close to the bottom of the property cyrle at / ""-._"::-_.-7
1 Aprit 2009. Since British Land's share price had not fallen as much /
as the average share price of the FTSE RE!Ts Sector at that ime a
higher base point for subsequent growth was set.

The table below Seis out the tolal remuneration of Chris Grig Al March  Math  March  Mach  Mach  March  Math  Mart
Chiel Execulive, over the same period as the Total Sharehnldg;' an o an s na me ws me wm
Retura graph The quantum of Annual Incenlive awards granted
each year and long term incentive vesting rates are given as a
percentage ol the maximum opportunity available.

M The 8nlish Land Compary PLC B FTSE RENs Sedtor
Sougre- Aon Hewilt

Chiof Execytive 200910 2010/11 0612 13 21314 201415 2015/16 200617
Chiel Executive’s single tolal figure .

of remuneration (E000] ) 2082 2329 5353 4810 5.398 6,551 3.623 1.955
Annual incentive awards against

maxirnum gppartunity {%} : &7 a3 75 75 70 26 &7 313
Long term intentives awards vesting

rate against maximum opportunity 1%} n/fa nfa ¥¢ &3 98 3 54 15
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Chief Executive’s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees

The table balow shows tha percentage changes in diffarent slemants of the Chief Executive's remuneralion relative to the previous iinancat

year and the average percentage changes in those elamenis of remuneration lor employess basad at Brbsh Land's head office over the
same period. Head office emnployees have been chosen as an appropnate comparalor group for this purpose as employees based at
British Land’s head office carry out wark of the mosl similar nature to Lhe Chiel Exeastiva.

. Arraga change

Value of ¥aluz of Chief Changein o rEnunTSton

Chief Executive Exatutive Chied Exacutive of British L_and

remmeration 107 remuneation 2016 remuneralion nployees

Remumeration element €000 (10 ) -3 k)
Salary B840 B840 1] 5.4
Taxable benefits [) 21 18.% 143
Annual incentive £18 840 -50.2 ~15.4

Rernuneration Committee membearship

Membership of the Committee remained unchanged during the year and, as at 31 March 2017, the Committee was comprised wholly of indepandent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Lynn Gladden, William Jacksen, Laura WadeaGeryand Lovy Turnbull. Allesdance by each member al Commiiiee

meetings is set out on page 73.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Committee mesatings were atlended by Chris Grigg [Chiel Executivel, Elaine Williams {Company Secretary
and General Counsel], Ann Henshaw [HR Directar] and Jolf Sharpe [Head of Dperations), other than for any itern relating lo their ;own remuneration.

The Committee Chairman holds regular meetings with the Chairman, Chief Executive and HR Director to discuss alt aspects of remuneration
wilhin British Land. He also meets the Committee’s independent remunecalion adwsers prior 1o each substantive meeting lo discuss malters

of ggvernance. remuneration policy and any concerns they may have.

How the Committee discharged its responsibitities during the year
In addition to the Committez’s key areas of respansibility. during the year ended 31 March 2017, the Commitlee also considered the
Tollowing malers:

- Reviewnng and recommending to Lhe Board Lhe Remuneralion Report o be presented lor shareholder approval

- Consullation with major investors and deliberation ol sulcomes in relalion lo amendmenls te the LTIP

~ Appraisatl of {the Chairman’s annual fee, remuneration of the Executive Directors indluding achievement of corporate
and indivigual performance; and pay and annual incentive awards below Board-level

- Analysis of compelitors remuneralion structure and oulcomes

- Seiting performance measures for annual Incentive awards

- Granting discretionary share awards, considering the extent to which performance meassures have been met and,
where appropriate. approving the vesting of annual incentive and long-term incentive awards

- Reviewang and updaling the Commiltee terms of reference

- Cansidering gender pay and fulure reporting requuements

- Receiving updates and training on corporate governance and remuneration matters lrom the independent
remuneration consuftant

- Reviewing and lendering the role of independent adviser o the Cammiiles
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED-

Remuneration consultant={D.2.11 @

Alan Judes provided independent remuneration advice to the Committes prior to August 2014 when his fum, Strategic Remuneration, meerged

wnth FIT Remunaration Consullants LLP. Following the menger, the Committes received indapendent remunaration adwcea from HT Remuneration
Consultants L P The mesged firm is a member of the Remuneratien Consuliants Graup amnd adheres to thai group’s Code of Comiuct. Strategic
Remuneralion and FIT Remunerabon Consulizats LLP also provide advice to British Land on human resources and share plan maiters. Sirategic
Remuneration was appeinted as remuneralion adviser by the C ittee foltowing a competitive tandar process. The Commitiee assasses the advice
given by ils advisars io satisfy itsall that it is ohjeclive and independent. The adviser has a privale oy Wit the C jttee Chairman once 3 year
in accordance with the Code of Conduct of the Remuneration Consultants Group. Fees_ which are charged on 2 time basis, were £126,765 lexduding
VAT] (2016 £4B,480 excluding VATL

With effect from 21 March 2017, Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited were appointed to provide independent remuneraton advice te the Commuttee.
Ko Ferry Hay Group Linmnited did not charge any fees (or the period from their appeiniment to 31 March 2017

Vating at the Annuat General Heehng
The resulis of the shareholder votes on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Directors” Remunaration Report at the AGM held on 17 July 2016
are sel outin the table below.

" Resolution Vates for Ffor Volesagansi Toagunst  Towmlvatescas! Voteswithheld
Approval of Directors’ Remuneralion Report 715,113,283 25.M 29.690.657 39% 748.803.920 11,704,372
Approva\ of Directors’ Remuneration Policy PZT144,.638 %713 218946386 287  748.638.804 7887 487

This Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2017

William Jackson

Chairmean of the Remuneration Commitlee
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DIRECTORS” REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors’ Report and additional disclosures

The Directors present their Repori on the affairs of the Group, together
with the audited financial statements and the report of the awditor for
the year ended 31 March 2017, Information that is relevant 1o this Report
and which is incorporated by relerence, including information required
in accordance with the UK Companies Act 2004 and Lisling Rule 2.8.4R,
can be lucaled in the ollowing sections:

indormation Sechon in Annuesd Report Page
Futyre developments of the Strategic Report 61025
business of the Company

Risk faciors and prindpal nsks Siralegic Report 441053
Finandal instruments - Strategi Reporl 43
fisk managamant sbjaciives

and polices

Divdends Sirategic Report 41
Sustainability governance Strategic Report 38
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Repori 38
Viability statement Strategic Report 49
Going concern statement - Governance review 45
Governance arrangements Govermance review 5671088
Employment pelicies and Strateqic Report 25025
employee involvement

Capitalised interest Finantiat statements 11510 114
Additional unaudiled Other information 16010173
financial mlormation unaudited

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annual General Meeting of The Brlish Land Company PLC wall bz
held al The Hyatt Regency London —~ The Churchill, 30 Portman Square,
London WiH 7BH on 18 July 2017 at 11.00am. Further inforsnation is
available in the Notice of AGM {E.2.4]9.

The AGM is the principal occasion when shareholders are able lo
&3k questions of the Board and main Committee chairmen [E.2.31 €.

Board of Directors

The names and biographical details of the current Directors and
details of the Board Committees of which they are members, are
set out on pages 56 to 59.

The Service Agreements of the Executive Directors and the Letters
of Appointment of the Non-Execulive Directors are summarised

in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 8% and 86 and

are avanlable for inspection al the Campany's registered office.

Inaccordance with best practice, all coninuing Directors wall
retire a1 lhe AGM and will offer themsetves for election or
re-election, as required.

Directors’ interests in contracts and conflicts
of interest

Mo contract exsted during the year in relzb
business i which any Direclor was matenzlly inlerested.

totheC S

Latm! J

Directors have a statutory duty to avoid situations in which they
bawe, oF may have, indesests thal condlict waith those of British Land
unless that conflict is lirst authorised by the Board. The Company
has adopted arocedures for managing conflicts of inleres) and the
Aruicles of Association alsa confzin provisions which aliow the
Directors to authorise potential conflicts of interest.

Directors must aotify the Chainman and the Company Seanstary of

all new outside interests and actual or parcerved conflicts of interest
as thay arise. New interests or conflicls are considared by the full
Board al the next meeling and the kil register of interests is reviewed
at least annually. Furthermore, the Board reviews the policy on
Direclors interests on an anmua basis. Following the last review

in November 2016, the Board conduded that the policy continued

to operate effectively.

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnity

Fhe Company has indemniked each Direclor agans| any Lability
incurred in relation fo acts or omissions arising in the ordinary
course of their dulies. The indemnity arrangements are qualfying
indemnity previsions under the Comgpanies At 2005,

The Company also has in place appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liatslity insurance cover in respect of potential legal action against
its Diractors |A1.3162

Share capital

The Company has one class of shares, being ordinary shares of

25 pence each, all of which are fully paid_At 31 March 2017 thare
were 1.041,035.058 ordinary shares in issue. Further details relating
to share capital, including movements during the year, are set out

in note 20 to the financial statemenis.

Al the AGM in 2014, the Directors were given the powar by the
shareholders Lo make market purchases of ordinary shares represenling
up to 10% af its issued capilal at thal time and to allel shares within
certain limits. These authorites wall expire at the AGM in _Juty 2017

and renewals of those authorities will be sought.

The Company has not purchased any of its own shares undar the authordty
given at the 2014 AGM. Therelore, during the whole of the year ended
31 March 2017, the Company held 11,244,245 ordinary sharesin treasury.

Waiver of dividends

Blest Limited is a shareholder who acts as trustee [Trustee] of the
Company’s discretionary Employee Share Trust [ESTL The EST holds
and, from time o time, purchases British Land ordinary shares in the
market, for the benefit of employess, including to satisfy outsianding
awards under the Company's various employze share plans. A dividend
waiver is in place from the Trustee in respect of all dividends payable
by the Company on shares which it holds in trust.
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DIRECTORS REPGRT AND AGDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Substantial interests
As al 31 March 2017, the Company had been notified under the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules [DTR 51 of the following nteresis

i iLs ordwnary shares:

. Perveniage

tnterestsin of ondmary

ardinary shares asat

shares 31 Mach 2017

Blackrock, Inc. 84,222,397 831
Norges Bank 51.639.045 4993
APG Assel Management NV 51.212.198 &973
GIC Private Limited £1121,137 a3

Mo changes to the above information were received during the period from
1 April 2017 to the date of signing this Report. Notifications made to British
Land under DTR 5 are available on the investors sechon of ur website.

Articles of Association .
The Company's Articles of Association may ofily be amended by speciat
resolution at a genersl meeting of sharebolders.

Subject to applicable law and the Company’s Arlicles of Assoaation,
the Directors may cxercise all powers of the Company.

Significant agrecments
There are no significant agreements to which the Company 15 parly Lhat
take effect, alter or termunate upon a change of controt of the Comipany.

Pavments policy

We recognise the importance of good supplier relationships te the
overall Success of our business. We manage dealings with suppliers
in a fair, consistent and transparent manner and have signed up lo
the UK Government's Prompt Payment Code.

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable events alter the balance sheet date.

Political donations .
The Company made no potitical donations during the year [2014: nill.

Health and Safety
We have retained formal recognitien of our locus on health and safety
through a sutvessiul audit of our OHSAS 18091 accreditation. We continue
1o improve our approach to health and safety management lo ensure that
we consistently achieve best practice across all activities in the business
lconsiruction, rmanaged portiolio and head olfice] to deliver Places Peaple
Prefer lo our employees and our customers.

RIDDOR® Year ended 31 March 2017

Total RIDDOR
Acddents Accident Frequency Rale
2007 2004 7 2006

Construclion 2 3 0.08 0.14 per 100 000
hours worked
Retatl 20 23 0.0 (X)) per 100,000
. footfall
Offices 8 & 2351 18.85 per 100,000
workers
Head Office 0 0 1] 8 per 100,000
futl ime
equivalents

" Reporting of Injuries, (hseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013
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Anditor and disclosure of information
Each of the Directors al the date of approval of this Report cantirms that:

- sofar asthe Director is aware, there is no relevani audit informalien
that has not been breught 1o the atlention of the auditor and

- thve Director has 12kan all reasanable steps to make msellf
harself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
surch information was provided to the auditor

Pw{ has indicated its willingness lo remawm in offica and, on the
recommesnidation of the Audit Commiltee, a resolution to reappoint
PwC as the Company’s auditor will be proposed atthe 2017 AGM.

The Comparny confirms that it has complied with The Statutory Audit
Sarvices for Large Companies Market Investigation iMandatory Use
of Compebtilive Processes and Audit Commiltee Respansibilities)
Order 2014 |Article 7.1}, published by the CMA on 26 Segtember 2014,

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board on 15 May 2017
and signad onils belhatf by:

Elaine Williams
Company Secaretary and General Counsel
The Briish Land Company PLC

Company Numbenr. 00621920



DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report,
the Directors Remuneratien Re0ort and the finandial slalemenis
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company 2w requires the Directors Lo prepare finandial stalements
for each financial year. Under that taw the Uirectors have prepared the
Group financial statements in actordance with Internationat Finenagal
Reporting Standards [IFRSs] as adopled by the Europaan Unien, and
the parent Company finanaal stalements in accordance with United
Kingdorm Generally Accepied Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards ang applicable law).

Under Company law the Directors must nol approve the finandal
statements urless they are satishied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of
ihe profit or toss of the Group for that period. In prepaning thase
hnancial statemants, the Direclors are required to:

- select suitable accouniing policias and then apply them consistenily

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prdent

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Unron and
applicable UX Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
o any malenal departures disclosed and explained in the Group
and parent Company financial stétements respectively and

- prapare the hnancal statemants on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate o presume that the Company wall
continue in business

The Direciors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sulfident to show and explain the Company's transaclions

and disdlose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
Bnancial statements and the Directors’ Remuneraticn Report comply
with the Companies Acl 2004 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible
for saleguarding the assels of the Comparny and the Group and hence
for laking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other imegularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company's websile. Legislalion in the Unilted Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of inanoal statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts_ taken
as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance, business madel and strategy.

Each of the Oirectors, whose narmes ang functions are listed on
pages 54 to 57, confirm that Lo the hest of their knowledge:

- the Group inandal statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU. give a true and
fair view of the assats, Gabilities, financia! position and profit
of the Group and

— the Strategic Report and the Directosrs’ Repoit nclude o fair
review of the davelepment andg parformance of the business
and the position of the Group, logather wath 2 descripbion of
the prinapal risks and uncertainttes that 2 faces

By order of the Board.

Lucinda Bell
Chiaf Finangal Officer

14 May 2017
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Fimanciul seaqements

Financial statements
and other information

Independant audilors’ report to the members

of the British Land Company PLC

Financial stalements
Consolidated income statemenl
Consolidated statemen of comprehensiva income
Consoligated balance sheet
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

MNotes ta the accounts

Company balance sheet

Company statement of changes in equity

Supplementary disciosyres unaudited

Valding House, W1 [right)
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Fimonciel sgarcoenis

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE 8RITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statemrents
Qur opinion
In our opinion:

- the Brinsh Land Company PLC s Group finandial statements and
Company finanaial siaterments [ihe financal stalements’] give a true
and [air view of the state of the Group's and of the Comgpany's atairs
as at 31 March 2017 and of th2 Group's profit and cash flows for the
year lhen ended .

- the Group financial staternants have been properly prepared n
accordance with international Finandal Reporting Standards
[FRSs) as adopted by the European Union

- the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accoidance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements ol the Cornpanies Act 2004 and, as regards the
Group hinancial slatements, Articde 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
The linannal statements, included within the Annual Report, comprise:

- the Consalidated Balance Sheel as at 31 March 20017

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017 .

- the Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Stalement
of Compreheasive Income far the year then endad

- the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- theC dated Stat it of Changes in Equaty for the year
then ended

- the Notes to the Accounts, which include a sumnmary of significant
accounting polices and other explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annuat Report, rather than in the notes to the fihancial statements
These are cross-referenced rom the financial statements and are
identilied as audited.

The financial reporting framework Lhat has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financiat staterments is IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, and applicabte law. The financial reporting
frarmewark that has been applied in the preparaben of Lhe
Company financial slatements 1s United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclasure Framework’
{United Kingdom Generally Accepied Actounting Praclicel,

and applicable law.
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Qur audit approach

Overview

Our 2017 audit was plannad and executed having regard to the fact

that the Group’s operalions were largety unchanged in nature from the
previous year. Addihonally, there have bean no significant changes to the
vatuation miethodotogy and accounting standands relevant to the Group,
In light of this, our approach to the audilin lerms of scoping and areas

of focus was largely unchanged.

A full scope audit was pertormed by the Group team for alt subsidiaries
of the Group. and the foltowing joini ventures: Broadgate, Meadowhatt
and Leadenhalt.

Materiality

- QOverall Group matenatity: £135 million (FY16: £138 million) which
represents (% of wotal assets

- Speclic Group materiality, applied 1 Underlying Profit; £19.4 mitlion
£FY16: £18 million] which represents 5% of underlying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- Valuation of mvesiment and development proparties
- Revemie recognition

- Accounting for transachions

- Taxalion

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accondance with Intemationat Standards
an Auditing [UK and ireland} [SAs [UK & Irelandl ).

We designed aur audit by delermining materiality and assessing the
risks of malerial misstatement in the financial statements. In particular,
we looked al where the Directors made subjeclive judgements, lor
examgpte in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumplions and considering luture events that are inherenily
uncertan. As in all of our audits we also addressed the nsk of management
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directers that represented a risk of matenial
misstatement due lo fraud.

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest eflect on cur
audit, including the attocation of our resources and effort, are entihed
as ‘areas of focus in the (able below. We have also sel aut how we -
1ailored our audit to address these speciic areas n order lo provide an
opinion on the bnancial stalements as a whole, and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read in this cantext.
This is not a complete List of all risks identified by our audit.



Area of foous

How our awnfit addrossad the ares of fo0)s

Vatuation of invectiment and development properties
Reler to pages &7 and 70 [Repdrt of the Audit Committzel, pages 105
to 107 [Accounting polides) and pages 115 1a 119 {Notes|.

The Group's investment property portiolio is split between office and
residential properbes in central London, ratail and lessure propacties
across the UK, and the assets at the Canada Water site in East London.
The vatuation in the Consolidaled Balance Sheet is £9.073 million.

The valuation of the Group's invesbment property portfolio is inherently
subjeclive due to, among olher factors, the indidual nalure of each
preperty. its localion and the expected future rentats for that particular
preperty. For developments, factors include projected costs 16 complate
and iming &f practical completion.

The valuations wera cartied oul by third party valuers, CB Richard

Ellis, Jones Lang LaSalte and Knight Frank Jthe ‘valuers’]. The valuers
were engaged by the Directors, and performad their work in accerdance
with the Royal institute of Chartered Surveyors [ RICS] Valualion

- Professionat Standards. The valuers used by the Group have
considarable experience of the markets in which the Group operates.

In determining a property's vatuation ihe valuers take into account
property-spedific information such as the current tenancy agreemenis
and rental income. They apply assumgplions lor yields and estimated
market rent, which are influenced by prevailing market yields and
comparable markel lransactions, to arrive at the final valuation. For
developments, the residual appraisal method is used, by estimating
the fair value of the completed project using a capitalisation method
less estimated costs to comptetion and a risk premusm.

The significance of the estimates and judgements involved, coupted
with the fact 1hal only a small percentage ditference in individual
preperty valuations, when aggregated, could result in a materiat
misskatemnent, warrants speaific audit tocus in this area.

There ware also certain specific factors affeciing the valuations
in the year:

- the nalure of the Canada Water site, which the Group are
currently master ptanning as a combined large scale, mixed
use development site, resulled in our audit paying particular
focus to the relevant valuations

-~ properties under development. completed developments that
are now valued as slanding invesiment properties and standing
nvestment properties that have been reclassilied to developmeni
propesties, contime to be an area of focus

We road the valuation reports ler all the properties and confirmed that the
valuation approach for each was inaccardance with RICS standards and
syitable for use in delarmining tha carrying valee for the purpose of the
financial statements.

We assessed the valuers’ qualificabons and expertise and read ther
terms of engagement with the Group to determine whether Lhere were
any matters thal might have affected their objactivity or may have impased
soope limitations upon thesr work. We also considered fee arrangements
between the valuers and the Group and other engagements which might
exist betwezen the Group and the valuers. We found noe evidance lo suggest
that the objectivity af the valuers in their performance of the valuations
was compromised.

We oblained details of every property held by the Group and set an
expected range tor yield and capital value movernent, determined by
reference ta published benchmarks and using our experience and
knowledge of the marketl. We compared the investment yields used by

the valuers with the range of expected range of yields and the year on
year capital movement 1o our expecled range. We also considered the
reasonableness of ather assumplions that are not so readity comparahte
with putlished benchmarks, such as Estimated Rental Value. We attended
meetings with managemenl and the valuers, at which the valualions

and the key assumplions therein were discussed. Qur work covered

the valuation of every proparty in the Group, but the discussions with
managemeni and the valuers focusad on the tarqgest praperties in the
portiglio, properies under development or where the valualion basis

has changed in the year, the Canada Waler site and tlhose where the yields
used and/or year on year capital vatue movament suggested 2 possible
oultier versus externally published market data for the relevant sector.

Where assumplions were oulside the expected rangs or atherwise
appearsd uausual, andfor valualions showed unexpacted movements,
we undertook further investigations and, when necessary, held
further discu with the valuers and obtained evidence o support
explanations received. The valuation commentaries provided by the
valuers and supporting evidence, enabled us to cansider the property
specific factors that may have had an impact on value, including recant
comparable transaclions where appropriate.

We saw evidence that alternative assumptions had been censidered and
evaluated by management and the valuers, belore determining the final
valuation, We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuations
were supportable in light of availlable and comparable market evidence.

We performed testing on the standing data in the Group's informalion
systems conceming the valualion process. We carried out procedures,
on a sample basis, to satisly ourselves of the accuracy of the property
information supptied to the valuers by managernent. For devetopments,
we conlirmed that the supporting informalian for construction contracls
and budgets, which was supglied to the vatuers, was also consistent
with the Group's records for example by inspecting onginal construction
contracts. For developments, capitalised expenditure was lested on

a sample basis Lo invoices, and budgeted costs to complete compared
with supporting evidence {for example consiruction contractsl.

It was evidant §rom our interaction with management and the valuers,
and from our review of the valuation reports, that close attention had
been paid to each property’s individuat characteristics at a granular,
tenant by tenant level, as well as considering the overall quality.
geographic location and desirability of the asset as a whole.

Ng issues were idenlifted in our lesting.
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Tararenents

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC CONTINUED

Asea of fotus How our Jnfi adfressed the area of foous

Revenue recognition We carried oul fests of controls over the cash and accounts receivable

Reler to pages 67 to 78 [Report of the Audrt Committea), pages HI5 processes and the related IT systems to ghlain evidepce that postings lo

ta 107 lAccouniing policizs) and page 109 [Notes). these accounts were reliable. For rantal incoma balances, we then used

' data-enabled audil techniques to identify all standasd revenue journals

Revanue ior the Group onnsists primarity of rentat incoma. Rental posted using these systems and procasses.

income is based on lenancy agreements where there is a standard ’

processin place for recording r . which is sy genarated. The remaming journals related to non-standard transactions. These

Thaere are certain transactions within revenue that warrant additional included reciassifications within revenue, accrued incomne, and bad dabt

audit locus because of an increased inherent risk of ermor due lo provisions_ For each category of non-standary revenue summarised

ther non-standard nature. above, wa have understocd the nature and Gther bleness
. of journals being generated, and performed substantive testing over

These include spreading of tenant incentives and gusranteed rent a sample of these stems. There have been no exceplions anising from

increases - these balances require adjustments made to rentat our lesling over non-standard revenue fransactions,

income 1o ensure revenue is recorded on a straght ime basis

gver the course of the lease. For balances nat included within rental income, such as service charge

income. we parformed substantive testing on a sample basis. No issues
were identified in our lesling.

Actounting for transactions For each transaction, we undersiood the nature of the transaction and

Reler 1o pages 67 1o 70 JReport of the Audil Compltes), pages 105 assessed the proposed accounling breabment in relation lo the Group s

to 107 [Accounting palicies] and pages 108 to 143 [Notes to the Accounts). accounting poliges and relevant IFRSs.

There have been a number of iransactions during the year. These For all acquisitions and disposals, we oblained and reviewed Lhe key

warranted addibonat audit foaus dua to tha magratude of ransactions supporting documentabion such as Sates and Purthase Agreements

and the polential {or camplex conlractual lermas thal introduce and completion statements_ Consideration recesved or paid was

judgement into how they were accounted for. Key Iransactions agreed v bank statements. No materialissues were found as 2

subject to addiional audit lotus were: resull of these procedures.

— acquisi of invast { properties for (B8 million For the Leadenhall transaction which has been accounted for 25 a jownt

- disposals of investment proper lies for £470 million, including veniure held for sale, we assessed the accounting trealment in relation lo
the disposal of Debenhams Oxford Street lor £397 million {FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discentinued Operations and

- exchange of contracts tor the Sate of Inlerest in the Leadenhall 1AS28 Investments in Assodiates and Joinl Ventures We have reviewed the
Holding Co Lierseyl L imiled Joint Venture whech has been sale and purchase agreemen) and agree thal the exchange of coniracls
accounted for as a joint venture held for sale valued at £540 mallion 1o sell the shares in the joint venlure meet the criteria for recognihon as

- advanced funds received on exchange of contracts far the sate held for sale uhder IFRS 5. We have audited the carrying value of the joint
of shares in the Leadenhall Joint venture recorded as a finandal venture at March 2017, including the valuation of the underlying investrent
assel and corresponding financial batulity for E144 millon property. NO material issues were found in relalion to the carrying value.

~ amoun! of E10 million received from UBS m relation o the
development and occupation of 5 Broadgate, and subsequent We have conflirmed receipt of the advanced funds received on exchange of
vacation of 100 Liverpool Strest contracls, and tied this to the balances listed within the sale and purchase

agreement and to confirmalions from the Group's lawyers. The monies
received are held in a client account held by the Group's (awyers and
receipl s condional on the completion of the sale We agree with the
recognition as a financial asset and corresponding tiability.

For the £1D million paymer [rom UBS we have reviewed the original
lease agreemenl and the amended iease agreement that details
the payrment. We have agreed receipt of the arnount received o

bank statements. We concur with the ks t adopted.
TFaxation We re-performed the Group’s and | REIT compliance lests,
Reler to pages 67 to 70 [Report of the Audit Commullee), pages as well as those tests for the Broadgale REIT. Based on gur work
105 to 107 |Accounting poticies] and pages 111 and 126 {Nates). performed, we agreed with gernent’s k that aty
REIT compliance lests ha been met to ensure that the Group .
The Group's status as a REIT underpins its bysiness model and and Broadgate mainkain their REIT status,
shareholder returns. For this reason, it warrants spedial audit focus.
The obligations of the REIT regime indlude requirements to comply We evaluated the lax provisions and potentiat exposures as al
with batance of business, dividend and income cover tesis. The 31 March 2017. We used our knowtedge of tax circumstances
Broadgale joint venture is also structured as a REIT and as such, and by reading relevant correspondence between the Group and
REIT compliance is also of refevance for this joint venlure in Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customns and lhe Group® s external tax
addition to the overatl Group. adwisors are satishied that the assumpl and j s

[ used by the Group are reasanabile.
Tax provisions are in place to account for the risk of challenge
of certain of the Group's tax provisions. Given the subjective
nature of these provisions. additional audil focus was placed
on tax provisions.
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How we ailored the audit sxope :

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure thal we performed ancugh
work Lo be able to give an opinicn on the inanda! statements as a whale,
taking into accaunt tive geographic structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and contrels, and the industry in which the Group oparates.

The Group and Company linangial statements are pruduced using &
single consclidation systern that has 3 direct interface with tha ganeral
ledger. We performed our audit procedures aver the general ledger
system and testaqd the inler face with the conselidation system.

A hull scope audil was performed by the Group audit team lor all
subsidiaries of the Group, and the following joint ventures: Broadgate,
Meadowhall and Leadenhall. This gives coverage over substantiatly
all of the Group.

In establishing the overall approach to our audit, we assessed the risk
of matenial misstalement, taking into account the nature. lkelivood and
polential magnitude of any misstalemeant. Followning this assessment,
we applied professional judgement Lo determine the exten of testing
vequired over each balance in the financial skatements.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.

We set certain quantilative thresholds for materiality. These, togzther
with qualitative constderations, helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timning and extent of our audil procedures on the
individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effact of misstatements, balh individually and on the financial
staternents as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for
the financial stalements as a whote as follows:

Overall Group materiality . E135 million {2014 £138 rmllmn]
How we determnined it 19 of total assets.
Rationale for benchmark applied A key determninant of the Group's

value iz direct proparty investments.
Due w0 this, the keyarea of focus

in the audit is the valuation of
investment properties. On this basis,
we sel an overall Group matenalily
tevel based on tatal assets.

In addilion, we sel a specific materiality level of £19.4 million [2014:

£18 million] for itemns within undertying pre-tax profit. This equates to
5% of profil before tax adjusted for capital and other items. In arriving
at this judgement we had regard to the fact that the underlying pre-tax
profitis 2 secondary financial indicator of the Group [Refer Lo Note 2

of the financial statements page 108 where the term is defined in fulll.
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we wauld report to them
misstaternents idenlified during our audil of underlying pre-tax items
abave £1 million [2016: £1 million] as well as misstatements below that
amount thal, in pur view, warranted reporling lor qualitative reasons.
We agreed with the Aydit Cammittee that we would report to them,
any misstatements identified during our audit of capital and other
ilems above £6.7 million [2014: €4.9 million] as wall as misstatemnents
below that amount that, in cur view, warranted reporting for
qualitalive reasons.

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
staternend, s2i oul on page 43, in relation to going concern. We have
nothing (o report having performad our review.,

Undar ISAs (UK & freland] wa are required to repert to you if we

have anything matenial 10 add or te draw attention (o in retation to the
Direciors’ staternest ahoul whather they considared it appropriaie to
adopl the going concerm basis in preparing lhe fmanu?! skatemenis.
We have nothing matenal i 2dd or te draw attention to.

As noted in the Directors’ statemenl, the directors have conduded
thal it is appropniate to adopl the going concern basis in preparing
the financial siatements. The going concarm basis presumes that the
Group and Company have adeguate resources to remain in operabion,
and that the Directors intend them to do so, for al l2ast ene yeer frem
the date the financial statements were signed. As part of our wdit
we have concluded that the Direciors’ use of the going concern basks
is appropriale. However, because not all luture events or conditions
can be predicted, these stataments are not 3 guarantee as to the
Group's and Company's abality te continue 25 3 gosng concern.
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Finanvial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required reporting

Consistency of other information and compliance
with applicable requirements

Companies Act 2004 reporting

in our opinion, basad on the work undertaken in th course of the audii:

- the informalion given in the Strategic Report and the Utreciors’
Report for the finandal ysar for which the financial statemenis
are prepared is consistent with the financGal statements,

- the Stralegic Report and the Direclors’ Report have been prepared
in aocordance: with applicable legal requirements,

In addition, in light of the knowledge and undarstanding of the Group,
the Company and their enviranment obtained in the course of the
audit, we are required to repost if we have idenbihed any material
misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Oirectors’ Report.

We have nothwng to report in this respect.

15As {UK & Iretand) reporting
Under 1SAs (UK & irelandlwe are required e repoct to you il,
in oLr opshion:

The Direclars” assessivent of the praspects of the Group and of the
principal risks that woilld threaten the satvency or liguidity of the Group
Under 1545 JUK & Wreland] we are required to report 16 you if we have

anylhing material 1o add o7 to draw altention to in relation lo:
- the Birectors” confumnation on pagz 45 We have nathing
of the Annual Reporl. in accordance with  malenat 1o add or

- informalion in the Ardwial Report is:

- malerially inconsistant with
the inlormation in the audited
financial statements.

- apparently materially incoimect based
on, or materially inconsisteal with, our
knowiedge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of performing
our audil

~ oltherwise misleading

We have no exceplions
to report,

- the statemeni given by the directors on
page 84_in accordance with provision
€.1.1 of the UK Corparate Governance
Code hhe ‘Code, that they consider the
Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair,
batanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for members lo
assess the Group's and Company's position
and periormance, business model and
strategy is matenially incansistent with
our knowledge of the Group and Comnpany
acquired in the course of perfarming
our audil

‘We have nc exceptions
o report.

- the section of the Annual Repart on page 47 Wa have no exceplions
9s required by provision C 3.8 of the Code,  toreport.
des<ribing the wark of the Audit Committee
does not appropriaiely address matters
communicated by us te the Audil
Commiilee
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provision C.2.1 of the Codz_that theyhave  todraw attenbon ta
carried oul a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing lhe Group, induding
those thal would threaten s business
madal, future performance, solvency
or Liquidity
- the disclosures in the Anowal Report We have nothing
that describe those risks and explain how  material (o add or
they are being ged or miligaked o draw attention to.
~ the Directors’ explanation on page 49 We have nothing
of the Annual Reporl_ in accordance material o add or
wath prowvision C_2.2 of the Code, as to 10 draw altention to.

how they have assessed the prespecls

of the Group, over what period they have
done so and why they consider that period
to be appropriatz. and their stalement

as to whether they hiave a reasonable
expecialion that the Group will be abte

Lo continue in operation and meet its
liatiites as they fall dua over the period
of thewr assessmenl, induding any related
disclosures drawing allention fo any
necessary qualifications or assumplions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing Lhe Group and the Directors’ statement in refation
ta the tonger-lerm wiability af the Group. ur review was subsiantially
less in scope than an audit and only consisled of making inquiries
and considering the Direclors’ prucess supporting their statements;
checking thal the statements are in atignment with the relevant
provisions of the Code; and considering whether the statements

are consistent with Lhe knowledge acquired by us in the course

of performing our audit. We have nothing to report having

performed our review.

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations received

Under the Campanies Act 2006 we are required o report to you il
in our opiion:

- we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

- adequate accounling records have not been kept by the Company.
or returns adequate for gur audit have not been received from
branches notvisited by us; or

- the Company financial staternents and the part of the Direclors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not m agreement with
ihe accounting records and relurns

Wa have no excephons to report arising from this responsibility,



Directors’ remunerabton

Directors” Remuneration Report - Companies Act 2006 opinion
In qur opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report Lo
be audited has been properly prepared m accordante with the
Companies Acl 2006.

Other Companies Act 2004 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required lo repart to you if,

n gur opinion, certain disclosures of Dedlors’ remuneration speched
by law are not made. We have no exceglions to report arising from

this responsibility. ’

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required lo reviaw the part of the
Corporale Governance Statement relating to len further provisions
of the Code We have nothing in repart having performed our review.

Responsibilities for the financial statements

and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explzined more fully in the Directors’ Responsibitities Statement
set out on page 91; the Directors are respensible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being salisfied that they give a
true and air view.

Our responsibilityis to audil and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and 1ISAs [UK & lreland).
Those standards require us lo comply with the Auditing Praclices
Board’s Fihical Standards for Apditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared lor and only
for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chaplar
3 of Parl 14 of the Companies Act 2006 and lor no other purpose.
We da nat, in giving these opinions, accept er assume responsibility

for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report .

is shown or inko whose hands il may come save whare exprassly
agreed by our prior consent inwnting.

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit nvalves abltaining evidence aboul the arhounts and disclosures
in the inancial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance thal
the financial statemenis are free from maierial rpisstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This indludes an assessment of:

- whether the accounting polities are appropriate to the Group s
and the Company's circurnstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed

~ the reasonableness ol significant accounting estimates made
by the Directors

- the overall preseniation ol the inancial slalemanis

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing Lhe Direclors’
Judgements against available evidence, forming our own judgements,
and evaluating the disclosures in the linancial statements.

We lest and examine informalton, using sampling and cther auditing
{echnigues. to the extent we consider necessary lo provide a reasonable
basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evwdence through
testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures ora
combination of both

In addition, wa read all the finandial and non-finandal infermation

in the Annuat Report to identify material inconsistencies wath the
audited financial statements and to idewiily any information ihat is
apparanily materially incorract based on, or matenatly incensstent
with, the knowdedge acquired by us in the course ol performing

the audit. |l we becoma awar= of any 2pparent matenal msstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report,

With respect to the Strategic Report ant Directors Report, we
consider whether those reporic mclude the disclosuras required

by applicable legal requiremanis.

John Waters (Senior Statutory Auditor)
lor and on behall of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charlered Accountants and Slalutery Audilors
London

16 May 2017

- The maintenance and indagrily of The Britsh Land Campany FLC webksite
is the responasihility of the BEectors; the work carvied cut by the audiisrs
does nol invdive consideration ef these maitters and. acoordigly, the auditors
accep! no respansibility far any changes thal rmay have aourred to the
finanaial staternents sipce Brey wereintizity presented om Use welsite.
- Legislalion in the United Kingfomn governing the preparation and dSssemination
of fingnsal statements may diffesr brom legrslation in other peisdictinns. ’
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Fiaasnvigh ctatoments

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

am7 0k
Capitat A Capital
Undetying®  andother Total  Underying'  andother Yot
Nat= tm tm im Imn £ m
Revenue 3 558 a3 589 263 il 590
Casts 3 (1221 1261 tse] (1281 (y (1391
3 434 7 44 &5 10 451
Joint ventures and funds {see also betow] i1 132 teoi 52 135 262 397
Administrative expenses B4} - a4} 93] - 931
Valualion movement 4 - {154l (t45) - 614 616
{Loss] profit on disposat of investment properties
and investments - 15 151 - 35 35
Net financing costs
- hinanting income & ) 2 42 &4 2 &5 0
- hinancding charges 3 (80} (Fa)] [L05)] I 134) 1454
: i78) 13 145) hos) 3 175)
" Profiton ondinary activities before taxativh 408 (i) 195 n 954 133
Tazalion 7 1 3 33 33
Profit for the year after taation 196 1364
Antributable to non-controlling interests % m) 3 14 5 19
Attribulable to shareholders of the Company . 390 hen 17 353 982 1.345
Earnings per share:
- basic ) 2 18.8p 131.2p
- dilvted? 2 . 1.7p "97p
All resulls derive from continuing operations.
a7 5
Undustying’  and other Total Undartyng"  and oiher Toial
Mate m &m €m £m Em 7
Results of jsint ventures and funds accounted
for using the equity method
Undertying Profil : ’ 132 - 122 135 - 135
Valualion movement ' 4 - 93 93) - 25 25
Capital financing cosls - 1] 1) - - -
Profit on disposal of investment properlies,
trading properties and investments - 12 1w - 8 18
Taxation - 1 1 - m (1]}
) 1 32 ) sz 136 262 397

' See definition in Glossary.
* Poor year diuted EP'S has been restated. See note 1
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CONSQOUIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

207 117
€m Emn
Profit for the year after taxation L} 1344
Dther comprehensive [toss] intome: .
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit orloss:
Net actuarial {oss on pension schemes oz 1]]
Valuation movements on owner-cocupiad properlies - Lk
21 18
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
{Losses] gains on cash ltow hedges
- Group 21 (24)
- Joint venlures and funds . 1 13
1200 2%
Transferred (o the income staterment lcash Now hedges}
- Foreign currency derivalives - ?
- Interest rate derivatives 156 0
16 12
Exchange dilferences on transtation of foreign operations
~ Hedging and translation - 3
~ Dther - 3
Deferved tax on items of ether comprahensiva income - s
Other comprehensive loss for the year né) n2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 180 1,352
Astributable lo non-controlling interests 3 19
Attributabie to shareholders of the Company 177 1,333
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Financial statcisienes

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

2017 2018
Noge £m m
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
I ent and develop properties 10 9.073 9.643
Owner-occupied properhes 10 9% 95
92187 9738
Other non-current assets
Invesiments in joint ventures and funds ' 1 2,766 3353
Other investmenls 12 154 142
Deferred tax assels ) 14 & 3
inlersasl rate and currency derivative assets 177 217 167
12.308 13,403
Current assels
Joint venture held for sale ’ n 540 -
Trading properties 10 334 325
Debdlors 13 m 33
Cash and short term deposils 17 114 LS
1,159 472
Total t 13,487 13.875
IIABILITIES -
Current liabitities
Sharl term borrgwings and overdralts ¢ 17 (484) {74)
Creditors 14 458) 218}
Corporalion 1ax 130 [1:1]
19521 13101
Mon-current liabilities
Debentures and loans 7 (2,817) 13.487)
Other non-current bhabilities . 15 178} hz22)
interesl rate and currency derivatrve Liatilities 17 1144] 1137
13,039) [3.9461
Total liabilities i 13991 14,254)
Nelassets 9,476 9.619
EQUITY
Share capital 260 250
‘Share premium 1,298 1.295%
Merger reserve 23 23
Other reserves . ' s @3
Retained earnings 7.547 7847
Equity attributabie to sharehotders of the Company ) - 92N 9342
Non-controlling interests . 255 277
Total equity 9,676 9,619
EPRA NAV per share® ' 2 915p 919p

Il -

Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financial (dficer

The finandial statements on pages 100 1o 143 were approved by the Board of Direclors and signed on its behalf on 16 May 2017
Company numbet 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

a7 Aia
Naote m m
Rental income received from tenants L6484 435
Fees and othar income Teceved (53 53
Oparating expenses paid 10 suppliers and employzes LS 1152
Cash generated from sperations e 341
Interest pawd w2 124)
Interest received a8 n
Corporation taxation repayments received 9 8
Distsibutions and other receivables from joint ventures and funds 1 59 58
Net cash inflow from operating activities 363 295
Cash Rows from investing activities
Development and other capilal expenditure 225) {56
Purchase of invesiment properties {87} 1243)
Sala of invesimant and \rading properties 781 S84
Payments received in respect of future trading property sates 8 A0
Purchase ol investments 9 -
Indirect taxes paid in respect of investing activities (1] -
Investment in and loans 16 joint ventures and flunds i50) 1243)
Capital dismbutign; and loan repayments from joint venlures and Rinds 83 384
MNet cash inflow trom investing activities £70 30
Cash Rows from financing activities
issue of ordinary shares 3 5
Purchase of own shares [1:1] -
Dividends paid 19 (295) 1235
Dividends paid o non-controtling interests 141 feh
Acquisivion of uniis s Fercutes Unin Trust 4] (31}
Closeout ol interest rale derivatives na) 15
Cash collateral iransaclions - f2a)
Decrease in bank and other borrowings 1528) m9n
Drawdowns on bank and other borrowings Kt mn
Drawdawn of zero coupon 2015 convertible bond - 344
Net cash gutflow from financing activities 1833 I5t8]
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - &
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April "4 108
Cashand cash equivatents at 31 March - 114 154
Cash and cash equivalents consists of: t
Cash and short lerm geposits 17 14 14
1
\
i
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Fianeizt srarements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Share  Share benctalon  wehEtm  Momor  Retvined Yo
capil  premuum  RserE' | RSAe REENE COTags Told  mimests  equity
£m tm: &m &m [£.3 m €m &m £m
Batance at 1 April 2016 260 1.295 1071 14 213 TAST 7342 27 9619
Profit for the year afler taxation - - - - - w3 17 3 198
Losses on cash Row hedges - - 211 - - - (Fal] - 21
Exchange and hadging o ts in joint =3
and funds - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Reclassification of gains on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency derivatives - - - - - - - - -
- Interest rale danivatives - - 1 - - - 18 - 14
Net actuarial toss on pension schemes - - - - - na na -~ 12)
Other comprehensive [loss] income - T - 5) 1 - na2 (L[3] - 141
Yo\ comprehensive income for the year - - 15} 1 - 18t 7 3 18D
Share issues - 3 - - - - 3 - k|
Fair value of share and share eplen awards - - - - - 2 z° - 2
Purchase of own shares - - - - - (] L} - 8
Purchase of unils from non-conirolling interesis - - - - - - - m} (1))
Gain on purchase of unils from non-controlling interests - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends payable in year {28 8p per share] - - - - - 298 (298 - 1298
Dindends payable by subsidiaries — - - - - - - 14 1)
Balance at 31 March 2047 260 1,298 (L)1) 15 213 T.547 2.1 255 24746
Balance at 1 April 2015 258 1,280 |76} [{3] 213 6,563 8,232 333 8,565
Profit lor the year after taxation - - . - - - 1345 1345 19 1364
Losses on cash flow hedges . - - f24] - - - [24) - 124)
Revaluation of owner-osccupied property - - - - 19 - - i) - 19
Exchange and hedging movements in joint ventures
and funds - - - i3 - - [x1] - 13t
Reclassification of flosses] gains on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency derivatives - to- 2 - - - 2 - 2
— Interest rate derivalives - - 10 - ro- - 10 - 10
Exchange dilferences on ranslation of foreign operations - - 13t 3 - - - - -
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - - m m - ]
Defesred tax on ilems of other comprehensive income - - 116) 1 - - 1) - nsi
Other comprehensive [toss| income - - 131 2 - i 7] - 12l
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {38) 20 - 1344 1333 19 1352
Share issues 2 5 - - - na 5 - 5
Far value of share and share aplion awards - - - - - 8 8 - a
Purchase of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 159 1591
Loss on purchase of units from non-controlling interests _ - - 4 - - 1] m - n
Duwvidends payable in year |28.6p per sharel - - - ~ - 1287 1287} - £287)
Dividends payable by subsidaries - ~ - - - - - f1a) 114)
Adj 1 for scrip dividend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2618 260 1,295 o7 14 213 7667 9342 7 9.61%

' The balance at the beginning of the current year includes £9m in refation to transtation and I£116m] in relation Lo hedging 12015416: £10m and [€88ml).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
v

1 Basis of preparation, significant accounting
policies and accounting judgements

The finandial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been
prepared an the historica! cosl kasis_ except for the revaluation of
progerties, investrnents held for trading and derivatives. The finanaal
statements have also been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {FRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and interpretalions issued by the ITRS Interpretations Committee [IFRS
IC], and \herelore comply with article & of the EU IAS regulalion. and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2004, In the current finandal year
the Group has adoptad a number of miner amendments to standards
effactive in the year issued by the IASB and endorsed iy the £U, none of
which have had a2 material impacd on the Group. The acoaunting polices
used are atherwise consistent with those contaired in the Group's previous
Annual Raport and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014,

A nurnber of new standards and amengdmeanis to standangs and
interpretations have been issued bul are not yel effective for the current
accounting pericd. None of these are expecied to have 2 matenial impaci
on the consolidaled financial statemants of the Group.

Certain standards which could be expected to have an imgactonthe
consalidated finandal statements are discussed in further detail below,

- IFRS Y - Financial instruments {effective year ending 31 March 2019).
The new standard addresses the dassification, measurernent and
recognition of finandal assets and financial liabilities. 1t simplifias the
exisling categories of finandial instruments, introduces an expected
credil loss modal and redefines the aitenia required for hedge
elfectveness. On adoplion of the new standard, these changes are
not expecled to have a material impact on the consclidated financiat
statements of the Group. There wilk however be limited changes to
presentation and disclesure.

- {FRS 15 - Revenue from conliracts with custormers leffeclive year
ending 31 March 2019]. The new standard combines a number ol
previous standards. setting oul a five step model for the recognition
of revenue and establishing principtes for reporiing uselul information
to users of linandal slatements aboul the nature, amount, liming
and uncertainty of revenue and cash Nows arising from an enlity’s
contracls with customers. The new standard does not apply (o gross
rental incorne, but does apply to service charge income, management
and performance fees and trading property disposals. The impact
of the new standard on these itemns of revenue is not expected to
have a material impact on the consolidaled {inancial statements
of the Group. .

~ {FRS 14 - Leases leffective year ending 31 March 2020. For lessees, it
will result in atmost 3l leases being recognised on the balance sheel,
as the distinction between operating and financa leases will be
remaved. The zocounting for lessors will however net significantly
change. As a resyll on adoplion of the new standard, these changes
are nol expected Lo have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

The Group conducted animpac assessment of the above new siandards
in the year, and concludad that whilsl adoplion of these new standards
based on lhe Group's current aclivities would lead 1o some limited changes
ta presentalion and disclosure, they are not expected 1o have a material
impact on the consolidated finandal statements.

Restatement

The IFRS dituted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2016
has been restated to reflect the full Glutive impact of the 1.5% 2012
convertivle bond. This restatement reduces the diluied earmings

per share measure lrem 1241 pence to 119.7 pence shown on the
Consolidated income Statemant and within the associated notes.

This is the only Ainandat measure within these financial statements
impacied by this resiatament.

Going concern
The hnancial stalemenls are prepared on a geing concern basis
as explained in the corporate govemance saction on page 65.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates [including funds}

The consolidated accoumts inctude the 20csants of the Britsh Land
Company PLC and all subsidianies {entities controlted by Brish Land).
Control is assumed where British Land is exposed, or has the nights,
to variable returns lrom its imvob t with invesiees and has the
ability o affect those relurms threugh its power over those investzes.

The resulls of subsidiaries, joint ventsres or assocrates aoguired w
disposed of during the year are included from the efiective date of
acquisition or up to the eifective date of dispasal. Accounting polices
of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates which differ from Group
accounbing policies are adjusted on consolidztion, ’

Business combinations are accouned for under the acquisition method.
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the [air
value of the assets, liahilitlies and contingent liabilities acquired and
resulling deferred lax thereon is recognised as goodwill. Any discount
received is credited lo the income statement n Lhe pertod of acguisilion.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on cansolidation. Jein ventures and assedates_incdluding
funds, are accounted for under the equily method, whereby the
consalidaled balance sheel incorporates the Group's share linvestor’'s
share] of Lhe net assets of its joint ventures and associates. The
consolidaled income slaterment incorporates the Group's share

of joinl venture and associale profits after lax. Their profils include
revaluation rovesnents on investment propertes.

Distributions and other receivables from joints venturas and associates
lincluding funds] are tlassed as cash Rows from operaling activities,
except where they relate in 2 cash flow anising from a capital transaction,
such as a property or mvestment disgosal In thes case Lhey are dassed
as cash flows trom investing activibies.

Properties -

Properties are externally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheet dale. Invesiment and owner-occupied proper ties are recorded at
valuation whereas lrading properilies are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Any surplus or deficil arising on revaluing investmant properlies s
recognised in the capilal and other column of the income slalement.

Any surplus arising on revaluing owner-cccupied properlies above

cost is recognised in other comprehensive income_ and any deficit arising
in revalualion below cost {for owner-occupied and rading propertiesis
recognised in the capital and other column of the income slatement.
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Finameidh s1at01menis

NOTES 70 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

The tost of properties in the course of development indludes atiributable
interest and olher assotigied outgoings induding attribuishie development
persennel costs. interast is calculated on the develepment expendilure
by reference lo spedific borrowings. where relevant. and otherwise on
the weighied average rate interest rate of British Land PLC borrowings.
Intarast i not capitalised where no development activity is taking

place. A property ceases to be treated as a development property

on practical complenon

Investment property disposals are recognised on ¢ letion. Profits
and losses arising are recognised through the capital and gther column
of the income statement. The profit on dispasal is determined as the
dilference between tha nel sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset al the commencement of the accounting period plus capitat
expendifure in the period.

Trading pioperties are initially recognised al cost less impairments,
and trading property disposals are recognised in line with the revenue
policies oullined below,

Where uwestment properties are appropriated to trading properties,
they are transfermed al markel value. I properties held for rading are
a2ppropriated to investinent properties. they are iransferred at book
valye. in delermuning whether leases and related properties repwesent
operaling or inance leases, cansideralion is given o whether the
tenanl or lzndlord bears the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets and Uabilities
Tradz deblors and creditors are inibatly recognised at fair value and
suhsequentty measured at amortised cost and discounted as appropriate.

Other investments include loans and receivables held at amortised

cosl and mvestments hetd for rading classified as fair value through
profit or loss. Amortised cost of loans and receivables is measured using
the effective inlterest method, less any impairment, Interest is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate. investments held for trading are
initially recorded al f3ir value and are subsequently externally valued an
the same hasis at the hatance sheel date. Any surplus or deficit arising
on revaluing wvestments held for trading is recognised in the capital

and other column of the ncome slatement.

Where an investment property is held under a head lease, the head
Llease is inilially recogruced as an asset. being the sum of the premiurm
paid on acquisition plus the present value of minimum ground rent
payments. The corresponding rent tiability lo the head leaseholder

is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Debi instruments are stated at their net proceeds onissue. Finance
charges including premia payatde on setilement or redemplian
and direct issue cosls are spread over the period to redemption,
using the eftective ilerest method. Exceptional finance charges
incurred due to early redernption lincluding premiums)| are
recognised n the income statement when they oceur.

Converlible bonds are: designated as fair value through profit or loss
and so are imbially recognised at fair value with all subsequent gains
and losses. including the write-offl of issue costs. recognised in the
capital and other column of the income stat i as & comp | of
net financing costs. The interest charge in respect afthe coupon rate
on Lhe bonds has been recagnised within the underlying component
of net hnancing casts on an accruals basis,
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As defined by 1AS 39, cash New and fair value hedges are initially recognised
at fzr valure at the dale the derivative conlracts are enteredinte, and
subsequenity remeasured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives thal are designated and gualily as effeciive cash flow hedges are
recognised directy through other comprehensive inoome as 2 movemen! in
the hadging and renslation reserve_Changes in the fair value of detivatives
that are designated and qualify as effective fair value hedgaes are recorded
w the capital and other colurnn of the income statement, slong with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged item that is alinbulable to the
hadged risk. Any ineffeclive portion of all derivatives is recognised in the
capital and other columin of the income statement. Changes i the tair
value of derivatives that are nol in a designated hadging relalionship undar
LAS 39 are recorded directly in the capital and other column of the income
statement. These darivalives are carvhed at fadr value on the d3lance sheet.

Cash equivalants are limited to nstrumnants wath a maturity of less than
three months.

Revanue

Revenue comprises rental income and sunvender gremia, sarvice charga
income, managenent 2nd periormance fees and proceeds from the sale
of irading properties.

- Rental mcome, induding fixed rental upbifts, from imestment property

teased out wrufer an operaling lease is recognised as revenue ona .
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives, such as reat-free
periods and cash contributions to tenant fit-oul, are recogsed on the
same straighi-line basis being an integral part of the nel consideration for
the use of the investment property. Any rent adjustments based on open
market estimated renial values are recognised, based on management
estirnates. from the rent review date in relation lo unseitled rent reviews.
Contingent rents, being those lease payments that are not heed at the
inceplion of the lease, induding for example hurnover renis, are

recognized n the pariod in which they 2re eammad.

Surrender premia lor the earty determinalion of a lease are recognised
3s revenye immediately upon receipl, nel of dilapidations and non-
recoverable oulgoings relating to the tease concerned.

Service charge income is recognised as revenue in the penod to which
itrelates.

Management and performance fees receivable are recognised as revenue
in the period 10 which they relate. Performance lees are recogmsed al the
end of the performance period when the fee  can be est
reliably and it is virtualty certain that the fee will be received.

Proceeds from he sale of trading properties are recogmsed when the
risks and rewards ol cwnership have been transfermed (o the purchaser.
This generally occurs on complelion. Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties are recognised as revenue in the capilal and other cotumn of
the income statement. All other revenue described above is recognised
in the undertying column of the iIncome statemnent.



Tazation

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year and is calculated
using tax rales that have baaa enacted or subsiantively enacted at the
balance shesl date. Taxahie profit differs lrom net profit as reponiad in
the income slatement because it excludes ilems of income or expense
that are not 1axabte lor tax deductible)

Deferred tax is prowded onitems that may become laxable in the future,
ar which may be used o olfzet against taxable profits in the future, on
the temporary differences between the carrying ameunts of assels and
ligbilities for linancial reporting purposes, and the amounts used for
taxation purposes on an undiscounled basis, On business combinations,
the deferred tax efiect of fair value adjustments is incorporated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Employee costs ,
The fair value of equity-setled share-based payrents lo employees
is determined at the date ol grant and is expensed on 3 straight-line
hasis over the vesting period, based on the Group's eslimate of shares
or oplions that will eventually vest. in Lhe case of options granted,

fair value is measured by a Black-Scholes pricing snodel.

Defined benefil pension scheme assets 2re measured using fair values.
Penston schems liatililies are measured using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at the rale of retumn of 2 high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term to the scheme Babilities_ The net surplus where
recoverable by the Groupl or deficit is recognised in full in the consolidated
balance sheel. Ay assel resutting trom the calculation is Limitad to the
present value of awaitable refunds and reductions in fulure contributions
to the plan,

The current service cost and gains and losses on settlement and
curtailments are charged lo operating profit. Actuarial gains and losses
are recagnised in full in the period inwhich they occur and are presented
in the consolidaled statement of comprehensive income.

Caontributions to the Group's defined conlribulion schemes are expensed
on the basis of the contracied annuat coninbution

Accounting judgements and estimates
In appiying the Group's accounting policies, the Dhrectors are required
o make judgements and estimates that aHecl the financial slatements.

Significant areas of estirmation are:

Valuation of properties and investments held for trading: The Group
uses external professional valuers to determine the relevant amounts.
The primary source of evidence for property valuations shoutd be recent,
comparable markel transaclions on an arms-length basis. However,

the valuation of lhe Group's property portfolio and investments hetd

for trading are inherently subjective. as they are made on the basis of
assumplions mada by the valuers which may not prove to be accurate.

Other less significan! areas of estimation include the valuation of fixed
rate debt and interest rate derivatives, the determination of share-based
payment expense, and the actuanal assumptians used in calculaling the
Group's retirement benefil obligations.

The key areas of sccounting judgement sre:

REIT status: British Land is 2 Reat Estale Iwestment Trust [REIT)

and does nod pay 13X on its propasty inoome oF gains on property sates,
providad thal at least 90% of the Group's property incomeis disiributed
as a dividand 1o sharshuolders, which becomes taxable in their hands.
In addition, the Group has lo meet certain conditions such a5 ensuring
the proparty rentat busmass represents more than 75% of total profils
and assais. Any polential o7 proposed changas to the REAT legislalion
are monitored and discussed wilh: HMRC_ It is Management's intentign
that tha Group will continue 35 3 REIT fior the foresesadle fvmre.

Accouniing for joint ventures and funds: In accordance with IFRS 10
‘Consolidated finandal sisternents. [FFRS 11 Joini amangements’. and
IFRS 12 Disclosyres of mterests & other entilies’ an assessmantis
required to delermine the degree of centrol ar influence the Group
exercses and the form of any conirod 10 ensure that the financial
slatemant treatment is approprate.

Interast in the Group s joenl ventures is cornmaonty deiven by the terms

ol the partnership agreements which ensure that control is shared
betwaen Lhe pariners. These are accounted for under the equity method,
whereby the consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Groug's share
of the Rt assels of i1s joint ventures and assocdiates. The consolidated
income statement ncorporales the Group’s share of joint venture and
assoqate profits afler tax.

Accounting for transaclions: Property ransactions are complex in
nature and can be matenal to the financal statements. Assessmeni is
required to determine the most appropriate accounting treatmend of
assels arquired and of potential contractual ammangemanis in the legal
documents for both acquisitions and disposals. Management consider
each transaction separately and, when considered appropriate, seek
independent acrounting advice.

Held for sale assel: On 1 March 2017 the Group exchanged conditfonal
oontracts on an agreement to sell its mkerest in Leadenhall Holding Co
[Jersey] Limited, a joint venture with Oxford Properties. The net
investment in the joint venture has been reclassified as a held lor sale
asset within current assets on the Group balance sheel, and the carrying
amou is disclosed separately from the ivestment in joint ventures and
funds within note 11 to the financial statements.

Prior to exchange_ held for sale criteria were not deemed (o be met since
the transaction retates to an iliquid assel and is subject 1o significant
unceriainly prior to agreement of terms. However, upon exchange the
sale is deemed highly probable as detailed terms have been agreed upon
by relevant parties. Al this point management expect the carrying
amnount of the Group's vestiment in tha venture to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing operations.
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Fioamaal seatemems

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Earnings per share

Tha Gnoup measures finandial parformance with referance 1 underlying earmings per share, the European Public Real Estate Assoediation (EPRAJ
earnings per share and IFRS earnings per share. The retevant earnings and weighted average number of shares kncluding ditution adjustmeni st
for aach parformance measure ar2 shown below, and a recondiliation b 1 these is sh within the supplementary disclosures [Table Bi.

EPRA earmings per share is calculated using EPRA zamings. which is the IFRS profit alter laxation aliributable to shareholders of the Comparny
excluding investment and development property revalualions, gainsflosses on investing and trading property dispasals. changes in the fair value of
hnancial msiruments and assoosted dase-oul costs and their related Laxation. In the current year, dilvted EPRA earmings per share did nal indude
the dilutive impact of the 2012 convertible bond, as the Group's share price was below the exchange price ol 693 pence. IFRS diluied eamings par
share includes the dilutive impact as 1AS 33 ynores this hurdie to conversion. In the prior year, both measures included the ditlutive impact of the
2012 comvertible bond. as the Group's share price was above the axchange price.

Undartying earnings par share is calculated using Underlying Profit adusied fer undertying taxation [see note 7). Underlying Profit is the pre-izx
EPRA eamnings measure, with additional Company adjustments. Mo Company adjusiments were made in zither the curven or prior year.

007 4
Relewant Redzvand

Releyant mamber Earning Rel . Carnings

earnimgs of shares per share SRS of shares per share
Undertying
Underlying basic v 1,029 379 365 1025 356
Undertying diluted 390 1,033 378 . 371 1089 343
EPRA =
EPRA basic 37 1,029 79 365 1.025 35.6
EPRA dituted 390 1033 378 3n 1,08% 341
IFRS
Basic w73 1,029 18.8 1.345 1.025 1312
Diluted’ 160 1. 14.7 1303 1.08% 1ne7

' Prior year dituted EPS hat been restatad. Ses note )

Net asset value

The Group measures linancial position with reference to EPRA net asset value INAV) per share and EPRA triple net asset value [NNNAV] per share.

The nel asset vatue and number of shares for each performance measure is shown below. A reconcilialion between IFRS net assels and EPRA

net assels. and Lthe relevant number ol shares {or each performance measure, is sh within the supp! Hary disclosures [Table Bl. EPRA net

as.sels is a proportionally consolidated measure that is based on IFRS nel assets excluding the mark- lo-market on effective cash flow hedges and
{ated debt adj s, the mark-to-market on the convertible bonds as well as deferred laxation on property and denvative va|ua!mns They

mclude the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted (or the ditutive impaci of share oplions.

As al 31 March 2017, EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAY did not inctude the dilutive impact of the 2012 conwertible bond, as the Group’s share price was
below the exchange price of 493 pence_ IFRS nel assets incdudes the dilutive impact fottowing the reatment of IFRS eamings per share. In the prior
year period. bath measures included the ditutive impact of the 2012 convertible bond, as the Group’s share price was above the exchange price.

w? 0
Retevant Netasset . Retevart Net assed
Relevart namber value per Relewant number value per
nat assets of shares share nel assels. of shares. share
Nat assat value por share &m millisn [ ] &m mellon pence
EPRA
EPRA NAV 9,498 1.038 715 10,074 1,094 19
EPRA NNNAV 8,938 1,038 861 . 9.640 1,096 880
IFRS :
Basic | %2475 1,029 21 9.619 1029 935
Diluted 9.874 1.095 01 10,019 1096 914
Total accounting return

The Group also measures financial perforrnance with reference o total accounting return. This is calculated as the morease in EPRA net assel vatue
per shace and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the EPRA net asset value per share al the start of the year.

a7 a6
Decreasein  Dividend por Total Increase inNAY  Dividend per Total
NAY per share share paid accounting per share share paid FncRNting
penee pehte relurn pence pence returmn
Total accounting return {4} 28.78 2.7% 20 28.02 14.2%
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3 Revenue and costs

2007 M4

Undortying  and athor Totdl  Undwking  andother Talt

€m £m £m [ im tm

Hent recesvable &49 - &9 £37 - 437
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaraniesd rant increases 4] - 9 12 - 12
Surrender premia Z - 2 2 - 2
Gross rental income 442 - &42 451 - 451
Trading proparty sales procesds - 33 33 - 2t 2
Service charge incame . 62 - £2 72 - 7
Managament and performance fees |from joint ventures and funds) 9 - 9 8 - 8
Other lees 2nd commissions &3 - A3 38 - 38
Revenue ' 556 B 58y 569 2 590
Trading peoperty cost of sates - 128) t28) - ) m
Service charge expenses 52} - 2 72 - 7
Property operaling expenses {25) - 125} 261 - 7.7
Other fees and commissions expenses 135) - 1351 130 - 130
Costs nza 28 1148} nzs) im 139}
£34 7 &8 AR/ LY ASY

The cash elemenl of net rental income recognised during the year ended 31 March 2017 from properties which ware not subject to a security
Interest was £276m [2015/16: £229ml. Property uperating expenses relsting (o mvestment pmperhes that did not generale any rental income
were [2m [2015/14. £1m). Conlingent rents of £2m {2015%/14: £3m] were recognised in the year.

4 Valuation movements on property

17 2016’
£m I
Consoludated income statement
Revatuation of properlies 144} 616
Revatuation of properties held by joint ventures and funds accounted for using the equity methed w3l 245
1237] 861
Cansolidated statement of comprehensive income
Revaluation of owner-occupied properties - 17
{2371 830
5 Auditors’ remuneration — PricennterhouseCoopers LLP
m7 0%
o Em
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.2 0.2
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to iegislation 0L 04
Tatal audit fees o0& 04
Audit-related assurance services A 0.1
Total audit and audit-related assurance sefvices 0.7 0z
Other fees
Tax advisory services s - ~
Other services [N 0.1
Total 0.8 0.8

I addition 10 the above, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were remunerated for non-audit fees in PREF, 2n equity accounted property fund isee note 13
The Group's share of fees lotalled £0.1m (2015/14: £0.2m). PricewalerhouseCoopers LLP are not the exlernal avditors to PREF.

-
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Fieanvial starcmenis

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

6 Net financing costs

zmr 28
£m &m
Undertying
Financing charges
Bank loans, overdrafls and derivatives . ' 3 130)
Other loans . 831 I88]
Obligations under head leases 12 12
. 1881 ir2a}
. Devalopment interest capilalised ] ?
(L)) [1111]
Financing incoms
Depaosits, securities and liquid investmanis 2 3
Loans to joinl ventures . - 2
2 ]
Net financing charges - undertying 78] . sl
Capital and other
Financing charges
Vatuani s on Lranslation of foreign currency daht - 2
Hedging reserve recycling - 2
Valuation movements on fair value derivatives ; 51 54
Valuation movements on fair value dett &8) (53!
Recycling of (air value movement on close -out of derivatives . (L]1] 18]
Capital financing costs’ sl 1291
Fair value movemeant on non-hedge accounted derivatives [} -
1291 134)
Financing income:
Fair value movement on convertible honds £2 B4
Fair value movemend of non-hedge accounted derivalives - 1
42 65
Net finanting intorme — capital 13 n
!Nel tinancing tosts.
Total inancing income &4 70
Total financing charges 109] 145)
Net financing costs (85} 175

* Primarily debenture bonds redemption and tender offer 2nd purchase cosls.
i
Interest payable on unsecured bank loans and related interesk rate derivatives was £13m [2015/16: E19w). Interest on development expenditure

is capitalised at the Group’'s weighted average interest rate of 2.4% [2015/14: 2.6%). The weighted average interest rate on a proportionatety
consolidated basis at 31 March 2017 was 3.1% [2015/16: 3.3%).
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7 Taxation

F-ti 2016
€m (1]
Taxation income lexpense)
Currenttaxation:
UK corporation taxation: 20% {2015/16: 209 3l s
Adjusiments in raspeci of prior years & 17
Totat current taxation income - 1 F
Oeferved laxation on revaluations and dertvalives - 3
&roup total taxation 1 3
Attnbutable to joint ventures and funds 1 1l
Total taxation income 2 32
Taxation reconcitiation
Prohil on ordinary activities belore taxation 95 137
Less: profit attribulable Lo joint ventures and funds 521 13971
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation w3 934
Taxation on profil on ordinary activities at UK corporation laxation rate of 20%(2015/16: 26%} 29} nan
Effecis of.
REIT exempt income and gains ¢ 28 Wt
Taxation losses @ n
Delerred taxation on revaluations and denvatives - n
Adjusimenis in respect of prier years 4 17
Group total taxation income 1 33

' Acurrent taxahon expense of Enil [2015/16 charge of £im] and a defarred larahmcmdatofcimﬂmsﬂ& expensa of [nil] arose on profils attributable to pint ventures
and funds. The low tax charges reflects the Group’s REIT stalus

Taxation expense attributable to Undertying Profit for the year ended 31 Manch 2017 was a Enil [2015/14: £2ml. Corporation taxation payable at
31 March 2017 was £30m [2015/18. £18ml as shown on the balance sheet.

8 Staff costs .
. m7 18
Staft costs (inctuding Directors) £m m
Wages and salaries 84 5
Social security cosls B
Pension costs 7 7
Equily-settled share-based paymenis & 10
a3 a1

The average monthty number of employees of the Company during the year was 261 {2015/16: 280). The average manthly number of Group employees,
including those ernptoyed directly at the Group's proper ties and their costs recharged to lenants, was 771 (2015/16: £92). The average maonthly
number of employees of the Company within each cateqory of persons employed was as follows: Retail: 54; Oifices & Residentizl: 71 Canada Water:
7. Suppork Funclions. 129

The Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the key managemeﬁl personnel. Their emoluments are summarised below and further
detail is disctosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 73 1o 88

. anz 2006

Directors” emoluments €m £m
Short term ernployee benehts 5.0 54
Service cost in relation to defined benefil pension schernes 0.2 02
Equity-settied share-based payments - 1.9 3.9
(A 1.5
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Filinnuvinl suzeinengs

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

§ Staff costs continued

Staff costs
The Group's equity-settted share-based payments comprise the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) the Matching Share Pizn MSPL the fFund Managers’
Performance Plan IFMPP] 2nd various savings retated share aption schames.

The Compaty expenses an estimate of how many shares are likely to vest based on the marke? price at the date of grant on {22 June 2014 takng
account of expected performance against the relevant periormance targels and service pariods which are disaussed in Turther detailin the
Remuneralion Report.

For all schemes except the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan share options. the lair value of awards are equal to the market value at grant dale_
The key inputs usad lovalue share oplions using a Black-Scholes maded granied under the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan arz shawn below,

Long-Tesm incentive Plan: Awards in the year ended 31 March 2017 22.;;‘!:
Share price and exercise price at grant date RBip
Expected opiion life in years ’ -
Risk Iree rate 1.1%
Expecledvolatitity 22%
Expecied dividend yeld &%
Value per opli 83p

Movements in shares and aptions are given in note 20.
9 Pensions

The British Land Group of Compantes Pension Scheme ['the scheme] is the principal defuved benefit pension schame in the Group. The assets of
the scheme are held in a trustee-administered fund and kepl separate from those of the Company. It is not centracted out of SERPS [State Earnings-
Related Pension Scherne] and it is nol planned to admit new employees lo the scheme. The Group has three other small defined benefit pension
schemes. There is also @ Defined Contribution Pension Scheme. Contributions to this scheine are at a Aat rate of 15% of salary lor non-Directors
and are paid by the Company.

The total net pension cost charged for the year was £7m [2015/14: £7m. of which £4m [2015/16: E4ml relales 1o defined contribution plans
and T3 [2015/16: (3mi relates to the current service cost of the defined benefit schemes.

A Full acluarial valyation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2015 by consulting actvanies. AON Hewilt Assodates | 1d The emptoyer’'s
contributions will be paid in the future al the rate recommended by the actuary of 72.9% per annum of basic salaries. The best eslimate of employer
contributions expected to be paid during the year to 31 March 2018 is £5m. The major assumpiions used lor the actuarial valuation were:

7 016 215 2014 w13

s % pa Tpa % pa % pa % pa
Oiscount rate 2.4 32 kA 4.4 [A]
Salary inflation 49 48 48 5.2 47
Pensions mcrease 13 32 32 35 31
Price inflation 34 - 33 33 3.7 3.2

The mortality assumplions are based on standard mortality tables which allow for future mortalily improvemenis. The assumplions are that a
member currently aged 40 will live on average for a further 29.7 years il they are male and lor 3 further 31.7 years if they are female. For a member
who retiresin 2037 at age 60, the assumptions are thal they witl live on average for a lurther 31.7 years alier retiremnent if they are male and for 3
further 33.2 years aller retirement if they are female.

Composition of scheme assels
20%7 015
&m m
Equities 40 52
Diversified growth funds B4 77
Other assels 10 8
Total scheme assets 154 137

The vast majority of the scheme assets are quoted in an active market.
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9 Pensions continued

The amount induded in the balance sheel anising from the Groug's obligalions in respect of s defined benefit scheme is as follows:

mny 2t 03 2014 2013
Present value of defined scheme obligations wn 143 L) N5} me
Fair vatue of scheme assels 154 137 139 LK} 120
lrrecoverable surplus - - - (] m
Liability recognised in the batance sheet {13) 1&l i4) - -

The sensitivities of the defined benehit abligation in retation Lo the major acluanial assumplions used to measure schame labilibes are as follows:

e
Changa i 07 2018
Assumption AT £m m
Discount rate ’ +0.5% {18) 14l
Salary inflation : 5% 1 1
Pansions increase +0.5% 135 12
Price inftation +0.5% 17 13
History of experience gains and losses

any i 1 2015 als 2013
(1., Im Em £m €m

Total actuanal loss recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income?
Amourd? . 12} fl 154 (21 1£]
Percentage of present value on scheme liabilities . 7.2% 0.7% 3.6% 1.6% 3.1%

! Movarnenls stated after adpsting tor imecoverability of any surpius.
T Currudatives lass recogesad i Lhe statement of comprohensiva income s £4%m PO15/16: £30mb
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Finanvial staceinenrs .

NGOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

9 Pensions continued
Maovements in the present value of defined benefit abligations ww._é as follows:

2017 206

£m &
At 1 April e (145]
Current seqvice cost (1] B3}
fnterest cost ’ s -1
Actuarial floss) gain
[Loss) gain From change in financiat assumptions 29 &
Gain on scheme liabilities arising from experience : & 3
Benafits paid ) 7 3
At 31 March 1387 [143)
Movements in the fair vatue of the scheme assets were as lollows:
’ 2007 me
€m m
At 1 April . 137 139
Interest mcome on scheme assels 4 4
Conlributions by employer 7 &
Actuarial gain {loss| n m
Beneh!s paid 15 X))
At March 154 137

Through its defined beneti plans, the Group 15 exposed to a number of risks, the most signaficant of which are detailed balow:

Asset volatility

The liabililies are calculated using 3 discount rate set with a reference to corporate bond yietds: if assets underperform this yield, this will create
a deficit. The scheme holds a significant portion of growth assets lequities and diversified growth funds] which,_ although expected to culperiorm
corporate bonds in the long term, create volalility and risk in the short term. The atlocation lo growth assets is monitored Lo ensure it remains
appropriate giver: the scheme's long term objectives.

Changes in bond yields
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed an the scheme’s liabilities far accounting purposes, although this will be partiaity
offset by an increase in the value of the scheme's boad holdings.

Inflation risk

The majority of the scheme’s benefil abligations are linked to inflatian, and tugher inflation will lead 10 higher liabilities [although, in mosl cases,
caps on lhe level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation]. The majority of the assels are either unaffected by or
onty loosely correlated wath inflation, meaning that an increase m inflation will akso increase the deficit.

Life expectancy
The majority of the scheme’s obligalions are to prowde benefits for the life of the member, so ncreases in life expeclancy will result in an increase
in Lhe abilities.
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10 Property

Pruperty reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2017

trivesient
trvestment
and
Offices 8 Canada Owmner-
Retall  recadentiol ity Dovelopinenis.  properties Trading ocrxged
Leet3 Levad 3 Let3 Leel 3 Levdld  properiies el Total
Cn tm m £m Em m £m
Carrying value at 1 April 2016 5,817 3,436 256 334 24463 5 b 10,653
Additions “
- property purchases a0 - 8 - 88 - - a8
- devetopment expenditure ” £ 10 5 81 54 - 137
- capitalised interest and stafl cosls - - 2 3 5 5 - 10
- capilal expendiure on asset .
managemes iniliatives a2 k 1 - 92 - - 92
176 13 Fal 58 286 51 - z7
Deprecizion - - - - - - 1]] nl
Disposals (8241 391 - m 1670} (28} - 1598)
Redlassifications - n 7 xn i) 2n - -
Revaluations induded in intome statement 1o5) )} na 3% 44} - - 1144)
Movement in tenant incentives and contracled
rant uplifi batances 181} 8} - - (&9 1 - 48]
LCarrying value at 31 March 2017 5.021 3416 284 150 9073 334 94 2,50
Head lease Liahilities (note 151 168
Valuation surplus on rading properties 83
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2017 $.520
Non-controlling interests {310}
Group property portfolio vatuation at 31 March 2017 attrihutable to shareholders 2,210
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Financizl statemenis

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 Pruperty continned

Pruoperty reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2016

rwesiment
trvestraent
and
Offices & Canada deweinpment
R residential Viter Coelpments  propertios  Wradnp  Owmer.
Level 3 Level 3 Laval 3 Lavad 3 tewdd  popartie= oooged Tatat
Im Ern tm tm £m & om Em
Carrying value at 1 Aprit 2015 5.584 2902 26% 385 2120 274 1] 9,454
Addrions:
- property purchases & 234 ~ - 38 - - 238
- development expendilure & [ ] 43 54 3% - 1n3
~ capitalised inlerest and stal costs - - 1 3 & S - ?
~ capital expenditure on asset
management itiatives 9N 24 1 - 118 - - 18
kil 264 3 46 £2 [1] - £74
Depreaation - - ~ - - - 1 m
Disposals {ar2l 11301 - ] 1509 {31 - 1520)
Reclassifications 135 2 - 177 15) 12 2 -
Resaluabions inclydad in incame statermnent 161 369 4 82 515 - - 814
Revaluation included in OCI - - - - - - 19 "
Muowement in tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplilt balances 10 9 - ~ i) - - 19
Carrying value at 31 March 2014 5.817 3.436 256 334 9,643 375 95 10,043 .
Head lease liabilities Inote 15) 1I3n
Valuation surplus on trading properties a5
Group property purtfolio valuation at 31 March 2016 : 10911
Non-controlling interests ' 1324)
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 9,787

Property valuation
The different vatuation method levals are defined below:

Level 1: Quoted prices [unadjusled| in aclive markets for identicat assets or Liabilities,

Level 2: Inputs olher than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are chservable for the assel or liability. either directlylie. as pncesl
aor indirectly li_e_ derivad from prices].

Level3: Inputs for the assel or liability that are not based on observable market dala [unobservable inputs).

These levels are specidied 1 accordance wath IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’, Property valuations ara inherenty sybjective as they are made
on the basis of assumptions made by the valuer which may not prove 1o be accurate. For these reasons, and consistent with EPRA's guidance, we
*hiave dassified the valuations of our property portfolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13. The inputs to the valuations are defined as ‘unobsenvable’
by IFRS 13 and these are anatysed in a lable on the follawing page. There werenio transfers between levels in the period.

The Group's tolal property portiolio was valued by external valuers on the basis of fair vatue, inaccordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional
Standards 2014, ninth edition, published by The Royal institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The informaton provided to the valuers, and the assumptions and valuations models used by the valuers are reviewed by the property portiotio
team. the Head of Offices, lhe Head of Retail and the Chiel Financial Officer. The valuers meel with the external auditors and also present directly
to the Audit Commiliee at the interim and year end review of resulls. Further details of the Audit Commitlee’s responsibilites in relation fo
valuations can be found in the Repart of the Audil Commillee {on pages 67 1o 701

Imestmeni prnperl«es e:dudmg properiies held for development, are valued by adopling the investment method” of valuation. This approach
inwvolves applying capitatisation yields te current and future rental streams net of income voids arising from vacandies or rent-free periods and
associaled running casts. These capitatisalion yields and future rental values are based on comparabte property and leasing transactions in the
markel ysing the valuers’ professional judgemen and market obgervation. Other faclors taken into account in the valuations include the lenure
ol the properly, lenancy delails and ground and siructural conditions.
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10 Property continued

in \he case of ongoing developments, the approach applied is the residual method” of valuation, which is the investment meihod of valuation as
described above. with a deduciion for all costs nacassary to complete the development. including a neticnat fnance cosi_ togethes with a Jurther
allowance for remaining nsk. Propartizs held for developrnent are generally valued by adopiing the higher ol lhe residual mathed of valuation,
allowing for all assodiated risks, or lhe wnvestment method of valuation for the exisling asset.

Copies of the valuation certificales of Knight Frank LLP, CBRE and Jones Lang LaSalle can be found at wonw britishtand comfreparts

A breakdown of valualions split between the Group and its share ol joint ventures and funds is shown below:

207 2016
Joint Joini
venhires enwes
Group andfunds Total Grourp 2o Fymdis Taid
€m £m £m [ £m Im
Knight Frank LLP 7. 2,883 2914 7529 357 g3
CBRE 2,489 1,380 3,859 2582 1.361 3943
Jones Lang LaSalle - 538 538 - - -
Tolal property portfolio vatuation 9.520 4,81 w3INn 10111 2937 15,048
Non-canirolling interesis 310} 71) {381) 324} 76} fanoy
Total property partfolio valuation
attributable to shareholders 9,210 4,730 13,950 9.787 £ 351 14,648
Information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs [Level 31 for the year ended 31 March 2617
Fair " ERV per sq it Equivalen Yietd Costs to complete per sgft
3 Harch 017 Valuatian Min Max Average Min Max Average M | Max Average
tnvestmant £m tothnigue £ £ [ 3 kY % k-3 [ £ €
Irvestment
Relail 4,987 methedology 2 77 22 4 )] S - 48 6
Irvestment
Officest 3,695 methodology 7 u7 54 4 7 5 - 150 20
Irnvesimend
Canara Water N methodology 15 25 22 2 S 3 - 18 L)
Residyal
Developments® 150 methaodology 18 2 54 2 [ & - 616 508
Total 2103
Trading properiies
atfairvalue . 7
Group property
portfolio valuation 2520
! inctudes awner-occupied.

7 Includes Residentiat with an average capilal vatuz per sq 1.of £981 including devetopments at end value and mixed use.
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Fimnavial stxicmenrs

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 Property continued

Information about fair value measurements using unohservable inputs {Level 31 for the year ended 31 March 2004

Fatrvatun at - ERV per s R Fpinmlten Yk Cos2s to oomplate per w4 &1
31 March 2816 Valuation M Max  Average 0 Moz n Mzx  Average
Invesirment €m rechniqua i £ £ * ® L £ £
’ Irvestiman -
Retail 5608 methodolagy 2 75 2 3 n 5 - 45 8
lewestment
Offices 2 3.692 methodology & 135 53 1 8 4 - 150 15
Investment
Canada Waler 230 mathodology 13 3 22 1 5 3 - 5 &
Residual
Damlopraents! 343 methodology . 65 107 I 4 5 4 f- 664 447
Totat 94673
Trading properties
al fax vature 418
Sroup property
portfotio valuation 10,111 N
' Indudes comer-occupied.

* Indudes Residential with an averaye capital value per sq R of £1.028 induding developments al e value and mixad use.

Information about the impach of changes in unohservable inputs {Leve! 3) on the fair value of the Group’s praperty portfolio for the year ended
31 March 2017

Fair walire a2 Impact on valyxtions. Impact onvaluations tmpact on valuations

31 March 2017 +5% ERY SRERY  -ZShpsNEY  +2Sups NEY Shovsts  +5% msts

£m tm €m €m £m £m &m

Retail &587 27 1246) 359 31 nfa nfa
Offices! . £112 284 |1278) I3 352 na nfa
Canada Water m n 1t 20 7 nfa nfa
Develop: 159 9 na = 3l 5 v}
Group property partfolio valuation 9,520 580 15441 772 16891 5 191

! Includes trading properties at fair value.

Information about the impact of changes in unobservable inputs (Level 3] on the fair value of the Group’s property portfolio for the year ended
31 March 2018

.

Fair value 8l Impact on valuabans hnpact on wlwasons Impad on valuabons

3 March 2016 +5% ERV SRERY  -ZbpsNEY  +25hps NEY Sheosts +SRoosts

Emn n Em €m £ £m tm

Retail 5.608 136 (124 206 ne7 nfa nfa
Offices? 3o Jis 13041 £70 14201 nfa nfa
Canada Water 250 n mi n ) nfa nfa
Developments 343 2 124 9 18) 12 Nz
Group property portfolio valuation 10,111 489 1463 708 16341 12 [12)

* Includes rading properties at fair value.
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16 Property continued

All other faciors being equal:

- 2 higher equivalent yizld or discount rate would tead 1o a decrease in the valualion of an asset:

- anincrease in the current or estimated future rental siream would have the effect of mcreasing the capilal value; and
- anincarease in the costs o complete would lead to 2 decrease in the valuation of an asset.

However, there are interrelationships between the unabsetvable inpuls which are pardally delermined by markel conditions, which would impact
on these changes. There were no ransfers belween valuation levels in the period.

Additional property disclosures - including covenant information

AL 31 March 2017, the Group properly portfolio valuation of £9.520m [2015/14: £10,111m| comprises freeholds of £5,578m [2D15/34: £6,184m); w‘!ua{
freehalds of £80%m {2015/16: FR04m); and long leasehotds of £3.135m (2015414 £3.021m]. The hisiorizal et of properti=s was £6.024m 2015/15: £4.544m].
The property valvation does nol incdlude any investment properties held under operating leases [2015/14: Cnil).

Cumulatrve interest capitalised against investrent. developmant and trading properties amounts to £95m [2015/14: £88mi.

Properties valued at £2_882m [2015/14: £2 559m] were subject to a security interest and other propariies of non-recmirse oxmpanies amounted
to £1,158m {H15/16: £1.264rm), totallng £3.048r (2015/14: £3.803m].

Included within the property valuaiion is £62m [2015/16: £110ml in respect of acorued contractad rental uplift income. The ballance arises dwough the
IFRS treatment of leases conlaineng such ammangements, which nequires the recegnition of rental mcome on a straighi-line basis over the lease term,
with the diference between this and the cash receipt changing the carmying value of the property agans! wisch revaluations are measured.

11 Joint veaturcs and funds

Summary movernent for the year of the investments in joint ventures and funds

vum Funds Total Equity Loans Totd

Em fm £m £m Em [/

At 1 April 2016 3107 244 3,353 2833 520 3353

Addilions. 27 3 &2 . 13 A9 &2

Disposals {30} - 13 - {30l 130]

Share of profil on ordinary activities after taxation &4 8 52 52 - 52
Disiributions and dmidends: ' .

- Capital . 731 - (73 173l - {3l

- Revenue 1451 fra) 59 159 - 1591

Hedging and exchange movements 1 - 1 1 - 1.

Redassification of venture as held for sale assetisee page 124) (540 - 1540} fass) f185) 1540)

At 31 March 2057 2535 241 2,788 2412 354 2,766

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant information

A1 March 2017 ihe investments in joint ventures included within the total investments in joint ventures and funds and joint vanture held for sale was
£3.299m [201516: £3.348m}, being the £2.746m total investment shown above, plus the £540m joint venture held for sale, tess the net invesioent of
€7 [2015/16: £5mn) m PREF, a property fund in Continental Europe.
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Finanvinl statemenys

NOTES T0 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds

The surnmarisad incoTne sistements and balance sheets below and on the fulhmmg page show 100% of the results, assets and babnlibes of pomny
veniures and lunds. Where necessary these have been restatas io the Group's acoouniing polices.

Joint ventures’ and funds’ summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Broadgate MSC Propenty B Sainstany
[ia}) vermadiate SUpRTSITeS ¢ TesSon hant
(15 Holdsngs Uil i Voo’
Norges Bank
Euro Bluebell LLP Irwesimert
Partners I6IC} Managamend ) Sainshury ple Testo PLE
Ciy Bffices  Shopping Centres
Property seclor - Broadgate Meadowhall Supersiores Superstores
Group share S0% 50% | 50% 50%
oo i stab . fm Em (1] Ern
Revenue® 25 9 & 19
Costs 524 1231 - -
193 75 47 1w
Administrative exp - - - ¥4
Nel interest payable (82) 135) [F41] 19
Undertying Profit m & 28 8
Net valuation movement (185) 1] 128 =
Capital inancing cosls - - na -
Profit on disposal of invesiment properties and investments - - 3 3
ILass) profit on ordinary activities before taxation 174) 40 I2n {24l
Taxation - - ~ 2z
[Loss) profit on ordinary activities after taxation 74 40 zn 1221
Other comprehensive income 1 - - 1
Tolal comprehensive income 73 40 271 {211
British Land share of total comprehensive (exp ] il a7 20 {15} (L[]
British Land share of distributions payahie 32 17 55 &
Summarised balance sheets . Em £m Em Em
Investment and trading properties 4,478 1,842 76% 325
Cuirent assels 2 S - -
Cash and depgosits 24 37 17 2
Gross assels ATIO 1,884 786 7
Current liabilities ia8l ]} {221 2l
Bank and securitised debt ) 1568) (3671 085]
Loans from joint venture partners BsA ' n7 - -
Other non-current liabilities 56 231 - 1]
Gross liabilities . 2,295 11,0491 (389] 1)
Net assets 2ATS 835 377 T 136
British Land share of hel assets tess shareholder loans 1237 a7 hiad 48
1 Included within the Bragdgate REIT net valuation movement is a £20em payment recaived in December 2016 from UBSA.G in ion 1o the develop t and

occupation of 5 Broadgate. and subsequent vacation of 100 Liverpool Sireet, inctuding 8-10 Broadgate.

* Tesco joint ventures inthude BLT Holdings 120101 Limited as at 31 March 2007

3 |JSS joint venlures indlude (he Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Fareham Propesty Parthership.

* The Leadenhall column shows the equity accounted profit and loss tor the period. Due lo the transaction which exchanged in March 2017, the nelinvestiment @ s
venlure was redassiliad as a held for sale asset lsee page 124).

5 Hercutes Unit Trust joint ventures and sub-funds includes 50% of the results of Deepdale Co-Ownership Tnus, Gibraliar Limiled Partnership and Valentine
Co-Ownership Trust ahd 41.25% of Birstali Co-Ownership Trust, The balance sheed shows 50% of the assets of these joint ventures and sub-{unds.

* included in the column headad "Other joint ventures and funds” are contributions from the foliowing: BL Goodman Limiled Parinership, The Aldgale Place Limited
Partnership, Bluebuttan Praperty Management UK Limited, City of London Office Unit Trust and Pitlar Retail Europark Fund [PREF). The Group's ownership -
share of PREF is 65%, howaver as the Group ic not able Lo exercice control over significant decisions of the lund, the Group equity accounts for ils inlerest in PREF.

7 Revenue ncludes gross rental income at 100% share of £437m (2015/16: E45im]
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uss Leadenhall Heomdes Linal T Eher Yot
The ScuthGatle Limited Jont Holifing Co JORnL vEniures. O venhures; Tor Group share
Partnershap Ventures® Derseyd Led* and at-funds® 2 Bt 2017 w17
Universilies ’
Superannuation
Aviva Scherne Group Oxford
Irvestors PLC Properties
Shopping Shopping City Offices Reatal
Cenlres Centres Leadenhall Parks
S0% 50% 50% Vanious
£ £ B tm £ £m £m
17 14 &3 kL 1 522 260
5l {st fiol 14} m 100} . 150)
12 g 33 n - £22 210
)] - - - m (14 2
i - - (&) - {152) (78)
10 9 ’ 3 27 n 288 32
&) 1% 197 116} - 1183] 93}
~ - - - - 2 (3]
- - - - 34 34 18
4 2 140 1t 3 105 5
- - = - - 2 1
4 2 140 1" 33 107 52
— - — - - 2 1
& 2 140 N 3 109 53
2 1 70 5 7 53
] - 5 14 & 132
fm £m fm Em £m £m £m
264 247 - 4603 1 8,529 4,265
1 1 3 52 64 2
8 7 — i 28 iy 200
273 255 - 814 a1 8992 4497
14} &l - (o) nel 1192) 374}
- - - - nan - 3,153 nsm
- 122} . - - hal I708) 354
i28) - - 18] - nisl (58}
(38 (28} - (153 an {4,348) {2,085]
24 227 - £83 50 4,824 2.412
121 114 - 2N 25 2,812

The borrowings of joinl veniures and lunds and their subsidianies are non-recourse 1o the Group, All joint ventures are incorporated in the United l(ingdam, wilh

the exception of Broadgate REIT Limited, the Eden Walk Shopping Centee Unit Trust and Leadenhall Holding Co Flersey] Lirnited which are incorporated in Jersey.
Ofihe funds, the Hercutes Unit Trust {HUH joint ventures and sub-funds are incorporated in Jersey and PREF in Luxembourg.

These kinandal statemnents include the resulis and financial position of the Group's interestin the Farehml'n Property Partnership, the Aldgate Place Limited Partnarship,
. the BL Goodman Limited Partnership, the Auchinlea Partnership and the Gibraltar Limited Parinership. Accardingty, advantage has been taken of the exemplions
provided by Regulation 7 of the Partnership lAccounts) Regulations 2008, not ta attach the parlnership accounts to these finandal statements.
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Finaneial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

The summarisad incoma statements ang batance sheets below and on the following page show 100% of the resulls, assats zod lishilities efjoint
ventures and funds. Where necessary these have been resteted to the Group's accounting policies.

Joint ventures” and funds’ suramary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Broadgate MSC Property BL Sainstney
REV interrnediate Supersones Tesco Joint
Ld Holidings Lid \si :
Norges Bank
Euro Blusbell LLP Investrment
Partners IGIC] Manag JSainsbury plc Tesco PLC
City Offices  Shapping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhalt Supersiores Superstores
Group shara 50% 5% 50% 50%
Summarised income stiemenls fm (1.2 €n m
Revenue® 244 102 56 19
Cosls - l&8] 123 n P =
126 ™ 55 19
Administrative expenses - - - -
Nel interest payable (86} 361 128 (1]
Undertying Profit 10 &3 3 10
Net valuation movement 334 50 134} 9
Profit an disposal of investment properties and investments - - 2 -
Profil on ardinary activities before taxation 444 2 <] 1
Taxalan - - - 1
Profit on erdinary activities after taxation AL 73 k)] 2
Other comprehensive income [expenditure) 5 - - 3
Tota! comprehensive income 449 b [k} H
British Land share of total comprehensive ingome 225 &6 2 3
Eritish Land share of distributions payable ’ 4 17 " 4
ised sheels £m £m n - €m
Investment and trading properties 4,622 1786 946 54
Current assels ) 4 5 2 -
Cash and deposits 293 32 8D &
Gross assels ANY 1.823 1,028 340
Current tiabilities 1721 [} ]] 130 31
Bank and securitised debt 118421 {&94) a6 nsal
Loans from joint venture pariners 331 280 - -
Other non-current liabilities (651 24) - {151
Gross liabilities 12,315) 11,010} 4921 f202)
Nel assets 2,604 813 534 158
British Land share of net assets less shareholder loans 1.302 &07 258 ”
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Leaganhall Haroufzs Und Trust

Tha ScuthGate Limited Jﬁ Holding Co ol ventures pumtwm Talat mm
Parinorship Vaniures” syl g v subr-funds® - funadst ms xné
Universities
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxford
Investors PLC Properties
Shopping , Shopping City Offices Retail
Centres Centres Leadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Various
&m £m Em Im £ £ £m
i) 12 35 B [ = 285
15l 131 10 172 ni (4] 1441
13 ? 25 k11 S £32 2
l - 1] 1] 121 f10) )
(L] - - 8l - {164) 821
" k4 24 17 3 258 138
4 12 124 4 7 490 A4S
- - - - 30 32 18
5 2 148 21 40 780 398
- - - - &1} 12) (1))
- 15 2t 148 21 37 77 397
- - - 2 - & 3
15 21 48 1% 37 T4 400
8 1 74 108 5 £00
& [ 3 59 31 179
£m tm &m £m Em &m £m
257 252 942 412 108 9,889 £.984
2 1 - 4 14 n 18
5 7 5 ? 3 470 239
274 240 &7 425 155 10,39% 5,201
i4) 1 14) 7 153 1215) mn
- - - 1391 - 3.3 11,640)
- (20 1365) - 1631 1,040} {520}
(28} - - 4 8l 1154} ™
132) (248} 1371) (150} 132) 14.730) (2,348}
242 234 576 475 23 5,861 2,833
il 17 . 288 23% 12 2,833
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Fimrreiul srarcanenrs

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

Joint venture held for sale .

Gn 1 March 2017 the Group exchangad conditional contracts on an agreement o sall its sniarest in Leadenhall Holding Co [Jersey) Limited,

a jaint veature with Gxiord Propariias. The (ransaction is expectad to complete in the first hall of the next finandel yeat. and ibverefore the nel
invesiment i the joint vendure has been recognised as a held-for-sale asset lroro the date o] exchange. The nelisvestment 25 at 3¥ March 2007
is summarised betow.

Joint venture held for sale - surmmarised balance sheet for the year ended 31 March

et
N m7 e
£m &
inveslmenl property 1075 -
Current assels ' . 17 -
Current {iabilities ' na -
L oans from joint ventyre pariners [=rall -
Netassets 708 -
British Land share of net assets tess sharcholder loans 5 -
Operating cash flows of joint ventures and funds [Group share]
m7 2016
&m m
Rental income received from tenands 207 208
Fees and ather income received - 1
Operating expenses paid to suppliars and employees (20) [}
Cash genaerated from operations 187 171
interest paid ({:74] 186}
Interest received 1 1
UK corporation iax paid 12} 13}
Fareign tax pad - 11
Cash inflow fram apecating activities T W2 102
Cash inflow from operating activitias deptoyed as:
Surplus cash retained within joint ventures and funds &3 44
Revenue distributions per consolidated statemem of cash flows 59 58
Revenue distributions split between contrelling and nan-controlling interests
Artnibutable to non-controlling interests & 4
Auributable to shareholders of the Company 55 54
12 Other investipents
2017 2046
Ivesiment Loans, vesirnent Loans,
heldfor receivablec held for  recekables
trading  andother Totat tramng  and other Total
£m £m m m m Em
AL Apnil : 01 & 142 99 280 379
Additons - 5 <1 - 35 35
Disposals - 12) i2) - 272 [2721
Revaluation .{8) - (8] 2 - ?
Depreciation - (k] 13l - 2 12

At 31 March 73 L) 154 101 A1 142

The investment held for trading comprises interests as a irust beneficiary. The trust's assets comprise freehold reversions in a pool of commercial
properties. comprising Sainshury's superstores. The interest was categorised as Level Jin the {air value hierarchy. is subject o the same inputs as
those disclosed in note 10, and its (o vatue was delermined by the Qirectors, supported by an externai valuation.
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13 Debtors

217 2016

£m Em
Trade and other deblors 2 24
Deposils received relating to hetd for sale assel® _ 14e
Prepayments and accrued income 5 9

m n

' Ralates todeposit receivad on hedd for sale jomni venture ransaction sze note 111 recognised as a finandal assel. the realisation of which is condrionat and nod
guaranieed a5 at the: batance shest date.

Trade and other debtors are shown after deduciing a provision for bad and doubtful debis of £14m [2015/16: €18ml. The charge Lo the ncome
statament in relation 10 bad and doubiful debls was £1m {2015/16: Eim).

The Direclors consider thal the camying amount of trade and other debtors is approximate to their fzir value. There is no concentration of credit
risk wilh respacl 1o irade debiors as the Group has a large number of cuslomers who are paying their rent in advance.

As at 31 March, lrade and other deblors outside thewr paymant terms yat nol provided for are as follows:

Quesite crexd? Terms bt no? Fnpzred

Within o1 1-2 Morethan

Total cred? teyms L months 2:manths

. &m &m £m €m

207 22 7 9 & 2

2016 24 12 n 1 -
14 Creditors :

. m7 2018

£m Em

Trade creditors . 127 37

Deposils received relating Lo held far sale assel* 144 -

Other taxalion and sociat securiy 2 34

Accruals 83 72

Deleived income 72 3

458 218

1 Relales io depasil received on held lor sate joint venture transaclian isee note 11 recognised as a financial Gability, the realisation of which is conditional and not
guarantead as at the balance sheel dale,

Trade creditors are interesi-Iree and have selilement dates within one year. The Direciors consider thal the carrying amount of frade and other
creditors is approximate to thewr fair value.

15 Other non-currenat liabilities

a7 2018

£m om

Other creditors . : 1 70
Head leases' &4 &b
Nel pension labilities 13 []
78 122

¥ Includes Enilin relation to head teace liabilities on trading properties held at cost [2015/14: €9mil.

o]
20
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Finzneiul scaienrenrs

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tax
Tha movement on deferved (ax is as shown below:

Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2017

. 1Apa Credited to Credived {dehited) Transierred 33 Mardh
’ ) . i 1 mcame: toequly oorporation tax 7
£m m £m £m €m
Interest rate and currency denvative revalualions s m - - F
Other liming differences & 1 - - 7
n - - - n
Deferred tax liabilities year ended 31 March 2017
] €m o, €m €m £m
Property and i 1 revalyati 1/ - - - ¥}
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluations - - - - -
Other timing differences n - - 1 -
- 8l - - 1 : 71
Netdeforred tax assets 3 - - 1 &
Deferred tax ascels year ended 31 March 2016
YApnl Credited v Credied fdatsted) Trarshared to 31 Mdarch
25 ntome o equety josnk ventures 2018
Em m tm fm fm
Interest rate and currency derivative revalualions - - , 5 - 5
Other timing differences - & - - []
- & 5 - L))
Deferred tax liabilities year ended 31 March 2018
L1 fm fm [13] fm
Properiy and invesiment revalualions 154 - 121 - (7
Interest rate and currency denvative revatuabions 14} =} 21 - -
Other iming ditferences 131 - - 2 n
na 8B (23] 2 - 18]
Netdeferred tax [liabilityl assets 112 3t al 2 . 3

The followsng corporation tax rates have been substantively enacted: 19% effective from 1 April 2047 reduding to 17% effective [rom 1 April 2020.
The deferTed tax assets andg liabilities have been calculated at the tax rate effective in the period that the taxis expecled to crystaluse.

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset calculated ar 17% (2015/16: 18%| of £5m (2015/16: £6m] in respect of capital losses from previous
years available for oifset against fulure capital profit. Further unrecognised deferred tax assels in respact of capitat losses of £129m (20159/14: €60m)|
exist al 31 March 2017

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on detivative revalualions to the extent that future matching 1axable profits are expected to arise.

AL 31 March 2017, the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset catculated at 17% [2015/46: 18%i of £50m (2015/14; £51m]in respec(
of UK revenue tax losses from previous years.

Under the REIT regime, development properiies which are sold withun three years of completion do nol benefit from tax exemplion. At 31 March 2017,
the vatue ol such properties is £176m [2015/16: £947ml and if these properties were 1o be sald and no tax ption was available, the lax arising
would be £13m (2015/16: £56ml.
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17 Net debt

a7 203
Foatnote en Em
Secured on the assets of the Group
9.125% First Morlgage Debenture Siock 2020 1.3 3L U
5.264% Girst Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 I N
5.0055% First Mortgage Amartising Debentures 2035 99 100
5.357% First Mortgage Dzbenture Bonds 2028 348 349
6.75% First Morigage Debenture Stock 2020 - 62
Bark loans 12,13 475 733
Loan notes 2 2
12335 1.451
Unsecured
5.50% Senior Notes 2027 102 101
3.895% Senior US Dollar Noles 2018 2 32 ¥
4.635% Senior US Dullar Notes 2021 2 18 165
& 766% Senior US Dollar Noles 2023 2 m 105
5.003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2026 2 73 &9
3.81% Senior Notes 2024 18 n3
3979 Senior Notes 7026 nz 114
1.5% Converlibie Bond 2017 404 445
0% Convertible Bond 2020 n 3L
Bank loans and overdrafls &77 &34
1,944 210
6ross debt 3 3281 - 3,261
Interest rate and currency denvalive liabilities 144 137
interest rate and currency dermvative assets {219 11671
Cash and shert term depasils 4.5 14l 4l
Total netdebt 2,094 3.617
Net debt attributable to non-controlling interests 1153 04l
Netdebt attributable to shareholders of the Company Ayl 3.513
* These are non-recourse bormowings wath no recourse for repay of assels in the Group:
m? 2014
£m fm
1.1 BLD Property Holdings Ltd 3% 38
1.2 Hercules Unit Trust 475 443
1.3 TBL Properties Limited and subsidiaries - 290
509 57
¥ Principal and interest on these borrowings were fully hedged into Sterling ak a floating rate at the tmaof issue.
¥ The prindpal amount of gross dabit at 31 March 2017 was £3.069m {2015/16: €3,352m). included in this is the principal anvount of secured borrowings and other
bonmgingsnl non-recourse campanies af £1,2380n of which the borrowings of the partty-owmed subsidiary, Hercules Unit Trusy, nol benelicially owned by the
* m:ls;mmsh and shoft term deposits is the cash and shont lerm deposits of Heroutes Unit Trust, of which E9miis the proportion not beneficially ovmned
2 g:eamms nol subject Lo a securily interest amount to £99m [2015/16: £93m).
S
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17 Net debr continued

Maturity analysis of netdebt

017 s

£m n

Repayable: within one year and en demand &54 74
Berween: one and two years n 504
two and five years 1,283 1,491

frve and ten years ' ™ 807

ien and fifteen years 332 560

fifteen and twenty years 388 385

twenty and lwenty five years. - -

2817 3.687

Grossdebt . . 328 3.761
Irterest rate and currency derivatives rmj (301
Cash ardd short lerm daposils 14 11141
Netdebt 2,094 3617

1.5% Convertible bond 2012 [matuyrity 2017}
On 10 September 2012, British Land Lersey] Limiled lthe 2012 lssuer). a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. issued £400 million 1.5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 {the 2012 bonds) at par. The 2012 issuer is fully guaranleed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their tarms. the 2012 bands are conver tible into preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Company in
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, at the Company's election, any combinalion of ardinary shares and cash. Bondholdess may exercse
their conversion right al any time up la lbut excluding) the 20th deating day bafore 10 Seplember 2017 {the malurity date}.

The nittal exchange pnce was §93.07 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain evenls.

From 25 September 2015, the Company has the option to redeem the 2012 bonds al par if the Campany's share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a specified period, or al any time once 85% by nominal value of the 2012 bonds have been converled, redeerned, or. purchased
_ang cancelied. The 2012 bonds wilk be redeemed at par on 10 September 2017 {the matuniy datel it they have not already been converied. redeemed

of purchased and cancetled. Mo redemption of the bonds accurred in the year.

0% Convertible bond 2015 imaturity 2020}

On ? June 2015, Brinsh Land {White] 2015 Limited [the 2015 Issuer), 3 wholly-owned subsihary of the Group. issued £358 million zero coupon

guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 (the 2015 bonds) a1 par. The 2015 Issuer is fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds.
L

Subject to their terms, the 2015 bonds are convertibie into preference shares ol Lhe 2015 Issuer which are automalically transfecred to the Company
in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, al the Company's election, any'combination of ordinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2015 up

to and including 29 June 2018, a bondholder may exercise its conversion right il the share price has traded at a level exceeding 138% of the exchange
price for a specified period. Thereafter, and up to but excluding the 7th dealing day before 9 june 2020 {the maturity datel. a bondholder may cosert

al any ime.

The initial exchange price was 1103.32 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain events [such as the Company
paying dividends in any quarter above 3.418 peace per ordinary share]. As at 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 1063.77 pence per ordinary share.

From 30 June 2018, the Company has the eption to redeem the 2015 bonds al par if the Company's share price has traded above 130% of the
exchange price for a specified period, or at ary time once 85% by nominal value of the 2015 bonds have been converied, redesmed, or purchased
and cancelled. The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on ¢ June 2020 lthe maturity date] if they have not already been convarted, redeemed or
purchased and cancetted.
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17 Net debt continued

Fair value and hook value of net deht

7 2014
Farwaine Bookwiue Difference Fsrwiue SBookwive  Difference
‘ tm tm tm om tm m
Debentures and unsecured bonds 1682 1,570 v2 1.637 1613 24
Corwertible bonds o™ 737 - e m -
Bank gebt and other Hoating rate debt 943 k2] 9 1,384 1,369 5
Gross debt 3,382 3. m 3.800 3.6 I
Interest rate and currency derivative abiliies 144 144 - 137 137 -
Interest rate and currency dernvatve assels 2 izvn - &7 s -
Cash and short term deposits 114} nal - il {104l -
Netdebt ) ’ 319 3,094 1m 3.656 3.687 39
Net debt attributable to non-controlling interests (165) 1103) k] 6oe) hos) 12
Netdebt attributable to shareholders ot the Company 3,090 2.9 »” 3.550 3513 37

The fair values of debentures, unsecured bonds and the comvertible bonds have been established by ohlaining quoted markel prices from brokers.
The bank debt and other Hoating rate debl has been valued assuming it could be renegobated at contracted margins. The dervatives have baen
valued by calculaling the present value of expected huture Gash Hlows, using appropriate markel discount rales, by an independent treasury advisorn,

Short term deblors and creditors and other invesiments have been exduded from the disclosures on the basis that the Rir value is equivalent
1o ihe book value. The fair value hierarchy level fas defined in note 19 of debt held 3t amostised cost whose fair value is disclosed is level 2.

Group loan to value ILTVI

2017 2014

£m fm

Gmup loan to value LTV ~ 2245% 29. 2%
Principal amount of gross dabi - 3049 3552
Less debt atiributable ko non-controlling interests 2} host
L_ess cash and short term daposits [batance shaet ma &}
Plus cash attributable 1o non-controlling interests 9 &
Total net debt for LTV catoulation 2,852 3,337
Group praperty portfolio valuation lnote 10] 9520 10,11
tnvasiments in joint ventures and funds [note 11) ) 2,768 3353
Jointventure held for sate Inote 111 540 -
Other investments [note 12} ) 154 142
Less properly and investments aliributable to non-controlling interesis [354) 1384)
Tolal assets for LTV calculation 12,414 13.222
Proportionally cansolidated loan to value (LTV)

mm? 2016

m &m

Proportionally consolidated loan to value (LTV) 29.9% 321%
Principal amount of gress debt 5849 5.7
Less debl attributable to ngn-controlting inlerests f128 hzsl
Less cash and short lerm depasils 13231 1353
Plys cash altributable te non-controlling inlerests y ?
Tolal ret debt for proportional LTV caloslation 4,207 4,745
Group propecty portfolio valyation [nota 10} ) 9,520 wm
Share of property of joinl ventures and funds Inote 101 . 4,80 4937
Other investments [nata 12} . 154 142
Less other invesiments atiribulable 1o joint ventures and funds 3 &}
Less property alribulable 1o non-controliing interests {381) (L]l
Total assets for proportional LTV calculation 14,01 14,786
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17 Net debt continued

British Land Unsecured Financial Covenants
The two finenca! covenants applicablz o the Growp unseaured debt indueding convertible bands are shown belgwr-

2017 s

£m £m
Net Borrowings nol to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves 29% 3%
Principat amount of gross deld ' 3,089 3352
L_ess the relevant proportion of bormowings of the pan‘ty-owned subsidiary/non-controlling inierests n2) nes)
Less cash and depaosits balance sheed] ma 1114)
Piys 1he relevant proportion of cash and deposits of the gartly-owned subsidiary/non-controlling mleresis 9 8
Net Borrowings , 2,852 3.337
Share capitat and reserves [balance sheet} 2476 7.819
EPRA deferred tax adjusament [EPRA Table Al 3 5
Trading property surpluses (EPRA Tatle Al 83 73
Exceplional refinancing chargas lsee below] ’ 74 287
Fair value adjustments of hnancal inslruments [EPRA Table Al 155 198
Less reserves altributable to non-controlling inlerests [balance sheeil - _l1258) 217
Adjusted Capital and Reserves .. 9,736 9925

In calculating Adjusted Capital and Reserves for the purpose of the unsecured debt linancial covenants. there is an adjustment of £274m [2015/16:
E287em| to reflect the cumutative net amaortised exceplional items relating to the refinancings in the years ended 33 Manch 2005, 20046 and 2007.

007 p]F Y
€m Em
Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets 26% 2%
Principal amount of gross debt 3069 3552
Less cash and deposits not subject to a security interest {being €99m less the retevant proportion of cash and deposils of the 98 1:2]]
partly owned subsidiary/non-controtling interests of £3mi
Less pnncipal ameunt of secured and nen-recourse borrowangs 1,238) 11,563
MNetUnsecured Borrowings 1,735 1901
Group properly portfobio valuation [note 10} 92.520 oan
! injoint es and funds [note 1| : 2,745 3353
Joint venture held lor sale [note 11] 540 -
Other invesiments [ngte 12] 154 142
Less investments in joint ventures and joint venture held Jor sale Inote 11) 13.2991 £3.348}
Less encumnbered assets lnote 10} 13,6400 (3.803]
U umbered Assets §,641 6,455
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17 Net debt continued

Recontiliation of movement in Group nel debt for the year ended 31 March 2017

Arangesnent
Farsign arsts
o o ) ) 2014 Cashflows  Trapsters’ eoxbonge Farwalue amostesation 077
Short term borrowings % 74} £54 - - - L84
Long term borrowings 3687 1423) 1454} 49 (kT3] . & n7
Derivativas! {30] 1 - 1£8) & - m
Total liabilities from finanging aclivilies 37N 16950 - 1 132) & 3,208
Cash and cash equivatents {114) - - - - - 114]
Netdebt X 34617 {494) - 1 £32) & 3,094
Recontiliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2014
. Anvengement
Faragn onsts
015 Cashfmas Trensles®  exchange Fairvaliva  amorusalion as
Short term borrowings 102 hodl T4 2 - - 74
Long term borrawings 3,847 98 {74} 14 9 7 3,897
Derivalives® 113} 2 - na 128) - (30}
Total liabilities from finanang achvities 3936 1180 - 3 135 7 m
Cash and cash equivalents hos| L6} - - - - 14)
Net debl 3.828 {184} - 3 33 7 3.617
' Cash flows on dervatives include C14m of net recepts on derivalive interest,
* Cash flows an dervatives induda E7m of nel receipis on derivative inlerest
3} Transfers comprises debl maturing from long term (o short term borrowings
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17 Net debt continued

Fair value hierarchy
The table below provides an anatysis of inancial instruments canried at fair velue, by the valuation methed. The fair value hierarchy tevels are defined
in note 10, :

m7 e
Lewel t Lewel 2. Level3 Totat Levd 1 Lewl 2 Lemt 3 Todat
£m £m £m m om £ra Era i
Interest rate and currency derivative assets - 217) - 21 - nez - szt
Diher inveslments - available for sale 114} - - 14 - - - -
Other investments - held lor trading - - ez ]] 93 - - oy {101}
Assets né 1217 (73! 1324 - ns2) 101 1258]
Initerest rate and curtency derivative liabilitias - 145 - 154 - 137 - 137
Corwartible bonds. 737 - - 737 79 - - 779
Liabiliti y£1d 144 - a8l e 137 - 216
Total 723 73] 23} 557 77 36 1o 648
Categorizs of financial instruments
xmnz 218
£m im
Financial assets
Fair value through income statement
Other mwestments - held for rading b ] 10
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 215 164
Derivatives not in designated hedge accounting relationships 2 3
Loans and receivables
Debtors 166 24
Cash and short term deposits - 14 n4
Other i trnents - loans and receivabl [3] A
&5 447
Financiat liabilities
Fair valus through intome statement
Convertibie bonds ' : tran 779
Derivatives in designated hedye accounting relationships ’ 1153 nan
Derivatives not in designated accounting relationships in -
Amoriised cost :
Gross debt ) : 12588  l2982)
Head leases payable : 16k} 148l
Creditors . {373} {1331
] 13,862 15.0771
Total 3211 13.6301

Gains and losses on financial insiruments._ as classed above, are disciosed in note 6 Inet financing coests), note 13 {deblorsl. note 4 ivaluation
maovements on propertyl, the consolidated income statement and the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income. The Direclors consider
that the carrying amaunts of other i tmenls and head | payable are apprmximate te their Iair value, and that the carrying amoums

are recoverable. .
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17 Net debt continued

Capital risk management

The capital siructure of the Group consists of net debl and equity attnbutable to Lhe equity holders of The Briish Land Company PLC, comprising
155ued capitel reserves and retained earnings. Risks relabing to capital structure gre addressad within Managing risk in delivering Our stralegy on
pages &4 0 49. The Group's objeclives, policies and processes for managing dzbi are set out in the Finandal policies and principles on pages 43

10 45.

Interest rate risk management
The Group uses intarast rate Swaps to hedge exposure to the variahility in cash ficwws on floating rete debl, such as revolving bank facilities
and floating rate bonds caused by movements in market rates of interest.

ALJ1 Manch 2017, the lair value of these derivalives is a net liability of £143m. Interest rate swaps with a lir value of £1£3m have been designated
as cash flow hedges under IAS 39. '

The ineffectiveness recognised in the income statemnent on cash flow hedges in the year endad 31 Manch 2017 was (nil [2015/16: Enil).

The cash Hows occur and are charged to profit and loss unt# the maturity of the hadgad debl: The tabie below summanses variable rate dabt
hedged at 31 March 2017,

Cash flow hedged debt
7 Faily
€m tm
Ouistanding:  al one year £50 £13
at twoyears 450 663
at five years 250 250
atlenyears 50 sl
Fair value hedged debt
The Group usas interest rate swaps to hedge expasure on hxed rate finandal liahilives caused by movemnenis m market rates of interest.
AL 31 March 2017, the fair value of these derivatives is a net asset of £2146m. Interesl rate swaps with a fair vatue of £215m have been designated
as fair value hedges under lAS 37 {2015/14: asset of Ete4m).
The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hedge the foreign exchange exposur e at an average floating
rate of 146 basis points above LIBOR, These have been designaied as fair value hedges of the US Privale Placemems.
Interest rate profte - inctuding effect of derivatives
017 26
€m Em
Fixed or capped rate 1,604 2372
Variable sale Inet of cashl 1490 1245
' 3,09 3417

All the debt is effectivety Sterling denominated except for £11m [2015/14: £10m] of Euro debt of which £11m is at a tixed rale {2015/16: £10m).

Ai 31 March 2017 the weighted average interest rate of the Sterling fixed rate debl is 3.3% (20115/16- 3.5%]. The weighted average period for which the
rateis fixed 15 8.3 years [2015/16: 9.1 years]. The floating rate debt is sel for periods of the Company’'s choosing at the relevant LIBOR lor simitar] rate.

The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped rates of inlerest was 78% at 31 March 217 on a spoi basis, pro forma for the Leadanhall transaction
[see page 124]. The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped rates of interest as an average aver the next five year forecast period, on a proportionally
consolidated basis. was §0% at 31 March 2017. Based on the Group's interest rate profile. at the batance sheet date. a 576 bs increase in interest
rates would decrease annual profits by E87m {2015/15: £72m decrease). Similarly, a 34 bps reduction would increase grofits by £5m [2015/16: E7m
increasel. The change in interest rates used for Lhis sensitivity analysis is based on the larges! annual change in three month Sterling LIBOR over
the last ten years. The impaci assumes LIBOR does not fall below 0%.
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17 Net debt continued

nterest rate profile - inciuding effect of derivatives continued

Upward movements in medium ant] long tervn interest rates. associaled with higher inlerest rate expeclalions, inorease the valse of the Group's
interest rate swaps 1hat provide protection against such moves. The converse is true for downward movements in the yield curve. The majority of the
Group's interest rate swaps which provide such protection qualify 2s effective cash flow hedges under |AS 37 therelore mavements i the fair vatue
are recognised directly in equity rather than the income statement. A 204 bips shifl represents the latgest annual change in thi: seven year Sterling
swap rate over the last ten years. At 31 March 2017 a 204 bps parallet upward shifl in swap rates would increase the value of thesa interest rate
swaps by £82r [2015/16: £151m). A 204 bps downward shift in swap rates would reduce the value of these interest rate swaps by C831m [2015/15:
L197mi. Because the inferest rate Swaps are maiched by floating rate debl, the overall effect on Group cash Rows 6f such movements s minimqat.

The 1.5% 2012 Convertible Bond and 0% 2015 Convertible Bond are hoth designated as kirvalue through prohit or loss. Principal compenents of the
markel vatue of both bonds indlude British Land's share price and its volalility. and markel interest rates.

The fair value of the 1.5% 2012 Conwertible Bond at 31 Manch 2017 was a €408m lability. At 31 March 2017 2 204 bps parallel upward shufl in interest
rates would reduce the lair value liability by ££4m_and a 204 hps dowravard shift in interesi rates would incregse Lthe fair value lability by £4m.

The fair value of the (% 2015 Converlible Bond at 31 March 2017 was a £331en Lability. At 33 March 2017 a 204 bps paratiel vpward shilt in inlerest
rates woutd reduce the fair value iability by £21m, and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rates would inorease the (air value Uabitity by E22m.
.

Foreign curvency risk management

The Group's policy is {0 have no material unhedged net s or labiliti=s denorninated in foreign currencies. The cumency risk on overseas
invesimants is hedgad via foreign currency denominatad bormowings and derivatives. The Group has adopted net investiment hedging in accordance
with IAS 39 and therefore the portion of the gain or loss on the hadging instrument that is determined o be an effective hedge is recognised dnreclty
in equily. The ineffective portian of the gain or luss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the income staternent.

_The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. Provided contingent tax on overseas
nvesimenls is not expected to occur itwill be ignared for hedging purposes, as is the requirement Lo lair value interest rate swaps. Based on the

31 March 2017 posilion & 33% appredation Nargesl anaual change wer the last ten years) in the Euro relalive te Slerling would result in a £nfl change
[2015/14: Enill in reported prolils.

. Liabidit
a0n? ans 20 s
£m Em £m £m

Euro denommnated n 19 1" 19

Creditrisk management

The Groug’'s approach to credit risk management of counterparties is referred te in the Finaneial policies and principles on pages 43 to 45 and the
risks addressed wilthin Managing risk in delivering Our strategy on pages 46 to 49 The carrying amount of inancial assets recorded in the financiat
statements represents the Group’s maximumn exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral oblained.

Cash and short lerm depasits at 31 March 2017 amounted to £114m (2015/18: £114ml. Oeposits and interest rate deposits were placed with financdial
institutions with BB+ or hetter credit ratings.

A131 March 2017 the fair value of all interes! rate derivative assels was £217m 12015/14: £162m].

AL 21 March 2017, prior to taking into account any offset arrangements, the largest combined credil exposure 1o a single counterparty arising from
money markel deposits, liuid investments and derivatives was £120m [2015/16: £85mi. This represents 0.9% [2015/16: 0.6%] of gross assets.

The deposit exposures are with UX banks and UK branches of international banks.

The Group's exposure to credit risk in respect ol its trade receivables is analysed in note 13. Provisions are made taking account historic credit losses
and the creditwor thiness of deblors. i

Liquidity risk management

The Groug's approach to liquidity risk management is discussed in the Financial policies and principles on pages 43 to 45, and the risks addressed”
within Managing risk in delivering Dur sirategy on pages 4610 49.

The following table presents a malurity profile of the canltracied undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal flows. Where the interest payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference ¢ the projected interest rates implied by yield curves al the reporting date. For derivative financial instrumemts
that setite an a net basis le.q. interest rate swapsl the undiscounled net cash ftows are shown and for derivatives that require gross settlement
{e.g. cross currency swaps) the yndiscounted gruss cash flows are presented. Where payment obligations are in foreign currencies, the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date is used. Trade credilors and anounts owed to joint ventures, which are cepayable vathin one year,
have been excluded from the analysis.
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17 Net debt continued

Liquidity risk management conlinued

The Group expects lo meet its inandal lizbilities through the various availabla Gguidity sources induding a secure renta! income profite, assed sates,

undrawn commilted borrowing fadlities and, in the longer term, dabi refinancings.

Tha Group lzases out allils investment proparbes under operating leases with 3 weighted avarage lease length of cight years. This secure income
profile is genzrated from upward only renl reviews, long leases and high ccoupancy rates. The huture aggregate minimum rentals receivable under
non-cancellable operating {eases is 2kso showm in the 1able beiow. Income from joant verturas and funds is net included belove Additionat liquidity
will 2rise from letting Space in properties under consiruction as well as from distributions received from joint ventures and funds.

217
Three
Within Following to five Gver five
ane yeur year years years Total
€m &m tm £m &m
Debt’ &459 k<] 1,240 1.420 3152
Interest on debt 89 B4 235 468 878
Derivative payments 12 79 189 283 508
Head lease payments 2 2 7 546 265
Totat paymernits 5462 165 1,67 Z.405 4,603
Derivative receipts {28} &1 {255) 1251 593)
Netpayment 53 104 1,414 2154 4.2%0
Operaling leases wth tenants 405 382 984 1,750 352t
Liguidity surplus ldeficit] 1131 778 1432} t4n4l 1689}
Cumulative tiquidity surplus [deficit) Lk 147 (285} 168%)
201
Theee
Within  Follgwing whwe  Owrfve
one year year years years Toiad
im Em tm fm £m
Dehbt! 76 481 1,47 1577 3.585
Interest on debk 03 140 768 538 1.009
Derivative payments 13 14 77 395 £9%
Head lease paymenls 2 2 & 239 259
Total payments | 12 577 1.822 2749 5.342
Derivative receipts 123 125 1104) 383) 15351
Net payinent 7 552 178 2.366 4.807
Operating leases with tenanis &37 419 1,133 2,389 4.378
Liquidity surplus ldeficit] 266 11331 1585] Y5 {4291
Cumulative liquidity surplus [deficit] 266 133 1652 4291

' Gross debi of £3,281m (2015/16: £3.761m] represents the lotal of £3.152m, less unamortised issue cosis of £15m [2015/16: £19m). plus fair velue adpstiments © debil

of E144m [2015/16: £195m}

Any short term liquidity gap between the net payments required and the rentals recewvable can be met through other liquidity sources available

10 the Group. The Groyp currently hatds cash and short termn deposits of EN4m of which E99m is not subject to a secunity interest Isee foolnote 5
lonet debl table on page 127). Further liquidity can be achieved through sales of properly assels or invesiments and debt relinancings.

The Group's property portfolio is valued externally al £9.520m and the share of jnint ventures and funds” propertyis valued at €4.801m.
The undrawn comenitted barnowing facilities available to the Group are a further source of liguidity. The maturity profite of cammitted

undrawn borrowing facilities is shown overleaf.
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity of committed undrawn barrowing facilities

m7 M

£m €m

Maturitydate:  over hve years 15 -
beiwzen four and five years 1110 .13

between lhree and four years 58 ?5

Total facitives available for more than three years 129 1.208

" Between two and three years 71 ] 85
Between one and two yaars - -
Within ane year 2 40
Total V. ALL 1353

The above faalities are compnised of Brilssh Land vndrawn [aolities of £1,322m. plus undrawn facilibes of Haroules Unit Trust tolallmg ENTZ2m,
18 Leasing

Operating leases with tenants
The Group leases out all of ils investment properties under gperabing leases with a weighted average lease lengih of aight years [Z013/16: nine years).

The futyre aggregarle minimum reatals receivable under non-cancellable operaling leases are as follows:

20M7 2016

£m Em

Less than one year ADS &37
Bebhween one and hwo years 382 419
Between three and five years 8L 8133
Belween six and ten years 89 1.28Y
Betwesn eleven and fifteen years 480 _ 628
Beilween sixteen and twenty years L] sy
After twenly years 129 165
Total 35N 4378

The Group's leaseheld imestment properties are typically under non-renewable leases withoul significant restrictions. Finance lease liabiities are
payable as lollows; no conlingent rents were payable in either period.

a7 .11
o -
ease lease
payments lnterest  Princpa Py lnlorest  Proopal
. £m &m £m tm £m &m
British Land Group
Less than one year 2 2 - 2 2 -
Between one and l;uoyears 2 4 - 2 2 -
Beween two and five years 7 7 - & [ -
More than five years 269 205 &4 232 123 44
Total 280 218 &8 743 203 46
Less future finance charges s} 12033
Present vatue of lease obligations [2] - 46
More than five years 64 46
Present value of lease gbligations [13 &6

136 British Land | Annyal Repori and Accounts 2017



19 Dividend

The fourth quarter mterim dividend of 7.30 pence per share, Wotalling £75m [2015716: 7.09 pence per share. inalling £73m] was approved by the Board
on 16 May 2017 and 15 payable on 4 Augusl 2017 to shareholders on lhe register at the close of business on 30 June 2017,

The Board will announce the availability of the Sorip Dividend Allamative, if awailable, va the Regulatory News Service and anits website

Iwww britishland.com/dividends), no tater than four business days before the ex-dividend date of 30 June 2017 The Board expacls lo announce
the split betwaen Property Income Distributions (PID] and non-PID income at that time. Any Scrip Dividend Allermative will not be enhanced. $1D
didends are paid. as required by RETT legislation, after deducdion of withhslding tax at the basic rate fcurrendly 20%), where appropeiate. Certain
classes of shareholders may be able lo elect to receive dividends gross. Please refer to our website www.britishland com/fdividends for details.

Pancz par 7 2016
Payment date Dividend share &m fm
Currentyear dividends | .
05.08.2017 2017 &thinterim 7.30
06.05.2017 2017 3rd interim 730
12.02.217 2017 2nd ivterion 730 75
06.11.2006 . 2017 st intenim 730 s
) ' 2220
Prior year dividends
05 08.2014 2014 &thinterim ' 709 73
06.05.2016 2016 3rd interim i 709 3
12.02.201 * 20V 2nd interim 709 n
06.11.2015 2014 st interim . 709 n
28.36
07.082M5 2015 Ath interim 6927 n
06.05.2015 2015 3rd inlenim 692 n
Dividends in consolidated statement
of changes in equity Fol) 287
Divndends settled in shares ) - {521
Dividends seltled in cash 296 235
Timing difference relating to payment
of withholding tax m -
Dividends in cash flow statemenl 295 235
! Dividend split half P10, hailf non-PID.
2 Scrip allemnative (reated as non-PID for this dndend.
20 Share capital and reserves
7 il
Number of ordinary shares in issue 31 1 April ' 1.040,562,323 1,031,788,286
Share issues 472,735 8,775 037
Ar31 March - 1, 041,035,058 1,040.562.323

Of the issued 25p ordinary shares, 7.783 shares were held in the ESOP trust (2015/16. 627, 11,266,245 shares were held as lreasury shares 12015416,
11,244 245} and 1,029.261 030 shares were in free issue {2015/16: 1.029.295.541). No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP rust duning the year
All issued shares are fully paid.

Hedging and transtation reserve )
The hedging and translatian reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair vatue of cash flow and fareign currency
hedging instruments. as well as atl foreign exchange differences arising from the Lranslation of the {inancial stalements of foreign operations.
" The foreign exchange differences aiso imclude the translation of the Labilities thal hedge the Company's net investment in a foreign subsidiary.

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to ewner-occupied properties and wvestments in joind ventures and funds.

Merger reserve

This comprises the premium on the share placing in March 2013. No share premium is recorded in the Company's finandiat statements, through the
operation of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

A1 March 2007, options over 7.535.061 ordinary shares war 2 sulilending under ernployes share option planis. The eptions had a waghted avarags
Life of 6.6 years_ Details of outslanding share options and shares awarded to erployees including Executive Uirectors are set out betow and on the
Iollowing pages:

Exarvise dates
A lapnd \ested bast Exaroisadf Ar X1 March e
Batz of gram 0 Grantsd  hed exerosad \ested Lapsed MY iepence Frem T
Share aptions Sharesave Scheme
0071 172 - - 17022} - - 47300 00316 280217
260612 42,498 - - - - 42,892 392.00 010917 010318
19.06.13 T 34792 - - {31458] [za7 n7 511.00 G198 26.0277
190613 15.202 - - - - 15.202 511.00 010918  01.03.1%
230804 137.254 - - 128550 (178620 114537 574.00 016917 010318
230634 127192 - - . (5268 123470 92450 57600 010917 01.0320
220615 76,167 = - 093 (3579 - 39,208 £97.00 010918 010319
22.06.15 58.350 - - - {37958) 20,382 s77.00 Nnevzm 01632
20.86.16 - Mn2820 - - 279 s2mm £08.00 010719 010320
20.06.16 - 78.344 - -~ 1190441 59,300 £08.00 0. 01.03.22
498.827 191,144 - 47.148)  158.653] 484,192

Long-Term Incentive Plan - Options Yested, Not Exercdsed
290609 14,672 - - 16139 - 18,333 38700 290612 290619
21.12.09 72454 - - 12744} - _ &9710 446.00 212 219209
11.06.10 1,208,357 - - 11.204) - 1,207,153 £47.00 N0613 110620
15.12.10 £9.867 - - (9.093) (639} 59,933 510.00 141213 141220
280611 ’ 1.084.233 - - [260,007) 1973) 823,253 575%.00 280614 280400
ArAFRY 95575 - - 175621 .17 76,826 45100 w214 NN
150912 1,116,710 - - 45020 1570 1055507 538.00 160915 146922
201212 120317 - - [33.324) (9.4481 T1.345 563.00 201218 201222
050813 6716 643678 - [24822) I3123544) 333028 601.00 05.08.16 ©508.23
051213 5766  402.400 - 162691 11940871 208,015 460 00 051216 051273
30604 7.890 - . = - 78901 — 68433 2310617 230624

3802057 1066278 - {402.193] 15447391 3,921,503
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Options
05.08.13 663,678 - 6434781 .- - - £01.00 050816 05.08.23
0951253 . 402,600 - l402.600) - - - 60008 ¢ 051236 0512.23
30614 ) §29.708 - - - 165.854) 763.854 684.33 230617 23.06.24
121214 26127 - - - - 26,127 75783 121217 120224
220415 1,109.207 - - - 1873541 1,021,853 824.50 220618 220625
720615 . - 133392 - - 1165620 1,312,362 730.50 220617 22.06.26

3031320 133392  [1.066.278) - N&vral 3129196
Total 7332306 2591366  [1,066278]  1449.3391  {873.162] 7,53£.68H
Weighted average exercise
price of options {pence) 597 668 501 557 638 21 )
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

Share price
211 Aprd Exercsed ANMarh Agemdak
Date of gramt .17 Grandad gt Lapsed a1? pence  Westing date
Performance Shares Long-Termn incentive Plan
05.08.33 1.034.453 - BEIMH A53286) - sUILUY  USUHIG
051213 ! 230226 - li2290% 1105324} - 640.00 051218
730604 1.359.223 - - 56,8691 1,302,354 4BLOD 230407
121214 4354 - - - 4,354 75783 121217
220615 1199762 - ~ 485631 1,351,199 82450 2204618
220616 - 1288355 - 112,407 173754 73058 2206
3830018  1.288.35% (7080591 [678.644) 3,731,681
Fund Managers’ Performance Plan
02.08.13 179.664 - D178.330) 113341 - 57900 020817
179.664 - 1178.330) 1.334] -
Matching Share Plan
020813 348890 - D7sss3s)  N75.445) - 60966 020816
30064 289 560 - - - 289560 70240 300637
220615 282170 - - - | 80600 290618
290616 - 318932 - - 89 807.00 29.06.19
920,620 318932  174.445F [175,445) 890,462
Total 4930302 1,607.288 (1.06DB44} 854,473} 4,622,323
Weighted average price of shares [pance) 697 TE6 602 673 759

21 Segment information

The Gruup allocales resources Lo investment and assel managemenl according to the sectors il expects to perlorm over the mediom termh. Iis three
prnapal sectars are Olfices, Retad and Canada Waler. The Office sector inctudes residential, as this is often incorporated into Olfice schemes. The
Offices sector also inctudes the British Land share of the Leadenhall joint venture [see note 1] The Retail sector includes leisure, as this is oen

incorporated into Relail schemes.

The relevant gross rental income. nel rental income, operating resull and proparty assels, being the measures of segment sevenue. segrirent result
and segment assels used by the rnanagement of the business, are set oul below. Manzagement reviews the performance of the business principally on
a proportionally consolidated basis, which includes the Group's share of joint ventures and funds on a line-by-line basis and exciudes non-contralling

interests in the Group's subsidiaries. The chiel operating decision maker for the purpose of segment information i the Execulive Committee.

Gross rental income is derived from the rental of buildings and the sale of trading properties. Operating result is the net of net rental income,
fee income and adminisirative expenses. No customer exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues in either year.
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Firaancial sticiments

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

21 Segment information continued

Segment result
Offices Reaadl Canada Waler Othesfunatincated oz
017 s w7 2016 7 2016 F. ) 2018 m? Ais
£m &m £m &m €m € Em Em £m tm
Gross rental income
British Land Group 139 133 21 29 9 8 - 427 432
Share of jeint ventures and lungds 116 114 100 164 - - - 2% 222
Total 55 247 379 395 ? 8 - 843 654,
Net rentalincome
British Land Group m 124 248 277 8 7 141] - 403 £08
Share of joint ventures and funds 12 110 5 ki - - - 3 207 212
Total 243 234 350 % ] 7 1] 3 &10 520
Qperating result
British Land Group 127 nz2 55 250 5 7 50l i4sl 37 333
Share of joint ventures and funds 10% 10% 9% 12 - - (\J] {1} 204 210
Toral 238 221 351 342 5 7 51) (3] 54 543
a7 s
Reconciliation to Undertying Profit €m [
Operating resull 541 543
Net financing cosls 151 L]
Undertying Profit 390 183
Recontiliation to profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Underlying Profit 0 3
Capital and other 1209 954
Underlying Profil attributable to non-controlling interests - 14 14
Total profit on ordinary activities before taxation 195 1.331
0Of Lhe olat revenues above, £nit [2015/14: £&mi was derved from outside the UK.
Segment assets
Gifrces Retadl Canada Water therfunalincaled Total
o7 2016 7 me n7 2016 n7 2016 F.iih 2
m £m £m £m £m m £fm m £m Em
Property assets
British Land Group 4,222 £,181 (%, 19 5323 mn 283 - - 2210 92787
Share of joint ventures and funds 2,792 2843 1938 2.m8 - - - - 4,730 486
Towmal 7.024 &.4054 T.341 mn 283 - - 13940 145448
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21 Segment information continued

Recondliation to net assets

any 208
British Land Group ’ £m tm
Propertyassels 13940 14648
Other non-current assels ) 154 138
Non~current assefs 14,094 14,784
Other nat current liabilitias (3asl [257)
Agdjusied nel debl 1£,223) 14,7651
Other nun—current liabilities nn Is0)
EPRA net assets [undiluted) 9498 9.674
Cosmvertible dilution - 408
EPRA net assets [diluted) . 7498 16.074
Non-controlling interests ' 255 kiij
EPRA adjustments 12771 {7321
Netassets 2676 9612

22 Capital commitments

The aggreqate capital commitments to purchase, construct or develop investimani property, for repairs, maintenance or enhancemenls or I’or the
purchase of invastments which are contracled for but not pravided, are sel oul belovw:

m7 01

£m Em

British Land and subsidiaries linctudes share of development toan faclity) 86 174
Share of joint ventures . 9 40
Share of lunds 2 2
' 107 216

23 Related party transactions

In the prior year the Group had provided a devalopment loan of up to £320m 10 the Broadgale joint venlure, secured against the 5 Broadgate
development. The loan was fully repaid in the prior year and inlterest and commitment fees earned on the lean in the prior year were £4m.

Delails of transactions with joint ventures and funds are given in notes 3, & and 11. Quring the year the Group recogmsed joint venture management
tees of E9m [2015/16: £8m). Details of Directors’ remuneration are given in the Remuneration Repart on pages 73 to 88. Delails of transactions with
key managemend personnel are provided in nole 8. Delzils of lransaclions with The Brilish Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme, and other
smaller pension schemes, are givenn note 9.

24 Contingent liabilities

Sroup, joiml ventures and funds
The Group, joirt venlures and funds have contingent Liabililies in respect of legal claims_ guarantees and warranlies arising in the'ordinary course
of business. § is not antitipated Lhat any matenial Lliabilities will arise from contingent tiabilines.

AY
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Finsociul statoments

NOTES TO THE ACCOQUNTS CONTINUED

23 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Sat oul betow is summanised finandal informatien for each subsidiary that has non-controlling intarests that are material to the Group.
The information below is the amcunt before infercompany elminahons, and represents the consolidated resulits of the Hercuties Unit Trust group.

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 March

Heroules Unzt Trost
2017 2016
&m Em
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 10 59
Altributable to non-conirolling interests 3 19
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company 7 L0
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 March
Heroutes Uit Trest
017 2006
(1] om
Total assets . i . 1.509 1.£90
Total iabilities 1531) 1469)
Netassets 7B 1,021
Mon-controlling interesis 12550 21
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company i 123 Thé
Summarised cash flows
Harcutes Una Trast
an7r 2006
£m £m
Netincrease [decreasel in cash and cash equivatents 10 151
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 30 35
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March . 40 30

The Hercules Umt Trust is a publicly listed Umit Trust. The unit price at 31 March 2017 1s £684 (2015/16: £719]. Non-conirolling interests coltectively
own 23 5% of unils in issue. The Bribsh | and Company PLC awns 76.5% of unils in issue, each of which confer equal voting rights. therefore is
deemed to exercise control over the frust.

26 Subsequent events

There have been no significant events since the year end.
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27 Audit exemptions taken for subsidiaries

The tallowang subsidranes are exemnpt from the requirements of the Companias Acl 2004 relabng to the audi of indmdual accounts by virtue of

Section 479A of that Act.

Cornpanies House Campanies House
Mame egnumher  Name g embar
BF Propco Mo 13) Limited 9270274 Pillar Hatait Parks Limdied 275163
Apartpowsr Lirnited BIH59  Pllar Speke Lmited 3075360
Pllarcaisse Management Limited 2941307 Wates ity ol London Proparties timited 1788526
Numbar 80 Cheapside Limited 634498  Meadowhall Opportunities 6P Limited 97253
BL HC Property Holdings Limited 5294046  Adamant rrestment Corporation Limited 225149
Bt Health Clubs PH Na 1 |imited S443248  Osnahurgh Stread Lisnited 5886735
BL Health Cluhs PH No 2 Lemited 5643261  Brifish Lang Property Advisers Limited 27r33am
British Land Hencules No t Linited 3527580  Bnish Land Haroutzs No 4 Limiled 3108851
PllarStore Limited 2850477  Broadgate (PHC B} Limited 3707220
Parwick investments Limited 454239  British Land in Town Refail Limitad 3325066
Hempel Holdings Limited 5341380 OrakeCiraus Leisure Limited 9190208
Hilden Properties Limiled NI062887 Dicmades PropartyNo 2 Limited 5303624
20 Brock Street Limited T&01497  tvoryhdll Limited 2307507
BL Clifton Moor Limited 7508019 PardeviBroadway] Limiled 2871851
BL [Maidenheadi Company Limited 7667834  Parinw Northern Lirited &H23037
Bayeast Property Co Limited 635800  Pillar [Kirkcaldyl Limited 3074412
Boldswitdh Limited 20709  BL (Bursledonl Limited 3854557
Paddington Central  IGP] Limited 3891376 Shopping Centres Limited 2230055
Paddington Central Il (GP) Limited 5092409  BL Broadgate Fragment § Limited 9400407
TPPinvestments Limited 4843814  BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited 2400541
B Osnaburgh St Resigdential Lid 5874523  BL Broadgate Fraganent 3 Limited 9400411
Moorage (Property Developments) Linited 1185513  BL Broadgaie Fragment 4 Limited 9408409
39 Vitioria Street Limited . 7037133 BL Broadgate Fragmenl 5 Uimited 9400413
Lancaster General Partner Limited 5452195  BL Broadgale Fragment § Limited 400414
Teescide Leisure Park Limited 2672136
Cavendish Geared Uimited 2779045

The fotlowing partnerships are exempl from the requirementis to prepare, publish and have awdited individual accounts by virtue of regulation 7

of The Partnerships [Accounts] Regulatons 2008. The results of Ihese parinerships are cansalidated within these Group accounts.

Name

Name

BlShoreditch Limnited Partnerstup
Bl Chess No 1 Limited Partnership
Paddington Central 1LP
Paddington Centrat i LP

Meadowhall Opportunities Limited Partnership

BL CW Upper LP

Hereford Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
Bl Lancaster Limited Partnership
Paddingion Block A LP
Paddingion Block B LP
Paddington Kiock L P

!
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Finanvial statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

’ o7 2008
Naota Em fm
Fixed assets
Investments and loans (o subsidianes 0] 21518 77518
lavestmants i joint ventures 0] &M 395
Other investments 3] 35 17
Interest rate derivative assets E by 167

Deferred tax assets - 1
N 28,201 28.098

Current assels
Deblors G ] 7 14
Cashand short tlerm deposits E 49 34
56 50
Current liahitities
Shart term borrowings and gverdrafts E 631 [74)
Creditors H f105) m
Armounts due to subsidiaries - {19,410] 118.444)
119.578) 18.597
Netcurrent liabilities 1%.522] 18,5471
Total assets tess current tiahilities 8,679 2.95¢
Non-current Gabilities
Debentures and loans E [1,978) {2.214)
Interest rate derivative liabilities E 1134) mnma
Amuounts due to subsidaries ’ 331 7
Delerred 1ax and other nonh-current Liabililies A 13 -
[2,646) B.14)
MNetassels 6,233 6437
t *
Equity
Called up share capital f 280 260
Share premwm 1,298 1295
Other reserves 134) 1201
Merger reserve . 213 213
Retained earnings 4,596 4,789
Total equity ) 6,233 6.437
The profit alter La, for the year ending 31 March 2017 tor the Campany was £121m [year ending 31 March 2014: E171m).

OBt

John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Ehairman . Chiel Financial Officer

Approved by the Board an 16 May 2017

Company number 621920
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Profa and

Share Share Other Merger toss Tatal

captal praeunn resaves fesarve | 000Ut equity .
im £ £m £ £m tm
Batance at 1 April 2018 260 1.295 (8] 213 -4.78% §,437
Share ssues . ) - 3 - - - 3
Dividend paid ‘ - - - - 1298) (298)
Fair vale of share and share option awards - - - - 2 2
Purchase of own shares - - - - I8} 8)
et actuarial tess on pension schemes - - - - (2 {12}
Profit for the year alter taxation - - - - 12t m
Dsvivative valuation moemenl - - LY - - [LLY
Balante at 31 March 2007 260 1.298 (134} 213 & .5% 4,233
Balanoe at 1 April 2018 58 1,280 1941 213 4858 4515
Share issues 2 L) - - h2 5
Adjustment for scrip dividend elemeant - - - - 52 32
Dividend paid - - - - 1287 (287
Fair value of share and share option awards - - - - 8 8
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - { {9
Praofit for the year after taxation - - - - 7 Vil
Oerivative valuation movernent - - {24] - - 126)
Balance at 31 March 2014 260 1.295 320} 213 4,789 6,437

Thevalue of distnbutable reserves within the profit and loss account s £2.911m [2015/16: £3,336ml].
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Vinanvial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{A) Accounting policies

The linzncial slalements lor Ihe year ended 31 March 2017 have been
prepared on the histoncal cast basis, except for the revaluation of
darivatives. These financial stalements have also been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporiing Standard 101 Reduced Disclasure
Framework [ FRS 107). The amendmenis to FRS 101 [2615/16 Cyclel
issued in July 2018 and effective immeadiately have been applied.

In preparing these financial stalements. the Company applies the
racognition. measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Finandal Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU{Adopted IFRSs 1,
but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply wath the
Companies Act 2006 and has sel out below where advantage of the

FRS 101 disclosure exemplions has been Iaken.

Tha Company has taken advantage of the follewing disclosure
exemplions under FRS 101:

{al the requirements af IAS 1 Lo provide a Balance Sheel at the
beginning of the period in the event of a prior period adjustment;

(bl the requirements of IAS 1 Lo provide a Statement of cash Hows
for the period; )

{c) the requinements of IAS 1 Lo provide a stalement of compliance
with IFRS;

18] the requirements of IAS 1 to disclose information on the
rnanagament of capital:

[e] the requiremnents of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting
Paliaes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors lo disclose
new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective;

ft} the requirements in |1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures lo
disclose related party transactions endered into between two
or more members of 3 group. provided that any subsidiary which
is a party to the lransacion is wholly-owned by such a member;

(g] the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures o disclose key management personnel compensation;

[b] the requirements of IFRS 7 Lo disclose financial instruments; and

il ihe requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of {FRS 13 Far Value
Measurement 10 disclose information of fair value valualion
{echniques and inpuls.

Going concern
The finandial statements are prepared on the going concern basis
as explained in the corporate governance section on page 65.
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investments and loans
trvestmenis ard loans in subsidizires and jenl ventures are stated
at cosl less provision for impairment.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The key source of estimalion uncertainly retates to the Company's
investments in subsidiaries and joint venlures. In estimaling the
requirement for impairment of these investments, management
make piions and judy s on the value of these imastments
usitvyg inherently subjective underlying asset valuvalions, supported

by independent valuers.

(B) Dividends
Detadls ol dividends pzid 2rd proposed are included ia note 19
of the consolidated inancial statemnents.

(C) Employee information

Employee costs indude wages and salanizs of €37m [2015/15: £35mi,
sodial sacurity costs of £5m (2015/16: £5m) and pension costs of £5m
[20V516: £6m). Betails of the Execulive Directors’ remunaration are
disclosed in the Remuneralion Reporl.

Audil fees in relation Lo the parent Company onty were EB.2m
[2015/16: £06.2ml.



(D) Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, loans to subsidiaries and other investments -

lweshments
Sharesin Loamsio in joint Oivar
subsidiaries swbsidiaTies Ewestments Total
Em Em m m €m
On 1 April 2016 20268 1.250 395 17 27930
Additians 3t 2155 36 2 2,243
Disposals 1535 11,5931 - i3 {213
Provision for impairment 581 - - - 58]
Asat 31 March 2017 19.7046 7812 £31 35 27,984

The historical cast of shares in subsidiaries is £20.025m 12015/14: £20.529m). invesimanis in jaint ventures of £431m 2005014 £395m}indudes
£245em [2015/16: £216m] of loans to jeinl ventures by the Company. Results of the joinl ventures are sel aul in note 11 of the consolidated financial

statements. The hisionical cos! of other imvestments is £48a (20153416: €87mi.

(E) Net debt

ncipal and interest on these were into ng ata Roa rate at iwmne of issue.
* Princi i L futl ed inta Sterli Roating the {ime of &

1.5% Corvertible bond 2012 [maturity 2617)

On 16 September 2012, British Land {Jersey] Limiled [the 2012 Issuer). a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued C400 million 1.5%

207 W01
m &m
Secured on the assets of the Company
5.264% First Mortgage Bebenlure Bonds 2035 krid an
5.0655% First Mortgage Amoriising Debentures 2035 9 100
5.357% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 , 38 349
6.75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2020 - &2
Loan notes L - 2
824 884
Unsecured
5.50% Semor Notes 2027 102 101
3.895% Senior US Dollar Notes 2018* a2 ¥
4.635% Senior US Dollar Nates 2021" 181 155
4.766% Senior US Dollar Noles 2023 13 05
5.003% Senior US Dotlar Notes 2026' el I
3.81% Senior Nules 2026 14 13
3.97% Senior Notes 2026 . "z nsé
Fair vatue of oplions te issue under 1.9% convertible bond 2017 5 48
Fair value of options to issue under 0% convertible bond 2020 3 27
Bank loans and overdrafts ' i &34
1.217 1406
Gross deht 2,081 2290
Interest rate and currency derivative Liabilities 134 ny
Interest raté and currency derivative assels [FaF]] Y|
Cash and short term deposits 49t {38
Netdebt 1,90 2.206

-guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bondsi at par. The 2012 Issuer is fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their terms, the 2012 bonds are converlible inlo preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automaticaily ransferred to the Company

in exchange lor ordinary shares in the Company or 3t the Company s election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. Bondhalders may

exeraise their canversion righl at any time up to {but excludingl the 20th dealing day belore 10 September 2017 lthe matusity datei.

The initial exchange price was §93.07 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusied hased on certain avents.
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Finanvial statenients

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

(E) Net debt continued

From 25 Seprember 2015, the Company has the aption to redeem the 2812 boends at par if the Company's share prce has tradad above 130% of

the exchange price fer 2 specilfiad period, or at any Bme ence 85% by nominal value of the 2012 bonds have been converted, redeemad, or purchasad
and cancelled. The 2012 bonds will be red 4 at par an 10 September 2017 {the matunily dale] if they have nol already been converted, redeemed
or purchased and cancelled. No redemption of the bonds sccurred in the year.

The intercompany loan between the Issuer and tha Company arising from the iranster o! the {oan proceeds was initially recognised al faw vatue,

nel of capitatised issie cosis. and is accounted for using the amortised cosi mathiod. n addilion Lo the intercompany {oan, the Company has enlered
into a derivative contract relaling lo its guaraniee of the obligations of lhe Issuer in respect of the Bonds and the commilment to provide shares or

a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds. This derivative contract is included within the balance sheet as a liability carried at
fair value through profit and loss.

0% Convertitte bond 2015 fmaturity 2020]

On 9 June 2015, British Land [White) 2015 Limited [the 2015 issuerl, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued £3%0 million 2oro coupon
quaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 {the 2015 bonds) at par. The 2015 Issyer is fully guaranieed hy the Company in respadt of the 2015 bonds.

Subject to their lerms, the 2015 bonds are convertible into preference shares of the 2015 Issuer which are aulomatically ransfesred to the Company
in exchange far ardinary shares in the Company or, at the Company’s election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2015 up

0 and including 29 Junea 2018, 3 bondholder may axerdse s conversion nght if the share pnce has traded at a level exceeding 1305 of the exchange
price for a specdified period. Therealler, and up W but exduding the 7th dealing day belore ¢ June 2020 lihe maturity date), a bondholder may comwerl

at any me.

The inilial exchange price was 1163.32 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain events [such as the Company
paying dividends in any quarter above 3.418 pence per ondinary share]. As at 31 March 2037 the exchange pnce was 106379 pance per ordinary share.

From 30 June 2018, the Company has the oplion te redeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Comparny's share price has lraded above 130% of the
exchange price lor a spedified period. or a1 any lime once 5% by nominal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted. redeemed._ or purchased
and cancelled. The 2015 bonds will be redeemad al par on'? June 2020 [the maturity date] if they have not already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

The intercarnpany loan between the Issuer and the Company arising from Lhe transler of the loan proceeds was witially recogaised at fair vatue,

net of capitalised issue cosis, and is accounted for using the amortised cost mathod. In addition to the intlercompany loan, the Company has entered
into a derivative contract relating to its guarantee of the ohligations of the Issuer in respect of the bands and the commitment to provide sharesor a
combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds. This derivative contract is included within the balance sheel as a liability carried al fair
value through profit and loss.

Maturity analysis of netdebt

Foit 2014

€m m

Repayahte within one year and on demand 63 74
between: one and twao years. 13 107
two and five years £42 AT4

five and ten years 782 807

ten and fifleen years 332 500

filleen and lwenty years 389 a6

t 1978 2,216

Gross debt 2,941 2290
Interest rate derivatives f83) 148
Cash and shart lerm deposits . 149) 136
Hetdebt : 1909 2.206

(F) Pension /

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme and the Oefined Contribution Pensian Scheme are the principal pension schemes of the
Company and detais are sel out in note ¢ of the conselidated inancial statements.
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{G) Debtors

< x0T e
£m Em
Trade and ather deblors 3 2
Prepayments and acarued income 4 5
) 7 15
(H) Creditors
2077 2216
- £m fm
Trade creditors 12 3
Corporation tax , 29 8
Other taxation and social secunity n Y
Accruals and delerred income 2 y4j
105 7
{1) Share capital
Ondinary shares
om of 23p each
Issued, called and fully paid .
At 1 Apnt 2016 260 1.040.562.323
Issued - £72.735
At 31 March 2017 280 1,04£1,035,0658
i shares
& of Bp each
1ssued, called and fully paid -
At 1 April 2015 258 1.031,788.286
Issued 2 8.774 037
At March 2018 260 1.040.562323

{J) Contingent liabilites, capital commitments and related party transactions

The Company has contingent habililies in respect of legal daims, guarantees and warranties arising in the ordinary course of business.

1t is not anticipated that any materiat liatalities will arvse [rom the conbmgenst liabilities.

A3 March 2047, the Company has £1m of capital cormtments 12015/14: £¥3ml.

Related pariy transactions are the same {for the Company as for the Group. For details refer to note 23 of the consolidaled finandal statements.

r
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Financial statenients

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Relared unde i UN/Cverseas Tax
LY riakings Company Name Resident Status
Disclasures relating to subsidiary undertakings MSC Property indermediste Holdings Limit=d UK Tax Resident
The Company's subsidiaries and other relaled undertakings at 31 March | (50%interesi
2017 are listed below. All Group enbities are included in the conselidated Plantabion House Limited UK Tax Resid
financial results. Priory Park Merton Limited UK Tax Residant
Real Asset Insurance Limited lin liguidaton) Overseas Tax Resident
Unless otherwise stated, the Company holds 100% of the voting rights (Guermnsay}s
and benehical interests in the shares of the follawing subsidianes, Hegts Property Holdings Limited UX Tax Resid
partnerships, assocales and jont ventures. Unless otherwise slatad, The British Land Corporation Limiled UK Tax Resident
the subsidiaries and related undertakings are registerad in lhe —

. N Vitaloreaie UK Taxk

United Kingdom.
Indirect holdi
The share capital of each of the Companies, where applicable, = v T
N . . Company Kllhu'sas E>
comprises of ordinary chares unless otherwise stated. Hame Residont Status
The Company hotds the majority ofits in UK comp 1& 4 & 7 Triton Limited UK Tax Resident
although some are hald in overseas companies. In recent years we 10 Brock Street Limited UK Tox Resid
have reduced the number of overseas companies in the Groug. 10 Portman Square Unit Trust Derseyl UnitsF Overseas Tax Residant
1G Triton Street Limitad UK Tax Resident
Untess noted otherwise as per the following key, the registered address 17-19 Bedtord Strest Limited UX Tax Resident
of each company is York House. &5 Seymour Street, Landon. WIH 7LX. | 18 30 Craven Hill Gardens Limited UK Tax Residen:
* 13-14 Esplanade, SL Hetier, JE1 18D, Jersey. 20 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident
* 1595 Broadway.Jh Floor, New York NY 100348293, United States 20 Tritan Slree) Limited UX Tax Residert
* &7 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey. JE1 GBO. Jersey. 338 Euston Road Limiled UK Tax Residant
. 62 Bucks Road. Douglas. Isle of Man. 35 Basinghall Strest First Limited UK Tax Resident
69 recrte & Esch, Luxrembourg. L-2953 - — ~
* Lefabvre House, Lefebwre Street, 51 Peter Port, Y1 3TF, Guernsey. 35 Basmghall Street Second Limited UK Tax Resident
' Leidsekade 102, 1017 PP, Amslerdam, Netherlands. 350 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident
* Ogier House. The Esplanade. 5t Helier. JE& YWG. Jersey 39 Victoria Street Limited UX Tax Resident
The Gorparation Trust Company. 1209 Grange Sireet. Wikmingtan OF 19501, 8-10 Throgmorton Avenue Limited UK Tax Resident
Adamant Irvesiment Corporation Limited UK Tax Resident
Direct holdings Adshilta Limited UK Tax Rasid
UK/Overseas Tax | Altigate Place {GP] Limited [50% interest] UK Tax Resident
Campainy Name Resident Status | Anartpower Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Biuebutton 2014 Limited UK Tax Resident | Ashband Limited UK Tax Resident
B Davidson Limnited UK Tax Resident | B.LCT. 112697} Limited LierseyP® UK Tax Residert
BL Exemp! insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident | B.L.C.T. 121500} Limnited [Jerseyl® UK Tax Resident
BL Intermediate Holding Comparny Limited UK Tax Resident | B.L.C.T. [29900} Limited LJerseyl® UK Tax Residi
BLSSP {Funding] Limited . UK Yax Resident | B.L.U. {11193) Limited LlerseyP UK Tax Resident
Btuebutton Property Management UK Limited UK Tax Resident | Balsenia Limited UK Tax Resident
(S0%interestt _ Barnclass Limited UK Tax Resident
Baldswitch INo .1] Limited UK Tax Resident | g o Lmied UK Tax Residert
Boh?swnch Limited __ UK Tax Res!denl Bayeast Property Co Limited UK Tax Resident
Bntish Land (Jerseyl Limiled Llerseyl UK Tax U | Bexile Limited UK Tax Resident
[Founder BF Propco INo 1] Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land City UK Tax Resident op o ax pest

. - - - BF Propeo [Na 13 | Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land City 2005 Lirntted UK Tax Residen! BF 1o 191 Limited U Tax Resident
British Land City Gffices Limited UK Tax Resid PropeoiNa 191 Limi ax Rescen

. ——— BF Propco INo 3 ] Limited UK Tax Resident
Bnitish Land Financing | UK Tax Resident — -

— ~— - BF Propee (No & | Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Investments Nethertands Holding Overseas Tax Resident — -
B.V.{Nethertands)? BF Propco {No 5} Limited UK Tax Resident
Brilish Land Properlies Limited UK Tax Residert | BF Properties Mo 4 } Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resid: BF Properties (No 5§ ] Lirnited UK Tax Resident
British Land Securilies Limited UK Tax Resident Eifs;sagc"'ow'l‘f‘ﬂiﬂ Trust [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident

—— 1. interes

British Land Secvritisation 1999 UK Tax Resident — -
an " - Bl & N Acquisition Limited UK Tax Resident

Broadgate [Funding] PLC UK Tax F n — -
— - BL [Maidenhead] Company Limiled UK Tax Resident

Broadgaie Estates Insurance Mediation UK Tax Resident —L -
Services Limi | BLISP}Cannon Street Limited UK Tax Resident
Hyfieet Limited UK Tax Resident | BL 5P] Investment [1 Larnited UK Tax Resident
Kingsmere Productions Limited UK Tax Resident | BL [SP] Investment [2] Limited UK Tax Resident
Linestair Limited UX Tax Resid BL [SPI Ir tmenlt '3' Li d UK Tax Resident
L andon and Henley Holdings Limited UK Tax Resid BL [SP] Investment {£) Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadoehalt Perstorns Scheme Trustee Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Baker Co 2012 Limited 1 JerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL Bradford Forsler Limited UK Tax Resigent
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Company UKJOverseas Tax | Company UK/Overseas Tax
Name ResideniSatus | Name Resident Status
Bl Brislington Limited UX Tax Resident | BL High Street and Shopping Centres Holding UK Tax Rasident
fiL Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | Company Limited

BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limiled U Tax Resident | BL Lancaster Investments L1d Uk Tox Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limited UK Tax Resident IBL Lam:as[ea; Limited Partnarstip UX Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment & Umized UK fax Resident | o | eadenhall Uereeyl Lid UerseyP Overseas Tox Resident
BL Broadgate Fragmeni 5 Lirnited UK Tax Resident - -

BL Broadgaie Fragment  Limited UK Tax Resident ELH';@FM Holding Co Licrseyl Lid Overseas Tax Resident
BL Chess Limited UK Tax Resident | gy | eecure and Industrial Holding UK Tax Resadent
BL Chess No. 1 Lirvted Partnership UK Tax Resident | Company Limited

iParinership Interest) BL Maylair Offices Limuled UK Tax Resident
BL City Offices Holding Company Limited UK TaxResident | o) ucodowhall Holdi gs Linitend UK Tax Resident
BL Clfton Moor Limited UK Tox Resident | 51" Meadowhall Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Developments Limited UK Tax Resident | B \eadawhatl No & Lisited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Haldings Limiled UK Tax Resident | 5} gitice INon-City] Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lower 6P Company Limited UK Tax Resident | 5 Grfice Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lower Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident | B) gsnaburgh St Residential ¢ td UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lower LP Company Limited UK Tax Resident | i) piccadilly Residential Lirtiad UK Tax Residant
BL CW Upper GP Company Limited UK TaxResident | ) piccadilly Residential Management UK Tax Resident
8L CW Upper Limited Partmership UK TaxResident | Co Limited

BL CW Upper L P Company Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Piccadily Residentiat Relail Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Cwinbran Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Debs Limited {erseyP Dverseas Tax Resident | 150% interest]

BL Departnent Stores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential No. 1 Limited UK Fax Ressdent
BL Doncaster Wheattey Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Ealing Lirnited UK Tax Resident | BL Residual Holding Comparwy Limiled UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Watk J2012 Limited UerseyP Overseas Tax Resident | BL Relail Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Watk | imited LK Tax Resid BL Retait investments Limited U¥ Tax Resident
BL ESOP Lirniled lisle of Man}* Overseas Tax Resident ghs&ail Warehousing Holding Company UK Tax Resident
?&j:mg'ﬁd Management LLP UK Tax Resident Bl Samshury Superstares Limited [50% interesy) UK Tax Resident
BL European Holdings Limited UK Yax Residers | BL Shoreditch General Partner Limited UX Tax Residen
5L Fured Uplift Fund Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident | BL Shoreditch Limited Partnership UK Tax Ressdent
BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee 1 Limited UK Tox Residery | [Partnership lnterest] -
BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | BLShoreditch No. 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee No.1 Lirited Overseas Tax Resident | Db Shoredilch No. 2 Limiled _ UX Tax Resident
{serseyP BL Superstores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uplitt Fund Nominee No.2 Lirnited Overseas Tax Resident | BL Friton Building Residential Linited UK Tax Resident
erseyl® Al Unit Trust | lerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL Fixed Upli General Pariner Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Unitholder No. 1 )i Limited UerseyP Ovesseas Tax Resident
BL FW Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Unithoider No. 2 |J) Limited UerseyP? Overseas Tax Resident
BL Goodman IGeneral Pariner} Limited UK Tax Resident | Bl Unwersal Lunited UK Tax Resident
50% interest BL Wardrobe Court Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Goodman L P] Limited UK Tax Resident { By wast [Watling Housel Limited UK Tax Resident
BL GP Chess No. 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | giackglen Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Guaranteeco Limited {Limited by Guarantee) UK Tax Resident | 5o oonni UK Tox Resident
BL HB lrwestments Limited UK Tax Resdent | g or [Thirty | Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC IDSCH) Limited UK Tax Resident | s mill [Twenty-nine Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC Ooltview Lumited UK Tax Residenl | g)  jEpury Gate) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL. HC Hampshire PH LLP IMember interest] UK Fax Resident | ) (5] Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Health And Fitness Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | gy [SJ Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Invic Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident | Bi Dl and Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH CRG LLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Residenl | gy p properties Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH LLP {Member Interest) UK Tax Resident | 'B; ) proper ty Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL BC PH No 1 LLP {Member Interesi} UK Tax Resident | g7 Holdings 2010 Ltd 5% interest] UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 2 LLP {Member Interesi] UK Tax Resident | g1 fEztates Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH Na 3 LLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident BLU Property Management Limitad UX Tax Resident
BL HC Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | 1 {j Securities Limited UK Taz Resident
8L Health Clubs PH No 1 Lirted UK Tax Resident | Bryich 1 and [Joint Ventures) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
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Pivaacial statcaicmes

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Compary UK/Overseas Tax | Compary UK/Overseas Tax
Name Residemt Status | Name ResidentSatus
British Land fWhitel 2005 Limited erseyl UK Tax Residanl | Oty of London Utice Unit, Irnust Lfersey] lUnits) Overseas Tax Residem
{Founder Sharesp 35.95% interestP
British Land Acquisitions Limited UK Tax Resideni | Clarges Estaie Property Management UX Tax Resident
British L and Aqua Partnership [2) Limited UK Tax Residera | CoLemiled
British Land Aqua Partnarship Limited UK Tax Residary | Comgenic Limied UK Tax Residenl
British Land Company Secretarial Limited UX Tax Residesq | Cornesh Residenbial Properties Trading Limded UK Tax Resid:
Brilish Land Consiruction Limited UK Tax Resident m Residential Property | rents UK Tax Resident
Bnhsh tand Department Sim:!:: Limited UK Tax Resilem yTTom T UK Tax Rogi
British |.and Developments Limited U¥ Tax Re / - “aﬂ'“m
— — - Deepdate Co-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resident
British Land Fund Management Limited UK Tax Resident | yember Interest}37 66% imerest]
Bnitish Land Harcules Limited UK Tax Residant Derby . t Holdngs Limited UK Yax Resident
British Land Hercules Na 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | po o) 1o UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No 3 Limiied UK Tax Residont Diomedes Property No 1 Limited UX Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No.& Limiled UK Tax Resident | Giomedes Property No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land HIF Limited U Tox Resident | re o edes Property No 3 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land in Town Retail Limited UK Tax Resid: Diomedes Property No.4 Limited U Tax Resigent
Britizh Land Industriat Limited UK Tax Restdent Digmedes Property No.5 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land imesiment Management Limited UK Tax Residant | po e Property No.6 Limiled UK Tax Resident
Britich Land rvestments NV {Nethertandsi? UK Tax Resident | 1yomedes Property No.7 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident | 1ygnades Property Ne 8 Limited UK Tax Residert
Britich Land Offices INon-Cityl Limited UKTax Resident | 0y ;e Gircus GP. L LC. United Statesi Overseas Vax Resident
Beitish Land Offices Limited UKTax Resident | (32 Circus Limited Partrership Wnited Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Offices No.1 Limited UK Tax Resident | States] [Partnership inlerest)”
Brilish Land Property Advisers Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Circws Unit Trust Elersey] [UnitsP Overseas Tax Resident
Brilish Land Proper ty Management Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Property Holdings { imited UK Yax Resident
British Land Regenaration Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Property Nominee [No_1) Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Retail Warehouses Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Property Nominee [No. 2| Limited UK Tax Resident
lin liuidatien] Eden Walk Shopping Centre General Pariner UK Tax Resident
British Land Superstores {Non Securitised) UK Tax Resident | Luvated 150% mlerest)
Number 2 Limited Eden Walk Shopping Centre Uns Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Broadgate {PHC 8] Limited UK Tax Resid Lerseyl Wnits] I50% interestf®
8roadgale Adjoining Properties Limited UK Tax Ressident | Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust { Jersey] {Units| Overseas Tax Resident
Broadgate Business Cenlre Limited UK Tax Resident | 175.31% mterestP
Broadgate City Limited UK Tax Resid Elementvirtue Limted UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Court Investments Limnited UK Tax Resident | Etk Mill Oldham Limited UK Tox Resident
Broadgate Estates Limited UK Tax Resident | Euston Tower Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates People Managerent UK Tax Resident | Exchange House Holdings Limited UK Tax Resdent
Limited Finsbury Avenue Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Retail Management Lirmited UK Tax Resident | Four Broadgate Limited UW Tax Resident
Broadgate Exchange Square UK Tax Residend | FRP Group Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate kwestment Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident | Garamead Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Limited [Jersey) {50% UK Tax Resident | Gardenray Limited UK Tax Resident
interest]! Gibraltar General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Square Limited UK Tax Resident | {37.64% interest]
Broughton Retail Park Lirmited [Jerseyl UK Tax Resident | Gibrattar Nominees Limited $37.66% interast] UK Tax Resident
[75.37% interest] Gilibrook Retal Park Noitingham Limited UK Tax Resident
Broughton Urit Trust [ersey} [Units) Overseas Tax Resident Glenway Limited UK Tax Resident
531 interest ___ | Hempel Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Brunswick Park | UK Tax o — .
BVP Developments Limited UK Tax Resident | Hernpel Hotets Limited - UK Tax Resident
— T Hertules Property Limiled Partnership UK Tax Resident
Canada Water Offices Limited UK Tax Resident {Partnership Interest) [60.68% interesi]
Casegood Enlerprises UK Tax Resident | orytes Property UK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Caseplane Limited UK Tox Resident | orqiies Property UK Limited UK Tax Resident
Cavendich Geared H Limited UK Tax Resident | orcules tnit Trust {Jarseyl (Units) Overseas Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Limited UK Tox Resideni | [75.31% interestl
Caymall Limited UK Tax Resident | Heretord Old Market Limited UK Tax Resident
Chantway Limited UK Tax Resident | Hereford Shopping Centre GP Limired UK Tax Reswdent
Cheshine Properlies Limited UK Tax Resident | Hereford Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident
Chrisilu N Limited UK Tax Resident | Partnership [Partnership interest)
Hilden Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
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Company UK/Overseas Tax | Company UN/Overseas Tax
Rame Resideml SIatys | Name Resident Siatus
Homdrift Limited UK Tax Resident | Paddington Central i [GP] Limited UK Tax Resident
HUT lnvestmends Limited Derseyl Qverseas Tax Resident | Paddington Central i LP UK Tax Resident
175.31% interesth Paddington Central M Unil Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Industrial Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident | U UnitsP
Insisimetal 7 Limited £IK Tax Resident | Paddington Centrat W Unit Trust |Jerseyl Cverseas Tax Resident
Ivorydell Limiited UK Tax Resident | [UnisF
tvorydell Subsidiary Limited UK Tax Resident | Paddinglon Central Management UK Tax Resident
heoryhill Limited UK Tax Resident | S2mp2ny Limited 167.50% interest A
Jetbloom Limited UK Tax Resident | £ 20dington Kiosk [GPY Lud UK Tax Resident
L& H Davelopments Limited UK Tax Resident | Loddingion KioskLP _ U Tax Resident
i P L Partor Limited UK Tax Resident Pardev lBruadwayl-Llrmted UK Tax Res@ml
Lancaster Unit Trust Lersey] {UnitsP Qverseas Tax Residery | Larvev(Luton] Limited UK Tax Resxdoot
Leadenhall Hotding Co Derseyl Lid Uerseyl Overseas Tax Resideny | Lo Northern Limited UK Tax Resident
{50% interest]® Parwick Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Liverpocl One Management Company Limited UK Tax Residant | Parwick lvestments Limited UK Tax Resident
150% interest] PC Baltic Whard Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Management Services Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Canal Lanited UK Tax Resident
London and Henley {UK] Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Lease Nominee Lid U¥ Tax Resident
London and Henley Uimited UK Tax Resident | PC Partnership Nominee 1Ltd UK Tax Resident
Lonebridge UK Limited UK Tax Resident | Piccadily Resdenlal Limited UK Tax Resident
Longiord Sireel Residential Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar (Bedkion] Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate lnvestment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar (Birstall] Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgale West Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar [Cricklewood} Limited UK Tax Resident
Manbrig Properties UK Vax Resident | Pillar IDartford] Limited UK Tax Resident
Marble Arch House Unil Trust [Jersey] [UnitsP Overseas Tax Resident | Pillar [Futham] Limited UK Tax Residenl
Mayiair Properties UK Tax Resident | Pillar [Kirkcaldy] Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayllower Retail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Auchindea Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowbank Retad Park Edinburgh Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Broadway Limited X Tax Resident
Meadwahalt Centre 119991 Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Cheatham Hill Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhal Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | Pitiar City Pic UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Pension Scheme Trustees UK Tax Resident | Piltar Dartford No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Pillar Denton Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhail Estaies {UK] Limited UK Tax Resident Pillar Developments Limited UX Tax Resident
Meadowhall Group IMLP} Lamited UK Tax Resident | piar Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhalt Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | pillar Estates No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhait Opportunities Nominee 1 Limiled UK Tax Resident | pjigar Eurape Management Licvited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhalt Opportunities Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | piliar Farnborough Limited UK Tax Resident
ieadowhall Training Limited UK Tax Resident | pinar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari UK Tax Resident | pifjar Fulham No.2 Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Mercari Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | pilar Galtions Reach Limited UK Tax Resident
Minhill Investments Limitled UK Tax Resident | pijar Glasgow 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorage [Property Development sl Limited UK Tax Resident | piftar Glasgow 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nominee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | pyjjar Glasgow 3 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nominee 2 Lirnited UK Tax Resident | pyilar Herales No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Nugent Shopping Park Limited UK Tax Resident | pittar Kinnaird Limited UK Tax Resigent
Number 80 Cheapside Limited UK Tax Resident | pinar Nugent Lirnited UK Tax Resident
OM iInvestmenis Lirmnited Lerseyl Overseas Tax Resident | pijtar Projects Limited UK Tax Residenl
One Hundred Ludgate Hill UK Tax Resident | pitiar Property Group Limited UK Tax Resident
One Sheldon Square Limited |Jerseyl Overseas Tax Resident | piya, Retail Europark Fund (Prefi Overseas Tax Resident
Orbitat Shopping Park Swindon Limited UK Tax Resident | ILuxembourg] [Member Interest|
Osnaburgh Streel Limited UK Tax Resident | [65.30% interesti®
Paddinglon Block A IGP] Ltd UK Tax Resident Pillar Relail Parks Limited UK Tax Resident
Pasddington Block A LP [Partnership Interest] UK Tax Resideny | Pillar Speke Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddinglon Block B 6P Lid UK Tax Resident | PillarCaisse Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block B LP [Partnership Interest] UK Tax Resident | 0% Wlerest] -

" — - Piltarman Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Central | [GP] Limited UK Tax Resident | — — -

- - - PillarStore Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddinglon Central | LP (Partnershap Interest] UK Tax Resident | =

" — - PillarSiore No.3 Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddinglon Central | Nominee Limited UK Tax Resident . . -
Paddinglen Centrall Unst Trust Overseas Tax Resident | Lymouth Retail Limiled UK Tax Resident

Pawer Court GP Limited UK Tax Resident

{erseyl P
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Fireneial scarements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Company UK/Overseas Tax | Company UKJOvarseas Tax
Name ResidentSiatus | Name Resident Statis
Power Court Lulon Limited Parinership UK Tox Residant { Tollgate Centre Colchesier Limnited UK Tax Residen:
[Partnership Intarest] : YPP lvestments Limited : UK Tax Residen:
Power Court Nominge Lirnied UK Tax Residenl | Juaed Premier 1 Gmited UK Tax Residong
Power Court Nominees No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident Fweed Premier 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
ﬁi’-;:x;nﬁ%?“ml Company SA Overseas Tax Residenl | Bumed Premier 4 Limited UK Tax Residang
Project Sunrise lvestments Limited UK Tox Resigent | onCropartyCorporation Limited UK Tax Resident
; — ~ Union Property Holdings [London|] Limited UK Tax B
Project Sunrise Limited UK Tax Resident - - — -
- — — United Kingdom Property Compary L LK Tax Resident

Project Sunrise Properties Limited UK Tax R: — -

= = - Urban Estates Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Reholine Limited UK Tax Resident | jn yquidation)
Hegenl's Place Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident | vgienune Co-ownership Trust IMember UK Tax Resdent
Regents Place Management Company Limited UK Tax Resident | inlerest] (37.66% mnterest]
Renash UK Tax Resident | Valentine Unit Trust [Jersey] {Units) Dverseas Tax Resudenl
Rigphone Limited UK Tox Resident | [75.31%interestP
Ritesol UK Tax Resident | Vidnitee Limited UK Tax Resident
Rohawk Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | Yintners' Place Limited UK Tax Resident
Salmax Properties UK Tax Resident | Wardrohe Court Limited UX Tax Residemi
Seymour Street H Limited UK Tax Resident | Wardrobe Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Limited UK Tax Residant | Wardrobe Place Limited UK Tax Resident
Six Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resid Wates City of London Properties Limited UK Tax Resadent
Seuthgate General Partner Limited (50% UK Tax Resid Wates City Point Limited UX Yax Resident
interest} Wales City Property Manag { Limited UX Tax Resident
Southgate Property Unit Trust (Jersey] Overseas Tax Resident | Westbourne Terrate Partnership UK Tax Rasidont
[Units] 150% interestl IPartrership Interest|
Speke Unit Trust Llersey) (Units} Overseas Tax Residenl | Weslside Leeds Limited UK Tax R
165.9% interest? Whiteley Shopping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Sprint 1118 Limited UK Tax Resident | Derseyl [UnitsP
St James Parade {43] Limited UK Tax Resident | WK |Austral House] First Limited U¥ Tax Resident
St James Relail Park Northamplon Limited UK Tax Resident | WK [Austral House) Second Limited UK Tax Resident
St Stephens Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | WK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resider
Stocklon Retail Park Limiled UK Tax Resident { York House W1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Surrey Quays Limited UK Tax Resident
Sydale UK Tax Resident
T IPartnershupl Limited UK Tax Resident
Tailress Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL IBrent Park] Lirnited UK Tax Residert
TBL IBromley] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Byrstedonl Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Buryl Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL IFerndgwn) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL Wisnageban] Lirnited UK Tax Resident
TBL IMaidstone] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL IMilton Keynes] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Peterburough] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL Holdings Limiled UK Tax Resident
TBL Properties Linuied UK Tax Resident
T ide Leisure Park Limited [51% interest} UK Tax Resident
The Aldgate Place Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
[Parinership Inlerest] (50% interest]
The Dartford Partnership IMember Interest] UK Tax Resident
[50%interest)
The Gibrallar Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
[37.66% interest]
The Liverpool Exchange Company Limited UK Tax Resident
The Mary Street Estale Limited UK Tax Resident
The Meadowhall Education Centre UK Tax Resident
|Limited by Guarantee] [50% interest]
The Retail and Wareh Compary Lirnited UK Tax Resident
The TBL Property Partnership UK Tax Resident
[Partnership Interest|
The Whiteley Ca-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resident
{Member Interest] [50% interest)
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
UNAUDITED

Table A: Summary income statement and balance sheet

Summary income statement based on proportional consotidation for the year ended 31 March 2017
The following pro forma information is unaugited and does nol lorm par of the consolidated primary sialemeals or the nates thereto. it presents the
results of the Group, with its share of the resulls of jeint ventures and funds induded o 2 ine-by-tine basis a2rd exduding noa-controlling inferests.

Year ended 31 March 2077 Yaar eaded 31 March 2018
Juint Less Jond Less
ventures non-cantroiting Proportionally ventres  fon-contrelling  Proportionally
Group andfunds imerests Group  and funds intereus consolidited
£m £m £m &m im tm Enn Em
Gross rental income £42 220 (31] £43 451 p)) 128 654
Property operating expenses 125} i 2 133 124] 9l 1 134}
Netrental income £17 210 nn &10 £25 yys4 {zn 820
Administralive expensss 84} (] - {es} 193 ISt 4 =4l
Net fees and other incoma 17 - - 7 16 = ] 17
Ungeared income Return 350 208 {m 541 348 n? 2z 543
Nel financing cosis [78) i78) 3 st {108) 1821 B f1s9
Ungertying Profit e 132 [L1)) 390 262 135 f14) 3463
Underiying taxation - - - - 2 - - 2
Underlying Profit after taxation 272 132 {14) 3y0 244 135 4] 365
Valualion movement [237) 841
Other capital and taxatien (net’ 14331 48
Capita! and other (670} 209
Total retlurn §280) 1274
* Indudes other comprehensive ncome, movement in ditution of share options and the t in iterns excluded {ar EPRA NAY.
Summary halance sheet based on proportional consolidation as at 31 March 2617
The following pro forma lormation is unaudited and does not form pait of the consolidated primary statements or the noles thereto. it presents
the cornposition af the EPRA nel assets of the Group. with its share of the nel asseis of the joint venture and lurt assets and liabilities included
«n a line-by-line basis, and excluding non-controlling interests. and assuming full ddubon,
Mark-to-
marketon
effectre
Share of Less cash flow Valuation EPRANet EPRAN
jount non- hedges and surplis on assers assets
veniures conurolling Share Defermed refated debi Head trading 31 March 31 March
Group Bfunds  inleresis  oplions tax adjustments teases  properlies 207 2014
fa Em Em fm tmn Em Em tm tm Em
Retail properties 5.066 202 389 - - - 1524 - 4,654 7.341
OHtice properties 4155 2792 - - - - (19 83 7.015 7024
Canada Water properties 280 - - - - - )| - Feal 283
Other properties - -~ - - - - - - - -
Total properties 950 4813 1381) - - - {781 83 13,940 14 648
Investments in joint ventures and
funds 2766 (2786} - - - - - - - -
Jomt venture held for sale 540 540) - - - - - - - -
Other investments 154 (31 - - - -~ - - 151 138
Other net fLiabililes] assets [kyall B 7 34 3 - 75 - 13701 1347
Net debt (3.094] (1403 ny - - 155 - - 14,2231 14,765}
Dilvuon due to converlibte bond - - - - - - - - - 400
Netassets 2.476 ~ 1255) 36 3 155 - 83 9498 10074
EPRA NAV per share [note 2] N5p ?1%
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Filaancinl <rarainents

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUGITED
Table A continued
EPRA Net Assets Movement
Year ended Yoar
N March 2007 3 March X018
Pence per Pance per
£€m share - £m share
Opening EPRA NAY 10,074 59 2035 829
Income relurn : a0 3» 345 34
Capital raturm ts70) L | &) 907 Fis
Dividend paid ) 1z96) tzn 2351 21
Ctosing EPRA NAY 2498 915 10,074 9
Table B: EPRA Performance measures
-EPRA Performance ir es y table
2077 20t8
Penoe per Pence per
£m share m share
EPRA Earnings - basic ; ko 379 345 356
— dituted 390 78 n 341
EPRA Nel Initial Yield £3% 41%
EPRA topped-up’ Net Initial Yield ’ L5% 4.5%
EPRA Vacancy Rate 48% 2.0%
m? 2015
Netassel - Nalassel
wvalue per value per
Net assets share pence MNet assals share ponce
EPRANAY 9,498 275 10074 919
EPRA NNNAV 8938 861 9440 880
Calculation and recancitiation of EPRA/IFRS eamnings and EPRA/JIFRS earnings per share
- 207 2015
£m (£,
Profit attribatable to the shareholders of the Company ’ 193 1345
Exclude:
Group - current taxalion m 2
Group — deferred taxation . - 31]
Joint ventures and funds - current taxation - 1
Joint ventures and lunds - deferred taxation . i m -
Group - valualion movement 164 616}
Group - less |profitl on disposal of invesimenl properties and investments H 1351
Group - profit on disposal of trading properlies [FJ] 0ol
Joint ventures and fuads - nel valuation movement {including resuli on disposals| 75 (2631
Joint ventures and funds - capital financing costs . [ -
Changes in fair value of linancial instrurnents and associated close-out costs . 13 134
Non-conlrolling interesls in respect of the above . (kL] 5
Underlying Profit . 3% 363
Group — underiying current laxation R - Z
EPRA earnings - hasic 390 365
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond -~ &
EPRA earnings - diluted 390 n
. Profit altributable to the shareholders of the Company 173 1345
Oilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond' [k =] £
IFRS earnings - diluted® 150 1,303

! The 2014 comparative iigures jor the dilulve effect ollhe 2012 convertible bond and IFRS diluted earnings have been restaied - see Note 1
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Table B continued

2017 2hné

Weighted averaga number of shares 1,040 1036
Adjustment for Treasury shares mi 1]
IFRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares [basicl 1029 105
Dilutive effect of share aptions 1 2
Gilutive effect of ESOP shares 3 )
Ditutive elfect of 2012 corvertible bond 58 58
IFRS Weighted average number of shares ldiluted] 1,091 1.087
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible hond 58] -
EPRA Weighted average number of shares diluted] 1,033 1,089
Net assets per share
an7 2015
Pence Pance

Em pershare fm  pershare
Balance sheel net assets 478 9.619
Delerred tax arising on revaluation moverments 3 5
Mark-lo-markel on effective cash flow hedges and related debl adjustments 155 198
Uilution effect of share options 35 35
Surplus on trading properties a 3
Converiitle bond adjusiment - 400
Less non-conlrolling interesls (2551 21
EPRA NAY 9,498 5 10,074 19
Deferred tax arising on revatuation movements (1)) 124)
Mark-to-market on effeclive cash flow hedges and related deb\ adjustments nssi 153
Mark-to-market on dabl 1388) YY)
EPRA NNNAY 3938 BS1 9.640 880

EPRA NNNAY is the EPRA NAV adjusted 1o reflect the {air value of the gdebt and derivatives and (o include the deferred taxation on revaluations

and derivatives.

201 2018

Number Number

millian million

Nuenber of shares at year end 1,040 1,040
Adjusiment for treasury shares m 111}
IFRS/EPRA number of shares [basic} 1,029 1.029
Dilutive effect of share options 3 2
Dilutive effect of ESOP shares [ 7
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond 58 58
IFRS number of shares {diluted) 1.096 1,094
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond I8t -
EPRA number of shares [diluted) 1,038 1,096
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Finciteial statenienta

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDITED
Table B continued
EPRA Net Initial Yield and ‘topped-up’ Net Initial Yield

2017 b 178

m £

lnvesiment property - wholly-owned - 9210 9787
Investment property - share of joint ventures and funds 4,730 &£8a1
Less developments, residentiat and land 798] 1894]
Comgpleted property portfolio . 13,142 13,754
AMlowance lor estimated purchasers’ cosls ) 897 285
Grass up completed property porttotio valusation (Al 14,099 14.73%
Annualised cash passing rental income ) 607 607
Property outgoings (1)) 8
Anmumlised net rents (8] 598 59%
Reni expiration of renl-free periods and fixed uplifts' 30 63
“Topped-up” netannualised rent {€} 428 462
EPRA Net Initial Yield (B/A) ' £.3% £\%
EPRA "topped-up” Net Initial Yield [C/A) £5% £.5%
Including Rixed/minimurmn uplifis received in lieu of rental growth 1 24
‘fotal ‘topped-up’ netrents (D) 439 686
Overatl ‘topped-up” Net Initiat Yield (D/A] 448% 474
“Topped-up’ nel annualised renl &28 6562
ERVvacant space 34 14
Reversions . 38 42
Total ERY (E) 7a0 718
Net Revarsionary Yield (E/A) 5.0% 49%

T The weighted average geriod over whith rent-free periods expive is | yaar [2015/16: b yearl,
The above is stated for the UK portfolio anly.

EPRA Net Initial Yield [NIY}) basis of calculation

EPRA NIY is calculated as the annualised net rent {on a cash Row basis), divided by the gross valuz of the completed property portlolio. The valuation
of aur completed property portiolic is determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2017, plus an allowance for estimated purchaser’s costs.
Estimaled purchaser’s costs are determnined by the retevant stamp duty Liability, plus an estimate by our valuers of agent and tegal fees on notional
acquisition. The net rent deduction allowed for propetty oulgeings is based on our valuers’ assumptions on future recurting non-recoverable
revenue expenditure.

tn calculating the EPRA topped-up’ NIY, the annualised net rent is increased by the tolal contracied rent from expiry of rent-free peviods and luture
contracted rental uplifts where defined as not in kieu of growth. Overall topped-up’ NIY is calculated by adding any other contracted future uplift to
the topped-up’ nel annualised renl.

The nel reversionary yield is calculated by dividing the tolal estimaled rental vatue [ERV] for the campleted property pertiolio, as determined by
our extesnal valuers, by the gross completed properly portiolio vatuation.

The EPRA vacancy rale is calculaled as the ERV of the unrented, letlable space as a proportion of the total renial value of the completed property portiolio.

EPRAVacancy Rate
2017 2004
£m Em
Annualised potential rental value of vacant premises . % 14
Annualised potential rental value for the cornpleted pegperty portiolio 70 728
EPRA Yacanty Rate 4.8% 2.0%

The above is stated for the UK port{olio only. A discussion of significanl factors affecting vacancy rales is inctuded within the Strategic Report
Ipages 28 ta 30}, :
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Table B continued

EPRA Cost Ratios :
207 e

£m £m

Proparty operating expensss 23 5B
Administralive expenses B4 90
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 7”2 x]
Less: Performance and management fees [frem jeint veatures and funds| 9 91
Net other fees and commissions (81 8l
Ground rent cosls 2] 3l

EPRA Costs lincluding direct vacancy costs) (Al 100 108
Direct vacancy oosts 2] {11}
EPRA Costs lexcluding direct vacancy costs] 1B] 88 7
Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs £12 479
Share of joint ventures and funds {GRI less ground rent costs} 2% 222
Total Gross Rentat Income lecs ground rent costs [C] 641 651
EPRA Cost Ratio lincluding direct vacancy costs) {A/C) 15.4% 16.6%
EPRA Cost Ratio [excluding direct vacancy rosts) (B/C) 13.7% 9%
Overhead and operating expenses capilalised [Including share of joint ventures and funds) 5 4

In the current year, employee costs in relation 1o stall time on development projects have been capitalised into the base cost of relevant develapenent assets.

Tahle C: Gross rental income

2007 2014
£m £m
Renl receivable 633 419
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rent increases 8 34
Surrender premia 2 3
Gruss reatal income 543 656
The current and prior year information is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis. excluding non-controiling interests.
Table I): Property related capital expenditure
2007 2016
wentures ventures
Group  andfunds Total Group  and funds Total
Acgquisiions 88 - 88 238 - 238
Development 13t 1% 45 1119 58 162
Like-for-like porifolio &7 &7 "4 99 . [ 105
Clher 20 2 z ; 25 15 40
Total property related capex 306 563 349 466 79 545

The above is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis, excluding non-controlling interests and business combinations. The Gther’ calegory
contains amounls owing to lenant incentives of £10m {2015/16. £27m, capitalised staif costs of E9m [2015/16: E4m) and capitalised interest of E7m

[2015M14; 9l
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Other information =

Other infermation funaudited)
Acquisitions and Disposals
Paortlotio Valuation
Gross Rental Incame
Partiolio Yietd and ERV Movements
Ratad Portfolio Valuation - Previcus Classification Basis
Portfolio Net Yields
Portfotio Net Yields - Previous Classification Basis
Totat Property Refurn {as calculated by 1PD)
Occupiers Reprasenting over 0.5% of Total Coniracted Rent
Major Holdings
Lease Length & Qocupancy
Porifotio Weighting
Annualised Rent and Estimaled Rentat Value [ERV]
Renl Subject to Open Markel Rent Review
Renl Subject to Lease Break or Expiry
Superstores
Recently Completed & Cammitted Developments
Near Terrn Development Pipefine
Medwm Term Development Pipeline
Residential developmeni programme
Sustainability performance measures
Ten year record
Shareholder informalion
Glossary

Glasgow Fortlrightl
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Other infermation

UNAUDITED
:\c«iuisiﬁons and Disposals
Acquisitions N
Price Annuat
Price  [British Land Passing
: Real
Frem 1 April 2016 Sector ‘ m Em Emt
Completed
MNew George Sireat Estala, Plyrnouth Retail &4 .19 5
10-40 The Broadway. Ealing' Retail £9 &9 2
Harlech. Newporl - Tesco exchange? Retail 41 20 1
Tesco, Brislington - Tesco exchange? Retait [13 23 2
Hercules Unit Trust unit purchase? . Retail 8 18 1
Teesside Leisure Park Retail - 3 Rk} 1
Oock OHices Canada Waler 8 a -
Total 239 195 12
! Property acquisition exchangad and completed posi year end.
* Praperty acquisitions exchangad and complated post year end as part of a Tesco JV swap lransachion rasulling in a net £73m disposal of superstore assets
3 Umits purchased over the course of tha year. €18m represents purchasad GAV.
4 British Land share of annualised rent topped up for rent frees.
Disposals
Pruce Annual
Price {British Land Passing
{Gross) share} Rent
From 1 April 2016 Sector m Em m?
Completed
Debenharns, Oxlord Street : Retail 400 400 13
Superstares’ Relail 410 226 12
Partfolio of retail assets
[Debenhams Manchester, York Clifton Moor, Wakelield Wesigate) Retail " " 12
Ebury Gate Difices 34 kT 2
Dumiries Cuckoo Bndge Retail 20 20 1
56 - 70 Putney High Slreet Retail 20 20 1
Lisnageban, Londonderry Retail 15 15 1
Luton Power Courl Retail ¥ ¥
The Hempel Collection . Residential 14 14 -
Aldgate Piace . . Residential 46 23 s -
Exchanged®
The Leadenhall Building . Offices 1,150 575 17
Clarges, Mayfair Residential 1y 1% -
Total . . 2,328 1546 5%

' Ot wiuch £116m [Briish Land share) exchanged and completed post year end as part of a Tesco JV swap iransacton resulng i 3 net £73m disposal of superstore assels,
? Sales completing post year end.,
? Brinsh Land share of annualised rent tapped up lar rent frees
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Portfolio Valuation'

Change &7
s &
Group Funds Tt

Al 3 March 2017 fm Em €m H1 H2 Y
Regional Lfestyle 1120 1834 2954 ‘128) 18 18
Local Lifestyle 1.67¢ &T7 2148 1£.9) 0.4 185
Mutti-lets 2mM 23 5,102 X V] 0.7 2.0
Department Stores & Leisure 574 1 575 32 KR 5.1

Superstores 104 526 632 2.0 125 521
SotusfOther 345 - 345 37 8 55
Retail 3,836 2,838 4,454 {2.4} 0.7 (1.8]
West End 3940 - 3960 12.4} 17 10.8)
City 108 27 2.884 49) 44 10.8)
Offices 4,068 716 6844 1B3s) 28 (071
Residential® 156 19 171 - 2.4 42
Offites & Residential 4,228 2,79i 705 3.3) 9 {05
Canada Water ' m - m 21 9.0 10.8)
Total 8,311 5629 13,940 i2.8) 1.5 .4
Standing Investments 7.8 5.487 13,308 (28} 13 nsl
Developments 490 142 632 13.01 4.8 1.7

* Gn a proportonally consolidated hass inCluding the Group’s share of joint veniures and funds.
7 Valuation mavernant during Lhe year [after takung actount of capital expenditure] of proparbes held al the balance sheet date, inciudmg developments

{dassitiad by end usa), purchases and sales.

? Standatone residential.

Gross Rental Income'?

12 months to 31 March 2017 Anmuadised as al 31 March 2017
Ns& M &

Group Funds Total Group Funds Totad
Accounting Basis tm Em £m £m £m £m
Regional Lifestyle &0 a6 144 41 84 147
Local Lifestyle 8 27 125 88 26 14
Multi-lets 158 1m3 mn 149 112 281
Departinent Stores & L eisure 48 - 48 a8 - 38
Superstoras 9 32 £1] [ 32 38
Solus/Qther 20 - 20 20 - 20
Retail 235 145 380 213 144 357
WestEnd 129 - 129 125 - 125
City 5 14 121 4 104 108
Offices 134 116 50 129 104 233
Residential®. 4 - 4 & - 4
Offices & Residential 138 116 254 133 104 237
Canada Water ? - bd ] - 8
Total 382 2861 843 354 248 402
* Gross rental ncorne will differ from annuabised rents due to accounting adpustments for fured and miremum contracked rentat uplits and lease incentives,
? Ona proportiohally consolidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.
* Standalone residential
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(Hher inforntation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Portfolic Yield and ERV Movemeunts!

’ NEY ERV Growth %* NEY Yicid Movemen! bps?
AU31 March 2017 % H H2 FY Hi H2 FY
Regional Litestyte 49 1.3% 1.0% 2.3% 1.9 14) 12
Local Lifesiyle 54 1.3% 7% 25% 9 i 27
MultiHets 51 1L.I% 1.1% 24% 22 13) 18
Department Stores & Leisure 59 0.4% 0.5} 0.4% 4 18t sl
Superstores 55 [3.0% 11.0%) &.0%l 8 13 21
SolusfOthes 52 48% 0.0% £8% ¢ V] /4]
Rerail 52 0.9% 0% 1.5% 18 31 14
West End 45 3.3% 0.45%% 0.7% 16 i} L]
City* &5 a.72%} 0.4% 0.2% 7 1#3 15
Oifices 45 0% 0.6% 0.5% n 8) 15
Canada Water 34 0.9% 10.95¢) 0.9% 4 5 9
ot L8 0.5% D6% 1% 9 15) 15
' On 3 propastionally consolidatad basss including v Group™s share of joint ventures and hunds. E g 4 and ressfental assets.
* As calculated by (PD.
¥ including notcenal purchases s costs.
* Lty NEY 1¢ 4.6% pro torma for sale comgpletion of our 50% wilerest in The L g whuch axcharged i tha year.
. s
Retail Portfolio Valuation - Previous Classification Basist ’
Valuatron Changa %* ERV Growth %2 NEY Yield Movament bps
AL March 2017 tm H H2 FY Hi H2 FY H H2 FY
Shapping Parks 187 [T 9] 17 13.31 1.6% 0.38% 4% 26 (4} 20
Shopping Centres 2.276 2 08 hal 3% 13% 2% 14 1 12
Superstares 632 (3.0 [2.5) 5.2 f3.0% [16%) 14.0%) 8 13 21
Departraent Stores 164 54 30 : 6.7 0.4% 0.3% 0.7% 3 (o} {8l
Leisure 413 {0.5) 3.2 27 04% [0.2% 07% 4 121 n7)
Retail 4,454 (2.4 07 1.8} 0% 07% 16% ] ¥} w
' Ona proportionall; h 2 basis including the Group's share of peint vertures and funds.

7 Valuation movement during the year laher talung account of capital expenditure) dpnpu’liesi'mldalmehala:usheet&l& indluding developments

[dassifiad by end usel, purchases and sales.
? As catoutated by 1PO.
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Portfolio Net Yields'>-

EPRALppad Gverall bzpad et Nt

EPRA a1 upwshindial  up el indlis= equnient  revErSIonary

At31 March 2017 % b b % %
Regional Lifestyle £5 L XA L2 49 50
Local Lifestyle . a1 5.2 53 54 54
Multi-lets . 47 49 49 51 5.2
Department Stores & Leisure &0 &0 12 59 %1
Supersleres 5.4 36 54 53 5.3
Sotus/Other . 56 5.6 56 52 48
Retail 4.9 51 52 52 5.1
Wesl Endg 35 37 38 45 48
City* 37 &1 a3 45 51
Offices 3.4 3.9 31y L5 L9
Canada Water 8B 19 A 4 as
Total 4.3 45 &4 £8 5.0

! On a progoruonally consotidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventyres and funds.

 Induding netional purchaser's costs.

' Exduding commidted developments and residential assels.

* Induding remt contracted from expiny of rent-free periods and fxed uplts not in lieu of rental growth.

* Including fixedfminsmurn uplifts fexctuded from EPRA definition].

“ City n2t equevatent yield & 4_.6% and BPRA nat infial yied 154 235 pro forma for sale compledion of our S0% nierest i The Leadaniail Building which exchangad in the year.

Retail Portfolio Net Vields'*? — Previous Classification Basis

EPRA topped  Dverall topped Net Nat
EPRAnet uUp net nitial up aet iitial equivalent  reversionary
initial yield yield yeld yedd yield
At 3T March 2077 % h ko =% %
Shopping parks . 49 51 -1 52 52
Shopping cenlres 45 47 &7 50 51
Supersiores 56 5.6 54 55 53
Department stores 51 5.1 64 50 39
L eisure 63 43 74 &2 47
Retait ' 49 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.
' Ona prmu-hnnallyconsobdaled basis including the Group's shareof joint ventures and funds.
2 Including nolional purchaser’s costs.
! Exduding comsmitied developments.
? Induding renl contractad from expiry of rent-Iree periods and foted uplifts not in lie of rantal growth,
3 Incluthng fed/mnimurmn upbits lecduded rom EPRA definition].
Total Property Return (as calculated by IPD)
Relad Ofhces Total
Brylish Land (PD  BntishLand 1PD  Bridsh Land PD
Full Year ta 31 March 2017 % k) % % % %
€apitat Return na 123 0.4] 1.0} .2t (1]}
- ERV Growth 1.6 0 05 20 11 19
- Yietd Expansion? tabps 12bps 15bps 13bps 1Sbps & bps
Income Return 5.3 5.1 315 38 A3 47
Total Property Return 35 8 2.8 2.8 3 (X3

' On a propoertionally tonsctidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventures and hunds.
* Nei eguival yeld . ) "
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Chther inforniion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Occupiers Represeating over 0.3% of Total Contracted Rent'

2131 March 2017 : % of totat rent ‘¥ of totad rava
Tesco plc? 54 Vodafonz 09
JSainshury ptc 48 Asda Group a2
UBS AG 34 Aon Plc 09
Debenhams e Sportsbirect 0y
Kinglisher [B&Q{ 28 Microsaft 09
HM Government ! 26 10 Sports o8
Next pic 24 Deutsche Bank 08
¥Yirgin Aclive 19 Reed Smith (133
Facehook 18 HEM 07
Destsu Azgis 17 Mayer Brewn 07
Spirit Gm;:p 1.7 Mothercare a7
M&S plc ’ 16 TG Fridays 06
Wesfarmers [Homebase/Bunnings) 14 ICAP PIc 06
Alliance Bools 16 River Istand 0.6
Visa inc 15 M5 Amnlin Pic 06
Dixons Carphone 1.4 Credil Agricole 048
Arcadia Group 13 Peis at Home 05
Herbert Smith 13 Henderson 05
RBS 12 Primark 05
TK Maxx 1.0 Aramco 05
Gazrprom 10 House of Fraser 05
New Look 10 Sleinhotf 0.5
' Ona proportionally consclidated basis including the Group's share of joind ventures and Iunds‘_
? 4.7% pro farma for post yaar end net disposal of £73miin a Tesco SV swap transaction
Major Holdings .

Britessh Land Lease

share Sqh Renl rate tength

AU31 March 2017 % 06D £mpa’ %7 ys?
Broadgate 30 £850 190 983 8.2
Regent's Piace S 100 1.590 % M1 T4
Paddington Centrat 100 958 3 9.1 68
Meadowhall, Shetlield 50 1,500 84 979 b4
The Leadenhall Buitding* ! 50 603 40 229 10.3
Sainsbury’s Superstores® 51 2184 48 1000 10.4
Teesside, Stockion® 160 589 17 969 56
Drake's Circus, Plymoutty . 100 1132 Fal 959 89
Glasgow Fort 77 S10 N 983 59
Ealing Broadway 100 470 13 937 59

' Annualised EPRA contracted rent including W0, of Joink Yentures & Funds.

? Including accommodation under offer lincluding post year ransactions at 2 Finsbury Avenue and 4 Kmgdem Sireel or subject 1o asset management

{including space being prepared for flewble working} or assets beng readied tor development in the near term (1 Finsbury Avenuel.

3 Waghted average to first break.

* Sale exchanged in March 2017 with completion due post year end.

3 Comprises standatone slores.

* Includes Teesside Leisure Park acquired in the year.

! Im:lut.les New Gearge Street Estate, Plymouth acquired during the year,

-~ ’
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Lease Length & Occupancy

Avarage tease length years Docupancy rate %
At3% March 2017 To expiry Totreax  EPRA Qooupancy Oroupanty”
Regional Lifestyle 79 &7 973 T o917
Local Lifestyle 79 48 973 979
Multi-lels 79 48 973 78
Departinent Stores & Leisure 174 174 998 b}
Superstores 1z 03 100.0 w0oe
Solus/Other * 125 123 108.0 ions
Retail 95 2.4 979 983
West End 90 73 340 9740
Cily® 9.8 85 kAR 984
Offices 94 78 921 977
Canada Water 48 55 ¥7.6 98.8
Total 94 8.3 95.2 8.0
* On a propactionally consolidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventures nd hends.
2 Including acosmmodaton undar offer including post year transactiens at 2 Finshory Avenie and 4 Kingdom Street! or subjact bo assat managamant
finchuding space baing prapared for flexible workingl or assets heing readied for developimen] m the near tarmn {1 Finsbury Avenual,
* ity average tease length lo break rs 8.2 years pro forma for sale complatron of aur 5% inieresd w The Leadenhall Buvding.
Portfolio Weighting'
2007 2017 2007

2% losrent]  lcurrent) lprodorma'l
At31 March % % £m %
Regional Lifestyle 194 23 2954 214
Local Lifesiytle 163 15.4 2,148 161
Multi-tets 3’7 367 5,102 377
Department Stores & Leisure 69 41 575 42
Supersiores 53 45 632 3%
Salus/Qther 23 25 345 25
Retail 50.2 478 &£,654 48.3
West End 264 284 3.950 93
City 197 207 2884 13.7
Offices [? %] 491 4,844 485
Residential? 16 12 14l 1.2
Dffices & Reswdential 47.9 50.3 7,015 £9.7
Canada Water 1% 19 n 20
Total 1000 1000 13,940 100.0
Ofwhich London 58% S8% 8,050 58%

' 0w a proportionally consolidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventures and lunds.
joi

* Pro forma for developments under construction and committed developments at eslimated end value {25 detenmined by the Groug's external vatuers] and post year

end ransactions including the expected sale completion of our 50% interest in The Leadenhatt Buitding and the Tesco JV Swap transaction.

* Standatone residential.
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Other infprmation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Annualised Rent and Estimated Rental Value (ERV)

Anmaaltsed rent

ivatuation basisl £m’ ERYLm Avetrags renl Tpst

At 31 March 2017 Group F{\:rsrdss‘ Tolat Toizd Contractad® ERV
Regional Lifestyle &1 87 148 166 313 31
Local Lifestyle 90 28 ns 26 249 T 2631
Mutlti-lets % 1ns 266 90 280 29.6
Department Stoves & Leisure 3¢ - 34 ] 149" 1.4
Superslores 6 32 38 35 213 201
SolusfOther 20 - 2 17 78 178
Retail 213 147 350 In 285 B 28.6
West End? 132 - 132 1V '.'3&.2 422
City"s 4 103 107 150 525 &2
Qffices* 134 163 239 329 5314 &1.2
Residential® 4 - &4 3

Offices & Residential 0 103 A3 33

Canada Water 8 - 8 10 “we 210
Total 361 250 an He 303 332
' On a proportionath idatad basis wcluding the Group s share of joint ventures and funds.

? Gross rmlsplus..;mereruﬂ revievws are sutstanding. any inoeases ta ERV ias determnaned by the Group's external waluerdl, less any ground rents payable under head

leases, excludes tonlracted rent subject b renl tree and Tuture uplift.
3 annualised rent. plus rent subjact Lo rend free.
* Epst melrics shown tor ofhce space ondy.

* City average rent psl on a contracted basis is £50.1 and on an ERV basis is £57.4 pro forma for sale completion of our 507 interest in The Leadenhall Builds:
* Standalone residential.
Rent Subject to Open Market Rent Review'
At 31 March 2007

2018 9 2020 an nrz ns-20 2008-22
Far yaar to 31 Mardh m €m m £m 1, Em &m
Regional Lifestyle 13 17 12 18 13 42 73
Local Lilestyte 24 17 1] 1 ] b3 68
Multi-lets 37 34 22 29 19 93 141
Department Stores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Superstores 4 ? 10 12 3 2 36
Solus/Other - - - - - ~ -
Retail &1 &1 32 41 22 114 177
West End 2% 20 15 w 9 59 7
City 4 14 14 15 t 32 48
OHices . 28 4 29 s 10 n 126
Canada Water 1 1 - - - 2 2
Total 70 76 (3] &6 32 07 05
' On a proportionall lidaled basis including the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.
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Rent Subject to Lease Break or Expiry'

A 31 Mardch 2017

213 2017 2029 200 Froiyrd 2018-20 2018-22
Foryearto 31 March &m Em &m £m Em Em £m
Regional Lifestyle 19 10 14 10 135 &3 &8
Local Lifestyle 8 7 10 9 n ¥ <] £5
Multi-lets 27 17 24 9 26 &8 "3
Department Stores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Superstores - - - - - - -
Solus/Other 1 - - - 1 1
Retait 7 1B 24 19 26 &9 nL
West End [ 10 3 7 2 17 57
City 7 n n 9 2 29 &0
Offices 13 2 1% 24 23 48 7
Canada Water 1 1 - 1 - 2 3
Total L] 40 38 &b 49 119 24
% of contracted rent 6.3% §.3% 6.0% 7% 7.T™% © 18.6% 4%
' Om a propor \ly consalidated basis inctuding the Group's share of joint ventures and funds
Superstores )

Standatone Supesstores’ In Mulii-tet asseLs® Total Exposuret™
Yaluation Valuation Valuation
(British Capital [British Capital {British Capital
Store Sive No of Land share) Valua Lease Noof Land sharal Valuz Lease No of Land share] Valys Lease
‘MOsqf Stores m psf lenglh! Stores €m psi length? Stores m pd  length'
>100 [ 152 340 111 3 284 419 1.1 0 438 388 1
75-i00 10 17m 384 1.3 3 73 274 15.0 13 244 342 125
50-75 12 179 3564 0.8 - - - - 12 179 364 0.8
25-50 3 i5 272 8.1 3 32 456 15 & £7 in 167
0-25 2 [ 138 B1 21 98 4465 10.2 23 04 409 100
March 2017 33 523 352 10.9 n &89 397 12.6 &4 1,012 373 n.7
March 2018 &7 763 383 139 28 537 482 127 75 1,30 419 S5
Geographical spread 6ross Rent {British Land share) Lease Structure
Londan & South 58% Tesco £29m RPtand Fixed 10%
Rest of UK 42% Sainshury’s £24m OMRR 0%
Other E£Sm

Table includes £43m acquisivons and £114m disposals that exchanged and completed past year end #s part of a Tesco JV swap transaclion resulling in anet £73m
disposals of superslore assets
' Excludes £13m non-loodstore occupiers in supersiors lad assets.
? Exciudes non-Tood lormal stores e.g Asda Living.
3 Excludes £93m of mvestments held for irading compnsing freehold reversions in a pool of S3inshury's Superstores.
¢ Waightled average lease tenglh 0 first break.

4
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Othier inforouetivn

UNAUDITED CONTINUED -
{

Recendy Completed and Committed Developments!

. *

* Estimated headline rental value net of rent payable under head leases lexcluding tanant crmhvesl

* Forecast capital comwnitrvents wilkin our investment portfotio gver the next 12 months relating 1o leasing and asset enhancement.

170 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017

Le &
British Land PC Curramy Cust in Usder
. share ,Sght Catendar Value Come " ERV Offaxr
A 31 March 17 Sector % k] Vear Cro Ere’® £mt £m
& Kingdom Street Othice 100 147 g9z 151 18 25 79
Clarges Mayfair — Offices Office 100 51 Q228 135 & X 3 43
. Glasgow Fort Leisure Quarter Ratait 77 12 03201 8 - 04 0.2
The Hempel Phase Residentiat 100 25 Q&R & 3 - -
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 100 33 s &5 3 - -~
Aldgale Place Phase 1 Residential 50 yz3) Q22004 ~ 7 - -
Total Compteted in Year 48% 43 37 155 ns
100 Liverpoot Street Office 50 50 Qs20% nz2 152 18.4 -
Speke iLeisure) Retan &7 & 02218 4 14 12 08
Clarges Mayfair — Retail and Residential® Mixed Use 100 104 Q42017 362 52 03 -
Total Committed 490 &7 218 0.4 08
Retail Capex® i)
f On a proposik . hasisincMngtheGmnp'ssmmoﬁdmmnm' and turds fexcept arma wiich is shown at 160%]
7 Exdudes compleled sales ol E120m.
! Fram 1 Apnl 2017, Cost to come excludes nolional interest as i is capitalised i on each devel ak o capitali rate.
* Estimated headline randal value nel of rent payable ynder head leases lexcluding tenant incentivesh.
3 Cummmwesmumngmamwmmmmum
* Capex commilled and undenway within our i t portfolio relating lo leasing and asset management.
Near Term Development Pipeline!
British Land Curvent Costio
share sqlt Start Value Come ERV
At 31 March 17 Sector % ‘ogn On Site fm® im* £t Status
135 Bishopsgale Office 50 325 2017 107 55 94 Submilted
1 Triton Square Office 10g 66 2018 16 Fai i} 33 Resalution
’ o grant
1 Finsbury Avenue Office Bl 288 2n7 T7 3 17 Submitted
Plymouth |Leisura) . Retail 106 104 2018 - &8 31 Consented
Total Near Term 1,083 345 38 435
Retait Capex* 75
! On a propost b basis including the Greup's share of joint veniures and hmds[mpl areawhich is shown at 100%).
2 From | Apnt 2017 Cosltomemu:ludesmmnalmlervslasmtemshs capitabised on each devel L at our capatalisation rate.



Medium Term Development Pipeline

Bt
' share gh
AL 31 March 17 Settor % L)
28] Minzbury Avenue Offive 50 363
1-2 Breadgate Offica 50 n Pre-submission
Blassam Street Qllice o0 344
5 Kingdom Street® Office - 100 332
Galeway Building Office ., 109 105 Pre-submission
Meadowhalt [Leisucel Retail 50 322
Peterborough [Leisure] Retail 160 182 Pra-submission
Teesside (Leisure} Retail 100 8 Pre-submission
Bradford [Leisurel Ratail 160 £9 Pre-subrission
Aldgate Place Phase 2 Residenizal 50 "5
Eden Walk Relail & Residential Mixed Use 50 538
Total Medium Term excl. Canada Water . 3.0
Canada Water® Mixed Use 100 5500 - Pre-sub
* Planning conseni for previcus 240,000 5q i scheme.
} Assurned net area based on gross area of up to Tm sqft,
Residential development programme’
R Sates
od
British Carant Coestta 8 nB!
" Land share sqft PC Valus Come® Completed™
At 31 March 17 % q00 Date &m Em Erny
Clarges Mayfair 108 Q4 2007 347 52 278
The Hempel Phase 1 100 Q42016 4 3 - 7
The Hempel Phase 2 100 Q42016 45 3 -
Aldgate Place Phase 1 50 Q22014 - 7 ~ 7
Total Committed Residential 3% &5 278
' On s proportionally consolidated basis inclhuding the Group's share of joint ventures and funds lexcept area which s shoaom at 19078
! Exdudes completed sates of £120m.
* From 1 April 2017 Cost to come excludes notional interest as interest is capitalised individually an each develop atour capeimlisaiion rate.

! Al agreed sales price. -
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Uther iforition

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustainability performance measures .
Aligned 1o our corporate siratagy. our 2020 systainapidity sirategy is built sround four focus areas, which address major sodal, sonomic and
eswironmental trends to create valug for our slakehslders and the business.

The data below covers up 10 97% of our mulli-lat manzged portiobio by value [71% of assels under management] and 160% of developmant prajecls,
excet for EPC and Nood risk data, whare the scope covers 100% of ass2is under managemenl. Please see the scupe column lor indicalor spedific
raporting coverage.

Selected data has been independently assured for a decade. Selected data for 2017 has been independanity assurad by PwC in acoordance with

ISAE 3000 [Revised] and ISAE 3410 tn priar years, selected data was assured by PwC and athec providets. For the 2017 PwC assurance stalament,
more delailed data on all these indicators and additionat mdicators, please see our Suskainability Accounts 2017 wwwe.britishland com/data

British Land has been a signatory lo the United Nalions Globat Compact since 2009, For our 2017 Communication on Prograss, visit
wwniw. britishland.com/sustainabilityrepart

Parformnanoe Soope
fasselisor
WA rargat 7 2016 units)
Wellbeing
Detiver WELL ceriified cornraercial oflice to shell and core, and set oprporate policy Delver  Ontrack  Targe! eslablched -
for huture developments
Devetop and pilot relail wellbeing spedfication Deliver  Ontrack  Targetestabliched -
Increase the sense of wallbeing for shoppers, relailers and occupiers at our places Increase  Ontrack Baseline eslablished -
Define and trial methodology formeasuning productivity in offices Deliver Ontrack  Target eslablished -
Research and publish on hew devetopment design impacts public health outcomes Daliver  Ontrack  Target establishad -
Community
Implement our Local Charter at all stalled ts and major devetopment 1006 nfr. nir -
British Land employee volunteering 90% W% BL% -
British Land employee skills-based volunleering ' 2% 16% W% -
Cornmunity programme beneficiaries nwa 35625 29.482 -
Futureproofing [also see Carbon Reporting on page 38 and EPRA on page 1731
Oevelopments on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent for offices and Excelient 106% 9I% B82% 1313
or Very Good for retail
Carbon lscope 1 and 2] intensity reduction versus 2009 lindex score) 55% AL% 0% 6173
546/100 60/100
Landlord energy intensity reduclion versus 2009 lindex scorel 5% 35% 8% &HT3
45/100 621100
Landlord embodied carbon inlensity reduction per m?on projects over E50m versus 2015 15% nfr nfr -
Waste diverted from tandfill: managed propertios and devetopments 100% 8% 98% 104121
Energy Performance Certificates rated F or G nfa 4% 3% 27294/2389
On site renewable energyincome nfa [8%.000 £39.000 33
Portiolio at high risk of flood {by value) . nla 3% 5% 252259
Skills and opportunity lalso see diversity data on pages 25 and 72} '
Trer 1 and 2 conlracts Supply Cham Charter compliant 100% nir nfr -
[Hor prioritised contracts) R
Tier 2 supply chain spend within 25 mites Managyed properiies nfa 63% 81% 95104
Developrments nfa 0% 0% wi
Pripritised supplier workforce who Tier 1 suppliers 3% L% nfr -
areapprenticas — based on pitot study Tier 2 development suppliers 3% 1% ’ nfr -
Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage 100% 100% 100% -
Supptier workforce paid Living Wage Foundation wage at managed properties nfa 2% 7% 98/104
Supplier workforce living within 25 miles of our places nfa 05 &% 105112
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Sustainability performance measures continued

British Land has received EPRA Gold Awards for sustamabitity reporiing feve years running.

tassarmnn
2017 2015 2015 umited
EPRA best practice recemmentations on sustainability reparting?

Toial eleciricty consumniptian MWh) 172127 172.238 171619 F1105
TJotal district heating and cosling consumgiion {MWhI ] 0 8 o/
Total fuet tonsumption IMWh] 39,319 38734 346399 A0J48
Building energy intensity [kWhi Offices {pes ml 156.70 15564 15045 U
Relail - endosed |per m? 161.89 15697 17708 87

Retad - open air
|per car parking spacel 15001 133.66 124.88 3a/37
Total divect [Scope §] greenhouse gas emissions ltonnes CO,el 7409 7927 1519 $8/vz
Totat indirect {Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions {tonnes CO,el 35,9 3870 42503 987512
Greenhouse gas mtensily from building energy consumplion Offices lper il 0049 0075 0.074 HR
lionnes CO#] Ratatt — enclosed lparmd 0.067 0073 0038 w7

Retail - opan air
{per car parking space} 0.054 0.043 0.083 3937
Total water consurption (ml 663581 653490 557041 4045
Bullding water intensaty {m3 per FTE or 10,000 vistiors) Ofhees W59 15.08 1496 28427
Retail ~ erxclosed 947 1029 .23 &7
Raiayl - open air 284 179 194 18/20
Tolal wasle by disposal route onnes and %} Re-used and recycled 12,166 12.899 naz 6517

154.6%] 150 8%I 160.3%) :
Incinerated 9.236 8132 6.701 &S577
1£3.0%]) [38.3%l 136.0%)
Landhlled s 184 680 6577
[o.2%} 0.9%] 7%

Sustainably certilied assets — Energy Performance AmB % 30% 2% 22960738%
Certificales {% by value| CoE 4% &% TS% 229607389
FlIoG £% % I 2296/2389

' As per EPRA bast practice recammendations, total energy and waler data covers enengy and waier pracuned by British Land. Enengy and carbon intensity dala covers
common paris and shared services for Offices and common parts for Retail. Waler intensity data covars whole buitdings for Offices and comman parts for Retail
Intensity data for previous years has been restated lo align with our intensity index methodology. Per m? comprises nel indernal areas for Offices and conanon parls for
Relail. Waste data for previous years has been resialed lo apportion Material Recovery Fadility handled waste to recycling. incineration and/or landfill as appropriate.

For our full methodotogy and more detaited data on all these indicators and additionzl indicators, please see our Systainability Accounts 2017

www.britishtand.com/data
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TEN YEAR RECORD

Tha table below summarises the lasl ten years' resulls, cash Raovs and balance sheels.

mr e W w4 #D iz Py o0 w0y 7om8
€m fm Em T Em fm fm Ein fm £m (7o

Incame’
Gross rental incormne 443 654 418 597 567 572 341 541 450 70?7
Net rental income 510 620 585 2462 hél 544 518 545 58 667
Net lees and other incothe 17 17 17 15 15 17 18 15 20 AD
Interest expense [net] {159 1186] {z01 202 (204} 1219) 1212) 1256) (292} 1350)
Adminisirative expense 185) 94l {88) {78} 178 [78) 158} 165 &8l 73]
Undertying Profit m 343 313 7 2% 249 56 249 268 204
Exceptional costs
Inot included in Underlying Profit) - - - - - - - - 139l -
Dividends declared 296 287 277 266 234 231 .23 25 198 7%
Summarised balance sheets.
Total properties at valualion? 13980 4648 134677 12040 10,599 10,337 2572 8.53% 8.475 13461
Net debl 14,2235 1875690 (69181 14890) 18.266] 166901 [4373) KO8l (8981  (6.413]
Diher assels and liabilities {219} bid] 276 11231 {268) 1266) 1298) 5] {21 fiza)
EPRA NAV/Fully diluted adjusted netassets 9498 16074 2.035 7027 5947 5.381 5.101 4,407 37387 6936
Cach Raw movement - Eroup only
Cash generated from aperations I 341 s 243 197 m 82 248 406 &77
Cash outflow brom operations (18] 147 1331 (24} 171 5§ 3 12 1200] 1295}
Net cash inflow from operaling activities 343 294 285 219 190 206 210 136 205 182
Cash inflow [outAowl] from capital
expenditure, investments, acquisions '
and disposals 470 230 A1) 16601 1202 1547) f240) 1391 43 857
Equity dividends paid 2950 (2351 228l D9l 209 17120 vl nse Des) tn)
Cash loutflow] inflow from management :
of liguid resources and financing 1538) 283 20 407 213 630 157 1485) 58] 1830}
Increase {decreasel in casht - & 1341 7 i 77 2 542 377 48-
Capitalroturns B
|Reduction} grawth in rey assels? [5.7%} 115% 28.6% 17.8% 10.9% 5.5% 1577 301% S1.0%)  (21.6%]
Total return 2T% 14.2% 245% 200% £.5% 9.5% 17.7% 335% I61.6%]  [181%)
Totat relurn - pre-exceplional 27% 14.2%  2A5%  20.0% 4.5% 99%  177%  335%  [603% [18.1%)
Per share information’
EPRA net asset value per share NSp 19%p 829 588p 59%6p 595 587p S04p 398p 1.114p
Memorandum .
Oividends declared in the year 29.2p 28.4p 277 27.0p 26.4p 26p 260p 26.0p 298p 2906p
Dividends paid in the year 288p 280p 273p 2b7p  263p 260p 20p  ?73p  300p  2.7p
Diluted earnings .
Undertyng EPRA earnings per share 378p 34.p 30.6p 29.4p 30.3p 27 285 28.4p 4£1.0p 443p
IFRS earnings lloss] per share? W&7p N97p  1673p. 10.2p 31.5p 53.8p 95.2p 1324p  1814pF [251.0p]

* includwvg share of joint ventures and funds.
? Represenls movement in diluted EPRA NAV.

3 intluding surplus over bobk value of irading and developrrent properties.

¢ Including restatementn 2014 [see note 210 the hnancial statementsl, and exceplional inance costs in 200%: £119 milhion.

S 2008 restated lor IFRS. The UK GAAP actoums shows gross centat income of £620 mitlion and Underlying Prolit of £173 miltion.
* Represents movement in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movernents in cash under UK GAAP .

? Adjusted for the righls issue of 341 million sharesin March 2009
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Financial calendar

201718

Fourth quarier ex-gimdzend date
Fourth quarter dividend paymant date
First quarter ex-dandend date

First quarier dividend payment date
Half yaar results

29 June M7

4 August 2007

05 Octeber 2017
10 November 2017
16 Movember 2017

Second guarter ex-dividend date
Second quarter dividend paymen date
Third quarter ex-dividend date

Third quarter dividend payment date
Full year results

Fourth quarter ex-dividend date
Fourth quarter dividend payment date

January 2018
February 2018
March 2018
May 2018
May 2018
June 2018
August 2018

If offered, the Board will announce the availability of a Scrip dividend alternative via the Regulalory News Service no later than four business days
belore each ex-dwidend date. Scrip dividend allernatives witl not be enhanced. The split between PID and non-PID income lor each dividand will

be announced al the same time.

Reflecting the long term nature of our business, we will cease publication of lirst and third quarter trading updates going forward. We will continuz
to provide trading updales ahead of our AGM each year. The next AGM is scheduled for 18 July 2017 and we wilt continue to provide limely updales

on ihe business as appropriate.

Analvsis of shareholders — 31 March 2017

Humber . Balameasat
Range of holdngs % 31 Mach 17 %
1-1,000 5.83% 55.87 2541358 024
1.001-5,000 3.060 29.30 £,775.82¢6 0.45
5.001-20.000 462 634 6413736 062
20.001-50,000 238 2.28 7554 M DAA]
50,001-Highest 549 §.21 10769427 97.7%
Total 10444 100.00 1041035058 100.00

Nurmber Balance ac at
Haolder type v of holders. S 31 March 1P %
Individuals 6.410 4137 11,740,359 113
Nominee and inslitutional investors 4034 3843 1029294499 98.87
Total 10,444 100,00  1,041,035,058 100.00

¥ Excluding 13,284,245 shares held in treasury.
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Orher informatiun

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Registrars

British Land has appointed Equiniti Lirnited
[Equinitd tu adminisler its sharshalder register.
Equiniti can be contacied at:

Aspect House, Spencer Road,

Lancing, West Sussex BN?T 4l

Tel: G371 384 2143 {UK calters]

Tel: +44 (01121 415 7047 [Overseas callers]

Lines are open lrom 8:3Bam 1o 5:30pm
Monday Lo Friday excluding public holidays.

Equinili's website is: www.shareview.couk
By registening with Shareview, sharshalders can:

- wview your British Land shareholding online;
- update your details; and
- elect 1o receive shareholder

mailings eleciromcatly.

Equiniti s atso the Registrar for the BLD
Property Holdings Limited Stock.

Britich Land’s Debentures Registraris Capila
and can be contacted at:

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road Beckenham, Kent
B8R34TU

Tel: 0871 444 0300

Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network
extras. Lines are open from 9.00am to 5.30pm,
Monday lo Friday excluding public hotidays.

Share dealing facilities

By registering with Shareview, Equimiti
also provides existing and prospective UK
shareholders with a share dealing facility
for buying and sellnyg Brtish Land shares
online or by phona.

For more information, contact Equiniti

al www.shareview.co.ul/dealing or call
03456 037 037. Uines are open Monday to
Friday. 8.6Gam lo 4_36pe. Existing British Land .
shareholders will need the reference number
given onyour share certificate to register.

Similar share dealing facilities are provided by
other brokers, banks and financial services.

Registered office
The registered office of The British Land .
Company PLC is situated at:

York House

45 Seymgur Street

London WIH 7LX

Tel- +44 [0)20 7484 8466
Website: www.britishland.com
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Annual General Meeling

The Annual Genaral Meeting of The British
Land Company PLC will be held 32 The Hyalt
Regency Londen - The Chyrchill, 30 Portrman
Square, L endon WIH 7TBH on 18 July 2017

at 11.08am,

Dividends

As a REIT, Brinsh Land pays Proparty
Income Distribution {PID] and non-Propecty
Income Distribution lron-PID] dividends.
More information on REHTs and PiDs can

be lound in the Glossary on page 177 or

in the lmveslors section of cur website al
www.britishland.com/dividends

British Land dividends can be paid directly
into your bank or building society account
instead of being despaiched by cheque

Mare information about the benelits of having
dividends paid directly ino your bank of
building society account, and the mandale
form (o set this up, can be found in the
Investors section of our websile at

www. britishiand.com/dividends

Scrip Dividend Scheme

British Land may olfer shareholders the
apportunity to participate in the Sorip Dividend
Scheme by offering a Scrip Alternatva to 3
particular dividend from Lime lo time. The
Serip Dnndend Scheme allows partiapabing
shareholders tu receive additional shares
instead of a cash dividend. More inforration
is available on the Investors section of

our website at www.britishland.com/
scrip-dividend-scheme

Website and shareholder communications
The Brilish |and corporate websile conlains a
wealth of matenal for shareholders, including
the current share price, press releases and
information dividends. The websile canbe
accessed at wwwbritishland.com

British Land encourages its shareholders

to receive shareholder communicatians
electranically. This enables shareholders to
receive information guickly and securely as
well as in a more environmentally frendly and
cost-effective manner. it you would like lurther
information, please visil www.shareview.co.uk
or telephane the Sharehotder Helpline.

Shareholder fraud warning

Shareholders are reminded 10 be very vigilant
of share fraud. This auight include unsolicited
tetephone calls or lelters alferng lree
investment advice or offers o buy and sell
shares al discounted or inflated prices.

The Financial Conduct Autharity IFCA] has
published lots of useful advice on how ta
prolect yourseli from invesiment scams. This
mformation is available on the FCA website
www.fca.org.uk/scams or by calling the
Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 £758.

British Land | Annval Report and Accounts 2007

Share6Gift

Sharaholders with 2 senall number ol shares,
the value of which males it uneconomic v
sall iham, may wish o consider donating thew
shares 1o charily. ShareGift is a registered
charity {No. 1052688] whach collects and seils
uriwanted shares and uses the proceads

to support a wide range of UK charities.

A Sharefift donation form can ha obtained
from Equiniti and further informafion is
available al;

ShareGifi

The (i Mackiniesh Foundation Limited,
17 Carlton House Terrace,

London SW1Y SAH i

Tel: +44 10120 7936 3737

Website: www._sharegiftorg

Unsolicited mail

British Land is requived by law to make s
share register available on request to other
organisations. This may resull in the receipt
of unsolicited marl. To limit this, shareholders
may register wath the Mailing Preference
Seywce. For more Informiation, or to register,
wisit: www.mpsonline.org.uk

Honorary President

In recognition o} hus work building Brilish Land
into the industry leading company it is today,
Ser John Ritblat was appointed as Honorary
President on his reirement from the Board

in Decemnber 2006,

Tax

The Group elected for REIT status on 1 January
2007, paying a E388m conversion charge lo
HMRCU in the same year. As & consequence of
the Broup’s REIT s131us, tax is not levied within
the corporate group on the qualifying property
rental business but is instead deducied from
distributions of such income as Properiy
Income Distribulions to shareholders., Any
inconne which does nol Jall within the REIT
regime 15 Subject to tax within the Group in the
usual way This includes profits on property
rading activity. properly relaled fee income
and interest income. We continue to comfortably
pass alt REIT tesls ensuring that our REIT
status is maintained,

We work proactively and openly to maintain

a constructive relatipnship with HMRC, We
discuss matters in real-time with HMRC and
disclose all relevant facts and circumstances,
particularly where there may be fax uncertainty
or the lawis unclear. HMRC assigns risk ratings
1p all large companies. We have a low appelile
for tax risk and HMRC considers us to be ‘Low
Risk' {3 status we have held since 2007 when
the raling was first introduced by HMRC).



GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debtis the Group nat dabil and
the Group's share of joini venwere and funds’
net debi excluding the mark-to-market on
elfectve cash Rlow hedges and related debt
adjustments and non-contrelling inderests.
A recondliation between Group net debt and
adjusted net debt is included n Table A within
the supplementary disclosuras,

AGM is the Annual General Meeting of The
British Land Company PLC. The 2017 AGM will _
be held on 18 July 2017 at The Hyati Regancy
London — The Churchall, 30 Poriman Sguare,
London WIH 7BH cemmencing at §1.00am.

Annualised rent is ifie gross property reml
receivable on a cash hasis as al lhe reporting
date. Additicnally, il includes the external
vatuers estimate of additional rent in respect
ol unsettied renl reviews, burvsover rent and
sundryincome such as that from car parks
and commerdalisation, less any grovnd
rents payable under head leases.

Assels under management is the hull value
of all assets owned 2nd managed by British
Land and includes 300% of the vatlue of all
assels owned by joint ventures and hunds.

BREEAM [Building Research Establishment
Environmental Assessimenl Method] assesses
the sustainability of buildings against a range
of sodal and environmental anitesia.

Capital return is calcutated a5 the change
in tapital value of the portlolio. less any
capex incurved, expressed as a percentage
of capital employed Istart value plus capital
expenditure] aver the period. as calculated
by IPD. Capilal retwms are calculated
monthly and indexed to provide a refum
over the relevant period.

Contracted rent is the annuatised rent
adjusting for the indusien of rent subject
to rent free periods.

Customer satisfaction combines survey
results on overall experience ralings from
decision makers. properly directors. store
managers and visitors across our relail
and office businesses.

Dewveloper’s profit is the profil on cost
eslimated by the valuers thal a developer
would expect The developer's profil

15 typicatly catculated by the vatuers to
be a percentage of the estimaled total
development costs, including land and
national finance cosks.

Development cost is the total cost of
consiruction of a project to complelion,
excluding site vatues and finance cosls
Ifinance cosls are assumed by the vatuers
at a notional rate of 5% per annum}.

Bevelopment uplift is the lotal increase

in the vatue (after takung acceunt of capex
and capilalised interest} of properties held
for developmeni duning the panod. Il alse
indudas any developer’s profit recognised
by valuers in the period.

EPRA is the Furcpean Public Real
Estate Association, the industry body
for European REMs,

EPRA cost ratio [including direct

varanty ensts} is a proportionzlly consolidaiad
measure of the ratio of net overheads and
operaling expenses against gross rental
income fwith both amounts excluding ground *
rents payable). Net overheads and operaling
expenses relate to all administrative and
operaling expenses. nzl of any service fees,
recharges or olher income spedifically intended
to cover gverhead and property expenses.,

EPRA cast ratio (excluding direct

vacancy costs) is the ratio calculated abowe,
but with direct vacancy casts removed
from the net gverheads and operating

expenses balance.

EPRA eamnings is the IFRS profit after
taxation attributable to sharehalders of
the Company excluding investment and

‘development property revalualions, gains/

losses on invesling and trading proparty
disposals, changes in the lair value of

_fingngial instruments and assodiated’

close-out casts and their relaled laxation.
These iterns are presented in the capitat
and other column of the income slatement.
A reconciliation between profit atinbutable
ta sharehotders of the Company and ’
EPRA earnings is included in Table B
within the supplementary disclosures.

EPRA NAY per share is EPRA NAV divided
by the diluted number of shares at the
period end.

EPRA nat asset value [EPRANAY)isa
proportionally consolidated measure,
representing the FFRS net assets excluding
the mark-lo-market on effective cash flow
hedges and related debl adjustments, the
mark-to-market on the convertible bonds
aswell as deferred taxation on property
and derivative valuations. I includes the
waluation surplus on trading properties
and is adjusted for the ditutive impact

of share aptions. A reconadliation betwaen
IFRS net assets and EPRA NAV s incduded
in Table B within the Supplementary
Disclosures.
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EPRA net initial yield is the annualised rents
gen=rated by the portiolio, after the dedection of
2n estimate of annual recurming irecoverable
proparty owlgosngs, expressed 35 a percentage
of the portlolio vatuation ladding notionat
purchaser's cosis), excluding development _
and residential properties. :

EFRA NNNAY is the EPRA NAV adjusied 1o _
reftect the fzir value of dabl and derivatives and
te indude deferved axalion on revaluations.

) (R
EPRA otcupansy rate is the ERY of occupied
spaca gividad by ERV of the whale partfolio,
exdivding developments and residential
property.

EPRA topped-up nst inftial yield is the
current annualised rent, net of cosis, lopped-
up for contracted uplifis, where these are
not in liew of centel growth, expressed as

a parcentage of capital value {adding

nohonal purchaser's costs).

EPRA vatancy rate is the ERY of vacant space
dividad by ERY of the whole portiolio, excluding
devedopments and residentist property,

Estimated rental value [ERV] is the external
valuers epirson of the open market reni which,
on the date of valuation, could reasonably be
expected 1o be oblained on 3 new letling or
real review of a property.

ERV growth is the charge in ERV over a

period on the standing investment properties
expressed as a percentage of the ERV al the
sizrt of the period. ERV growth is calculated
rmonthly and compounded for the period subject |
to measurement, as calculated by 1PD. -

Fair value movemant is the accounting
adustrnent to change the book value of
an assel or Lability to its markzt value.

Footfall is the estisnated annualised number
of visitors entering our assets.

Footfall growth is the Lke-lfor-like mavement
in footfall against the same persod in the prior
year. on groperties gwnad throvghout both
comparable periods. aggregated al British
Land's ocwmnership share for each asset.

Gross investment activity is our share of
acquisitions. sales and capital expendilure
on investments and davelepment.

Gross rentat income is the gross accounting
rent receivable {quoted either for the period
or on an annoalised basis] prepared under
{IFRS which requires that rental income from
fixed / minimum guaranteed rent reviews and
lenanl incentives is spread on a straight-line
basis over the lease period {o earliest
termination date. This can resull in income
being recognised ahead of cash flow.
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Ciher informiarion

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Group is The British Land Company PLT

and its subsidianes and excludesits share

of joint venlures and funds (where nat treated
as a subsidiary] on a line-by-ling basis

li.e. not proportionally consoltdated).

Headline rent 15 the contractad gross rent
receivable which becomes payable afler all the
tenant sncentives in the letting have expired.

{FRS are the intemationat Financial Reporting
Slandards as adopted by the European Union.

Income returniis calculated as net income
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
‘over the pertod, as calculated by WPD. Income
refurns are calcelated monthly and indexed

to provide a relurn gver the relevant period.

Interest cover is the number of hmes net
fhnancing costs are covered by Undertying
Profit belore net financing costs and taxation.

IPD is 3 brand of reat estatz indicas, owned by
MSC1, which produce independent benchmarks
of property returns and British Land UK
portfolio relumns.

Lettings and lease renewals are compared
both ko the previous passing renl as at

the s1art of 1he finandial year and the

ERV immediately prior to letting. Letting
performance against ERY compares of
achieved tetting terms on long term lettings
and repewals against valuation assumplions
on bike-for-like space, calculated on a net
effective basis, aggregated al British Land's
ownership share tor each assel.

Leverage see loan to value (LTV).

Like-for-tike rental income growth

is the growth in net rental income on properties
owned throughout the current and previous
periods under review. This growth rate inctudes
revenure recognition and lease incentive
adjustments but excludes properties held

for development in either period and {ease
accounting adjustments related 1o fixed and
MRINENLM rent reviews.

Loan to value {LTV}is Lhe ratio of principat
value of gross debt less cash, shorl term

d its and liquid i tments la the
aggregate value of properties and irmrestments.

Managed portfolio consists of rulti-let
properties where we have contral of lacilities
and ulilities management.

Mark-to-market is the difference between
the hook value of an asse! or bability and us
market vailue.

.
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Net devetopment value is the estimatad and
value of a development project as ¢elermined
by the externat valuers when the building s
compleiad znd fnlty l2i (laking inle accuunt
tenant meentives and rolional purchaser’s
cosis). Itis based on the valuer's view on ERVs,
yields, {elting voids ant tenant incentives.

Net effective rent is the contractad gqross
rent receivable taking into account any
rent-free penod or other tenant incentives.
The incenlives are treated as » cost-to-rent
and spread over the lease period io the
eariiest larmnination date_

Netequivalen yield INEY) is the Gme weighted
average return [after adding notional purchasers
costs) that 3 property vwill produce. In accordance
with usual praclice. the equivalent yield las
delermined by the external valuers) assume
rent is ceceived anmualty m arrears.

Net initial yield (NIY] is the current annuatised
rend, nal of costs, expressed as a percenlage
of capital value. alter adding notionat
purchaser’s cosls.

Net rental income is tha rental income
receivatile in the period after payment of direct
propes ty outgoings which typically compiise
ground rents payable under head leases, void
cosis, net service charge expenses and ather
direct imecoverable property expenses. Nel
rental income is quoled on an accountng basis.
Net rental income will differ from annualised
nel cash rents and passing rent due to the
effects of income (rom rent reviews, net
pruperty outgoings and accounting adjusiments
for fixed and eninmum contracted rent reviews
and lease incentives.

Netreversionary yield [NRY] is the anticpated
yield 1o which the initiat yield will rise lor falll
once the rent reaches the estirmated rentai value.

Oocupancy rate is the estimaled rental value of
let unils as a percentage of the total estmated
rental value of the portfolic, excluding
development and residential properhies. it
includes accommeodation under olfer; subject
to asset management fwhere they have been
taken back for refurbishment and are not
available to let as at the measurement datel.
or occupied by Lhe Group.

Gmni-channel retailing seeks {6 provide the
customer with a seamless shopping experience
across channels, including stores. online and
bile. This emp S Cu s 1o swilch
between channels diring the shopger jousmney
according lo their preferences. For example, they
can use mobile in-store 1o research or make a
purchase, buy online and collectin-store, of they
£an buy in-store and initiate a relurn online.
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Bver rented is tha term used lo desoaibe
when the coniracted rent is ehove the esiimated
rent2d value

Overall topped-up netinitial yield {TUNIY]
is the EPRA toppagd-up net initial yisld. adding
ail contracied uplifts to the bised rends.

Passing rentis the gross rent. less any
ground rent payable under hoad leases,

Property income distributians {PiDs) are
peofits disinbuted ta shareholders whach are
subjact to taxin the hands of the sharehslders
as properly intome. PiDs are normally pad
n2t of wathholding tax, currently at 20%. whech
the REIT pays lo the tax authorities en behall of
the sharghotder. Cerlain types of shareholder
le.g. pension lunds) arz lax exempt and receve
PiDs without withhalding tax. REMs also

pay oul normal dividends, called non-PiDs,
which are taxed in the same way as dividends
received from non REIT companies; these

are not subject ko withhetding tax and for

UK indrvidual shareholders qualify for the

tax free dividend allowance.

Partfolio valuation is reported by the Group's
exiernal vatuers. In accordance with usyal
practice, they report valuations net, after the
deduction of notional purchaser's cosks, induding
stamp duty land tax, agent and leqal fees.

the Group's share of joint ventures and funds

| and exctude nor—controlling interests in the
" Group's subsidiaries.

Rack rented is the term used to describe whaen
the cantracted rent is inline with the estimated
rental value, implying nil reversion.

] .
Rent-free period see Tenant lor lease] incentives.

REMs are properly companies that allow
people and erganisations 10 invest in comimerciat
property and receive henehis as i they directly
owned the properlies themsetves._ The rental
incorne, alter costs, is passed direcily to
shareholders in the form of dividends. In the
UK REITs are required Lo distribute at least
20% of their tax exempt property incame to
shareholders as dividends. As a result, over
time, a significant proportion of the total return
tor shareholders is likely 10 Come from dividends.
The effect is that taxation is maved from the
corporate ievel to the investor level as investors
are liabte for tax as if they owned the property
directly. British Land became a REIT in
Januvacy 2007.



Rent reviews take place al mtenals agreed
in the lease [typi:aliy'mry five years) and
their purpose is usually to adjust the rent to
the arrent markel level at the neview date. For
upwards-only rent reviews. the rant will esther
remain at the sarne level of increase [if market
rents have increased] at the review date.

Rents with fixed and minimum uplifts are
either where rents are subjeci to contracled
uplifis at 3 tevel agreed at the ime of tetting: or
where the rent is subjact to an agreed minimum
level of uplift at the spedhied rent review,

Retailer sates growth is ihe like-for-like
movemneant in retailer in-store sales against
the same peviod in the prier year, on cccupiers
remaining in the same uril. providing sales
datla throughout hoth comparable penods.
aqgregaled at Britsh Land's ownership

share {or each asset.

Retail planning consents are separated between
Al, A2 and A3 - 25 set out in The Town and
Country Planning {Use Classes] Drder Within the
Al calegory, Gpen Al permission allows for the
majority of types of retadt including fashion to be
accommadaled, while Restricted Al permission
places timits on the types of retait that can operate
lfor example a restriction that only bulky goods
operalors are allowed lo trade al that sitel.
Claxs ipH Use for of the
Description w allfany

Al Shops Shaps, relag warehouses,
hairdressers_undertakers,
wravet and licket agendies,
past oifices, pet shops,
sandwich bars, showrooms,
dormeslic hire shops dry
deaners, luneral direclors
and internet cafes.

A2 Financal
and
professional
Services

Finandal services such as
banks and buitding societies,
professional services [other
than health and medical
services] and including
estale and employment
agendies. It does not include
betting offices or pay day
loan shops - these are now
dassed as “sui generis” uses.
For the sale of food and
drink for consymption on
the premises - restaurants,
snack bars and cales.
Cinernas, music and concert
halls, binge and dance

halls (but not pight clubs),
swimming halhs, skating
nnks, gYMNasiums or areas
lor indeor oy outdoor sports
and recrealjons.

Restaurants
ang cafes

D2 Assembly

and leisure

Reversion s change in reat estimated by
the external vatuers, where the passsng rent
is gfferent Lo the estimated rental value.
The increase or decrease of rent arises on
rent reviews and letting of vacant space or
re-letling of expinies. .

Serip dividend For certain perjods, British’
Land offers its shareholders the opportunity to
raczive dividends in the form of shares inslead
of cash. This 1s known as a Scrip dividend.

Standing investments are assels which are
not in the course of, or held for, development.

Tenant [or laase) incentives are mcentives
ollered la oceupiers to enter into a lease.
Typcally this witl be an initial rent-free peniod, or
a cash contribution to fit-out. Undar accounting
rutes the vatue of lease incentives is amortised
through the income statement on 3 straight-
line basis lo the earliest leasa termination dale.

The residual site value of a development is
calculaled as the estimated net development
value, {ess development profit. all development
ronstruction costs, finance costs lassumed at
a nohonal rate) of a project to completion and
notional site acquisttion casts. Tha residual is
determined to be the current sile value.

Topping aut is a raditional construction
ceremony to mark the occasion when
the structure af the huilding reaches
the highest paint.

Total property return is calculated as

the change in capital value_less any capex
incurred, plus netincome, expressed as

a percentage of capital employed over the
period, as calculated by IPD. Totel property
returns are calcilated monthly and indexed
to provide a return over the retevant perod.

Total accounting return is the grawthin
EPRA NAV per share plus dividends paid,
and this can be expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NAV per share at the beginning
of the period

Total shareholder return is the growth

in value ol a shareholding over a specified
period. assuming dividends are reinvested
to purchase additional units of stock.

Total tax contribution is 3 more
comprehensive view of tax contributions
than the accountancy-defined tax higure
quoted m most financial statements.

It comprises taxes and levies paid direclly.
as well as taxes collected from others
which we administered.

Turnover rent is where all or a portion of
the rent is linked Lo the sales or turnover
of the occupier
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Undear rented is the term used (o desciibe
when the contracted reni is below tha
estimated rentat value {ERV], implying
2 positive reveTsion.

Underlying earnings per share (EPS)
cansists of Undertying Prafit 2Rter tex divided
by the diluted weighted average number of
sharesinissue during the pericd. P

Underlying Profit is the pre-tax EPRA eamings
measure with additional Company adjustments.
No Compary adjustmenis were rmads in aither
the current or prier peried.

Valuation movement is the change inthe -
portiolio valuation and sales receipts of
properties sold during the period, net of
capitat expenditure, capitalised interest and
developmant team costs, and iransaction costs
inturred, expressed as 3 percantage of the
portfolic vatuation at the start of the peniod plus

-nat rapex, capilalised interest 2nd development
team costs, and transaction costs.

Virtual freehold represents a long leasehold
tenure fora period of up ta 999 years A
‘peppercorn, or nominal, rent is paid annuatly.

Weighted average debt maturity is calculated
by multiplying each tranche of debl by the
remaining period to its maturity, with the
surn of the results being divided by total

deht inissue at the period end.

Weighted average interest rate is the loan
interest and net derivative cosls per annum
at the period end. divided by total debt in
issue at the period end.

Weighted average unexpired lease term
is the average lease term remaining to
firsl break, or expiry. across the portfolio
weighted by cantracled reatal income
fincluding rent-freesk. The calculation
erclurdes residential leases and properiies
allocated as developments.

Yield on cust is the estimated annual rent
of a completed development divided by
the total cost of development including
site value and notional finance cosis to
the point of assurned rent commencement,
expressed as a percenlage raturn,

Yield shiftis a movement {usually expressed
in bps] in the net equivalent yield of a preperty
assel, or like-for-like portfolio, overa given
period, weighted by net capital value,
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Forward-looking statements

This Annwal Report contains certain fmrd-loakmg statements. Such
staternents raflect current views on, 2mong other things. our markais,
aclivities, projections, objectives and prospects. Such forward-looking’

st S can som2times. hul not abways, be identified by their reference
tg a date or ot in the future or the use of forwand-looking terminalogy.
including terms such as "belieyas’, ‘esimales” “anlicipales’. ezpecls’.

targal’, atey, ‘'may’. likely 10°. "'will”, "would’, ‘could’. "shoulg’ or similar
expressions of in each case their negative or other vanalions oF
comparable lerminology. By thiwnr nature, forward-looking statemants
involve inherent risks, p and uncerlainties because they relate
1o luture events and depend on Crtumsiances whith may or May not oocur
and ray be beyond our ability  conirol or predicl. Forward-looking
statements should be regarded with caution as acluat results may differ
materiaily from those expressed in or impliad by such stalements.

Important factors that could cause actual results, performante or
achievements of British Land te differ materially irom any auttomes

. or results exprassed or impliad by such foreard-looki
include. amang other things: lz) general business and polmcat social and
econamic conditions globalty, {&] the o =5 of the referendum on
Brilzin leaving the EU_{¢] industry and market trends including damand
in the preperty investrent market and property price wolalilityl, [d}
corngetivon, (el the behaviour of other market participants. {f] changes in

government and other regul . including in relation 1o the envir
health and salety and taxation lin parn:uiar n mspeci of British Land's
status as a Real Estate lnvest Trus), Ig) inflation and ¢ o

confidence, [h] labour relations and work stoppages, [i} natural disasters
and adverse weathar conditions, {jl tervorism and acts of war, {k) Briush
Land's overalt business strategy. risk appelite and investmeni choices

in i1s porifolic management. Ul tegal ar olher proceedings against or
alfecling British Land, lm) reliable and secure 17 inlrastructure, [nl
changes in occupier d dand t t default, lo] changes in financial
and eguity markels including interest and exchange rata Rlucl

[p} changes in accounting practices and the interpretalion of accounting
standards and [q] the availability and cost of finance. The Company's
principal risks are described in greater delail in the section of this Annual
Report headed Risk Management and Principal Risks, Forward -looking
staterments in this Annual Repory, or the Brilish Land websile or made
subsequently. which are atiributable to Brilish Land or persons acling
on its behall should therelore be construed in light of all such factors.

lalor mation contained in this Annual Report relating o British Land or
its share price or the yield on its shares are not guarantees ol and shoyld
not be relied upon as an indicator of, luture performance. and nothing

in this Annhual Repori should be construed as a prolit forecast or profit
estimate. Any torwand-loaking stalements made by or on behall o British
Land speak only as of the date they are made. Such lorward-looking
s\atements are expressly qualilied in their entirety by the lactors referred
10 above and no representation. assurance, guarantee or warranky is given
in relation to them lwhether by British Land or any of ils associates,
directors, othicers, employ or advisers), including as to their
completensss, accuracy or the hasis on which they were prepared.

Other than in accordance with our legal and regulatory shligations
finctuding under the UK Financial Conduct Authecity’s Listing Rules,
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Market Abuse Regulalions],
British Land does not intend or undertake to updale or revise forward-
lonking statements \c refllecl any changes in British Land's expectations
with regard thereto or any changes in information, eveats, conditions

or circumstances on which any such statement is based. This document
shatl not. under any circamslances. create any implication that there
has been no change in the business or alfairs of British Land since the
date of this docurnent or that Lhe informaltion contained herein is correct
as al any ime subsequent lo this date.
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